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This document is important and requires your immediate attention. You are advised to consult your investment dealer, stockbroker, bank
manager, lawyer or other praofessional advisor if you have any questions regarding this Offer. No securities commission or similar authority in
Canada or the Secunties Exchange Commission in the United States has in any way passed on the merits of the securities offered
hereunder and any representation to the contrary is an offence.

OFFER TO PURCHASE

all of the common shares and

6% convertible subordinate debentures due
May 15, 2008
of

ClubLink Corporation
By
Tri-White Corporation

on the basis of, at the option of the holder, for each Common Share of ClubLink Corporation

$7.50 cash
or
2.5 Common Shares of Tri-White Corporation,

or any combination thereof,
subject to the maximum cash consideration and the maximum share consideration set out herein; and

on the basis of, for each $1,000.00 principal amount of 6% convertible subordinate debentures of
ClubLink Corporation due May 15, 2008, $1,000.00 principal amount of 6% convertible subordinate debentures of
Tri-White Corporation due May 15, 2008.

The Offer by Tri-White Corporation (the “Offeror”) to purchase (i) all of the common shares of ClubLink Corporation
(“ClubLink”) issued and outstanding at any time during the Offer Period (as hereinafter defined), including the common shares of
ClubLink issuable upon the exercise of stock options and the conversion of Debentures (as hereinafter defined) (collectively, the
“Common Shares”) other than Common Shares held by the Offeror and its affiliates, and (ii) all of the outstanding 6% convertible
subordinate debentures due May 15, 2008 (the “Debentures”) of ClubLink issued and outstanding at any time during the Offer
Period will be open for acceptance until midnight (Toronto time) on December 20, 2002 (the “Expiry Time”), unless withdrawn or
extended. The Offer was initially announced by press release issued on September 13, 2002 and was revised by press release dated
October 2, 2002. At the date hereof, the Offeror owns 5 million Common Shares, or approximately 26.6% of the outstanding
Common Shares (approximately 20.0% on a diluted basis). The Offer is conditional upon, among other things, there being validly
deposited under the Offer and not properly withdrawn at the Expiry Time (i) that number of Common Shares which, together with
the Common Shares owned by the Offeror, represent at least 50.1% of the Common Shares outstanding, and (ii) with respect to
the Debentures only, Debentures that represent at least 75% of the outstanding principal amount of Debentures. This condition
and the other conditions to the Offer are fully described under Section 5 of the Offer, “Conditions”.

The Common Shares and the Debentures are listed for trading on The Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSX”). On September 12,
2002, the last trading day prior to the announcement of the Offer, the closing price of the Common Shares on the TSX was $6.60
and the closing price for the Debentures was $80.00 per $100.00 principal amount. The closing price on the TSX on the last trading
day prior to the date of this Offer of the Common Shares and the Debentures was $7.80 and $79.55 respectively. The year-to-date
weighted average trading price of the Common Shares on the TSX as of November 14, 2002 was $7.17.

The Offeror has applied to list the Tri-White common shares and 6% convertible subordinate debentures issuable in connection
with the Offer on the TSX. Listing will be subject to the Offeror fulfilling all the listing requirements of the TSX. Listing of the
TWH Debentures (as hereafter defined) will be subject to a minimum distribution of $2 million principal amount of
TWH Debentures.

Holders of Common Shares or Debentures wishing to accept the Offer must properly complete and duly execute the applicable
accompanying Letter of Transmittal (which, for Common Shares, is printed on blue paper and which, for Debentures, is printed on
yellow paper) or a manually executed facsimile thereof and deposit it, together with certificates representing their Common Shares
or Debentures, as the case may be, and all other documents required by the applicable Letter of Transmittal, at any one of the
offices of Computershare Trust Company of Canada (the “Depositary”) shown on the applicable Letter of Transmittal and on the
back page of this document, all in accordance with the transmittal instructions in the applicable Letter of Transmittal. Alternatively,
Shareholders and Debentureholders who wish to accept the Offer and whose security certificates are not immediately available
may deposit such certificates by following the procedure set forth in Section 3 of the Offer, “Manner and Time of Acceptance”.

Questions and requests for assistance may be directed to the Depositary and additiona! copies of this document, the applicable
Letter of Transmittal and Notice of Guaranteed Delivery may be obtained, without charge, on request from the Depositary at its
office shown in the applicable Letter of Transmittal and on the back page of this document. Persons whose Common Shares or
Debentures are registered in the name of a nominee should contact their broker, investment dealer, bank, trust company or other
nominee for assistance in depositing their ClubLink Securities to the Offer.

The Depositary for the Offer is Computershare Trust Company of Canada.
November 15, 2002




NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS AND DEBENTUREHOLDERS NOT RESIDENT IN CANADA

THE TWH SHARES AND TWH DEBENTURES ISSUABLE PURSUANT TO THE OFFER HAVE
NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED OR OTHERWISE QUALIFIED FOR DISTRIBUTION
UNDER THE LAWS OF ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE OF CANADA AND, IN PARTICULAR, HAVE
NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN THE OFFER, NO TWH SHARES OR TWH DEBENTURES WILL
BE DELIVERED TO ANY PERSON WHO IS, OR WHO APPEARS TO THE OFFEROR OR THE
DEPOSITARY TO BE, A RESIDENT OF ANY FOREIGN JURISDICTION (A “NON-CANADIAN
SHAREHOLDER OR DEBENTUREHOLDER”), UNLESS IT IS ESTABLISHED TO THE
SATISFACTION OF THE OFFEROR, WHOSE DETERMINATION SHALL BE FINAL AND BINDING,
THAT THE TWH SHARES OR TWH DEBENTURES MAY BE LAWFULLY DELIVERED IN SUCH
JURISDICTION WITHOUT FURTHER ACTION BY THE OFFEROR AND WITHOUT SUBJECTING
THE OFFEROR TO ANY REGISTRATION, REPORTING OR OTHER SIMILAR REQUIREMENT. SEE
SECTION 14 OF THE OFFER, “SHAREHOLDERS NOT RESIDENT IN CANADA”.

The Offer is made for the securities of a foreign issuer. The Offer is subject to Canadian disclosure
requirements that are different from disclosure requirements in the United States. Financial statements
included in this document have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards and may not
be comparable to the financial statements of United States companies.

Shareholders and Debentureholders should be aware that the purchase and sale of Common Shares and
Debentures pursuant to the Offer may have tax consequences both in the United States and Canada. Such
consequences for investors who are resident in, or citizens of, the United States may not be described fully herein.

The enforcement by investors of civil liabilities under United States federal securities laws may be affected
adversely by the fact that the Offeror is organized pursuant to the Canada Business Corporations Act, that some or
all of its officers and directors may be residents of a foreign country and that a portion of the assets of the Offeror
and of said persons may be located outside the United States. The enforcement by investors of civil liabilities
under United States federal securities laws may also be affected adversely by the fact that ClubLink is located in
Canada and that all of its officers and directors are residents of Canada, and that all of the assets of ClubLink are
located outside the United States. It may be difficult to compel a Canadian company and its affiliates to subject
themselves to a U.S. court’s judgment.

Investors should be aware that the Offeror or its affiliates, directly or indirectly, may bid for or make
purchases of Common Shares or Debentures or securities convertible into Common Shares or Debentures during
the period of the Offer, as permitted by applicable laws or regulations of Canada or its provinces or territories.

THIS TRANSACTION HAS NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY ANY SECURITIES
REGULATORY AUTHORITY NOR HAS ANY SECURITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY PASSED UPON
THE FAIRNESS OR MERITS OF SUCH TRANSACTION OR UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF
THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY
IS UNLAWFUL.

All references to currency amounts in the Offer, including the Summary preceding it, and the Circular are in
Canadian dollars, unless otherwise specifically indicated. As at November 14, 2002, the Bank of Canada noon
exchange rate was U.S.$1.00 = Cdn.$1.5747.

This document does not constitute an offer or a solicitation to any person in any jurisdiction in which such
offer or solicitation is unlawful. The Offer is not being made to, nor will deposits be accepted from or on behalf
of, holders of Common Shares or Debentures in any jurisdiction in which the making or acceptance thereof
would not be in compliance with the laws of such jurisdiction. However, the Offeror may, in its sole discretion,
take such action as it may deem necessary to extend the Offer to holders of Common Shares or Debentures in
any such jurisdiction.
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GLOSSARY

In the Offer, Circular, Letters of Transmittal and Notices of Guaranteed Delivery the following terms shall have
the following meanings:

“affected securities” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 16 of the Circular, “Acquisition of Common
Shares and Debentures Not Deposited”;

“affiliate” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the CBCA;

“Business Day” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Part XX of the Securities Act (Ontario);
“Cash Option” means $7.50 in cash for each Common Share;

“CBCA” means the Canada Business Corporations Act,

“CDS” means The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited or its successors;

“Circular” means the take-over bid circular accompanying the Offer and forming part hereof;
“ClubLink” means ClubLink Corporation, a corporation existing under the OBCA,;

“ClubLink Securities” means the Common Shares and Debentures;

“Commitment” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 8 of the Circular, “Source of Funds”;

“Common Shares” means common shares in the capital of ClubLink issued and outstanding at any time during

the Offer Period, including common shares in the capital of ClubLink issuable upon the exercise of Stock
Options and the conversion of Debentures;

“Competition Act” means the Competition Act (Canada), as amended;

“Compulsory Acquisition” has the meaning ascribed thereto under Section 16 of the Circular, “Acquisition of
Common Shares and Debentures Not Deposited”;

“CVMQ” means the Commission des valeurs mobilieres du Québec;

“Debenture Indenture” means the trust indenture dated May 12, 1998 between ClubLink and CIBC Mellon
Trust Company pursuant to which the Debentures were issued;

“Debentureholder” means a holder of Debentures;
“Debentures” means the 6.0% convertible subordinate debentures of ClubLink due May 15, 2008;

“Debenture Trustee” means CIBC Mellon Trust Company, as the trustee of the Debentures pursuant to the
terms of the Debenture Indenture;

“Depositary” means Computershare Trust Company of Canada, at the offices specified in the Letters of
Transmittal;

“diluted basis” means, with respect to the number of outstanding Common Shares at any time, such number of
outstanding Common Shares calculated assuming that all outstanding Stock Options are exercised and all
outstanding Debentures are converted into Common Shares and with respect to the number of outstanding

TWH Shares at any time, such number of outstanding TWH Shares calculated assuming all outstanding options
to purchase TWH Shares are exercised,;

“Dissenting Offeree” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 16 of the Circular, “Acquisition of Common
Shares and Debentures Not Deposited”;

“EBITDA” means earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, which measure is
provided to assist the Offeror and investors in determining the ability of the Offeror to generate cash from
operations but does not have any standardized meaning prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles
and may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies;

“Effective Date” means the date on which the Offeror takes up and pays for the Purchased Securities;




“Eligible Institution” means a Canadian Schedule I chartered bank, a major trust company in Canada, a
member of the Securities Transfer Agent Medallion Program or a member of the Stock Exchanges Medallion
Program;

“Expiry Date” means December 20, 2002, unless the Offer is extended (pursuant to Section 4 of the Offer,

‘“Variation or Extension of the Offer”), in which event the Expiry Date shall mean the latest date on which the
Offer as so extended expires;

“Expiry Time” means the Initial Expiry Time, unless the Offer is extended (pursuant to Section 4 of the Offer,
“Variation or Extension of the Offer”), in which event the Expiry Time shall mean the latest time on which the
Offer as so extended expires;

“Fractional Consideration” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 1 of the Offer, “The Offer”;
“Initial Expiry Time” means midnight (Toronto time) on December 20, 2002;

“Interest Payment Election Amount” has the meanings ascribed thereto in Section 9 of the Circular,
“Description of the TWH Debentures”;

“Interest Payment Election Notice” has the meanings ascribed thereto in Section 9 of the Circular, “Description
of the TWH Debentures”;

“Interest Payment Election” has the meanings ascribed thereto in Section 9 of the Circular, “Description of the
TWH Debentures”;

“Letter of Transmittal” means the applicable letter of transmittal and election form accepting the Offer in the

form printed on (i) blue paper, for Common Shares, and (ii) yellow paper, for Debentures, accompanying the
Offer and Circular;

“Maximum Cash Consideration” means $55.5 million;
“Maximum Share Consideration” means 18,457,626 TWH Shares;

“Minimum Debenture Condition” has the meaning ascribed thereto in paragraph (b) of Section 5 of the Offer,
“Conditions®’;

“Minimum Share Condition” has the meaning ascribed thereto in paragraph (a) of Section 5 of the Offer,
“Conditions™;

“Notice of Change” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 6 of the Offer, “Notice of Change”;

“Notice of Guaranteed Delivery” means the applicable notice of guaranteed delivery in the form printed on
(i) green paper, for Common Shares, and (ii) pink paper, for Debentures, accompanying the Offer and Circular;

“Notice of Withdrawal” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 7 of the Offer, “Withdrawal of Deposited
Common Shares and Debentures’;

“OBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (Ontario);

“Obligations” means, with respect to any person, all items which in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles would be included as liabilities on the liability side of the balance sheet of such
person and all contingent liabilities of such person;

“Offer” means the offer to purchase all of the Common Shares and Debentures made hereby to Shareholders
and Debentureholders, the terms and conditions of which are set forth in the Offer Documents;

“Offer Costs” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 8 of the Circular, “Source of Funds”;

“Offer Documents” means, collectively, the Offer, Circular, Letters of Transmittal and Notices of Guaranteed
Delivery;

“Offeror’s Notice” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 16 of the Circular, “Acquisition of Common
Shares and Debentures Not Deposited”;

“Offer Period” means the period commencing on November 15, 2002, and ending at the Expiry Time;




“Offer Price” means $7.50 in respect of each Common Share and $1000.00 principal amount of TWH

Debentures for each $1000.00 principal amount of Debentures, payable as set forth in Section 1 of the Offer,
“The Offer”,;

“OSC” means the Ontario Securities Commission;

“Other Securities” means any and all dividends, distributions, payments, securities, rights, assets or other

interests declared, paid, issued, distributed, made or transferred on or in respect of the Purchased Securities
after November 15, 2002;

“person” means an individual, body corporate, partnership, syndicate or other form of unincorporated
association;

“Policy Q-27” means Policy No. Q-27 of the CVMQ, as amended;
“Purchased Securities” means Common Shares and Debentures taken up and paid for under the Offer;

“Regulations” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 16 of the Circular, “Acquisition of Common Shares
and Debentures Not Deposited”;

“Rights” means the rights issued pursuant to the Rights Plan;
“Rights Plan” means the ClubLink shareholder rights plan made as of September 19, 2002;
“RPCL’ has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 3 of the Circular, “Background to the Offer”;

“Rule 61-501” means OSC Rule 61-501 — Insider Bids, Issuer Bids, Going Private Transactions and Related
Party Transactions;

“Securities Authorities” means the appropriate securities commission or similar regulatory authority in Canada
and each of the provinces and territories thereof;

*“Semnior Liabilities” has the meaning ascribed thereto under Section 9 of the Circular, “Description of the TWH
Debentures”;

“Shareholder” means a holder of Common Shares;

“Share Option” means 2.50 TWH Shares for each Common Share;

“Special Committee” means the special committee of the board of directors of ClubLink;
“Stock Options” means any outstanding options to acquire Common Shares;

“Subsequent Acquisition Transaction” has the meaning ascribed thereto under Section 16 of the Circular,
“Acquisition of Common Shares and Debentures Not Deposited”;

“Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act (Canada), as amended,
“Tri-White” or the “Offeror” means Tri-White Corporation, a corporation existing under the CBCA;
“Trustee” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 9 of the Circular, “Description of the TWH Debentures”;

“Trust Indenture” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 9 of the Circular, “Description of the TWH
Debentures’’;

“TSX” means The Toronto Stock Exchange;

“TWH Debenture Obligation” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 9 of the Circular, “Description of the
TWH Debentures”;

“TWH Debenture Payment Date” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 9 of the Circular, “Description of
the TWH Debentures”;

“TWH Debentures” means the 6.0% convertible subordinated debentures of Tri-White due May 15, 2008;

“TWH Shares” means common shares in the capital of TWH;




“TWH Shares Bid Request” has the meanings ascribed thereto in Section 9 of the Circular, “Description of the
TWH Debentures”;

“TWH Shares Delivery Date” has the meanings ascribed thereto in Section 9 of the Circular, “Description of the
TWH Debentures”;

“TWH Shares Proceeds Investment” has the meanings ascribed thereto in Section 9 of the Circular,
“Description of the TWH Debentures”;

“TWH Shares Purchase Agreement” has the meanings ascribed thereto in Section 9 of the Circular,
“Description of the TWH Debentures”;

“U.S.” or “United States” means the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any State of the
United States and the District of Columbia;

“Valuations” means the written valuations dated November 12, 2002 of BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc. to the Special
Committee as to the fair value as of November 12, 2002 of the Common Shares and Debentures and the fair

value as of November 12, 2002 of the TWH Shares and the TWH Debentures as required pursuant to
Rule 61-501 and Policy Q-27;

“weighted average trading price” means the average price of all reported trades throughout the period
referenced, based on the volumes at each price; and

“White Pass” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 1 of the Circular, “The Offeror”.

In the Offer Documents, words importing the singular number only shall include the plural and vice versa,
and words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender and vice versa.




SUMMARY

The following is only a summary of selected information contained in the Offer Documents and is qualified in its
entirety by reference to the detailed provisions of those documents. Shareholders and Debentureholders are urged to read
the Offer Documents in their entirety. The information concerning ClubLink contained in the Offer Documents has been
taken from or is based upon publicly available documents or records on file with Securities Authorities and other public
sources at the time of the Offer, unless otherwise indicated, and cannot be independently verified by the Offeror. Certain

capitalized terms used in this summary are defined under “Glossary”. All references to “dollars” or $ refer to Canadian
dollars unless otherwise specified.

The Offer

The Offeror hereby offers to purchase, on and subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter specified
(including, if the Offer is extended or amended, the terms and conditions of any extension or amendment), (i) all
of the issued and outstanding Common Shares, other than Common Shares held by the Offeror and its affiliates,
including Common Shares which may become outstanding on the exercise of ClubLink Stock Options and the

conversion of Debentures, but excluding Common Shares issuable upon exercise of the Rights, for, at the option
of the Shareholder:

(a) the Cash Option, consisting of $7.50 cash;
(b) the Share Option, consisting of 2.5 TWH Shares; or
(¢) any combination of the above

as elected by a Shareholder in the applicable Letter of Transmittal, subject to proration as set forth in
Section 1 of the Offer, “The Offer”;

and (ii) all of the issued and outstanding Debentures on the basis of $1,000.00 principal amount of TWH
Debentures for each $1,000.00 principal amount of Debentures.

On September 12, 2002, the last trading day prior to the announcement of the Offer, the closing price of the
Common Shares on the TSX was $6.60 and the closing price of the Debentures on the TSX was $80.00 per
$100.00 principal amount of the Debentures. The Offer represents a 13.6% premium over the closing price of
the Common Shares on the TSX on September 12, 2002. The Offer is open for acceptance until midnight
(Toronto time) on December 20, 2002, subject to certain rights of extension and withdrawal. The Offer is made
only for Common Shares and Debentures and is not made for any Stock Options.

To the best of the Offeror’s knowledge, based upon a list of Shareholders made available to the Offeror by
ClubLink, as at September 19, 2002 there were 18,801,501 Common Shares outstanding. Based upon a list of
Debentureholders made available to the Offeror by ClubLink, as at October 30, 2002 there were $76,714,000
principal amount of Debentures outstanding.

Manner and Time of Acceptance
The Offer is open for acceptance until, but not later than, the Expiry Time.

Shareholders and Debentureholders wishing to accept the Offer must deposit the certificates representing
their ClubLink Securities, together with a properly completed and duly executed applicable Letter of Transmittal
in the applicable form (printed on blue paper for Common Shares and on yellow paper for Debentures) or a
manually executed facsimile thereof and all other documents required by the applicable Letter of Transmittal, at
any one of the offices of the Depositary specified in the applicable Letter of Transmittal at or prior to the Expiry
Time. Instructions are contained in the applicable Letter of Transmittal which accompanies this Offer and
Circular. Sharcholders or Debentureholders whose ClubLink Securities are registered in the name of a nominee
should contact their broker, investment dealer, bank, trust company or other nominee for assistance in
depositing such securities to the Offer. The offices of the Depositary will be open during normal business hours.

No fee or commission will be payable by holders of Common Shares or Debentures who deliver Common Shares
or Debentures directly to the Depositary.

10




If a Shareholder or Debentureholder is unable to deposit certificates representing his or her Common
Shares or Debentures in a timely manner, such Shareholder or Debentureholder may accept the Offer by

following the procedure for guaranteed delivery set forth in Section 3 of the Offer, “Manner and Time of
Acceptance”.

Conditions

The Offeror reserves the right to withdraw or terminate the Offer and not take up and pay for, or to extend
the period of time during which the Offer is open and postpone taking up and paying for, any Common Shares
or Debentures deposited under the Offer unless all of the conditions set forth in Section 5 of the Offer,
“Conditions” are satisfied or waived by the Offeror. The Offer is conditional upon, among other things, there
being validly deposited under the Offer and not withdrawn at the Expiry Time (i) that number of Common
Shares which, together with the Common Shares owned by the Offeror, represent at least 50.1% of the Common
Shares outstanding, and (ii) with respect to the Debentures only, Debentures that represent at least 75% of the
aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Debentures.

All of such conditions are for the exclusive benefit of the Offeror and may be waived by it, in its sole
discretion, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, both before and after the Expiry Time without
prejudice to any other rights that the Offeror may have. For a complete description of the conditions of the
Offer, see Section 5 of the Offer, “Conditions”.

The Offeror

The Offeror has two principal lines of business. It operates a tourist railway with related services in Alaska,
British Columbia and the Yukon Territory under the business name White Pass & Yukon Route and it is
engaged in merchant banking activities.

As of the date hereof, the Offeror owns directly 5 million or approximately 26.6% of the issued and

outstanding Common Shares (approximately 20.0% on a diluted basis) and no Debentures. See Section 1 of the
Circular, “The Offeror”.

ClubLink

According to publicly available information, ClubLink is Canada’s largest owner and operator and
developer of high quality member golf course properties, daily fee golf course properties and resorts that feature
golf as their key amenity. See Section 2 of the Circular, “ClubLink”.

Payment

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Offer (including the satisfaction of the Minimum Share
Condition and, in respect of the Debentures only, the satisfaction of the Minimum Debenture Condition), the
Offeror intends to take up and pay for the Common Shares and Debentures validly deposited and not properly
withdrawn under the Offer not later than 10 days following the Expiry Date as required by applicable law. The
Offeror will pay for Common Shares and Debentures taken up under the Offer in accordance with the terms
thereof on the date on which the Offeror is required by law to make such payment. See Section 8 of the Offer,
“Payment for Deposited Common Shares and Debentures”.

Convertible Debentures

The TWH Debentures will be issued under and pursuant to the provisions of a trust indenture to be entered
into between the Offeror and Computershare Trust Company of Canada, as trustee. The TWH Debentures will
be limited to $76,714,000 aggregate principal amount. Interest on the TWH Debentures at a rate of 6% per
annum will be payable semi-annually in arrears in equal instalments. The initial interest payment will be $30.00
per $1,000.00 principal amount of TWH Debentures. Payment of principal will be made on the maturity date of
the TWH Debentures, which will be May 15, 2008. Principal on the TWH Debentures will be payable in lawful
money of Canada or, at the option of the Offeror, be payable in TWH Shares pursuant to the TWH Share
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Payment Option described below. Interest on the TWH Debentures will be payable in lawful money of Canada
or, at the option of the Offeror, be payable in TWH Shares pursuant to the Interest Payment Option described
below. The TWH Debentures will be direct and unsecured obligations of the Offeror and will rank subordinate

in right of payment to Senior Liabilities of the Offeror. See Section 9 of the Circular, “Description of TWH
Debentures”. ’

Purpose of the Offer and Plans Regarding the Acquisition of Common Shares and Debentures
Not Deposited

The purpose of the Offer is to acquire control of ClubLink, to potentially acquire all of the Common Shares
and Debentures, and to appoint a new board of directors of ClubLink. If at least 90% of the outstanding
Common Shares or Debentures or both (excluding Common Shares and Debentures owned by or on behalf of
the Offeror or its affiliates or associates on the date of the Offer) are validly tendered pursuant to the Offer, the
Offeror currently intends, subject to obtaining any necessary financing, to invoke its applicable statutory right of
compulsory acquisition in accordance with the provisions of the OBCA.

If the Offeror acquires a sufficient number of the outstanding Common Shares not owned by it, the Offeror
intends, subject to obtaining any necessary financing, to pursue a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction to acquire
the Common Shares not tendered to the Offer on such terms and conditions as the Offeror, at the time, believes
to be fair to ClubLink and its Shareholders. The timing and details of any such transaction will necessarily
depend upon a variety of factors, including the number of Common Shares acquired pursuant to the Offer. In
the event that the Offeror does proceed with a Compulsory Acquisition of the Common Shares or a Subsequent
Acquisition Transaction for the Common Shares, and is unable to effect a Compulsory Acquisition of the
Debentures but does acquire a sufficient principal amount of outstanding Debentures to amend the terms of the
Debenture Indenture to provide for their redemption in exchange for an equivalent principal amount of TWH
Debentures, it intends to so amend the Debenture Indenture and so redeem the Debentures. See Section 16 of
the Circular “Acquisition of Common Shares and Debentures Not Deposited”.

Material Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations

Residents of Canada

A Shareholder who is resident in Canada, who deals at arm’s length with the Offeror, who holds Common
Shares as capital property and who disposes of a Common Share to the Offeror under the Offer for cash will
realize a capital gain (or capital loss) equal to the amount by which the sum of the cash received, net of any
reasonable costs of disposition, exceeds (or is less than) the adjusted cost base to the Shareholder of the
Common Share. A Shareholder who receives a TWH Share for a Common Share will, unless such Shareholder
chooses to treat the exchange of such Shareholder’s Common Share for TWH Shares as a taxable transaction, be
deemed to have disposed of such share for proceeds of disposition equal to the Shareholder’s adjusted cost base
in respect of such Common Share immediately before the exchange and to have acquired the TWH Shares
received in exchange therefore at a cost equal to such proceeds of disposition.

A Debentureholder who deals at arm’s length with the Offeror, who holds Debentures as capital property
and who exchanges a Debenture for a TWH Debenture may realize a capital gain (or capital loss) to the extent
the value of the TWH Debenture, net of any amount included in the Debentureholder’s income as interest and

any reasonable costs of disposition, exceeds (or is less than) the Debentureholder’s adjusted cost base of the
Debenture.

Non-Residents of Canada

Generally, Shareholders and Debentureholders who are not resident in Canada for purposes of the Tax Act
will not be subject to tax under the Tax Act in respect of any capital gain realized on the disposition of Common
Shares or Debentures, unless, with respect to the Common Shares, such securities constitute “taxable Canadian
property” (within the meaning of the Tax Act) to such Shareholders and that gain is not otherwise exempt from
tax under the Tax Act pursuant to an exemption contained in an applicabie income tax treaty or convention.
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The foregoing is a brief summary of Canadian federal income tax consequences only. See Section 18,
“Material Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations” in the Circular for additional information.
Shareholders and Debentureholders are urged to consult their own tax advisors to determine the particular tax
consequences to them of a disposition of Common Shares or Debentures pursuant to the Offer.

Depositary

Computershare Trust Company of Canada is acting as Depositary under the Offer. The Depositary wiil
receive deposits of certificates representing the Common Shares and Debentures and applicable accompanying
Letters of Transmittal at its offices specified in the Letters of Transmittal. The Depositary will also receive
Notices of Guaranteed Delivery at the office specified thereon. The Depositary will be responsible for giving
certain notices, if required, and for making payment for all Common Shares and Debentures purchased by the
Offeror under the Offer. See Section 19 of the Circular, “Depositary”.

Risk Factors

Holders of Common Shares and Debentures should consider carefully all of the information set forth under
“Risk Factors” in Appendix I of the Circular, “Information Concerning the Offeror”. Such risks include:
(i) market conditions affecting the White Pass railway operations; (ii) general economic conditions;
(iii) government regulation; (iv) risks related to White Pass real property; (v) currency risk; (vi) environmental
risks; (vil) insurance; (viii) market and volatility; and (ix) risks related to merchant banking. Debentureholders
should consider carefully all of the information set forth under “Investment Considerations” in Section 9 of the
Offer, “Description of the TWH Debentures”.
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OFFER

The accompanying Circular, Letters of Transmittal and Notices of Guaranteed Delivery are incorporated into

and form part of the Offer and contain important information which should be read carefully before making a
decision with respect to the Offer.

November 15, 2002

TO: HOLDERS OF COMMON SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF CLUBLINK
1. THE OFFER

The Offeror hereby offers to purchase, on and subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter specified
(including, if the Offer is extended or amended, the terms and conditions of any extension or amendment), (i) all
the issued and outstanding Common Shares, other than Common Shares held by the Offeror or its affiliates,
including Common Shares which may become outstanding on the exercise of ClubLink Stock Options and the
conversion of the Debentures, but excluding Common Shares issuable upon exercise of the Rights, for, at the
option of the Shareholder:

(a) the Cash Option, consisting of $7.50 cash;
(b) the Share Option, consisting of 2.5 TWH Shares; or

(c) any combination of the above

as elected by a Shareholder in the Common Share Letter of Transmittal, subject to proration as set forth
below;

and (ii) all the issued and outstanding Debentures on the basis of $1000.00 principal amount of TWH
Debentures for each $1000.00 principal amount of Debentures.

The Offer is made only for Common Shares and Debentures and is not made for any options, warrants or
any other rights to acquire Common Shares. Any holder of such options, warrants or other rights to purchase
Common Shares (other than the Debentures and the Rights) who wishes to accept the Offer must exercise the
options, warrants or other rights to obtain certificates representing Common Shares and deposit those Common
Shares under the Offer. Any such exercise must be sufficiently in advance of the Expiry Time to assure the
holders of options, warrants and other rights to purchase Common Shares that they will have Common Share
certificate(s) available for deposit before the Expiry Time, or in sufficient time to comply with the procedures
referred to in Section 3 of the Offer, “Manner and Time of Acceptance — Procedure for Guaranteed Delivery”.

Shareholders wishing to accept the Offer may elect the Cash Option, the Share Option or any combination
of the above. The Common Share Letter of Transmittal and Notice of Guaranteed Delivery accompanying this
Offer and Circular set forth the manner in which such election may be made. Shareholders who otherwise validly
accept the Offer but fail to make an election or fail to properly make an election in the Common Share Letter of
Transmittal or in the Common Share Notice of Guaranteed Delivery shall be deemed, subject to proration as set
forth below, to have elected the Share Option.

The maximum number of TWH Shares available under the Offer to Shareholders will be limited to
18,457,626 Shares (approximately 50% of the total consideration available under the Offer in respect of the
Commeon Shares based on a price per TWH Share of $3.00 and assuming 100% acceptance) and the maximum
amount of cash available under the Offer to Shareholders will be limited to $55.5 million (approximately 50% of
the total consideration available under the Offer in respect of the Common Shares assuming 100% acceptance).
The actual consideration to be received by a Shareholder will be determined in accordance with the following:

(a) the aggregate amount of cash, including any cash paid in lieu of fractions of TWH Shares referred to
below (the “Fractional Consideration”), that the Offeror will pay as consideration for Common Shares
acquired in respect of the Cash Option shall not exceed the Maximum Cash Consideration;

(b) the aggregate number of TWH Shares that the Offeror will issue as consideration for Common Shares
acquired in respect of the Share Option shall not exceed the Maximum Share Consideration;
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{c) if the cash consideration that would otherwise be payable by the Offeror to Shareholders who elect the
Cash Option in respect of a number of their Common Shares to be taken up on such date together with
any Fractional Consideration exceeds the Maximum Cash Consideration, then the amount of
the purchase consideration paid in cash to each such Shareholder shall be prorated so that, in the
aggregate, the purchase consideration paid in cash to all such Shareholders shall be equal to the
amount by which the Maximum Cash Consideration exceeds the Fractional Consideration, and each
such Shareholder shall be deemed, for all purposes, to have elected the Share Option in respect of any
Common Shares to which the Cash Option is deemed not to apply and shall receive from the Offeror
the balance of the purchase consideration payable under the Offer on the same basis as Shareholders
who elect (or are deemed under the applicable Letter of Transmittal to elect) the Share Option in
respect of a number of their Common Shares to be taken up on such date; and

(d) if the number of TWH Shares that would otherwise be issuable to Shareholders who elect (or are
deemed under the applicable Letter of Transmittal to elect) the Share Option in respect of a number of
their Common Shares to be taken up on such date exceeds the Maximum Share Consideration, then
the amount of the purchase consideration to be paid in TWH Shares to each such Shareholder shall be
prorated so that, in the aggregate, the purchase consideration to be paid in TWH Shares to all such
Shareholders shall be equal to the Maximum Share Consideration, and each such Shareholder will be
deemed, for all purposes, to have elected the Cash Option in respect of any Common Shares to which
the Share Option is deemed not to apply and shall receive from the Offeror the balance of the
purchase consideration payable under the Offer in cash on the same basis as Shareholders who elect
the Cash Option in respect of a number of their Common Shares to be taken up on such date.

No fractional TWH Shares will be issued pursuant to the Offer. In lieu of a fractional TWH Share, a
Shareholder accepting the Offer who would otherwise receive a fraction of a TWH Share will receive a cash
payment determined on the basis of $3.00 for each whole TWH Share. Based upon information provided to the
Offeror by ClubLink, the Offeror believes that as of September 19, 2002 there were 18,801,501 Common Shares
outstanding, of which 5 million are owned by the Offeror as at the date hereof.

The accompanying Circular, which is incorporated into and forms part of the Offer, contains important
information which should be read carefully before making a decision with respect to the Offer.

2. DEFINITIONS

Certain capitalized terms used in the Offer Documents are defined under “Glossary”.

3. MANNER AND TIME OF ACCEPTANCE

The Offer is open for acceptance until, but not later than, midnight (Toronto time) on the Expiry Date, or
until such time and date to which the Offer may be extended by the Offeror at its discretion uniess withdrawn by
the Offeror.

Acceptance of Offer

The Offer may be accepted by delivering to the Depositary at any of the offices listed in the applicable
accompanying Letter of Transmittal (printed on blue paper for Common Shares and printed on yellow paper for
Debentures) so as to arrive there not later than the Expiry Time:

(a) the certificate or certificates representing the Common Shares and/or Debentures in respect of which
the Offer is being accepted,;

(b) the applicable Letter of Transmittal, or a manually signed facsimile thereof, properly completed and
duly executed as required by the instructions set out in the applicable Letter of Transmittal; and

(c) all other documents required by the instructions set out in the applicable Letter of Transmittal.
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If required by the applicable Letter of Transmittal, the signature on the Letter of Transmittal must be
guaranteed by an Eligible Institution. If an applicable Letter of Transmittal is executed by a person other than
the registered holder of the certificate(s) deposited with it, the certificate(s) must be endorsed or be
accompanied by an appropriate securities transfer power duly and properly completed by the registered holder,
with the signature on the endorsement panel or securities transfer power guaranteed by an Eligible Institution.

Procedure for Guaranteed Delivery

If a Shareholder or Debentureholder wishes to deposit Common Shares or Debentures pursuant to the
Offer and (i) the certificates representing such Common Shares or Debentures are not immediately available, or
(i) such Shareholder or Debentureholder cannot deliver the certificates representing such Common Shares and
Debentures and all other required documents to the Depositary at or prior to the Expiry Time, such Common

Shares or Debentures may nevertheless be deposited pursuant to the Offer provided that all of the following
cenditions are met:

(a) such deposit is made at the office of the Depositary in Toronto by or through an Eligible Institution;

(b) a properly completed and duly executed applicable Notice of Guaranteed Delivery (printed on green
paper for Common Shares and printed on pink paper for Debentures), or a manually signed facsimile
thereof, is received by the Depositary at its principal office in Toronto (by hand, facsimile transmission

or mail), together with a guarantee to deliver by an Eligible Institution not later than the Expiry Time;
and

(c)} the certificate(s) representing deposited Common Shares or Debentures, in proper form for transfer,
together with a properly completed and duly executed applicable Letter of Transmittal, or a manually
signed facsimile thereof, relating to the Commoaon Shares or Debentures and all other documents
required by the applicable Letter of Transmittal are received by the Depositary at its principal office in
Toronto at or before 4:30 pm. (Toronto time) on the third trading day on the TSX after the
Expiry Date.

The Notice of Guaranteed Delivery must be delivered by hand, mail or facsimile transmission to the
Depositary at its principal office in Toronto during normal business hours not later than the Expiry Time and
must include a guarantee by an Eligible Institution in the form set forth in the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.

General

The Offer will be deemed to be accepted only if the Depositary actually has received the requisite
documents at or before the time specified. In all cases, payment for the Common Shares and Debentures
deposited and taken up by the Offeror will be made only after the timely receipt of the certificates representing
the Common Shares and Debentures, together with a properly completed and duly executed applicable Letter of
Transmittal or manually signed facsimile thereof, relating to such Common Shares and Debentures with the
signatures guaranteed by an Eligible Institution, if required, in accordance with the instructions in the applicable
Letter of Transmittal, and any other required documents.

The method of delivery of the Letters of Transmittal, Notices of Guaranteed Delivery, certificates
representing the Common Shares or Debentures and all other required documents is at the option and risk of the
person depositing such documents. The Offeror recommends that such documents be delivered by hand to the
Depositary and a receipt obtained for them. However, if such documents are mailed, the Offeror recommends that
registered mail, with return receipt requested, be used and that proper insurance be obtained.

Shareholders or Debentureholders whose Common Shares or Debentures are registered in the name of a
nominee should contact their broker, investment dealer, bank, trust company or other nominee for assistance in
depositing their Common Shares or Debentures to the Offer.

Power of Attorney

The execution of a Letter of Transmittal irrevocably constitutes and appoints any officer of the Offeror and
any other person desighated by the Offeror in writing, as the true and lawful agent, attorney and attorney-in-fact
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and proxyholder of the holder of the Common Shares or Debentures covered by the Letters of Transmittal with
respect to the Purchased Securities under the Letters of Transmittal and with respect to any and alt Other
Securities. The power of attorney granted irrevocably upon execution of the applicable Letter of Transmittal
shall in all cases be effective only on and after the Effective Date, with full power of substitution, in the name of
and on behalf of such holder (such power of attorney being deemed to be an irrevocable power coupled with an
interest): (a) to register or record, transfer and enter the transfer of Purchased Securities and any Other
Securities on the appropriate register of holders maintained by ClubLink; and (b) to exercise any and all of the
rights of the holder of Purchased Securities and any Other Securities, including, without limitation, to vote,
execute and deliver any and all instruments of proxy, authorizations or consents in respect of all or any of the
Purchased Securities and Other Securities, revoke any such instrument, authorization, or consent given prior to,
on or after the Effective Date, designate in any such instruments of proxy any person or persons as the
proxyholder or the proxy nominee or nominees of such holder of Purchased Securities in respect of such
Purchased Securities and Other Securities for all purposes, including, without limitation, in connection with any
meeting (whether annual, special or otherwise and any adjournment or adjournments thereof) of holders of
securities of ClubLink, and execute, endorse and negotiate, for and in the name of and on behalf of the
registered holder of Purchased Securities and Other Securities, any and all cheques or other instruments
respecting any distribution payable to or to the order of such holder in respect of such Purchased Securities and
Other Securities. Furthermore, a holder of Purchased Securities or Other Securities who executes an applicable
Letter of Transmittal agrees, effective on and after the Effective Date, not to vote any of the Purchased
Securities or Other Securities at any meeting (whether annual, special or otherwise and any adjournment or
adjournments thereof) of holders of securities of ClubLink and not to exercise any or all of the other rights or
privileges attached to the Purchased Securities or Other Securities, and agrees to execute and deliver to the
Offeror any and all instruments of proxy, authorizations or consents in respect of the Purchased Securities or
Other Securities and to designate in any such instruments of proxy the person or persons specified by the
Offeror as the proxyholder or the proxy nominee or nominees of the holder in respect of the Purchased
Securities and Other Securities. Upon such appointment, all prior proxies given by the holder of such Purchased
Securities or Other Securities with respect thereto shall be revoked and no subsequent proxies may be given by
such person with respect thereto. A holder who executes an applicable Letter of Transmittal covenants to
execute, upon request, any additional documents, transfers and other assurances as may be necessary or
desirable to complete the sale, assignment and transfer of the Purchased Securities and Other Securities to the
Offeror and acknowledges that all authority therein conferred or agreed to be conferred shall, to the extent
permitted by law, survive the death or incapacity, bankruptcy or insolvency of the holder and all obligations of

the holder therein shall be binding upon the heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of the holder,
as the case may be.

Depositing Shareholders’ and Debentureholders’ Representations and Warranties

The execution of the Letter of Transmittal applicable to the Debentures by a Debentureholder is also such
Debentureholder’s written approval of a resolution, which shall become effective only after the Effective Date,
authorizing ClubLink and the Debenture Trustee to enter into a supplemental indenture providing that the

terms of the Debentures be amended such that they be redeemable at any time by ClubLink for an equivalent
principal amount of TWH Debentures.

All Shareholders and Debentureholders depositing Common Shares or Debentures to the Offer must have
full power and authority to sell, assign and transfer the Common Shares or Debentures to the Offeror.
Shareholders and Debentureholders depositing Common Shares or Debentures to the Offer must have good
title to their Common Shares or Debentures free and clear of all liens, restrictions, charges, encumbrances,
claims and equities. The deposit of Common Shares or Debentures pursuant to the procedures described above
will constitute a binding agreement between the depositing Shareholder or Debentureholder and the Offeror
upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer, including the depositing Shareholder’s or
Debentureholder’s representation and warranty that: (i) such person has full power and authority to deposit,
sell, assign and transfer the Common Shares or Debentures (and any Other Securities) being deposited and has
not sold, assigned or transferred or agreed to sell, assign or transfer any of such Common Shares or Debentures
to any other person; (ii) such Shareholder or Debentureholder depositing the Common Shares or Debentures,
or on whose behalf such Common Shares or Debentures are being deposited, has good title to and is the
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beneficial owner of the Common Shares or Debentures (and any Other Securities) being deposited within the
meaning of applicable securities laws; (iii) the deposit of such Common Shares or Debentures (and any Other
Securities) complies with applicable securities laws; and (iv) when such Common Shares or Debentures are

taken up and paid for by the Offeror, the Offeror will acquire good title thereto free and clear of all liens,
restrictions, charges, encumbrances, claims and equities.

All questions as to the validity, form, eligibility (including timely receipt) and acceptance of any Common
Shares and Debentures and accompanying documents deposited pursuant to the Offer will be determined by the
Offeror in its sole discretion. Depositing Shareholders or Debentureholders agree that such determination shall
be final and binding. The Offeror reserves the absolute right to reject any and all deposits which the Offeror
determines not to be in proper form or which may be unlawful to accept under the laws of any jurisdiction. The
Offeror reserves the absolute right to waive any defect or irregularity in any deposit of any Common Shares and
Debentures and accompanying documents. There shall be no duty or obligation on the Offeror, the Depositary
or any other person to give notice of any defect or irregularity in any deposit, and no liability shall be incurred by
any of them for failure to give any such notice. The Offeror’s interpretation of the terms and conditions of the

Offer Documents shall be final and binding. The Offeror reserves the right to permit the Offer to be accepted in
a manner other than that set out above.

4, VARIATION OR EXTENSION OF THE OFFER

The Offer is open for acceptance until the Expiry Time. The Offeror, in its sole discretion, at any time and
from time to time during the Offer Period, may extend the Expiry Time or vary the Offer by giving written notice
of such extension or variation (a “Notice of Variation”) to the Depositary at its principal office in Toronto. If the
Minimum Share Condition is met, the Offeror will only extend the Expiry time and vary the Offer if it is able to
do so in a manner which complies with all applicable securities law requirements. Upon giving of such notice or
other communication extending the Expiry Time, the Expiry Time shall be, and be deemed to be, so extended.
The Offeror, as soon as practicable thereafter, except as otherwise required or permitted by law, will (i) cause
the Depositary to provide a copy of the Notice of Variation in the manner set forth under “Notice” in Section 12
of the Offer, to all registered holders of Common Shares and Debentures whose Common Shares or Debentures
have not been taken up prior to the extension or variation, and (ii) shall make a public announcement of the
extension or variation in the manner required by applicable law and provide a copy of the Notice of Variation to
the TSX. Any Notice of Variation will be deemed to have been given and to be effective on the day on which it is
delivered or otherwise communicated to the Depositary at its principal office in Toronto.

Where the terms of the Offer are varied, the Offer shall not expire before 10 days after the Notice of
Variation in respect of such variation has been mailed, delivered or otherwise communicated to Shareholders or
Debentureholders. Subsequent to any such variation in the terms of the Offer, all Common Shares and
Debentures previously deposited and not withdrawn will remain subject to the Offer and may be taken up by the
Offeror, subject to Section 7 of this Offer, “Withdrawal of Deposited Common Shares and Debentures”.

If the price being offered for the Common Shares or Debentures is increased, the increased price will be
paid to all Shareholders or Debenturcholders whose Common Shares or Debentures are taken up pursuant to
the Offer, irrespective of whether such Common Shares or Debentures were taken up before the variation.

A variation of the Offer shall not constitute a waiver by the Offeror of any of its rights under Section 5 of
this Offer, “Conditions”, except to the extent expressly provided in the Notice of Variation.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Expiry Time may not be extended by the Offeror if all of the terms and
conditions of the Offer have been complied with except those waived by the Offeror, unless the Offeror first
takes up all Common Shares and Debentures deposited thereunder and not withdrawn. However, if the Offeror
waives any terms or conditions of the Offer in circumstances where the Shareholders or Debentureholders who
have deposited their Common Shares or Debentures under the Offer have the right to withdraw such Common
Shares or Debentures, the Offeror will extend the Offer without first taking up the Common Shares or
Debentures that are subject to such right of withdrawal.
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5. CONDITIONS

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Offer, the Offeror reserves the right to withdraw, amend or
terminate the Offer and not to take up and pay for, or to extend the Expiry Date and postpone taking up and
paying for, any Common Shares or Debentures deposited under the Offer, as applicable, unless all of the
following conditions have been satisfied or waived by the Offeror prior to the Expiry Time:

(a)

(b)

©

(@

(e)

3]

(8)

at the Expiry Time there shall have been validly deposited under the Offer, and not withdrawn, that
number of Common Shares which, together with the Common Shares owned by the Offeror, represent
at least 50.1% of the Common Shares outstanding (the “Minimum Share Condition™);

insofar as the Offer relates to the Debentures only, at the Expiry Time there shall have been validly
deposited under the Offer, and not withdrawn, Debentures that represent at least 75% of the
outstanding principal amount of Debentures (the “Minimum Debenture Condition” );

the Offeror shall have determined in its sole judgment that there has not occurred after the date of the
announcement of the Offeror, if there has occurred, that there has not been publicly disclosed in any
filings with the Securities Authorities prior to the commencement of the Offer, any change (or any
condition, event or development involving a prospective change) in the business, operations, cash
flows, assets, capitalization, condition (financial or otherwise), resuits, prospects, properties, articles,
by-laws, licenses, permits, rights, privileges or liabilities, whether contractual or otherwise of ClubLink
or any of its subsidiaries which, in the sole judgment of the Offeror, is materially adverse to ClubLink
or any of its subsidiaries considered as a whole, or which may be considered significant to a purchaser
of ClubLink Securities, or which might make it inadvisable for the Offeror to proceed with the Offer or
with taking up and paying for ClubLink Securities deposited under the Offer;

all requisite governmental or regulatory consents or approvals to enable the Offeror to acquire
ClubLink Securities pursuant to the Offer, a Compulsory Acquisition or a Subsequent Acquisition
Transaction, as applicable, shall have been received on terms and conditions satisfactory to the Offeror,
in its sole judgment, and any waiting period with respect to such consents or approvals shall have
expired or terminated;

the TWH Common Shares and TWH Debentures shall have been conditionally approved for listing by
the TSX, subject to the Offeror fulfilling all of the requirements of the TSX, including, with respect to
the TWH Debentures, a minimum distribution of $2 million in principal amount of TWH Debentures,
on or before a date to be specified by the TSX

the Offeror shall have determined in its sole judgment that no action, suit or proceeding has been
threatened or taken before or by any domestic or foreign arbitrator, court or tribunal or any
governmental agency or other regulatory authority or any administrative agency or commission or by
any elected or appointed public official or private person (including without limitation any individual,
corporation, firm, group or other entity) in Canada or elsewhere and no law, regulation or policy shall
have been proposed, enacted, promulgated or applied, whether or not having the force of law:

(i) to cease trade, enjoin, prohibit or impose limitations or conditions on, or to increase the cost of,
the purchase by or the sale to the Offeror of the Common Shares or Debentures or the right of the
Offeror to own or exercise full rights of ownership of the ClubLink Securities,

(i) which, if ClubLink Securities were acquired pursuant to the Offer, would, in the sole judgment of

the Offeror, have a material adverse effect upon ClubLink or its subsidiaries considered as a
whole, or

(iif) which would, in the sole judgment of the Offeror, have a material adverse effect on, challenge,
prevent or make uncertain the Offeror’s ability to acquire ClubLink Securities pursuant to a
Compulsory Acquisition or Subsequent Acquisition Transaction,

there shall not exist any prohibition at law against the Offeror making the Offer or taking up and
paying for any ClubLink Securities deposited under the Offer or completing a Compulsory Acquisition
or a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction and the Offeror shall have determined in its sole judgment
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that there shall be no impediment, actual, anticipated or threatened, to the Offeror’s ability to vote any
ClubLink Securities it takes up and pays for pursuant to this Offer at any meeting of ClubLink
Shareholders or Debentureholders held to consider any Subsequent Acquisition Transaction and the
Offeror shall have received assurances satisfactory to the Offeror in its sole discretion to that effect;

there shall not have occurred, developed or come into effect or existence any event, action, state,
condition, or major financial occurrence of national or international consequence or any law,
regulation, action, government regulation, enquiry, or other occurrence, event or condition of any
nature whatsoever which, in the opinion of the Offeror, materially adversely effects or involves the
financial markets in Canada generally or the financial condition, business, operations, assets, affairs or
prospects of ClubLink, the Offeror or any of their respective subsidiaries or associates;

the Offeror shall have determined in its sole judgment that, on terms satisfactory to the Offeror; (i) the
board of directors of ClubLink shall have redeemed all outstanding Rights or waived the application of
the Rights Plan to the purchase of Common Shares and Debentures by the Offeror under the Offer, to
any lock-up agreements under the Offer, a Compulsory Acquisition and any Subsequent Acquisition
Transaction; (ii) a cease trading order or an injunction shall have been issued that has the effect of
prohibiting or preventing the exercise of the Rights or the issue of the Common Shares or other
securities or property upon the exercise of the Rights, in relation to the Offer, any lock-up agreements
under the Offer, a Compulsory Acquisition and any Subsequent Acquisition Transaction, which order
or injunction shall be in full force and effect; (iii) a court of competent jurisdiction shall have made a
final and binding order to the effect that the Rights are illegal, of no force or effect or may not be
exercised in relation to the Offer, any lock-up agreements under the Offer, a Compulsory Acquisition
and any Subsequent Acquisition Transaction; or (iv) the Rights and the Rights Plan shall otherwise
have become or been held unexercisable or unenforceable in relation to the Common Shares and

Debentures with respect to the Offer, a Compulsory Acquisition and any Subsequent Acquisition
Transaction;

the Offeror shall have determined in its sole judgment that the Separation Time (as defined in the
Rights Plan) has not occurred and no Rights have been exercised; -

after the date of the announcement of the Offer, ClubLink shall not have entered into any agreement
for the issuance of any securities and not more than 19,766,101 Common Shares and $76,714,000
principal amount of Debentures shall be outstanding as of the Expiry Time;

the Offeror shall have determined in its sole judgment that no material right, franchise or licence of
ClubLink or of any of its subsidiaries has been impaired (or threatened to be impaired) or otherwise
adversely affected (or threatened to be adversely affected), whether as a result of the making of the
Offer, the taking up and paying for ClubLink Securities deposited under the Offer or otherwise, and no
other change or event has occurred which might make it inadvisable for the Offeror to proceed with
the Offer or with taking up and paying for ClubLink Securities deposited under the Offer;

(m) the Offeror shall have determined in its sole judgment that neither ClubLink nor its board of directors

(or any committees thereto or any of its affiliates or associates) has taken or proposes to take any
action, or disclosed or proposes to disclose any previously undisclosed action taken by them, and no
other party shall have taken or proposed to take any action, which may be considered to be a defensive
tactic in response to the Offer or which may be materially adverse to the business of ClubLink or its
subsidiaries or the value of Common Shares or Debentures to the Offeror or which makes it
inadvisable for the Offeror to proceed with the Offer or the taking up and paying for ClubLink
Securities under the Offer, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any action with
respect to any agreement, proposal, offer or understanding relating to any material sale, disposition or
other dealing with any of the assets or contracts of ClubLink or any of its subsidiaries, any issue of
shares, options or other securities of ClubLink to any person, any material acquisition from a third
party of assets or securities by ClubLink or any of its subsidiaries, or any take-over bid (other than the
Offer), amalgamation, statutory arrangement, capital reorganization, merger, business combination, or
similar transaction involving ClubLink or any of its subsidiaries or any material expenditure or

investment by ClubLink or any of its subsidiaries;
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(n) the Offeror shall have determined, in its sole judgment, that no covenant, term or condition exists in
any instrument or agreement to which ClubLink or any of its affiliates is a party or to which they or any
of their assets are subject (including, but not limited to, any covenant, term or condition relating to the
termination by ClubLink of existing agreements) which might make it inadvisable for the Offeror to
proceed with the Offer or to acquire ClubLink Securities deposited under the Offer, and the Offeror
shall be satisfied that it has been provided with all information (including non-public information)
material to such determination;

(o) the Offeror shall not have become aware of any untrue statement of a material fact, or an omission to
state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not
misleading in the light of the circumstances in which it was made and at the date it was made (after
giving effect to all subsequent filings in relation to all matters covered in earlier filings), in any
document filed by or on behalf of ClubLink with any of the Securities Authorities, or of any previously
undisclosed information relating to ClubLink which makes it inadvisable for the Offeror to complete
the Offer; and -

(p) the Offeror shall have been provided with, or shall have been given access to, in a timely manner, all
non-public information relating to ClubLink as may be given, provided or made available by ClubLink:

(i) at any time after the announcement of the Offer, to any other potential acquiror of the ClubLink
Securities or of a significant portion of the assets of ClubLink or any of its subsidiaries, associates
or affiliates, or to any person considering (or seeking such information in order to consider) any
merger, amalgamation, statutory arrangement or similar business confirmation with ClubLink or
any of its subsidiaries, associates or affiliates; or

(ii) at any time after June 30, 2001, to any person who, after the announcement of the Offer makes a
take-over bid for the Common Shares or Debentures or enters into an agreement with ClubLink
relating to the acquisition of a significant portion of the assets of ClubLink or any of its
subsidiaries, associates or affiliates or a merger, amalgamation, statutory arrangement or similar
business combination with ClubLink or any of its subsidiaries, associates or affiliates;

on substantially the same terms and conditions as may be imposed on such other potential acquiror or
person, provided that no such term or condition shall be imposed on the Offeror that would be
inconsistent with the Offer or would render the Offeror unable to complete the acquisition of the
Common Shares and the Debentures pursuant to the terms of the Offer as the same be amended or
waived in the Offeror’s sole discretion.

The foregoing conditions are for the exclusive benefit of the Offeror. The Offeror may assert any of the
foregoing conditions at any time, regardless of the circumstances giving rise to such assertion (including the
action or inaction of the Offeror). The Offeror may waive any of the foregoing conditions in whole or in part and
in respect of the Offer insofar as it relates to either the Common Shares or the Debentures or both at any time
and from time to time, both before and after the Expiry Time, without prejudice to any other rights which the
Offeror may have. See Section 4 of this Offer, “Variation or Extension of the Offer”. The failure by the Offeror
at any time to exercise or assert any of the foregoing rights shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any such right
and each such right shall be deemed an ongoing right which may be exercised or asserted at any time. Any
determination by the Offeror concerning the foregoing conditions shall be final and binding on all parties.

Any waiver of a condition or the withdrawal of the Offer shall be effective upon written notice by the
Offeror to that effect to the Depositary at its principal office in Toronto, Ontario. The Offeror, forthwith after
giving any such notice, shall make a public announcement of such waiver or withdrawal, shall cause the
Depositary, if required by law, as soon as practicable thereafter to notify the Shareholders or Debentureholders
in the manner set forth in Section 12 of this Offer, “Notice” and shall provide a copy of the aforementioned
notice to the TSX. If the Offer is withdrawn, the Offeror shall not be obligated to take up or pay for any of the
Common Shares or Debentures deposited under the Offer, and the Depositary will promptly return all
certificates for deposited ClubLink Securities, Letters of Transmittal and related documents to the parties by
whom they were deposited.
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Where all the conditions of the Offer set out in this Section 5 have been satisfied or waived, the Offeror will

forthwith issue a notice by press release to that effect, which press release will disclose the approximate number
of Common Shares and Debentures deposited and that will be taken up.

6. NOTICE OF CHANGE

If, cither before or after the Expiry Time but before the expiry of all withdrawal rights, a change in the
information in the Offer Documents or in any prior notice of variation or Notice of Change (as defined below)
that would reasonably be expected to affect the decision of Shareholders or Debentureholders to accept or reject
the Offer, the Offeror will comply with all applicable securities laws regarding continuous disclosure and will
cause the Depositary to deliver a written notice of change (a “Notice of Change”) to all registered Shareholders
or Debentureholders whose Common Shares or Debentures have not been taken up at the date of the
occurrence of the change in the manner indicated in Section 12 of this Offer, “Notice”.

7. WITHDRAWAL OF DEPOSITED COMMON SHARES AND DEBENTURES

All deposits of Common Shares and Debentures pursuant to the Offer are irrevocable, provided that any
Common Shares or Debentures deposited in acceptance of the Offer may be withdrawn at the place of deposit

by or on behalf of the depositing Shareholder or Debentureholder (unless otherwise required or permitted by
applicable law):

(a) at any time where the Common Shares or Debentures have not been taken up by the Offeror;

(b) at any time before the expiration of 10 days from the date of a Notice of Change or a Notice of
Variation; and

(c) if the Common Shares or Debentures have not been paid for by the Offeror within three business days
after having been taken up.

In order for any withdrawal to be made, notice of the withdrawal (a “Notice of Withdrawal”) must be in
writing (which includes a telegraphic communication or notice by electronic means that produces a printed copy)
and must be actually received by the Depositary at the place of deposit of the Common Shares or Debentures
(or applicable Notice of Guaranteed Delivery in respect thereof) within the period permitted for withdrawal.
Any such Notice of Withdrawal must be: (i) signed by or on behalf of the person who signed the applicable
Letter of Transmittal that accompanied the Common Shares or Debentures to be withdrawn (or applicable
Notice of Guaranteed Delivery in respect thereof); and (ii) specify such person’s name, the number of Common
Shares or Debentures to be withdrawn, the name of the registered holder and the certificate number shown on
each certificate representing the Common Shares or Debentures to be withdrawn. Any signature on a Notice of
Withdrawal must be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution in the same manner as in the applicable Letter of
Transmittal (as described in the instructions set out in such Letter of Transmittal), except in the case of Common
Shares or Debentures deposited for the account of an Eligible Institution. The withdrawal shall take effect upon
receipt of the written notice by the Depositary.

All questions as to the validity (including timely receipt) and form of Notices of Withdrawal shall be
determined by the Offeror in its sole discretion and such determination shall be final and binding. There shall be
no duty or obligation on the Offeror, the Depositary or any other person to give notice of any defect or

irregularity in any Notice of Withdrawal, and no liability shall be incurred by any of them for failure to give any
such notice.

If the Offeror extends the Offer, is delayed in taking up and paying for Common Shares or Debentures or is
unable to take up and pay for Common Shares or Debentures for any reason, then, without prejudice to the
Offeror’s other rights, no Common Shares or Debentures may be withdrawn except to the extent that depositing
holders thereof are entitled to withdrawal rights as set forth in this Section 7 or pursuant to applicable law, and
such Common Shares or Debentures may be retained by the Depositary on behalf of the Offeror.

Where a Notice of Withdrawal is given in accordance with this Section 7, the Offeror shall return the
Common Shares or Debentures to the depositing Shareholder or Debentureholders in accordance with
Section 9 of this Offer, “Return of Common Shares and Debentures”.
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Withdrawals may not be rescinded and any Common Shares withdrawn will be deemed not validly
deposited for the purposes of the Offer, but may be redeposited at any subsequent time prior to the Expiry Time
by following the applicable procedures described in Section 3 of this Offer, “Manner and Time of Acceptance”.
In addition to the foregoing rights of withdrawal, Shareholders in certain provinces of Canada are entitled to

statutory rights of rescission or damages, or both, in certain circumstances. See Section 22 of the Circular,
“Statutory Rights”.

8. PAYMENT FOR DEPOSITED COMMON SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Common Shares or Debentures deposited under the Offer may not be taken up by the Offeror before
midnight (Toronto time) on December 20, 2002 .

If all the conditions referred to in Section 5 of this Offer, “Conditions”, have been satisfied or waived by the
Offeror (including, with respect to the Debentures only, the Minimum Debenture Condition), the Offeror will
become obligated to take up and pay for Common Shares and Debentures validly deposited under the Offer and
not withdrawn not later than 10 days following the Expiry Date. For greater certainty, whether or not the
Minimum Debenture Condition is met will not affect the obligation of the Offeror to take up and pay for
Common Shares validly deposited under the Offer and not withdrawn if all the other conditions referred to in
Section 5 of the Offer have been satisfied or waived by the Offeror. Common Shares and Debentures that are
taken up by the Offeror under the Offer shall be paid for by the Offeror as soon as practicable, and in any event
not more than three Business Days after taking up such Common Shares or Debentures, as the case may be. In
accordance with applicable law, the Offeror will take up Common Shares or Debentures deposited under the
Offer subsequent to the date on which it first takes up Common Shares and Debentures deposited under the
Offer not later than 10 days after the deposit of such additional Common Shares or Debentures.

In addition, on and after the Expiry Date, if all of the terms and conditions attached to the Offer have been
fulfilled or waived, the Offeror shall be entitled to take up and pay for the Common Shares and Debentures
deposited under the Offer and not withdrawn, subject, however, to the withdrawal rights in respect of such
Common Shares and Debentures described in Section 7 of this Offer, “Withdrawal of Deposited Common
Shares and Debentures”.

Subject to applicable law, the Offeror expressly reserves the right in its sole discretion to delay taking up
and paying for the Common Shares or Debentures or to terminate the Offer and not take up or pay for any
Common Shares or Debentures if any condition (including, with respect to the Debentures only, the Minimum
Debenture Condition) specified in Section 5 of this Offer, “Conditions”, is not satisfied or waived by the
Offeror, in whole or in part, by giving written notice thereof or other communication confirmed in writing to the
Depositary at its principal office in Toronto, Ontario. The Offeror will not, however, take up and pay for any
Common Shares or Debentures deposited under the Offer unless it simultaneously takes up and pays for all
Common Shares or Debentures then validly deposited under the Offer. The Offeror will be deemed to have
taken up and accepted for payment Common Shares or Debentures validly deposited and not withdrawn
pursuant to the Offer, if, as and when the Offeror gives written notice or other communication confirmed in
writing to the Depositary at its principal office in Toronto, Ontario of its acceptance for payment of such
Common Shares or Debentures pursuant to the Offer.

Under no circumstances will interest accrue or be paid by the Offeror or the Depositary on the cash
component of the Offer in respect of the Common Shares purchased by the Offeror, regardless of any delay in
making such payment. No amount will be paid by the Offeror or the Depositary in respect of accrued and unpaid
dividends on the Common Shares.

The Depositary will act as the agent of persons who have deposited Common Shares or Debentures in
acceptance of the Offer for the purposes of receiving payment from the Offeror and transmitting payment to
such persons, and receipt of payment by the Depositary will be deemed to constitute receipt of payment by
Shareholders or Debentureholders who have deposited and not withdrawn their Common Shares or Debentures
pursuant to the Offer.
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The Offeror will pay for Common Shares taken up pursuant to the Offer by (i) providing the Depositary
with sufficient funds to pay the cash consideration component of the Offer (by bank transfer or other means
satisfactory to the Depositary) for transmittal to depositing Shareholders who have elected or are deemed to
have elected the Cash Option; and (ii) issuing to or on behalf of each Shareholder who has elected or is deemed
to have elected the Share Option, TWH Shares in each case, in the manner set forth under “The Offer” in
Section 1 of the Offer. The Depositary will forward cheques, payable in Canadian funds, and/or certificates
representing TWH Shares, as the case may be, representing the payment for the Common Shares by first class
mail to Shareholders depositing Common Shares at the address specified in the Common Share Letter of
Transmittal, unless the depositing Sharecholder instructs the Depositary in the applicable Letter of Transmittal to
hold the cheque and/or TWH Share certificates for pick-up. If no address is specified, the cheque and/or TWH
Share certificates will be forwarded to the address of the Shareholder as shown on the share register of
ClubLink. The Offeror will pay for Debentures taken up pursuant to the Offer by issuing to or on behalf of each
Debentureholder $1,000.00 principal amount of TWH Debentures for each $1,000.00 principal amount of
Debentures taken up pursuant to the Offer. The TWH Debentures shall be deposited with CDS and depositing
Debentureholders will be credited on the records of a Participant with their interest therein.

Persons depositing Common Shares or Debentures will not be obligated to pay brokerage fees or
commissions if they accept the Offer by depositing their Common Shares or Debentures directly with the
Depositary. Except as set forth in the instructions to the applicable Letter of Transmittal, transfer taxes, if any,
on the purchase of Common Shares or Debentures will be paid by the Offeror.

9. RETURN OF COMMON SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Any deposited Common Shares or Debentures not taken up and paid for by the Offeror will be returned at
the Offeror’s expense to the depositing Shareholder either by sending new certificates representing Common
Shares or Debentures not purchased or returning the deposited certificates (and other relevant documents), as
appropriate. The certificates (and other relevant documents) will be forwarded by first class insured mail in the
name of and to the address specified by the depositing Shareholder or Debentureholder in the applicable Letter
of Transmittal or, if such name or address is not so specified, then in such name and to such address of the
Shareholder or Debentureholder as shown on the registers maintained by ClubLink, as soon as practicable
- following the Expiry Time or withdrawal or termination of the Offer. If certificates are submitted for more
Common Shares or Debentures than are deposited, such certificates will be returned by the same process
outlined for Common Shares or Debentures deposited and not taken up and paid for under the Offer.

10. MAIL SERVICE INTERRUPTION

Notwithstanding the other provisions of the Offer Documents, cheques in payment of the cash portion of
the Offer for Common Shares and Debentures purchased pursuant to the Offer, certificates representing
Common Shares and Debentures to be returned, notices and any other relevant documents from the Offeror or
the Depositary to Shareholders will not be mailed if the Offeror determines, in its sole judgment, that delivery
thereof by mail may be delayed. Persons entitled to cheques which are not mailed for the foregoing reason may
take delivery thereof at the office of the Depositary at which the deposited certificates representing Common
Shares or Debentures in respect of which the cheque is being issued were deposited, upon application to the
Depositary, until such time as the Offeror has determined that delivery by mail will no longer be delayed. Notice
of any determination by the Offeror not to mail as a result of mail service delay or interruption will be given in
accordance with Section 12 of this Offer, “Netice”. Notwithstanding Section 8 of this Offer, “Payment for
Deposited Common Shares and Debentures”, cheques not mailed for the foregoing reason will be conclusively
deemed to have been delivered on the first day upon which they are available for delivery to the depositing
Shareholder at the office of the Depositary referred to above.

11. CHANGES IN CAPITALIZATION, DIVIDENDS, DISTRIBUTIONS AND LIENS

If, on or after the date of the Offer, ClubLink divides, combines or otherwise changes any of the Common
Shares or its capitalization, or the terms of the Debentures, or discloses that it has taken or intends to take any
such action, then the Offeror may, in its sole discretion and without prejudice to its rights under Section 5 of this
Offer, “Conditions”, make such adjustments as it deems appropriate to the Offer and the other terms of the
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Offer (including, without limitation, the type of securities offered to be purchased and the amounts payable
therefor) to reflect any such split, combination or other change.

Common Shares and Debentures acquired pursuant to the Offer shall be transferred by the holders thereof
and acquired by the Offeror free and clear of all liens, restrictions, charges, encumbrances, claims and equities
and together with all rights and benefits arising therefrom including the right to any and all Other Securities. If
ClubLink should declare or pay any dividend other than the dividend of $0.05 per Common Share payable on
November 15, 2002 to shareholders of record as of October 31, 2002, or declare, make or pay any other
distribution or payment on, or declare, allot, reserve or issue any securities, rights or other interest, with respect
to any Common Share that is payable or distributable to Shareholders on a record date that is prior to the date
of transfer into the name of the Offeror or its nominee or transferee on the register of Shareholders maintained
by ClubLink or its agent of such Common Share following acceptance thereof for purchase pursuant to the
Offer, then (i) in the case of any such cash dividend, distribution or payment that does not exceed the Offer
Price, the Offer will be reduced by the amount of any such dividend, distribution or payment, and (ii) in the case
of any such cash dividend, distribution or payment that exceeds the Offer Price, or in the case of any other
dividend, distribution, payment, right or other interest, the whole of any such dividend, distribution, payment,
right or other interest will be received and held by the depositing Shareholder for the account of the Offeror and
will be promptly remitted and transferred by the depositing Shareholder to the Depositary for the account of the
Offeror, accompanied by appropriate documentation of transfer. Pending such remittance, the Offeror will be
entitled to all rights and privileges as the owner of any such non-cash dividend, distribution, payment, right or
other interest and may withhold the entire Offer Price or deduct from Offer Price the amount or value thereof,
as determined by the Offeror in its sole discretion.

12. NOTICE

Without limiting any other lawful means of giving notice, any notice the Offeror or the Depositary may give
or cause to be given under the Offer will be deemed to have been properly given if it is mailed by first class mail,
postage prepaid, to the registered holders of Common Shares or Debentures at their addresses as shown on the
share register of ClubLink and will be deemed to have been received on the first Business Day following the date
of mailing. These provisions apply notwithstanding any accidental omission to give notice to any one or more
holders and notwithstanding any interruption of postal service in Canada or the United States or elsewhere
following mailing. In the event of any interruption of mail service following mailing, the Offeror intends to make
reasonable efforts to disseminate the notice by other means, such as publication. Except as otherwise required or
permitted by law, if post offices in Canada or the United States or elsewhere are not open for the deposit of mail
or there is reason to believe that there is or could be a disruption in all or part of the postal service, any notice
which the Offeror or the Depositary may give or cause to be given under the Offer, except as otherwise provided
herein, will be deemed to have been properly given and to have been received by holders of Common Shares or
Debentures, if: (i) it is given to the TSX for dissemination through its facilities; (i) it is published once in the
national edition of The Globe and Mail and in daily newspapers of general circulation in each of the French and
English languages in the city of Montreal, Québec, provided that if the national edition of The Globe and Mail is
not being generally circulated, publication thereof shall be made in The National Post or any other daily

newspaper of general circulation in the city of Toronto; and (iii) it is distributed through the facilities of Canada
NewsWire.

Wherever the Offer requires that documents be delivered to the Depositary, such documents will not be
considered delivered unless and until they have been physically received at one of the addresses listed for the
Depositary in the Letters of Transmittal. Wherever the Offer calls for documents to be delivered to a particular
office of the Depositary, such documents will not be considered delivered unless and until they have been
physically received at that particular office at the address listed in the Letters of Transmittal.

13. MARKET PURCHASES AND SALE OF COMMON SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Offeror has no current intention of acquiring any Common Shares or Debentures while the Offer is
outstanding, other than as described in the Offer and the Circular. However, subject to applicable law, and the
provisions of the Rights Plan, the Offeror reserves the right to, and may, acquire or cause an affiliate to acquire
beneficial ownership of Common Shares or Debentures by making purchases through the facilities of the TSX at
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any time and from time to time prior to the Expiry Time. In no event will the Offeror make any such purchases
of Common Shares or Debentures through the facilities of the TSX until the third clear trading day following
the date of the Offer. If the Offeror should acquire Common Shares or Debentures by making purchases
through the facilities of the TSX during the Offer Period, the Common Shares or Debentures so purchased shall
be counted in any determination as to whether the Minimum Share Condition or Minimum Debenture
Condition, respectively, has been fulfilled. The aggregate number of Common Shares (which shall include the
aggregate number of Common Shares issuable upon the conversion of any Debentures acquired in this manner)
or aggregate principal amount of Debentures acquired in this manner will not exceed 5% of the aggregate
number of Common Shares or aggregate principal amount of Debentures outstanding, respectively, on the date
of the Offer and the Offeror will issue and file a press release containing the information prescribed by

law forthwith after the close of business of the TSX on each day on which such Common Shares and Debentures
have been purchased.

Although the Offeror has no current intention to sell Common Shares or Debentures taken up under the
Offer, it reserves the right, subject to applicable laws, to make or enter into an arrangement, commitment or

understanding prior to the Expiry Time to sell any of such Common Shares or Debentures after the
Expiry Time.

14. SHAREHOLDERS AND DEBENTUREHOLDERS NOT RESIDENT IN CANADA

The TWH Shares and TWH Debentures issuable pursuant to the Offer have not been and will not be
registered or otherwise qualified for distribution under the laws of any jurisdiction other than the provinces of
Canada. TWH Shares and TWH Debentures will not be issued to any Person who is or who appears to the
Offeror or the Depositary to be a resident of any foreign jurisdiction unless it is established to the satisfaction of
the Offeror, whose determination shall be final and binding, that the TWH Shares and TWH Debentures may
be offered in such jurisdiction without further action by the Offeror and without subjecting the Offeror to any
registration, reporting or similar requirements.

15. OTHER TERMS

(a) No broker, dealer or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any
representation on behalf of the Offeror other than as contained in the Offer Documents, and if any
such information or representation is given or made, it must not be relied upon as having been
authorized. No broker, dealer or other person shall be deemed to be the agent of the Offeror or the
Depositary for the purposes of the Offer. In any jurisdiction in which the Offer is required to be made
by a licensed broker or dealer, the Offer shall be made on behalf of the Offeror by brokers or dealers
licensed under the laws of such jurisdiction.

(b) The Offeror reserves the right, to transfer to one or more affiliated companies the right to purchase all
or any portion of the Common Shares or Debentures deposited pursuant to the Offer, but any such
transfer will not relieve the Offeror of its obligations under the Offer and will in no way prejudice the
rights of persons depositing Common Shares or Debentures to receive payment for Common Shares or
Debentures validly deposited and accepted for payment pursuant to the Offer.

(c) The Offer, the Offer Documents and all contracts resulting from the acceptance of the Offer shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of
Canada applicable therein. Each party to any agreement resulting from the acceptance of the Offer
unconditionally and irrevocably attorns to the jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Ontario.

The provisions of the Circular, the Letters of Transmittal and the Notices of Guaranteed Delivery
accompanying the Offer, including the instructions contained therein, as applicable, form part of the terms and
conditions of the Offer. The Offeror, in its sole discretion, will be entitled to make a final and binding
determination of all questions relating to the interpretation of the Offer, the Circular, the Letters of Transmittal
and the Notices of Guaranteed Delivery, the validity of any acceptance of the Offer, the validity of any elections
and the validity of any withdrawals of Common Shares or Debentures.
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This Offer is not being made to, nor will deposits of Common Shares or Debentures be accepted from or on
behalf of, Shareholders or Debentureholders in any jurisdiction in which the making or acceptance hereof would
not be in compliance with the laws of such jurisdiction. However, the Offeror, in its sole discretion, may take

such action as it may deem necessary to extend the offer to Shareholders and Debentureholders in any such
jurisdiction.

The accompanying Circular together with this Offer constitute the take-over bid circular required under the
OBCA and Canadian provincial securities legislation with respect to the Offer.

Dated: November 15, 2002
TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Per (Signed): K. (RAI) SAHI
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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CIRCULAR

The following information in this Circular is provided in connection with the Offer made in the accompanying
Offer by the Offeror dated November 15, 2002 to purchase all of the Common Shares and Debentures. The terms,
conditions and provisions of the Offer Documents are incorporated into and form part of this Circular, and
collectively constitute the take-over bid circular of the Offeror. Certain terms used in this Circular are defined under
“Glossary”. Shareholders and Debentureholders should refer to the Offer Documents for details of the terms and
conditions of the Offer. :

The information concerning ClubLink contained in the Offer Documents has been taken from or is based
upon publicly available documents, records on file with the Securities Authorities and other public sources.
Although the Offeror has no knowledge that would indicate that any statements contained herein taken from or
based upon such documents and records or other information are untrue or incomplete, the Offeror does not
assume any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the information taken from or based upon such
documents, records and information, or for any failure by ClubLink to disclose publicly events or facts which may
have occurred or which may affect the significance or accuracy of any such information but which are unknown to
the Offeror.

1. THE OFFEROR

General

The Offeror was incorporated on October 22, 1997 under the Canada Business Corporations Act as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Russel Metals Inc. (“Russel Metals”) under the name Century Continental
Transportation Corporation. The Offeror’s articles were amended on November 18, 1997 to change its name to
Tri-White Corporation. The Offeror’s registered office is located at Suite 1400, One University Ave., Toronto,
Ontario M5J 2Pl. B

The Offeror has two principal lines of business. It operates a tourist railway with related services in Alaska,
British Columbia and the Yukon Territory under the business name White Pass & Yukon Route (“White Pass™)
and it is engaged in merchant banking activity.

The Offeror became a reporting issuer on November 21, 1997 as a result of an initial public offering by way
of a secondary offering of common shares of the Offeror upon the exercise of rights distributed by Russel Metals
to holders of its Class A common shares and Class B common shares.

Prior to the distribution of the rights to its securityholders, Russel Metals entered into certain transactions
to transfer to the Offeror, in return for common shares of the Offeror, substantially all of its investments in the
freight transportation business operated by Tri-Line Expressways Ltd. and the tourist railway and related
services business of White Pass.

On July 18, 2000, the Offeror completed the sale of its trucking group including the operations of Tri-Line
Expressways Ltd. and its subsidiaries. Total proceeds of $44 million were satisfied with $36 million in cash, a
subordinate debenture of $7 million and a one-year holdback of $1 million. On January 24, 2002, the purchaser
of the trucking group was placed into receivership by its senior lender and the Offeror has determined that there

is a low probability of further realization. The $7 million has been fully provided for in the Offeror’s
consalidated financial statements.

White Pass & Yukon Route

Through the White Pass operations, the Offeror is engaged in passenger tourist transportation and related
services in Alaska, British Columbia and the Yukon Territory.

The railway was constructed as a result of the Klondike Gold Rush of 1898 and completed in 1900. From
1900 until 1982, it was used for carriage of general freight, ore concentrates, petroleum products and passengers.
Railway operations were suspended in 1982 when a major ore concentrate customer shut down its mine. The
Klondike highway between Whitehorse and Skagway was subsequently constructed in 1985 which transferred the
transportation of ore concentrates from rail to the more economical method of road service. The railway
reopened in 1988 and has since been operating as a passenger tourist railway.
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The Offeror continues to invest in capital projects and comparative opportunities, which should increase
cash flows from this key business.

Tri-White Merchant Banking

Subsequent to the sale of the trucking group, management of the Offeror made a strategic decision to invest
the sale proceeds in order to capitalize on its proven record of building and delivering shareholder value. The
Offeror now seeks out opportunities and invests as a merchant banker in debt and equity instruments in both
public and private companies.

2. CLUBLINK

General

According to publicly available information, ClubLink is Canada’s largest owner and operator and
developer of high quality member golf course properties, daily fee golf course properties and resorts that feature
golf as their key amenity. ClubLink is a company resulting from the amalgamation, under the laws of the
province of Ontario, of Sindor Resources Inc. and Cherry Downs Development Corporation.

ClubLink’s portfolio consists of: (i) eighteen member golf clubs and seven daily fee golf clubs with the
equivalent of thirty-four 18-hole operating courses, (ii) two additional 18-hole courses under construction that
will open for play in 2003 and one additional 27-hole course under construction that will be open for play in
2004, (iii) five resorts, (iv) development sites for seven and one-half future 18-hole courses, and (v) substantial
potential to increase the room inventory and conference capacity at its resorts. ClubLink also owns 884 acres of
land suitable for residential or commercial development that are surplus to its golf club and resort needs. Two of
the daily fee golf clubs are being renovated to be reopened as member golf clubs. Based upon publicly available
information, as at September 30, 2002, ClubLink had assets of approximately $500 million, common
shareholders’ equity of approximately $205 million and debentureholders’ equity of approximately $78 million.

Dividend Policy

On March 5, 2002, ClubLink announced, and, according to publicly available information, it is now the
current policy of ClubLink, to pay a semi-annual dividend of 5 cents per share in May and November of each
year. Other than dividends of 5 cents per share which paid to Shareholders on May 15, 2002, and November 15,
2002 no other dividends have been paid by ClubLink in the previous two years.

3. BACKGROUND TO THE OFFER

On September 4, 2001 the Offeror purchased 5 million Common Shares representing, at that time,
approximately 25% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares from ClubCorp U.S.A., Inc. {“ClubCorp”).
ClubCorp had two nominees on the board of directors of ClubLink who resigned shortly after the acquisition of
the Common Shares by the Offeror. Mr. Sahi was appointed to the board of directors of ClubLink on
September 13, 2001. At the annual meeting of shareholders of ClubLink on June 11, 2002, Mr. Donald Turple,
the Chief Financial Officer of the Offeror was, along with Mr. Sahi, elected to the board of directors. Both
Mr. Sahi and Mr. Turple currently serve as directors of ClubLink.

On September 6, 2002, Mr. Sahi was advised by Mr. William Kennedy, the President of Revenue Properties
Company Limited (“RPCL’), that RPCL’s management was recommending that RPCL consider proceeding
with an offer for all the Common Shares. Mr. Sahi is a director of RPCL and Morguard Corporation, which
controls RPCL. RPCL established a special committee of its board of directors to consider management’s
proposal, and the Offeror understands that RPCL approached ClubLink with an indication that it was
considering making an offer to acquire the Common Shares. On September 12, RPCL’s special committee met,
determined that RPCL would not be proceeding with an offer, and informed Mr. Sahi of its decision.
Subsequently, management of the Offeror considered the possibility of making an offer for ClubLink and
recommended to the Offeror’s board of directors that it proceed with an offer. On September 13, 2002, the
board of directors of the Offeror approved the making of the Offer. Management of the Offeror then informed
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the board of directors of ClubLink that the Offer was being made and a press release announcing the Offer was
sent out.

On September 13, 2002 the board of directors of ClubLink established the Special Committee to consider
the Offer and make recommendations to the board of directors. On September 19, 2002, the board of directors
of ClubLink adopted the Rights Plan. On October 1, 2002, the Special Committee engaged BMO Nesbitt

Burns Inc. to provide formal valuations of the Common Shares, the TWH Shares, the Debentures and the
TWH Debentures.

On QOctober 2, 2002, the board of directors of the Offeror approved an increase in the consideration payable
in respect of the Offer, and a press release announcing the revised Offer was sent out.

4. PURPOSE OF AND BUSINESS REASONS FOR THE OFFER, PLANS FOR CLUBLINK, BENEFITS
OF THE OFFER AND OTHER BENEFITS TO INSIDERS, AFFILIATES AND ASSOCIATES

Purpose of the Offer

The purpose of the Offer is to acquire control of ClubLink, to potentially acquire all of the Common Shares
and Debentures, and to appoint a new board of directors of ClubLink. If at least 90% of the outstanding
Common Shares and Debentures (excluding Common Shares and Debentures owned by or on behalf of the
Offeror or its affiliates or associates on the date of the Offer) are validly tendered pursuant to the Offer, the
Offeror intends, subject to obtaining any necessary financing, to invoke its statutory rights of compulsory
acquisition in accordance with the provisions of the OBCA.

If the Offeror acquires a sufficient number of the outstanding Common Shares not owned by it, the Offeror
intends, subject to obtaining any necessary financing, to pursue a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction to acquire
the Common Shares not tendered to the Offer on such terms and conditions as the Offeror, at the time, believes
to be fair to ClubLink and its Shareholders. The timing and details of any such transaction will necessarily
depend upon a variety of factors, including the number of Common Shares acquired pursuant to the Offer. In
the event that the Offeror does praceed with a Compulsory Acquisition of the Common Shares or a Subsequent
Acquisition Transaction for the Common Shares, and is unable to effect a Compulsory Acquisition of the
Debentures but does acquire a sufficient principal amount of outstanding Debentures to amend the terms of the
Debenture Indenture to provide for their redemption in exchange for an equivalent principal amount of TWH
Debentures, it may elect to so amend the Debenture Indenture and so redeem the Debentures. See Section 16
of the Circular, “Acquisition of Common Shares and Debentures Not Deposited”.

Although the Offeror currently intends to propose a Compulsory Acquisition or a Subsequent Acquisition
Transaction, generally on the same terms as the Offer, it is possible however that as a result of delays in the
Offeror’s ability to effect such a transaction, information hereafter obtained by the Offeror, changes in general
economic, industry, regulatory or market conditions or in the business of ClubLink, or other currently

unforeseen circumstances, such a transaction may not be so proposed, may be delayed or abandoned or may be
proposed on different terms.

If the Offeror decides not to propose a Compulsory Acquisition or a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction,
or proposes a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction but cannot obtain any required approvals promptly, the
Offeror will evaluate its other alternatives. Such alternatives could include, to the extent permitted by applicable
law, purchasing additional ClubLink Securities in the open market, in privately negotiated transactions, or in
another take-over bid or exchange offer or otherwise. Subject to applicable law, any additional purchases of
ClubLink Securities could be at a price greater than, equal to or less than the price to be paid for ClubLink
Securities under the Offer and could be for cash, securities and/or other consideration. Alternatively, the
Offeror may take no action to acquire additional ClubLink Securities, or may even sell or otherwise dispose of
any or all ClubLink Securities acquired pursuant to the Offer, on the terms and at prices then determined by the
Offeror, which may vary from the price paid for ClubLink Securities under the Offer.

Business Reasons for the Offer

Strategic Fit with the Offeror:  The Offeror believes that the acquisition of ClubLink will complement its existing
operations, and enhance the profile of the combined company as a leader in recreational and leisure activities.
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The key growth drivers for both the Oiferor and ClubLink are similar, and both should benefit from the aging of
the population and other underlying industry fundamentals.

Poor Track Record of Value Creation for Shareholders: The Offeror believes that the board of directors and
management of ClubLink have been unable to create value for Shareholders, which is reflected in the stock’s
trading price illustrated below. Over the 5-year period prior to the date of the Offer, the market value of the
Common Shares has declined by 40%. Since the Offeror became a reporting issuer, the trading price of the
TWH shares has increased by 98%. In addition, the Debentures now trade at a 20% discount to their face value.

ClubLink Common Shares
September 15, 1997 — September 12, 2002
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Poor Operating Track Record: Management of ClubLink has delivered poor financial results over the past
4 fiscal years. ClubLink’s net income has declined from $10.6 million for the year ended December 31, 1998 to
$2.9 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001. The Offeror believes that its experienced management
team, with its extensive track record of creating shareholder value, can deliver stronger financial results.

Excessive Balance Sheet Leverage: The Offeror believes that the current level of financial leverage within
ClubLink is excessive and not sustainable. As of September 29, 2002, based on publicly available information,
the ratic of ClubLink’s debt to its enterprise value (wherein enterprise value is defined as book value of
indebtedness plus market capitalization of common shares) was 1.66:1, and its debt to book equity ratio was

1.22:1. Furthermore, the excessive leverage constrains ClubLink’s ability to take advantage of other business
opportunities.

Excessive Overhead Expense and Investments: ClubLink’s general and administrative expenses (before other
non allocated overhead) were $7.9 million for fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 and $5.5 million for the first
nine months ended September 29, 2002, which the Offeror believes to be excessive for a company of ClubLink’s
size. Furthermore, the Offeror believes that ClubLink has incurred significant non-revenue producing capital

expenditures, such as the construction of its recently-completed head office, which is not in the best interest of
its securityholders.

Qverlooked Value-Creation Opportunities: The Offeror believes that ClubLink management is not maximizing
the value of its assets, by exploring residential real estate development opportunities, as well as leveraging its
intangible assets, such as an extensive membership base which has an attractive demographic profile.
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Plans for ClubLink

If the Offeror is successful, the Offeror’s plan is to initially continue to operate the business of ClubLink in
its current manner. During this initial period, the Offeror will complete a full assessment of ClubLink and its
assets, corporate structure, capitalization, operations, properties, policies, management and personnel. It is
possible that, in connection with a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction or otherwise, ClubLink may become
amalgamated or be wound-up into the Offeror and/or an affiliate of the Offeror. If permitted by applicable law,
subsequent to the completion of any Compulsory Acquisition or Subsequent Acquisition Transaction, the
Offeror intends to delist the Common Shares and the Debentures from the TSX and cause ClubLink to cease to
be a reporting issuer under the securities laws of each province in which it has such status.

Benefits of the Offer and Other Benefits to [nsiders, Affiliates and Associates

Except as set out herein, to the knowledge of the Offeror, no direct or indirect benefits will accrue to any
associate of any director or senior officer of ClubLink, any person or company holding more than 10 per cent of
any class of equity securities of ClubLink, or any person or company acting jointly or in concert with ClubLink by
accepting or refusing to accept the Offer, nor will any of such persons receive any specific benefit, direct or
indirect as a result of any Subsequent Acquisition Transaction.

5. SELECTED HISTORICAL AND PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION OF THE OFFEROR

The following table sets out certain historical consolidated financial information and unaudited pro forma
condensed consolidated financial information for the Offeror as a result of the combination of ClubLink with
the Offeror as at and for the year ended December 31, 2001 and as at and for the 9 months ended September 30,
2002. There is no information known to the Offeror which indicates any material change in the affairs of
ClubLink since the date of the last published financial statements of ClubLink other than as has been publicly
disclosed by ClubLink. The historical consolidated financial information is extracted from and should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Offeror and accompanying notes contained in
Schedule B to this Circular. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information set forth
below is extracted from and should be read in conjunction with the unaudited Pro Forma Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Offeror and accompanying notes contained in Schedule C to this
Circular. The following does not give effect to expected synergies and operational improvements expected to be
realized as a result of the combination of ClubLink with the Offeror. The unaudited pro forma statements have
been presented on two bases; (i) that the Offeror acquires all of the Common Shares of ClubLink and all of the
issued and outstanding Debentures; (ii) that the Offeror acquires that number of Common Shares which,
together with the Common Shares owned by the Offeror, represents 50.1% of the Common Shares outstanding,
and all of the issued and outstanding Debentures (and assuming Shareholders elect to receive equal proportions
of cash and TWH Shares).

Historical Pro Forma®M®
Nine Months Pro Forma Nine Months
Ended Year Ended Ended Year Ended
September 30, December 31, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 2002 2001
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
(in thousands)
Totalsales. . ........ ... iinrnn.. $40,450 $39,978 $134,930 $158,253
Operating income (EBITDA) .. ............... $18,636 $17,139 $ 43,892 $ 52,313
Operating earnings ... ......c..vvvinnee..n.. $10,274 $ 8,303 $ 12,304 $ 16,769
Netearnings . .........0irineunnnnenn... $10,274 $ 6,327 $ 13,965 $ 5,636
Capital assets (net book value)® . ... ... .. ..... $84,625 $84,815 $423,394 $418,191
Long-term debt and capital leases (excluding
current portion)®® .. Lo L Nil Nil $232,577 $230,162
Notes:

(1) Assuming the Offeror acquires all of the cutstanding ClubLink Shares not already owned by it.
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(2) Please refer to the unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Offeror and accompanying notes
contained in Schedule C hereto.

(3) As at the end of the respective periods shown.
(4) As at December 31, 2001 on a pro forma basis the Offeror has current bank indebtedness of $61,419,000.

6. PRO FORMA CAPITALIZATION OF THE OFFEROR
Assuming Acquisition of All of the Issued and Outstanding Common Shares and All of the Debentures

Assuming the acquisition by the Offeror pursuant to the Offer of all of the issued and outstanding Common
Shares, including Common Shares issued upon the exercise of in-the-money options not currently owned by it,
and all of the issued and outstanding Debentures, there would be 64,347,145 TWH Shares outstanding and
$76,714,000 aggregate principal amount of TWH Debentures outstanding.

As at December 31, 2001, on a pro forma basis after giving effect to such acquisition, the Offeror would
have had total long-term debt of approximately $230,162,000 and a long-term debt to EBITDA ratio of
approximately 4.4 times.

The following tables sets forth the pro forma consolidated capitalization of the Offeror as at September 30,
2002 after giving effect to the acquisition by the Offeror of all outstanding Common Shares and Debentures not
currently owned by it.

Pro Forma
Outstanding Outstanding
as at as at
September 30, September 30,
Description of Capital Authorized 2002 20020
(in thousands)
TWH Debentures . . .. . oottt e et e e e e e e $76,714 § — $ 76,714@
Long-term debt. . ..o u et e N/A $ — $145,346
Capital Lease Obligations . ... .........uuetininunennnn.. N/A $ — $ 10,5179
Preferred shares without nominal or parvalue ................ Unlimited §$ — $ —

Offeror’s shareholders’ equity ............cc.ouuiuirnnnn... Unlimited ~ $113,756 $167,65123)

Notes:

(1) Please refer to the unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Offeror and the accompanying notes
contained in Schedule C to this Circular for further details.

(2) Based on the unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2002 contained in Schedule C
and assuming that the Offeror acquires all outstanding Common Shares and Debentures not currently owned by it. See Note 2 to the
unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Offeror contained in Schedule C to this Circular for the
assumptions as to the long-term debt to be incurred to acquire all of the Common Shares and Debentures not currently owned by
the Offeror. If no Debentures are acquired by the Offeror, no adjustments to the unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements are
required.

(3) At the date hereof, 45,889,519 TWH Shares are issued and outstanding. If pursuant to the Offer, the Offeror acquires all of the
Common Shares not already owned by the Offeror on the date hereof, 64,347,145 TWH Shares will be issued and outstanding. The
Offeror’s shareholders’ equity excludes values attributable to the TWH Debentures.

Assuming Acquisition of 50.1% of the Issued and Outstanding Common Shares and All of the Debentures

Assuming the acquisition by the Offeror pursuant to the Offer of that number of Common Shares, including
Common Shares issued upon the exercise of in-the-money options which, together with the Common Shares
owned by the Offeror, represents 50.1% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares and all of the issued and
outstanding Debentures, there would be 52,018,040 TWH Shares outstanding and $76,714,000 aggregate
principal amount of TWH Debentures outstanding.

As at December 31, 2001, on a pro forma basis after giving effect to such acquisition, the Offeror would
have had total long-term debt of approximately $230,162,000 and a long-term debt to EBITDA ratio of
approximately 4.4 times.
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The following table sets forth the pro forma consolidated capitalization of the Offeror as at September 30,
2002 after giving effect to the acquisition by the Offeror of that number of Common Shares which, together with

the Common Shares owned by the Offeror, represent 50.1% of the outstanding Common Shares and all of
the Debentures.

Pro Forma
Qutstanding Outstanding
as at as at
September 30, September 30,
Description of Capital Authorized 2002 20020
(in thousands)
TWH Debentures . .. ..o v vttt e e $76,714 § — $ 76,7142
Longtermdebt. . ...... ... i, N/A § — $145,346
Capital lease obligations .. ......... ... .. ... . . . N/A $ — $ 10,517
Preferred shares without nominal or parvalue .. .............. Unlimited § — § —
Offeror’s shareholders’ equity .. .............c.oovuvenon... Unlimited ~ $113,756 $130,664®
Notes:

(1) Please refer to the unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Offeror and the accompanying notes
contained in Schedule C to this Circular for further details.

(2) Based on the unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2002 contained in Schedule C
and assuming that the Offeror acquires that number of Common Shares which, together with the Common Shares owned by the
Offeror, represents 50.1% of the outstanding Common Shares and all of the issued and outstanding Debentures and assuming that
Shareholders elect to receive equal proportions of cash and TWH Shares (assuming the Offeror acquires none of the issued and
outstanding Debentures, no TWH Debentures would be issued). See Note 2 to the unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Offeror contained in Schedule C to this Circular for the assumptions as to the long-term debt to be incurred
to acquire 50.1% of the Common Shares and all of the Debentures not currently owned by the Offeror.

(3) At the date hereof, 45,889,519 TWH Shares are issued and outstanding. If pursuant to the Offer the Offeror acquires that number of
Common Shares which, together with the Common Shares owned by the Offeror, represents 50.1% of the outstanding Common Shares
on the date hereof, 52,018,040 TWH Shares will be issued and outstanding (assuming Shareholders elect to receive equal proportions of
cash and TWH Shares). The Offeror’s sharcholders’ equity excludes values attributable to the TWH Debentures.

7. EARNINGS COVERAGE RATIOS

The following earnings coverage ratios, which indicate the earnings of the Offeror available to meet interest
and discount requirements on outstanding long-term debt, are calculated on a consolidated basis as at and for
the year ended December 31, 2001, and as at and for the 9 months ended September 30, 2002, respectively.

The Offeror’s interest requirements, after giving effect to the acquisition of all of the issued and
outstanding Common Shares and Debentures of ClubLink, amounted to $15,644,000 for the 12 months ended
December 31, 2001 and $11,647,000 for the 9 months ended September 30, 2002. The Offeror’s earnings before
interest and income tax for the 12 months ended December 31, 2001 was $39,576,000, which is 2.53 times the
Offeror’s interest requirements for this period and the earnings before interest and income tax for the 9 months
ended September 30, 2002 was $32,326,000, which is 2,78 times the Offeror’s interest requirements for this
period.

Twelve Months Ended Nine Months Ended
December 31, 2001 September 30, 2002

................................. 2.53 2.78

Earnings Coverage Ratio

8. SOURCE OF FUNDS

The Offeror estimates that if it acquires through the Offer all of the Common Shares not already owned by
it pursuant to the Offer, the total amount of cash required for the purchase of such Common Shares and to pay
fees and expenses related to the Offer (collectively, the “Offer Costs”) will be approximately $57.6 million. The
Offeror has available cash and marketable securities in an aggregate amount of approximately $20 million, and
will finance the balance of the Offer Costs through the credit facilities described below.
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The Offeror has obtained a commitment (the “Commitment”) from a major Canadian financial institution.
The Commitment provides the Offeror with a six-month term credit (extendible at the Offeror’s option for a
further six months upon payment of a fee equal to 0.50% of the drawn amount) of up to $30 million. In addition
to upfront fees totalling 1.00%, the funds advanced under the commitment bear interest at the prime rate plus
200 basis points. Interest is payable monthly. Principal amounts may be repaid at any time without penalty or
bonus on two days written notice.

The obligation of the lender to advance funds pursuant to the Commitment is subject to conditions usual in
commercial lending transactions of this nature, including the satisfaction of the conditions of the Offer, that
none of such conditions shall have been waived or varied without the lender’s consent and the execution of
documentation satisfactory to the parties.

The Commitment will be fully secured and will contain covenants, events of default and other terms
customary for credit facilities of this nature. Such terms include a covenant to maintain minimum shareholders
equity, certain restrictions on the payment of dividends (other than the current quarterly dividend), incurring of
liens and indebtedness on the Offeror’s property, assets and undertaking, restrictions on payments and
investments in or loans to, the Offeror’s subsidiaries, and restrictions on the sale of assets and mergers and
amalgamations. The Commitment will be cross-defaulted to other indebtedness of the Offeror and will also
provide that a default shall occur upon a change of control of the Offeror.

In addition, the Offeror will borrow funds from two wholly-owned subsidiaries drawn on such subsidiaries’
existing U.S. $10 million (approximately $15.5 million) line of credit with a U.S. financial institution (the “Credit
Line”). The Credit Line bears interest at the U.S. prime rate. Interest is payable monthly in arrears. Principal
amounts may be repaid at any time without penalty or bonus.

The obligation of the lender to advance funds pursuant to the Credit Line is conditional upon the execution
of documentation satisfactory to the parties and the condition that the borrowers are not in default thereunder.

The Credit Line contains covenants, events of default and other terms customary for credit facilities of this
nature.

The Offeror expects to refinance the borrowings under the Commitment and the Credit Line with
permanent financing or from the sale of assets, and expects that any such permanent financing will contain
limitations and restrictions similar to those contained in the Commitment.

9. DESCRIPTION OF TWH DEBENTURES
General

The TWH Debentures will be issued under and pursuant to the provisions of a trust indenture (the “Trust
Indenture”) to be entered into between the Offeror and Computershare Trust Company of Canada as trustee
(the “Trustee™). Interest on the TWH Debentures at a rate of 6.00% per annum, will be payable semi-annually
on November 15 and May 15 in each year. The first interest payment will be due on May 15, 2003 and will
represent the accrued interest on the full amount of the TWH Debentures from November 15, 2002 to that date.
The interest on the TWH Debentures will be payable in lawful money of Canada.

TWH Share Payment Option

Provided the Offeror is not in default under the Trust Indenture then, subject to regulatory approval
(including any required approval of any stock exchange on which the TWH Debentures or TWH Shares are then
listed), the Offeror may elect, from time to time, to satisfy its obligation to make the Maturity Payment or
Redemption Payment (as defined in the Trust Indenture) by issuing and delivering that number of freely
tradable TWH Shares obtained by dividing the principal amount of the TWH Debentures by 95% of the
weighted average trading price of the TWH Shares on the TSX for the 20 consecutive days ending five trading
days prior to the date fixed for redemption or the date of maturity, as the case may be.

No fractional TWH Shares will be issued in satisfaction of principal on redemption or at maturity, but in
lieu thereof, the Offeror will satisfy such fractional interest by a cash payment equal to the market price of such
fractional interest, with “market price” to be determined by the weighted average trading price of the TWH

33

35




Shares on the TSX for the 20 consecutive days ending five trading days prior to the date fixed for redemption or
the date of maturity, as the case may be.

Interest Payment Option

Provided the Offeror is not in default under the Trust Indenture then, subject to regulatory approval
(including any required approval of any stock exchange on which the TWH Debentures or TWH Shares are then
listed), the Offeror may elect, from time to time, to satisfy its obligation to make an Interest Payment (as defined
in the Trust Indenture) (a “TWH Debenture Obligation”) by delivering freely tradable TWH Shares to the
Trustee (the “Interest Payment Election”). The Trust Indenture will provide that, upon such election, the
Trustee shall (i) accept delivery of TWH Shares from the Offeror, (ii) accept bids with respect to, and
consummate sales of, such TWH Shares, each as the Offeror shall direct in its absolute discretion, (iii) invest the
proceeds of such sales in permitted government securities (as defined in the Trust Indenture) and use such
proceeds to satisfy the TWH Debenture Obligation, and (iv) perform any other action necessarily incidental
thereto. The Offeror shall make an Interest Payment Election by delivering written notice (the “Interest
Payment Election Notice™) to the Trustee no later than the date required by applicable law or the rules of any
stock exchange on which the TWH Debentures or TWH Shares are then listed. The Trustee shall, in accordance
with such notice, deliver requests for bids (each a “TWH Shares Bid Request”) to investment banks, brokers or
dealers selected by the Offeror. Such notice shall direct the Trustee to solicit and accept only such bids, and the
TWH Shares Bid Request shall make the acceptance of any bid conditional on the acceptance of such bids, that
together shall provide for the delivery and sale of TWH Shares against payment of the Interest Payment
Election Amount on the date (the “TWH Shares Delivery Date”) that is no earlier than 90 days and no later
than one business day prior to the date the payment in respect of which the TWH Shares Election Notice has
been delivered is due (the “Interest Payment Date”). The “Interest Payment Election Amount” means an
amount of aggregate proceeds, based on the bids obtained pursuant to the TWH Shares Bid Request, of the sale
of TWH Shares on the TWH Shares Delivery Date, equal to, and not exceeding, the aggregate amount of the
TWH Debenture Obligation in respect of which the Interest Payment Election Notice was delivered. The
Interest Payment Election Notice shall provide for, and all such bids shall be subject to, the right of the Offeror,
by delivering written notice to the Trustee at any time prior to the consummation of such delivery and sale on the
TWH Shares Delivery Date, to withdraw the Interest Payment Election (which will have the effect of
withdrawing the TWH Shares Bid Request), whereupon the Offeror shall be obligated to pay the TWH
Debenture Obligation in respect of which the Interest Payment Election Notice has been delivered in cash. The
amount received by a holder of a TWH Debenture in respect of a TWH Debenture Obligation will not be

affected by whether or not the Offeror elects to satisfy the TWH Debenture Obligation pursuant to an Interest
Payment Election.

The Trustee shall inform the Offeror promptly following the receipt of any bid or bids for TWH Shares. The
Trustee shall accept such bid or bids as the Offeror (in its absolute discretion) shall direct, provided that the
aggregate proceeds of all such sales (less any amount attributable to any fractional TWH Shares) on the TWH
Shares Delivery Date must be equal to the Interest Payment Election Amount. In connection with any bids so
accepted, the Offeror, the Trustee and the applicable bidders shall, not later than the TWH Shares Delivery
Date, enter into customary purchase agreements (in each case, a “TWH Shares Purchase Agreement”) and shall
comply with all applicable laws, including the securities laws, the rules and regulations of any stock exchange on
which the TWH Debentures or TWH Shares are then listed and the rules and regulations of any jurisdiction in
which the TWH Shares may be offered for sale. The Offeror shall pay all fees and expenses in connection with
the TWH Shares Purchase Agreements.

Provided that (i) all conditions specified in each TWH Shares Purchase Agreement to the closing of all sales
thereunder have been satisfied, other than the delivery of the TWH Shares to be sold thereunder against
payment of the Interest Payment Election Amount, and (ii) the purchasers under the TWH Shares Purchase
Agreements shall be ready, willing and able to perform thereunder, in each case on the TWH Shares Delivery
Date, the Offeror shall, on the TWH Shares Delivery Date, deliver to the Trustee the TWH Shares to be sold on
such date, cash in an amount equal to the value of any fractional shares and an officer’s certificate to the effect
that all conditions precedent to such sales, including those set forth in the Indenture and in each TWH Shares
Purchase Agreement, have been satisfied. Upon such deliveries, the Trustee shall consummate such sales on
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such TWH Shares Delivery Date by delivery of the TWH Shares to such purchasers against payment to the
Trustee in immediately available funds of the purchase price therefor in an aggregate amount equal to the
Interest Payment Election Amount (less any amount attributable to any fractional TWH Shares), whereupon
the sole right of a holder of a Debenture in respect of the TWH Debenture Obligation will be to the delivery of
such proceeds by the Trustee in full satisfaction of the TWH Debenture Obligation and the holder of such
Debenture will have no further recourse to the Offeror in respect of the TWH Debenture Obligation.

The Trustee shall use the sale proceeds of the TWH Shares (together with any cash received from the
Offeror in respect of any fractional TWH Shares) to purchase permitted government securities which mature
prior to the TWH Debenture Payment Date and which the Trustee is required to hold until maturity (the “TWH
Shares Proceeds Investment”) on the TWH Shares Delivery Date and shall on such date deposit the balance, if
any, in the Property Account (as defined in the Trust Indenture) for such TWH Debentures. The Trustee shall
hold the TWH Shares Proceeds Investment under its exclusive control and shall hold such investments (but not
income earned thereon) in an irrevocable trust for the benefit of the holders of the TWH Debentures. One
business day prior to the TWH Debenture Payment Date, the Trustee shall deposit amounts from the proceeds
of the TWH Shares Proceeds Investment in the Property Account to bring the balance of the Property Account
to the TWH Shares Election Amount. On the TWH Debenture Payment Date, the Trustee shall pay the funds
held in the Property Account to the holders of record of the TWH Debentures on the TWH Debenture Payment
Date and shall remit amounts, if any, in respect of income carned on the TWH Shares Proceeds Investment or
otherwise in excess of the Interest Payment Election Amount to the Offeror.

The TWH Debentures are issuable only as fully registered TWH Debentures in denominations of $1,000.00
and integral multiples thereof.

The principal on the TWH Debentures will (subject to the TWH Share Payment Option described above)
be payable in lawful money of Canada.

The TWH Debentures will not be secured by any mortgage, pledge, hypothec or other charge and will be
subordinated to other liabilities of the Offeror as described under “Subordination”. The Trust Indenture does
not restrict the Offeror from incurring additional indebtedness for borrowed money or from mortgaging,
pledging or charging its properties to secure any indebtedness.

Conversion Privilege

The TWH Debentures will be convertible at the holder’s option into TWH Shares, at any time prior to the
close of business on the earlier of the business day immediately preceeding the maturity date, or, if called for
redemption, the business day immediately preceding the date specified for redemption of such TWH
Debentures, at a conversion price of $8.00 per TWH Share, being a rate of 125 TWH Shares per $1,000.00
principal amount of TWH Debentures. No adjustment will be made for dividends on TWH Shares issuable upon
conversion or for interest accrued on TWH Debentures surrendered for conversion.

Subject to the provisions thereof, the Trust Indenture will provide for the adjustment of the conversion
price in certain events including (i) the subdivision or consolidation of the outstanding TWH Shares; (ii) the
distribution of TWH Shares to holders of TWH Shares by way of stock dividend or otherwise other than an issue
of shares to holders of TWH Shares who have elected to receive dividends in stock in lieu of receiving cash
dividends paid in the ordinary course; (iii) the issuance of options, rights or warrants to holders of TWH Shares
entitling them to acquire TWH Shares or other securities convertible into TWH Shares at less than 95% of the
then Current Market Price (as defined in the Trust Indenture) of the TWH Shares; (iv) the distribution of all
holders of TWH Shares of any securities or assets (other than cash dividends and equivalent dividends in stock
paid in lieu of cash dividends in the ordinary course). Except as stated above, no adjustment will be made in the
conversion price on account of the exercise of options under the Offeror’s staock option plan from time to time.
The Offeror will not be required to make adjustments in the conversion price unless the cumulative effect of
such adjustments would change the conversion price by at least 1% or in respect of any event described in (ii) or
(iif) above if, with the prior approval of any exchange on which the TWH Debentures or TWH Shares are then
listed, the holders of the TWH Debentures are allowed to participate as though they had converted their TWH
Debentures prior to the applicable record date or effective date.

35

37




No fractional TWH Shares will be issued on any conversion but in lieu thereof the Offeror shall satisfy such
fractional interest by a cash payment equal to the market price of such fractional interest.

Payment on Maturity

On the maturity date, May 15, 2008, the Offeror will repay the indebtedness evidenced by the TWH
Debentures by paying to the Trustee in lawful money of Canada, an amount equal to the principal amount of the
outstanding TWH Debentures, together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon or, at the Offeror’s option, by

delivering to the Trustee TWH Shares pursuant to the terms set out above under the heading “TWH Share
Payment Option”.

Redemption

The Offeror may, at its option, in whole at any time or in part from time to time on not more than 60 and
not less than 30 days’ prior notice, redeem the TWH Debentures at a price equal to $1000.00 plus accrued and
unpaid interest. In cases of partial redemption, the TWH Debentures to be redeemed will be selected by the
Trustee pro rata or in such other manner as it shall deem appropriate. Any TWH Debentures offered hereby
that are redeemed by the Offeror will be cancelled and will not be reissued.

Subordination

In the event of any insolvency or similar proceedings to the Offeror, the holders of (i) moneys borrowed or
raised by whatever means (including, without limitation, by means of acceptances and debt instruments and any
liability evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or similar instruments); and (ii) the deferred purchase price of
assets or services other than trade payables (collectively, the “Senior Liabilities”) will be entitled to receive
payment in full before the holders of TWH Debentures shall be entitled to receive any payment of any kind. The
holders of TWH Debentures shall not be entitled to demand or receive any payment on account of indebtedness
represented by the TWH Debentures at any time when a default in payment under the Senior Liabilities is
continuing and notice of such event of default has been given by or on behalf of the holder of Senior Liabilities
in default to the Offeror and the Trustee.

The Trust Indenture will provide that in the event of any insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings, or any
receivership, liquidation, reorganization or other similar proceedings relative to the Offeror, or to its property or
assets, or in the event of any proceedings for voluntary liquidation, dissolution or other winding-up of the
Offeror, whether or not involving insolvency or bankruptcy, or any marshalling of the assets and liabilities of the
Offeror, then those entitled to Senior Liabilities will receive payment in full before the holders of TWH
Debentures shall be entitled to receive any payment or distribution of any kind or character, whether in cash,
property or securities, which may be payable or deliverable in any such event in respect of any of the TWH
Debentures. The Trust Indenture will also provide that the Offeror shall not make any payment, and the holders
of TWH Debentures shall not be entitled to demand, institute proceedings for the collection of, or receive any
payment or benefit (including, without limitation, by set-off, combination of accounts or realization of securities
or otherwise in any manner whatsoever) on account of indebtedness evidenced by the TWH Debentures (i) in a
manner inconsistent with the terms (as they exist on the date of issue) of the TWH Debentures or (ii) at any
time when an event of default has occurred under the Senior Liabilities and is continuing and the notice of such
event of default has been given by or on behalf of the holders of Senior Liabilities to the Offeror, unless the
Semnior Liabilities have been repaid in full.

Open Market Purchases

The Offeror will have the right at any time to purchase TWH Debentures in the market or by tender or by
contract at any price. All TWH Debentures that are purchased by the Offeror will not be reissued.

Modification

The Trust Indenture will provide that it, and the rights of the holders of TWH Debentures may in certain
circumstances, be modified. For that purpose, among others, the Trust Indenture will contain provisions that will
make binding on all debentureholders resolutions passed at a meeting of the holders of TWH Debentures by
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votes cast thereat by holders of not less than two-thirds of the principal amount of the TWH Debentures, or

rendered by instruments in writing signed by the holders of not less than two-thirds of the principal amount of
the TWH Debentures.

Investment Considerations

The TWH Debentures comprise a new issue of securities of the Offeror and may trade at a discount from
their principal amount depending on prevailing interest rates, the market for similar securities, the performance
of the Offeror and other factors. No assurance can be given as to whether an active trading market will develop
or be maintained for the TWH Debentures. To the extent that an active trading market for the

TWH Debentures does not develop, the liquidity and trading prices for the TWH Debentures may be adversely
affected.

Further, the TWH Debentures will be subordinate to all Senior Liabilities and to any indebtedness of the
Offeror to creditors.

The Trust Indenture will not limit the ability of the Offeror to incur additional debt or liabilities (including
Senior Indebtedness) or to make distributions. The Trust Indenture does not contain any provision specifically

intended to protect holders of the TWH Debentures in the event of a future leveraged transaction involving the
Offeror.

10. DESCRIPTION OF TWH SHARES

General

A maximum of 18,458,000 TWH Shares will be issuable in connection with the Offer. The authorized share
capital of the Offeror consists of an unlimited number of TWH Shares and an unlimited number of preferred
shares, issuable in series. Each holder of TWH Shares is entitled to receive notice and attend any meeting of the
shareholders of the Offeror and is entitled to one vote in respect of each TWH Common Share held at such
meetings. The holders of TWH Shares are entitled to receive such dividends, if any, as may be declared from
time to time by the board of directors in its sole discretion from funds legally available therefor. Upon a
liquidation or dissolution of the Offeror, the remainder of the assets of the Offeror will be distributed rateably
among the holders of TWH Shares after payment of liabilities. The TWH Shares have no preemptive or other
subscription rights and there are no conversion rights or redemption or sinking fund provisions with respect to
the TWH Shares. All the outstanding TWH Shares are fully paid and non-assessable.

Dividend Policy

On September 14, 2000, the board of directors of the Offeror approved the introduction of an annual
dividend of $0.10 per common share, payable semi-annually. The first payment of $0.05 per share was made on
October 10, 2000, and was paid semi-annually thereafter. On February 28, 2002, the dividend policy was revised
to provide for the payment of dividends quarterly instead of semi-annually, and increased the distribution from
$0.10 to $0.12 per annum commencing with a $0.03 dividend payable on March 29, 2002 to shareholders of
record as of March 14, 2002. On June 28, 2002 the Offeror paid $0.03 per share to shareholders of record as of
June 14, 2002. On September 30, 2002 the Offeror paid $0.03 per share to shareholders of record on
September 16, 2002. The Offeror’s dividend policy is subject to review by its board of directors.

11. ARRANGEMENTS, AGREEMENTS OR UNDERSTANDINGS

There are no contracts, arrangements or agreements made or proposed to be made between the Offeror, its
associates or affiliates and any of the directors or senior officers of ClubLink and no payments or other benefits
are proposed to be made or given by way of compensation for loss of office or to such directors ar senior officers
remaining in or retiring from office if the Offer is successful. In addition, there are no contracts, arrangements
or understandings, formal or informal, between the Offeror, its associates or affiliates and any holder of
securities of ClubLink with respect to the Offer or between the Offeror, its associates or affiliates and any
person or company with respect to any securities of ClubLink in relation to the Offer except as described below.
Other than the fact that Mr. Sahi, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Offeror, and Mr. Turple, the
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Chief Financial Officer of the Offeror, are directors of ClubLink, there are no business relationships between
the Offeror, its associates or affiliates and ClubLink that are material to any of them.

12. OWNERSHIP OF, TRADING IN AND COMMITMENTS TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES OF CLUBLINK

Except as set out herein, none of the Offeror, or any associate or affiliate of the Offeror, or any director or
officer of the Offeror, or, to the knowledge of the directors and officers of the Offeror after reasonable inquiry,
their respective associates or any person or company acting jointly in concert with the Offeror, or any person or
company who beneficially owns more than 10% of any class of equity securities of the Offeror, beneficially owns,
directly or indirectly, or controls or exercises direction over, or has the right to acquire, any securities of
ClubLink. The Offeror owns 5 million Common Shares representing approximately 26.6% of the issued and
outstanding Common Shares. Mr. Sahi, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Offeror, holds 25,000
options to purchase Common Shares. Donald Turple, Chief Financial Officer of the Offeror, holds

2,000 Common Shares and 10,000 options to purchase Common Shares. David King, a director of the Offeror,
owns 3,025 Common Shares.

During the twelve month period preceding the date of the Offer, no securities of ClubLink have been
traded by the Offeror, any associate or affiliate of the Offeror, any director or officer of the Offeror or their
respective associates, or, to the knowledge of the directors and officers of the Offeror, after reasonable inquiry,
by any associate of any director or officer of the Offeror, by any person or company who beneficially owns,

directly or indirectly, more than 10% of any class of equity securities of the Offeror or by any person or company
acting jointly or in concert with the Offeror.

None of the Offeror, or any associate or affiliate of the Offeror, or any director or officer of the Offeror, or
their respective associates, or, to the knowledge of the directors and officers of the Offeror, after reasonable
inquiry, any person or company who beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, more than 10% of any class of
equity securities of the Offeror or any person or company acting jointly or in concert with the Offeror, has
entered into any commitment to acquire any securities of ClubLink.

To the best of the Offeror’s knowledge, based on publicly available information, no person beneficially
owns, directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over, shares carrying more than 10% of the voting
rights attached to the issued and outstanding Common Shares as at the date hereof, except:

Number of Common Shares
Beneficially Owned or Percentage of Outstanding

Name of Shareholder Controlled Common Shares
Tri-White Corporation . . ... .......vueninrenen.n... 5,000,000() 26.6%
Robert B.Poile. . ....... .. ... i, 2,771,450 14.7%
Southwest SUN INC, . ..ot 3,418,600 18.2%
Total .....ooovunn... AP 11,185,083® 59.5%

(1) Exclusive of any options or warrants entitling the holder thereof to purchase additional Common Shares.

13. VALUATION SUMMARY AND PRIOR VALUATIONS

Introduction

By virtue of the Offeror’s ownership of the Common Shares, the Offeror is an “insider” of ClubLink.
Accordingly, the Offer is an “insider bid” for the purposes of Rule 61-501, Policy Q-27 and similar securities
legislation in the other provinces of Canada. Such policies require that unless the Offer is an exempt transaction,
a formal valuation of the Common Shares, the TWH Shares, the Debentures and the TWH Debentures must be

prepared in respect of the Offer, filed with the Securities Authorities and summarized in, or attached to, this
Circular.

With the prior consent of the Offeror, the Special Committee engaged BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc.
(“BMO NB”) to prepare the Valuations.
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The following summarizes the Valuations describing the basis of the computations utilized to determine the
valuations contained therein, the scope of the review made, the relevant factors and their values and the key
assumptions on which the Valuations are based. The following summary is qualified in its entirety by, and
should be read in conjunction with, the Valuations. Copies of the Valuations are available for inspection during
business hours at the registered and principal office of the Offeror located at One University Avenue, Suite 1400,
Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2P1, and copies of the Valuations may be obtained without charge upon written request to
the secretary of the Offeror at the same address.

Valuation Summary

Engagement of BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc. (“BMO NB”)

The Special Committee retained BMO NB to prepare and deliver to the Special Committee the Valuations
in accordance with the requirements under Rule 65-501, and similar securities rules or policies of other
Canadian securities regulators (collectively, the “Rules”). The Valuations are dated November 12, 2002.

The Special Committee first contacted BMO NB on or about September 12, 2002 concerning the possible
engagement of BMO NB in connection with the Offer. BMO NB was formally retained by ClubLink to prepare
the Valuations under a letter agreement dated October 1, 2002 (the “Engagement Agreement”). The Offeror
did not have any involvement in the selection of BMO NB or the supervision of the preparation of the
Valuations. The Offeror believes that ClubLink determined that BMO NB was independent and qualified.

The terms of the Engagement Agreement provide that BMO NB is to be paid a fee of $500,000 for the
preparation and delivery of the Valuations. In addition, BMO NB is to be reimbursed for its reasonable
out-of-pocket expenses and to be indemnified by ClubLink under certain circumstances. In accordance with the
Rules, such fees and expenses will be paid by the Offeror. No part of BMO NB’s fee is contingent upon the
conclusions reached in the Valuations or on the success of the Offer.

Credentials of BMO NB

BMO NB has stated that it is one of Canada’s largest investment banking firms, with operations in all facets
of corporate and government finance, mergers and acquisitions, equity and fixed income sales and trading,
investment research and investment management. BMO NB has been a financial advisor in a significant number
of transactions throughout North America involving public companies in various industry sectors and has
extensive experience in preparing fairness opinions and valuations.

The Valuations represent the opinion of BMO NB and the form and content thereof were approved by a
group of BMO NB’s directors and officers, who BMO NB believes are collectively experienced in mergers and
acquisitions, divestitures, restructurings and valuation matters.

Independence of BMO NB

BMO NB acts a trader and dealer, both as principal and agent, in major financial markets and, as such, may
have had and may in the future have positions in the securities of ClubLink, the Offeror or their respective
associates or affiliates and, from time to time, may have executed or may execute transactions on behalf of such
companies or clients for which it received or may receive compensation. As an investment dealer, BMO NB
conducts research on securities and may, in the ordinary course of its business, provide research reports and
investment advice to its clients on investment matters, including with respect to ClubLink, the Offeror or their
respective associates or affiliates or the Offer.

In addition, in the ordinary course of its business, BMO NB or its controlling shareholder, a Canadian
chartered bank (the “Bank”), may have extended or may extend loans, or may have provided or may provide
other financial services, to the Offeror or its associates or affiliates. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Bank through one of its affiliates has extended a $37 million credit facility to an entity associated
with the Offeror’s controlling shareholder and the Bank has extended a $15 million credit facility to another
such entity and, within the past year, BMO NB has acted as a co-manager in two offerings of debt securities by
one such entity, in each case in the ordinary course of the Bank’s and BMO NB’s respective businesses.

39

41




BMO NB has stated that it is of the view that it is “independent” of all interested parties in the Offer for

the purposes of the Rules. Neither the Offeror, nor any of its affiliates is an insider, associate or affiliated entity
of BMO NB.

Scope of Review

In connection with the Valuations, BMO NB has indicated that it has reviewed, considered, and relied
upon, among other things, discussions with the Special Committee and various members of the executive and
operating teams of ClubLink and the Offeror and their respective financial and legal advisors, reviewed publicly-
available information and financial statements and non-public information relating to ClubLink and the Offeror,
and reviewed information relating to the business, operations, financial performance and, where applicable, such
other corporate, industry and financial market information, investigations and analyses BMO NB considered
necessary or appropriate in the circumstances. BMO NB also indicated that, to its knowledge, it was not denied
access to any information it requested in connection with the preparation of the Valuations.

Assumptions and Limitations

In accordance with the Engagement Agreement, BMO NB has relied upon, and has assumed the
completeness, accuracy and fair presentation of, all financial and other information, data, advice, opinions and
representations obtained by it from public sources or provided by ClubLink or the Offeror and their respective
officers, assaciates, affiliates, consultants, advisors and representatives (collectively, the “Information”). The
Valuations are conditional upon such completeness, accuracy and fair presentation of such Information. In
accordance with the Engagement Agreement but subject to the exercise of its professional judgment, BMO NB
has advised that it has not attempted to verify independently the completeness, accuracy or fair presentation of
the Information.

BMO NB has assumed that the forecasts, projections and budgets of ClubLink and the Offeror provided to
it and used in its analyses have been reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available
estimates and judgements of the managements of ClubLink and the Offeror and their respective associates and
affiliates as to matters covered thereby and, in rendering the Valuations, BMO NB expresses no view as to the
reasonableness of such forecasts, projections and budgets or the assumptions on which they are based.

The Valuations were rendered on the basis of securities markets, economic, financial and general business
conditions prevailing as at the date thereof and the condition and prospects, financial and otherwise, of
ClubLink, the Offeror and their respective associates and affiliates, as they were reflected in the Information
reviewed by BMO NB. In its analyses and in preparing the Valuations, BMO NB has stated that it made
numerous judgements with respect to industry performance, general business, market and economic conditions
and other matters, many of which are beyond its control or that of any party involved in the Offer.

BMO NB has based its Valuations upon a variety of factors. Accordingly, BMO NB believes that its analyses
must be considered as a whole. Selecting portions of its analyses or the factors considered by BMO NB, without
considering all factors and analyses together, could create a misleading view of the process underlying the
Valuations. The preparation of a valuation is a complex process and is not necessarily susceptible to partial
analysis or summary description. Any attempt to do so could lead to undue emphasis on any particular factor or
analysis.

Approach to Value

BMO NB has stated that the Valuations are based upon techniques and assumptions that BMO NB
considered appropriate in the circumstances for the purposes of arriving at an opinion as to the range of fair
market values of the Common Shares, the TWH Shares, the Debentures and the TWH Debentures.

The Valuations have been prepared in accordance with the Disclosure Standards for Formal Valuations and
Fairness Opinions of the Investment Dealers Assaciation of Canada (“IDA”), but the IDA has not been involved
in the preparation or review of the Valuations.
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Definition of Fair Market Value

For purposes of the Valuations, fair market value means the highest price, expressed in terms of money or
money’s worth, available in an open and unrestricted market between informed and prudent parties, each acting
at arm’s length, where neither party is under any compulsion to act.

Valuation of Common Shares

Valuation Method

In accordance with the Rules, BMO NB made no downward adjustment to the fair market value of the
Common Shares to reflect the liquidity of the Common Shares, the effect of the Offer on the Common Shates or
the fact that the Common Shares held by individual shareholders do not form part of a controlling interest. A
valuation prepared on the foregoing basis is referred to as an “en bloc” valuation.

The principal valuation method BMO NB used in valuing the Common Shares was the after-tax net asset
value (“NAV”) method. BMO NB also performed a precedent transactions analysis and reviewed transactions
involving golf course owner/operators; however, BMO NB determined that the universe of such transactions is
limited and concluded that none was sufficiently comparable to ClubLink to be useful. BMO NB also
determined that a public market trading analysis of similar companies implied values that were generally below
those implied by the NAV analysis. In light of the foregoing and the fact that public company trading values
generally reflect a “minority discount” from en bloc values, BMO NB did not rely on its analysis of other public
companies in valuing the Common Shares.

Net Asset Value Analysis

The NAV approach involves ascribing a separate value for each asset and liability of ClubLink, utilizing an
appropriate valuation method in each case, and subtracting the sum of the total liabilities from the sum of the
total assets to determine ClubLink’s NAV. BMQO NB believes that the key components of ClubLink’s NAV are as
follows:

* income producing properties

* properties under development

* non-core assets

* non-convertible debt and capital leases

* convertible debentures

* income taxes and the application of available tax deductions
* capitalized general and administration expenses

» other assets and liabilities

Valuation Conclusion

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, BMO NB is of the opinion that, as at November 12, 2002, the fair
market value of the Common Shares is in the range of $10.29 to $12.05 per share.

Valuation of TWH Shares

Rule 61-501 requires that the valuation of the TWH Shares include an en bloc valuation, which BMO NB
has prepared and included in the Valuations. However, in the context of the Offer, BMO NB has determined
that an en bloc valuation of TWH Shares would be of limited relevance to holders of Common Shares.
Consequently, BMO NB has also prepared a “Settled Trading Value” analysis to determine a range of values for
the TWH Shares, based on an assessment of the likely trading range of those shares in the open market
assuming that the Offeror acquires under the Offer all of the Common Shares it does not already own. BMO NB
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considers the Settled Trading Value analysis to be an appropriate method of valuing the TWH Shares in the
context of the Offer.

En Bloc Valuation Method

In accordance with the Rules, in its en bloc valuation BMO NB has made no downward adjustment to the
fair market value of the TWH Shares to reflect the liquidity of those shares, the effect of the Offer on those

shares or the fact that the TWH Shares held by individual shareholders do not form part of a controlling
interest.

The principal valuation approach BMO NB used in its en bloc valuation of the TWH Shares is the
Discounted Cash Flow (“DCF”) method. BMO NB also performed a precedent transaction analysis and
reviewed transactions in the entertainment, resort, destination and lodging industries; however, BMO NB
determined that none of the precedent transactions is sufficiently comparable to the Offer to be useful.
BMO NB also determined that a public market trading analysis of similar companies implied values that were
generally below those implied by the DCF analysis. In light of the foregoing and the fact that public company
trading values generally reflect minority discounts from en bloc values, BMO NB did not rely on the analysis of
other public companies in its en bloc Valuation of the TWH Shares.

Valuation Conclusion — En Bloc Method

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, BMO NB is of the opinion that, as at November 12, 2002, the en
bloc fair market value of the TWH Shares is in the range of $3.35 to $3.94 per share.

Settled Trading Value Method

In the context of the Offer, BMO NB is of the view that a “Settled Trading Value” analysis of the value of
the TWH Shares would be more appropriate, and more relevant to holders of Common Shares, than an en bloc
valuation of the TWH Shares. The Settled Trading Value analysis involves an assessment of the range of prices in
which the TWH Shares are likely to trade in the open market following completion of the Offer.

BMO NB is of the view that the market trading prices of the TWH Shares will be based on a multiple of its
EBITDA. BMO NB believes that investors will also apply a “holding company discount” to the Offeror’s
pro forma equity trading value in arriving at the Settled Trading Value. The extent of the holding company
discount will depend on the level of the Offeror’s ownership of ClubLink after the Offer is completed.

For purposes of the Settled Trading Value analysis, BMO NB assumed that the Offeror will acquire
pursuant to the Offer all of the Common Shares it does not already own to increase its ownership to 100% of the
Common Shares, and that the Offeror will acquire all of the Debentures in exchange for TWH Debentures.

TWH Shares may trade in the public markets at prices that reflect a liquidity discount due to the limited

public float of those shares; however, BMO NB did not make any adjustments in its Settled Trading Value
analysis to reflect a liquidity discount.

Valuation Conclusion — Settled Trading Value Method

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, BMO NB estimates that the value of the TWH Shares as at
November 12, 2002, based on a Settled Trading Value analysis, is in the range of $2.33 to $2.72 per share.

Valuation of ClubLink Debentures
Valuation Approach

BMO NB determined the value of the Debentures using the intrinsic bond valuation model (“Intrinsic
Bond Valuation Model”). This model] is based on the concept of a combination of two binary trees: an interest
rate binomial tree and a stock price binomial tree.
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The Intrinsic Bond Valuation Model derives a total intrinsic value of the Debenture that is comprised of a
pure bond value and a conversion option value based on assumptions concerning volatility and price for the
Common Shares, prevailing interest rates and credit spreads.

In the Intrinsic Bond Valuation Model, BMO NB selected a range of 35% to 45% as the appropriate
volatility range for the Common Shares into which the Debentures are convertible.

Based on a review and analysis of ClubLink’s debt levels and coverage ratios compared with those of other
companies across various industries as well as an analysis of pricing parameters for public debt securities,
BMO NB used a credit spread range for the Debentures of 700 to 900 basis points. Given prevailing

Government of Canada bond yields and the above credit spread range, BMO NB used a discount rate for the
Debentures of 11.3% to 13.3%.

Valuation Conclusion

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, BMO NB is of the opinion that, as at November 12, 2002, the

value of each $1,000 principal amount of Debentures is in the range of $769 to $842, excluding accrued and
unpaid interest.

Valuation of TWH Debentures
Valuation Approach

BMO NB used the Intrinsic Bond Valuation Model in valuing the TWH Debentures. BMO NB considered
two scenarios in valuing the TWH Debentures:

* Scenario 1 assumes that the Offeror acquires all of the issued and outstanding Common Shares it does
not already own; and

* Scenario 2 assumes that the Offeror acquires sufficient Common Shares to increase its ownership to
50.1% of the outstanding Common Shares.

In Scenario 1, the Offeror would own 100% of the equity of ClubLink and would have access to all of
ClubLink’s cash flow to fund the Offeror’s operations, including paying principal and interest on the TWH
Debentures. In Scenario 2, the Offeror would be able to access only a portion of ClubLink’s cash flow if and
when ClubLink paid dividends on its Common Shares (as well as through the receipt of principal and interest

paid on the Debentures acquired by the Offeror pursuant to the Offer). Accordingly, BMO NB selected a higher
discount rate under Scenario 2.

BMO NB selected a range of 40% to 50% as the appropriate volatility range for the TWH Shares
underlying the TWH Debentures in both Scenarios 1 and 2. Further, BMO NB assumed a pro forma TWH
Share price of $2.53, being the mid-point estimate of the Settled Trading Value range, in both Scenarios 1 and 2.
Based upon a review and analysis of the Offeror’s pro forma debt levels and coverage ratios as compared with
those of other companies across various industries, as well as an analysis of pricing parameters for public debt
securities, BMO NB estimated a credit spread premium for the TWH Debentures of 500 to 700 basis points in
Scenario 1 and 1400 to 1600 basis points in Scenario 2. Given prevailing Government of Canada bond yields and
the above credit spread ranges, BMO NB estimated a discount rate of 9.3% to 11.3% in Scenario 1 and 18.3% to
20.3% in Scenario 2.

Valuation Conclusion

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, BMO NB is of the opinion that, as at November 12, 2002, the
value of the TWH Debentures is in the following ranges:

* Scenario 1 — $808 to $886 per $1,000 principal amount.
* Scenario 2 — $591 to $644 per $1,000 principal amount.
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Summary of Valuation Conclusions

The following summarizes BMO NB’s Valuation conclusions set out above:

Security Valuation Range
ClubLink Common Shares {pershare) . .. ...... .. ... ... . i, $10.29 to $12.05
TWH Shares {per share)
«EnBloc Method .. ... . ... e e $3.35 to $3.94
« Settled Trading Value Method . ... .. ... .. . .. $233 to $2.72
Debentures (per $1,000) principal amount). . .. ... ... e $769 to $842

TWH Debentures (per $1,000 principal amount)

cScenaTio 1) L e $808 to $886
cSCENATIO 2 L e, $591 to %644

(1) Assuming the Offeror increases its ownership to 100% of ClubLink’s Common Shares.

(2) Assuming the Offeror increases its ownership to 50.1% of ClubLink’s Common Shares.

Offeror’s Disclaimer

Holders should be cautioned that the Valuations were not prepared by the Offeror, and do not reflect the
views of the Offeror or its management. As noted above the Offeror is required under the Rules to include a
summary of the Valuations in this Circular, but such inclusion should not be interpreted as an endorsement of or
agreement with the methodology, analysis or conclusions in the Valuations. The Offeror hereby disclaims any

responsibility for the Valuations and accepts no responsibility or liability for any misrepresentations that may be
contained therein.

The Offeror was not given access to the information provided by ClubLink to BMO NB and cannot
comment on the completeness or accuracy of such information which provided the basis for the Valuations. The
Offeror does not agree with the approach and conclusions in the Valuations.

Prior Valuations

Rule 61-501, Policy Q-27 and the regulations made under applicable securities laws also require that every
prior valuation of ClubLink, its material assets or its securities made in the 24 months preceding the date of the
Offer that is known to the Offeror or its directors or senior officers be disclosed in this Circular. No such prior
valuations are known to the Offeror or its directors or senior officers. In connection with the preparation of this
Circular, management of ClubLink provided the Offeror with specific market value assessments in respect of 11
of ClubLink’s 41 properties completed in the 24 months preceding the date of this Offer, none of which, in the
Offeror’s view, constitutes a material asset of ClubLink nor could reasonably be expected to affect the decision
of a Shareholder or Debentureholder to tender their ClubLink Securities to the Offer.

14. MATERIAL CHANGES AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING CLUBLINK

The Offeror has no information which indicates any material change in the affairs of ClubLink since the
date of the last published financial statements of ClubLink other than as has been publicly disclosed by
ClubLink. The Offeror has no knowledge of any material fact concerning securities of ClubLink that has not
been generally disclosed by ClubLink or any other matter that has not previously been generally disclosed but

which would reasonably be expected to affect the decision of Shareholders or Debentureholders to accept or
reject the Offer.
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15. INFORMATION CONCERNING THE SECURITIES OF CLUBLINK
Authorized and Outstanding Capital

Based on publicly available information, the authorized capital of ClubLink is comprised of an unlimited
number of common shares and an unlimited number of preference shares issuable in series. As of the close of
trading on September 19, 2002 there were 18,801,501 issued and outstanding Common Shares. Based on publicly
available information, no preference shares have been issued.

Price Ranges and Volumes of Trading of the Common Shares

The Common Shares are listed and posted for trading on the TSX. The following table sets forth the
reported high and low sales prices and the cumulative volume of trading of the Common Shares on the TSX for
the periods indicated:

TSX

Period High Low Volume
2002

November (to November 14 close) .. ... ... ... ... i oo, $8.00 $7.50 44 900
October . . .......... ... ... e e $8.33 §$7.45 745,776
September . o . e e e $7.50 $6.50 3,288,838
September (to September 12 close) . . ... ..ol e $6.95 $6.50 34,097
AUBUSE . . o oo ettt e e e e $7.20 $6.65 128,808
JUIY oo e e e e e $7.50 $6.45 448,955
JUDE . e e e e $7.35 §$6.75 141,762
MY o e $7.50 $6.71 740,201
APl L L e $7.65 $6.40 91,752
March .« . o e $6.80 $6.05 859,361
February .. .. . $6.30  $5.91 103,487
JaNUAIY . oo e e e $6.25 $5.40 185,963
2001

December . ... .. e e e e $5.75 $5.07 657,864
NOVEMDET . . ot e e e e $5.60 $5.00 442,518
(9 15 () 13 $5.65 $5.15 493,560
SepleImber . . L. e e $6.15 $5.00 580,218

The closing trading price of the Common Shares on the TSX on September 12, 2002 was $6.60. The closing
trading price of the Common Shares on the TSX on November 14, 2002 was $7.80.

The year-to-date weighted average trading price of the Common Shares on the TSX as of November 14,
2002 was $7.17.

On November 17, 1997, ClubLink issued 2.4 million Common Shares at a price of $12.50 per share for
aggregate gross proceeds of $30 million.

According to publicly available information, during 2001, pursuant to a normal course issuer bid, which
expired on October 4, 2001, ClubLink purchased 593,505 Common Shares for a total purchase price of
$3,523,000 or an average price of $5.94 per share, including commission and pursuant to a normal course issuer
bid that expired on October 4, 2002, ClubLink purchased 619,796 Common Shares for cancellation for a total
purchase price of $3,333,000 or an average price of $5.38 per share, including commission.

According to publicly available information as at September 30, 2002, during 2002, pursuant to a normal
course issuer bid, which expired on October 4, 2002, ClubLink purchased 352,361 Common Shares for a total
purchase price of $2,358,000 or an average price of $6.69 per share, including commission.
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Price Ranges and Volumes of Trading of the Debentures

The Debentures are listed and posted for trading on the TSX. The following table sets forth the reported

high and low sales prices and the cumulative volume of trading of the Debentures on the TSX for the periods
indicated:

TSX

Period High Low Velume
2002

November (to November 14 close) ... ... ... .. i $80.99 $79.00 459,000
OCtODEL . . ottt e e e $82.25 $79.50 1,494,000
September . . e e $83.99 §79.50 1,147,000
September (to September 12 close) .. ..... ... ... L i i i $80.00 §79.50 181,000
AUGUSE . o oo e e e e $81.00 $79.00 2,762,000
July . e $82.00 $78.05 4,656,000
JUDE . L e $82.50 $80.00 251,000
MY .o e $82.00 $79.00 312,000
ApHl L e $81.94 §77.02 635,000
March ... e $79.00 $73.50 1,576,000
February. . ... e $75.00 $73.00 2,105,000
JANUATY ..o e [ $7399 $69.50 824,000
2001

DeCemMbDEr. . .o e e e $73.00 $68.00 445,000
NOVEmMDET . .. e $70.00 $67.00 660,000
L0 10} TS $66.50 $66.50 35,000
September ... s n/a nfa n/a

The closing trading price of the Debentures on the TSX on September 12, 2002 was $80.00 per $100.00
principal amount. The closing trading price of the Debentures on the TSX on November 14, 2002 was $79.55.

On April 30, 1998, ClubLink issued an aggregate principal amount of $88 million of Debentures.

According to publicly available information, during 2001, ClubLink purchased and subsequently cancelled
$2.390,000 principal of the Debentures in accordance with two normal course issuer bids at a total cost of
$1,566,000 or an average cost of $65.52 per $100.00 principal amount, including commissions. To date, based on
publicly available information, during 2002, ClubLink has purchased $5,270,000 principal amount of the
Debentures i accordance with a normal course issuer bid at a total cost of $4,155,000 or an average cost of
$78.84 per $100.00 principal amount, including commissions.

According to publicly available information, ClubLink also had $10 million principal amount of 6.5%
convertible debentures outstanding. During 2001, pursuant to a normal course issuer bid, ClubLink purchased
and subsequently cancelled $1.3 million principal amount of its 6.5% convertible debentures. The debentures
were purchased at a total cost of $1,037,000. On May 1, 2002 ClubLink announced that it had purchased for

cancellation the remaining $8.7 million principal amount of its 6.5% convertible debentures at a total cost of
$7,612,500.

Stock Options

ClubLink has established a stock option plan (the “Stock Option Plan”), the stated purpose of which is to
provide incentives to directors, officers and employees of ClubLink. Based upon publicly available information
at September 30, 2002, an aggregate of 1,220,701 Common Shares remained available for issuance under Stock
Options to be granted under the Stock Option Plan.

According to publicly available information, as at September 18, 2002, ClubLink had 2,329,300 options
outstanding. The exercise prices range from $5.15 to $14.50.
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Effect of the Offer on Markets for the Common Shares and Debentures and Stock Exchange Listing

The purchase of Common Shares and Debentures by the Offeror pursuant to the Offer will reduce the
number of Common Shares and Debentures that might otherwise trade publicly, as well as the number of
holders of Common Shares and Debentures, and, depending on the number of Common Shares and Debentures

deposited and purchased under the Offer, could adversely affect the liquidity and market value of the remaining
Common Shares and Debentures held by the public.

The rules and regulations of the TSX establish certain criteria which, if not met, could lead to the cessation
of trading and delisting of the Common Shares or Debentures on such exchange. Among such criteria are the
minimum number of holders of Common Shares or Debentures, the minimum number of Common Shares or
Debentures publicly held and the minimum aggregate market value of the Common Shares or the Debentures,
as the case may be, publicly held. Depending upon the number of Common Shares or Debentures purchased
pursuant to the Offer, it is possible that the Common Shares or Debentures would fail to meet the criteria for
continued listing on the TSX. If this were to happen, the Common Shares or the Debentures, as the case may be,

could be delisted and this could, in turn, adversely affect the market or result in a lack of an established market
for such Common Shares or Debentures.

16. ACQUISITION OF COMMON SHARES AND DEBENTURES NOT DEPOSITED

Compulsory Acquisition

Section 188 of the OBCA permits an offeror to acquire securities not tendered to an offer for all of the
securities of a particular class of securities of a corporation if, within 120 days after the date of the offer, the
offer is accepted by the holders of not less than 90% of the securities to which the offer relates, other than

securities held at the date of the offer by or on behalf of the offeror or its affiliates or associates (as such terms
are defined in the OBCA).

If, within 120 days after the date hereof, the Offer has been accepted by holders of not less than 90% of the
issued and outstanding Common Shares or Debentures, other than the Common Shares or Debentures held on
the date of the Offer by or on behalf of the Offeror and its affiliates and associates (as such terms are defined in
the OBCA), and the Offeror has taken up and paid for such deposited Common Shares and/or Debentures, the
Offeror may elect to acquire the remainder of the Common Shares and/or Debentures, as applicable, on the
same terms as such Common Shares and Debentures were acquired under the Offer pursuant to the provisions
of section 188 of the OBCA (a “Compulsory Acquisition”). In determining whether not less than 90% of the
outstanding Common Shares or Debentures have been acquired under the Offer, any Common Shares or
Debentures acquired by the Offeror during the course of the Offer are included in the number of outstanding

Common Shares or Debentures, as applicable, but excluded from the number of Common Shares and/or
Debentures acquired under the Offer.

To exercise such statutory right, the Offeror must give notice (the “Offeror’s Notice™) to each holder of
Common Shares or Debentures, as applicable, who did not accept the Offer (and each person who subsequently
acquires any such Common Shares or Debentures) (in each case, a ‘“‘Dissenting Offeree”) and to the Director
under the OBCA of such proposed acquisition on or before the earlier of 60 days from the Expiry Time and
180 days from the date of the Offer. Within 20 days of giving the Offeror’s Notice, the Offeror must pay or
transfer to ClubLink the consideration the Offeror would have had to pay or transfer to the applicable
Dissenting Offerees if they had elected to accept the Offer, to be held in trust for such Dissenting Offerees. In
accordance with section 188 of the OBCA, within 20 days after receipt of the Offeror’s Notice, each Dissenting
Offeree must send the certificates representing the Common Shares or Debentures, as applicable, held by such
Dissenting Offeree to ClubLink, and may elect either to transfer such Common Shares or Debentures to the
Offeror on the terms of the Offer or to demand payment of the fair value of such Common Shares or
Debentures held by such holder by se notifying the Offeror. If a Dissenting Offeree has elected to demand
payment of the fair value of such Common Shares or Debentures, the Offeror may apply to a court having
jurisdiction to hear an application to fix the fair value of such Common Shares of that Dissenting Offeree. If the
Offeror fails to apply to such court within 20 days after it made the payment or transferred the consideration to
ClubLink referred to above, the Dissenting Offeree may then apply to the court within a further period of
20 days to have the court fix the fair value. If there is no such application made by the Dissenting Offeree within
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such period, the Dissenting Offeree will be deemed to have elected to transfer such Common Shares or
Debentures, as applicable, to the Offeror on the terms of the Offer. Any judicial determination of the fair value
of the Common Shares or Debentures could be more or less than the amount paid pursuant to the Offer.

The foregoing is a summary only. Reference should be made to section 188 of the OBCA for the text of the
relevant statutory provisions. Shareholders who wish to be better informed about the provisions of section 188 of
the OBCA should consult their legal advisors.

Subsequent Acquisition Transaction
Common Shares

If the Offeror takes up and pays for Common Shares validly deposited under the Offer and the right of
acquisition under Section 188 of the OBCA is not available in respect of the Common Shares, or the Offeror
elects not to pursue such right, the Offeror intends, subject to obtaining adequate financing, if sufficient
Common Shares are tendered to the Offer, to pursue other means of acquiring, directly or indirectly, all the
Common Shares in accordance with applicable law if sufficient Common Shares are tendered to the Offer,
including, by way of example, an arrangement, reclassification, consolidation, amalgamation, merger or other
combination of ClubLink with the Offeror or one or more of the Offeror’s subsidiaries, on such terms and
conditions as the Offeror, at the time, believes to be fair and equitable to ClubLink and the Shareholders (each,
a “Subsequent Acquisition Transaction”). To effect a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction, the Offeror may seek
to cause a special meeting of Shareholders to be called to consider such a transaction. The timing and details of
any such transaction will necessarily depend on a variety of factors, including the number of Common Shares
acquired pursuant to the Offer. In the event of any such Subsequent Acquisition Transaction, the holders of
Common Shares, other than the Offeror and its affiliates, could receive cash, debt, other securities or any
combination thereof. The consideration offered to Shareholders in a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction could
have a higher or lower value than the value of the consideration offered for the Common Shares pursuant to the
Offer. The Offeror’s current intention is that, subject to obtaining adequate financing, the form of and value of
the consideration to be paid to Shareholders pursuant to a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction will be equal in
value to and in the same form as that payable under the Offer.

Any such Subsequent Acquisition Transaction may also result in Shareholders having the right to dissent
and demand payment of the fair value of their Common Shares. The exercise of such right of dissent, if certain
procedures are complied with by the holder, could lead to a judicial determination of fair value required to be
paid to such dissenting Shareholder for its Common Shares. That fair value could be more or less than the
amount paid per ClubLink Share pursuant to such transaction or pursuant to the Offer.

Rule 61-501, Policy Q-27 and the regulations to securities legislation in certain provinces of Canada
(collectively, the “Regulations”) may deem certain types of Subsequent Acquisition Transactions involving a
related party of ClubLink, such as the Offeror or an affiliate of the Offeror to be “going private transactions” if
such Subsequent Acquisition Transactions would result in the interest of a holder of Common Shares (the
“affected securities’) being terminated without the consent of the holder unless it is a transaction in which the
related party or an affiliated party of the related party is (i) only entitled to receive a consideration per security
that is identical in amount and type as that paid to all other beneficial owners in Canada of affected securities,
(ii) is not entitled to receive consideration of greater value than that paid to all other beneficial owners of
affected securities, and (iii) upon completion of the transaction, does not beneficially own or exercise control or
direction over participating securities of a class other than affected securities. In certain circumstances, the

provisions of Rule 61-501 and Policy Q-27 may also deem certain types of Subsequent Acquisition Transactions
to be “related party transactions”.

Rule 61-501, Policy Q-27 and the Regulations provide that, unless exempted, a corporation proposing to
carry out a going private transaction is required to prepare a valuation of the affected securities (and any
non-cash consideration being offered therefor) and provide to the holders of the affected securities a summary
of such valuation. The Regulations impose a requirement to include a summary of a similar valuation in a
take-over bid circular where it is anticipated by the Offeror that a going-private transaction will follow the
take-over bid. Rule 61-501 and Policy Q-27 have similar requirements for related party transactions. The Offeror
will rely on the valuation prepared in connection with the Offer in connection with any Subsequent Acquisition

48

50




Transaction proposed by the Offeror. See Section 13 of the Circular, “Valuation Summary and Prior
Valuations”,

Rule 61-501 and Policy Q-27 also require that, in addition to any other required security holder approval, in
order to complete a going private transaction, the approval of a simple majority of the votes cast by “minority”
securityholders of the affected securities must be obtained. In relation to the Offer and any Subsequent
Acquisition Transaction that is a “going private transaction”, the “minority” securityholders would be, absent
exemptions or discretionary relief from the OSC and CVMQ, all holders of Common Shares other than the
Offeror, its directors and senior officers and any associate or affiliate of the Offeror and its directors or senior
officers and any person or company acting jointly or in concert with the Offeror (and any of their directors or
senior officers) in connection with the Offer or any Subsequent Acquisition Transaction. The 5 million Common
Shares held directly by the Offeror are, to the knowledge of the Offeror after reasonable inquiry, the only
securities, the votes attaching to which would be required to be excluded from the determination of whether the
requisite minority approval of a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction had been obtained. Rule 61-501 and
Policy Q-27 provide that, except as described above, the Offeror may treat Common Shares acquired pursuant to
the Offer as “minority” securities and to vote them, or 1o consider them voted, in favour of such going private
(or related party) transaction if the consideration per security in the going private transaction is at least equal in
value to, and in the same form as, the consideration paid under the Offer and if the intent to effect the going
private transaction was disclosed at the time of the Offer. The Offeror currently intends that, subject to
obtaining adequate financing, the consideration offered under any Subsequent Acquisition Transaction
proposed by it would be equal in value to, and in the same form as, the consideration offered under the Offer.
The Offeror also intends that the Common Shares acquired by it pursuant to the Offer will be counted as part of
any minority approval required in connection with any such transaction.

In addition, under Rule 61-501 and Policy Q-27 if, following the Offer, the Offeror and its affiliates are the
registered holders of 90% or more of the Common Shares at the time the Subsequent Acquisition Transaction is
initiated, the requirement for minority approval would not apply to the transaction if an enforceable right of
appraisal or a substantially equivalent right is made available to the minority shareholders.

Debentures

In connection with any Compulsory Acquisition or Subsequent Acquisition Transaction with respect to the
Common Shares, and if a sufficient principal amount of Debentures are tendered to the Offer, the Offeror
intends, subject to any required approvals and concurrent with or contingent upon the completion of such
transaction, to cause ClubLink to enter into a supplemental indenture with the Debenture Trustee providing that
the terms of the Debentures be amended such that they be redeemable at any time by ClubLink for an
equivalent principal amount of TWH Debentures, and so redeem the Debentures. The Debenture Indenture
provides that an instrument in writing signed by the holders of in excess of 66%3% of the principal amount of all
outstanding Debentures is sufficient to authorize the entering into of such supplemental indenture. In
connection therewith, the execution of the Letter of Transmittal applicable to the Debentures by a
Debentureholder is also such Debentureholder’s written approval of a resolution which shall become effective
only after the Effective Date authorizing ClubLink and the Debenture Trustee to enter into a supplemental
indenture providing that the terms of the Debentures be amended in the manner described above. Should the
Minimum Debenture Condition be satisfied, the Offeror will have a sufficient aggregate principal amount of
outstanding Debentures to amend the Trust Indenture.

Judicial Developments

Prior to the adoption of Rule 61-501 and Policy Q-27, Canadian courts had, in a few instances, granted
preliminary injunctions to prohibit transactions which constituted going private transactions within the meaning
of Rule 61-501 and Policy Q-27. The Offeror has been advised that going private transactions are now expressly
permitted to proceed under the OBCA, subject to compliance with requirements intended to ensure procedural
and substantive fairness to minority shareholders. As the Debentures are not “participating securities” for the
purposes of Rule 61-501 and Policy Q-27, such requirements are not applicable to a going private transaction
involving the Debentures. Shareholders should consult their legal advisors for a determination of their legal
rights with respect to any transaction which may constitute a going private transaction.
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See “Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations” in Section 18 of the Circular for a discussion of the
income tax consequences to Shareholders of a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction.

17. STATEMENT OF EXPENSES INCURRED IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER
The Offeror is obligated to pay BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc. $500,000 for the Valuation.

The Depositary will receive reasonable and customary compensation for its services, will be reimbursed for
certain reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and will be indemnified against certain liabilities and expenses in
connection with the Offer, including liabilities under securities legislation.

The Trustee will receive reasonable and customary compensation for its services, will be reimbursed for
certain reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and will be indemnified against certain liabilities and expenses in
connection with the Offer, including liabilities under securities legislation.

The Offeror expects to incur expenses of approximately $2.1 million in connection with the Offer, including
financial advisory, legal, accounting, filing and translation fees and printing expenses, the impact of which has
been reflected in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements.

18. MATERIAL CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following summary is of a general nature only and is not intended to be, nor should it be construed as,
legal or tax advice to any particular Shareholder or Debentureholder {a “Securityholder”). Securityholders are
advised and expected to consult with their own tax advisors for advice regarding the income tax consequences to
them of disposing of their Common Shares or Debentures pursuant to the Offer, a Compulsory Acquisition or a
Subsequent Acquisition Transaction, having regard to their own particular circumstances and regarding any
other consequences to them of such transactions under Canadian federal, provincial, local and foreign tax laws.

This summary of the principal Canadian federal income tax considerations is generally applicable to
Securityholders who, for the purposes of the Tax Act, hold their Common Shares and Debentures and will hold
any TWH Shares and TWH Debentures as capital property (together, the Common Shares, Debentures, TWH
Shares and TWH Debentures are referred to as the “Securities”), deal at arm’s length with the Offeror and
ClubLink and are not affiliated with the Offeror or ClubLink. Securities will generally be considered to be
capital property to a Securityholder unless the Securityholder either holds such Securities in the course of
carrying on a business or acquired such Securities in a transaction or transactions considered to be an adventure
in the nature of trade. This summary is not applicable to Securityholders who are “financial institutions” for the
purposes of the mark-to-market rules contained in the Tax Act or to Securityholders who acquired their
Common Shares upon the exercise of an employee stock option.

This summary is based upon the current provisions of the Tax Act, the regulations thereunder (the “Tax
Regulations™), and the Offeror’s understanding of the current published administrative practices of the Canada
Customs and Revenue Agency (the “CCRA”). This summary also takes into account specific proposals to amend
the Tax Act and Tax Regulations publicly announced by or on behalf of the Minister of Finance (Canada) prior
to the date hereof (the “Proposed Amendments”) and assumes that all Proposed Amendments will be enacted
substantially as proposed. However, no assurances can be given that the Proposed Amendments will be enacted
as proposed, or at all. This summary does not otherwise take into account or anticipate any changes in the law,
whether by way of legislative, judicial or governmental action or decision, nor does it take into account
provincial, territorial or foreign tax legislation or considerations.

Residents of Canada

The following portion of the summary is generally applicable to a Securityholder who, at all relevant times,
for the purposes of the Tax Act and any applicable income tax treaty or convention is, or is deemed to be,
resident in Canada (a “Holder™).

Certain Holders whose Securities might not otherwise qualify as capital property may make an irrevocable
election in accordance with subsection 39(4) of the Tax Act to have the Securities and every “Canadian security”
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(as defined in the Tax Act) owned by such Holder in the taxation year of the election and in all subsequent
taxation years deemed to be capital property.

Exchange of Common Shares

Exchange of Common Shares for Cash

A Holder who exchanges a Common Share for cash will be considered to have disposed of such Common
Share for proceeds of disposition equal to the amount of such cash received for that Common Share. The
Holder will realize a capital gain (or capital loss) equal to the amount by which the proceeds of disposition of the
Common Share, net of any reasonable costs of disposition, exceed (or are less than) the adjusted cost base of the
Common Share to the Holder. The consequences to a Holder of realizing a capital gain or capital Joss are as
described below under “Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses”.

Exchange of Common Shares for TWH Shares

A Holder who exchanges a Common Share for TWH Shares will receive only TWH Shares in exchange for
such Common Share. In this circumstance the Holder will be deemed, unless the Holder chooses to treat the
exchange as a taxable transaction, to have disposed of the Common Share for proceeds of disposition equal to
the Holder’s adjusted cost base in respect of such shares immediately before the exchange, and to have acquired
the TWH Shares received in exchange therefore at a cost equal to such proceeds of disposition (the “Rollover”).
Based on the current administrative practice of the CCRA, a Holder who receives cash in lieu of a fraction of a
TWH Share which would otherwise be received by the Holder may still utilize the Rollover, but must reduce the
adjusted cost base of the TWH Shares received by such Holder by the amount of the cash received.

If a Holder chooses to treat the exchange of a Common Share for TWH Shares as a taxable transaction, the
Holder will be required to recognize a capital gain to the extent that the fair market value of the TWH Shares
received in exchange for such Common Share exceeds the aggregate of the adjusted cost base to the Holder of
such share immediately prior to the exchange and any reasonable costs of disposition associated with the
exchange. If the fair market value of the TWH Shares received is less than the aggregate of the adjusted cost
base of the Common Share to such Holder and any reasonable costs of disposition, a capital loss will result.
Under the current provisions of the Tax Act, recognition of this loss may be deferred if the Holder is a
corporation, trust or partnership. However, a letter from the Department of Finance has indicated the
Department’s intention to recommend amendments to the Tax Act to clarify that the recognition of any capital
loss so realized will not be deferred. No amendment to this effect has been publicly announced. The tax
consequences to a Holder realizing a capital gain or capital loss are described below under “Taxation of Capital
Gains and Capital Losses” below. The cost of the TWH Shares acquired by a Holder will be the fair market value
thereof at the time of the acquisition.

Exchange of Common Shares for a Combination of Cash and TWH Shares

As described in Section 1 of the Offer, Holders who receive cash and TWH Shares under the Offer will be
deemed to have disposed of a pro-rata portion of his or her Common Shares entirely for cash and a pro-rata
portion of his or her Common Shares entirely for TWH Shares (with fractional shares being paid in cash). The
tax consequences of exchanging the pro-rata portion of Common Shares for cash will be as described above
under “Exchange of Common Shares for Cash”. The tax consequences of exchanging the pro-rata portion of
Common Shares for TWH Shares will be as described above under “Exchange of Common Shares for TWH
Shares”.

Disposition of TWH Shares

A Holder of TWH Shares acquired pursuant to the Offer will realize a capital gain (or a capital loss) on a
subsequent disposition or deemed disposition of such shares equal to the amount by which the proceeds of
disposition, net of any reasonable costs of disposition, exceed (or are less than) the Holder’s aggregate adjusted
cost base of such TWH Shares. The consequences to a Holder of realizing a capital gain or capital loss are as
described below under “Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses”.
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Dividends on TWH Shares

Dividends received and deemed to be received on the TWH Shares acquired pursuant to the Offer will be
included in the Holder’s income for the purposes of the Tax Act. Such dividends received by an individual
(including a trust) will be subject to the gross-up and dividend tax credit rules normally applicable to dividends
received from taxable Canadian corporations. A Holder that is a corporation will include such dividends in
computing its income and generally will be entitled to deduct the amount of such dividends in computing its
taxable income. A Holder that is a “private corporation” or “‘subject corporation” (as such terms are defined in
the Tax Act) may be liable under Part IV of the Tax Act to pay a refundable tax of 3314% of dividends received or

deemed to be received on the TWH Shares to the extent such dividends are deductible in computing the
Holder’s taxable income.

Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses

In general, one-half of any capital gain (a “taxable capital gain”) realized by a Holder in a taxation year will
be included in the Holder’s income in the year and one-half of the amount of any capital loss realized by a
Holder in a taxation year may be deducted from net taxable capital gains realized by the Holder in the year and

any of the three preceding taxation years or in any subsequent year, to the extent and under the circumstances
described in the Tax Act.

Capital gains realized by an individual or trust, other than certain specified trusts, may give rise to
“alternative minimum tax” under the Tax Act.

In general, a capital loss otherwise arising upon the disposition of a Common Share or TWH Share by a
corporation may be reduced by dividends previously received or deemed to have been received thereon to the
extent and under the circumstances prescribed in the Tax Act. Similar rules may apply where the corporation is a
member of a partnership or a beneficiary of a trust that owns Common Shares or TWH Shares. Holders to
whom these rules may be relevant should consult their own tax advisors.

A Holder that is, throughout the relevant taxation year, a “Canadian-controlled private corporation” (as
defined in the Tax Act) may be liable to pay an additional refundable tax of 6%:% on its “aggregate investment
income” for the year, which will include an amount in respect of taxable capital gains.

Compulsory Acquisition

As described in Section 16 of the Circular, “Acquisition of Common Shares and Debentures Not
Deposited”, the Offeror may, in certain circumstances, acquire Common Shares pursuant to the provisions of
section 188 of the OBCA. The tax consequences to a Holder of a disposition of Common Shares in such
circumstances generally will be as described above under “Exchange of Common Shares for a Combination of

Cash and/or TWH Shares”, but Holders whose Common Shares may be so acquired should consult their own tax
advisors in this regard.

Subsequent Acquisition Transaction

If the Compulsory Acquisition provisions are not utilized, the Offeror may propose other means of
acquiring the remaining issued and outstanding Common Shares as described in Section 16 of the Circular,
“Acquisition of Common Shares and Debentures Not Deposited”. Such means include an arrangement,
reclassification, consolidation, amalgamation, merger or other combination of ClubLink with the Offeror or one
or more of the Offeror’s subsidiaries. The tax treatment of a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction to a Holder
will depend upon the exact manner in which the Subsequent Acquisition Transaction is carried out. Holders
should consult their own tax advisors for advice with respect to the income tax consequences to them of having
their Common Shares acquired pursuant to a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction.

A Subsequent Acquisition Transaction could be implemented by means of an amalgamation of ClubLink
with the Offeror or one of its affiliates pursuant to which Holders who have not tendered their Common Shares
under the Offer would have their Common Shares exchanged on the amalgamation for redeemable preference
shares (“Redeemable Shares”) which would then be immediately redeemed for cash. Such a Holder would not
realize a capital gain or capital loss as a result of such exchange, and the cost of the Redeemable Shares received
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would be equal to the aggregate of the adjusted cost base of the Common Shares to the Holder immediately
before the amalgamation. Upon redemption of the Redeemable Shares, the Holder would be deemed to have
received a dividend (subject to the potential application of subsection 55(2) of the Tax Act to Holders that are
corporations as discussed below) equal to the amount by which the redemption price of the Redeemable Shares
exceeds their paid-up capital for the purposes of the Tax Act. The difference between the redemption price and
the amount of the deemed dividend would be treated as proceeds of disposition of such shares for the purposes
of computing any capital gain or capital loss arising on the disposition of such shares. A capital loss arising upon
the redemption of a Redeemable Share may be reduced by dividends previously received or deemed to have
been received thereon or on Common Shares for which they were exchanged as described above under
‘“Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses”.

Subsection 55(2) of the Tax Act provides that where a corporate Holder is deemed to receive a dividend
under the circumstances described above, all or part of the deemed dividend may be treated as proceeds of
disposition of the Redeemable Shares for the purpose of computing the Holder’s capital gain on the disposition
of such shares. Accordingly, corporate Holders should consult their tax advisors for specific advice with respect
to the potential application of this provision. Subject to the potential application of this provision, dividends
deemed to be received by a corporation as a result of the redemption of the Redeemable Shares will be included
in computing its income, but normally will also be deductible in computing its taxable income unless the
corporation is a “specified financial institution” (as defined in the Tax Act).

A Holder that is a “private corporation” or a ‘“subject corporation” (as such terms are defined in the
Tax Act) may be liable to pay the 33%5% refundable tax under Part IV of the Tax Act on dividends deemed to be
received on the Redeemable Shares to the extent that such dividends are deductible in computing the
corporation’s taxable income.

In the case of a Holder who is an individual (including a trust), dividends deemed to be received as a result
of the redemption of the Redeemable Shares will be included in computing the recipient’s income, and will be

subject to the gross-up and dividend tax credit rules normally applicable to taxable dividends received from a
taxable Canadian corporation.

Under the current administrative practice of the CCRA, Holders who exercise their statutory right of
dissent in respect of an amalgamation should be considered to have disposed of their Common Shares for
proceeds of disposition equal to the amount paid by the amaigamated corporation to the dissenting shareholder
therefor, other than interest, if any, awarded by the court. However, because of uncertainties under the relevant
legislation as to whether such amounts paid to a dissenting shareholder will be treated entirely as proceeds of

disposition, or in part as the payment of a deemed dividend, dissenting shareholders should consult with their
own tax advisors in this regard.

Exchange of Debentures

A Holder of Debentures will be considered to have disposed of his or her Debentures upon the exchange of
such Debentures for TWH Debentures on the Effective Date. A Holder will generally be required to include in
income the amount of interest accrued or deemed to accrue to the Effective Date, to the extent that such
amounts have not otherwise been included in the Holder’s income for the year or a preceding taxation year.
Where a Holder is required to include an amount in income on account of interest on the Debentures that
accrues in respect of the period prior to their date of acquisition, the Holder will be entitled to a deduction in
computing income of an equivalent amount. The adjusted cost base of the Debentures to the Holder will be
reduced by the amount that is so deductible.

In general, the exchange of Debentures for TWH Debentures will give rise to a capital gain (or a capital
loss) to the extent that the proceeds of disposition, net of any amount included in the Holder’s income as
interest and any reasonable costs of disposition, exceed (or are less than) the Holder’s adjusted cost base of the
Debenture and the amount of any reserve claimed as a deduction in accordance with the detailed provisions of
the Tax Act. Any such capital gain (or capital loss) will be subject to the tax treatment described above under
“Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses”. For this purpose, a Holder’s adjusted cost base of Debentures
will generally include the amounts previously included in the Holder’s income as interest on such Debentures, to
the extent such amounts exceed amounts actually received by the Holder as interest. A Holder’s proceeds of
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disposition of Debentures upon the exchange of such Debentures for TWH Debentures will be the fair market
value on the Effective Date of the TWH Debentures received on the exchange. A Holder’s cost of the TWH

Debentures will be the fair market value on the Effective Date of such debentures received as a consequence of
the Offer.

Taxation of Interest on TWH Debentures

A Holder of TWH Debentures acquired pursuant to the Offer that is a corporation, partnership, unit trust
or trust of which a corporation or partnership is a beneficiary will be required to include in its income for a
taxation year any interest on the TWH Debentures that accrued to it or was deemed to accrue to it to the end of
the year or that became receivable or was received by it before the end of the year, except to the extent that such
interest was included in computing its income for a preceding year. Any other holder, including an individual,
will be required to include in income for a taxation year any interest on TWH Debentures received or receivable
by such Holder in the year (depending upon the method regularly followed by the Holder in computing income),
except to the extent that such amount was otherwise included in its income for the year or a previous year.

Where a Holder is required to include an amount in income on account of interest on the TWH Debentures
that accrued in respect of the period prior to their date of acquisition, the Holder will be entitled to a deduction

in computing income of an equivalent amount. The adjusted cost base of the TWH Debentures to the Holder
will be reduced by the amount which is so deductible.

Where the Offeror satisfies all or any part of an interest payment by means of the Interest Payment
Election, the Holder will be considered to have received an amount of interest equal to the interest payment
made by the Offeror through the resulting sale of TWH Shares.

Exercise of Conversion Privilege of TWH Debentures

A Holder of a TWH Debenture who converts the TWH Debenture into TWH Shares pursuant to the
conversion privilege will not be considered to realize a capital gain or capital loss by reason only of such
conversion. The cost to such Holder of the TWH Shares acquired on such conversion will be equal to the
Holder’s adjusted cost base of the TWH Debenture immediately before the conversion. The adjusted cost base
to the Holder of the TWH Shares acquired on the conversion will be determined by averaging the cost of the
TWH Shares so acquired with the adjusted cost base of all other TWH Shares then held by the Holder as capital
property. Under the current administrative practice of the CCRA, a Holder who, upon conversion of a TWH
Debenture, receives cash not in excess of $200.00 in lieu of a fraction of a TWH Share may either treat this
amount as proceeds of disposition of a portion of a TWH Debenture thereby realizing a capital gain or capital

loss, or, alternatively, may reduce the Holder’s adjusted cost base of the TWH Shares received on the conversion
by the amount of the cash received.

Disposition, Redemption or Repayment of TWH Debentures

On a disposition or a deemed disposition of TWH Debentures acquired pursuant to the Offer, including a
redemption, repayment or purchase by the Offeror, a Holder will generally be required to include in income the
amount of interest accrued or deemed to accrue to the date of disposition, to the extent that such amounts have
not otherwise been included in the Holder’s income for the year or a preceding taxation year.

In general, a disposition or deemed disposition of the TWH Debentures will give rise to a capital gain (or a
capital loss) to the extent that the proceeds of disposition, net of any amount included in the Holder’s income as
interest and any reasonable costs of disposition, exceed (or are less than) the Holder’s aggregate adjusted cost
base of such TWH Debentures. The consequences to a Holder of realizing a capital gain or capital loss are as
described above under “Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses”.

A Holder that is, throughout the relevant taxation year, a “Canadian-controlled private corporation” (as

defined in the Tax Act) may be liable to pay an additional refundable tax of 6%:% on its “aggregate investment
income” for the year, which includes interest.
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Compulsory or Subsequent Acquisition Transaction for Debentures

As described in Section 16 of the Circular, “Acquisition of Common Shares and Debentures Not
Deposited”, the Offeror may, in certain circumstances, acquire Debentures pursuant to the provisions of
section 188 of the OBCA. The tax consequences to a Holder of Debentures who disposes of his or her
Debentures in such circumstances will generally be as described above under “Exchange of Debentures”, but
Holders whose Debentures may be so acquired should consult their own tax advisors in this regard.

If a sufficient principal amount of Debentures are tendered to the Offer, the Offeror intends to cause the
terms of the Trust Indenture to be amended such that the Debentures would be redeemable at any time by
ClubLink for an equivalent principal amount of TWH Debentures, and to redeem the Debentures. A Holder
whose Debentures are redeemed in such circumstances will be considered to have disposed of his or her
Debentures upon redemption for proceeds of disposition equal to the value of the TWH Debentures received by
the Holder (other than the amount received or deemed to be received as interest) on such redemption. The
Hoider may realize a capital gain or capital loss on the redemption computed as described above under
“Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses”.

Eligibility For Investment and Foreign Property Status of TWH Shares and TWH Debentures

The TWH Shares and TWH Debentures would, if issued on the date hereof, be qualified investments under
the Tax Act and Tax Regulations for trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans, registered retirement
income funds, registered education savings plans and deferred profit sharing plans (other than, for purposes of
the TWH Debentures, trusts governed by deferred profit sharing plans for which any of the employers is the
Offeror or an employer which does not deal at arm’s length with the Offeror) within the meaning of the Tax Act.
The TWH Shares and TWH Debentures would not, if issued on the date hereof, be foreign property for the
purposes of the Tax Act and the Tax Regulations.

Non-Residents of Canada

The following portion of the summary is generally applicable to a Securityholder who at all relevant times,
for the purposes of the Tax Act and any applicable income tax treaty or convention, is not resident, nor deemed
to be resident, in Canada and does not use or hold, and is not deemed to use or hold, any Securities in
connection with carrying on a business in Canada (a “Non-Resident Holder”). The Tax Act contains provisions
relevant to a non-resident insurer for whom any Securities are “designated insurance property” which this
summary does not take into account. Accordingly, such Securityholders should consult their own tax advisors.

Exchange of Common Shares and Subsequent Disposition of TWH Shares

A Non-Resident Holder will not be subject to tax under the Tax Act on any capital gain realized on a
disposition of Common Shares to the Offeror under the Offer or by a Compulsory Acquisition pursuant to the
provisions of section 188 of the OBCA, unless such shares constitute “taxable Canadian property” and are
otherwise not “treaty-protected property” to the Non-Resident Holder. Similarly, provided the TWH Shares
acquired pursuant to the Offer, if any, are not taxable Canadian property to a Non-Resident Holder, the holder
will not be subject to tax under the Tax Act on any capital gain realized on the disposition or deemed disposition
of such TWH Shares.

Generally, Common Shares or TWH Shares, as the case may be, will not be taxable Canadian property to a
Non-Resident Holder at a particular time provided that such shares are listed on a prescribed stock exchange
{which includes the TSX) at that time and at no time during the five-year period immediately preceding the
disposition of the Common Share or TWH Share, as the case may be, did the Non-Resident Holder, either alone
or together with persons with whom the holder did not deal at arm’s length, own 25% or more of the shares of
any class or series of ClubLink or the Offeror, as the case may be. For this purpose, a person will be considered
by the CCRA to own any share in respect of which such person has an interest or option or other right to acquire
such share. The Common Shares may also be taxable Canadian property in certain other circumstances,
including where the Non-Resident Holder elected to have them treated as taxable Canadian property upon
ceasing to be a resident of Canada. In addition, provided the Common Shares are listed on a prescribed stock
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exchange at the time of disposition of such shares, the withholding and notification provisions of section 116 of
the Tax Act will not apply to a Non-Resident Holder.

If the Common Shares or TWH Shares constitute or are deemed to constitute taxable Canadian property
and the disposition of such shares by a Non-Resident Holder gives rise to a capital gain which is not exempt from
Canadian tax under the terms of an applicable income tax treaty or convention, the tax consequences as
described above under “Residents of Canada — Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses” will generally
apply. Non-Resident Holders whose Common Shares or TWH Shares are taxable Canadian property should
consult their own tax advisors for advice having regard to their particular circumstances.

Dividends on TWH Shares

Dividends on TWH Shares paid or credited or deemed to be paid or credited to a Non-Resident Holder will
be subject to withholding tax under the Tax Act at a rate of 25%, subject to reduction under the provisions of an
applicable income tax treaty or convention.

Compulsory Acquisition

As described in section 16 of the Circular, “Acquisition of Common Shares Not Deposited”, the Offeror
may, in certain circumstances, acquire Common Shares pursuant to the provisions of section 188 of the OBCA.
The tax consequences of a Compulsory Acquisition are as described above under “Exchange of Common Shares
and Subsequent Disposition of TWH Shares”.

If the Common Shares are not listed on a prescribed stock exchange on the day the Offeror takes up and
pays for the Common Shares, the notification and withholding provisions of section 116 of the Tax Act will apply
to the Non-Resident Holder. Non-Resident Holders whose Common Shares are being compulsorily acquired
should consult their own tax advisors for advice having regard to their particular circumstances.

Subsequent Acquisition Transaction

If the Offeror does not acquire all the Common Shares pursuant to the Offer or by means of a Compulsory
Acquisition, it may acquire the remaining Common Shares by means of a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction.
The tax treatment of such a transaction to a Non-Resident Holder will depend on the exact manner in which the
transaction is carried out and may be substantially the same as or materially different than described above. A
Non-Resident Holder may realize a capital gain or a capital loss and/or a deemed dividend. Dividends paid or
deemed to be paid to a Non-Resident Holder will be subject to Canadian withholding tax at a rate of 25%,
subject to any reduction under the provisions of an applicable income tax treaty or convention. In addition, if the
Common Shares are not listed on a prescribed stock exchange at the time of disposition, the notification and
withholding requirements provided for in section 116 of the Tax Act will apply to Non-Resident Holders.
Non-Resident Holders should consult their own tax advisors for advice with respect to the potential income tax
consequences to them of having their Common Shares acquired pursuant to such a transaction.

Debenture Exchange

The exchange of Debentures for TWH Debentures will not result in any Canadian income tax consequences
to a Non-Resident Holder.

Interest paid or credited or deemed to be paid or credited on the TWH Debentures to a Non-Resident
Holder will not be subject to withholding tax under the Tax Act.

No other taxes on income (including taxable capital gains) will be payable under the Tax Act in respect of
the redemption, repayment or other disposition of the TWH Debentures by a Non-Resident Holder, including
on a Compulsory Acquisition or on a Subsequent Acquisition Transaction.

19. DEPOSITARY

The Offeror has engaged Computershare Trust Company of Canada to act as Depositary for the receipt of
certificates in respect of Common Shares and Debentures and related Letters of Transmittal deposited under
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the Offer. The Depositary has also been engaged to make the payments for Common Shares purchased by the
Offeror pursuant to the Offer. The Depositary will receive reasonable and customary compensation from the
Offeror for its services in connection with the Offer, will be reimbursed for certain out-of-pocket expenses and
will be indemnified against certain liabilities and expenses in connection therewith.

20. ACCEPTANCE OF THE OFFER

After reasonable inquiry, the Offeror is not aware of any associate or affiliate of ClubLink, any director or
officer of ClubLink, any person or company acting jointly or in concert with ClubLink, or any person or company

who beneficially owns more than 10% of any class of equity securities of ClubLink, who proposes to tender to or
accept the Offer.

21. LEGAL MATTERS

Legal matters on behalf of the Offeror will be passed upon by Stikeman Elliott.

22. STATUTORY RIGHTS

Securities legislation in certain of the provinces and territories of Canada provides Shareholders with, in
addition to any other rights they may have at law, rights of rescission or to damages, or both, if there is a
misrepresentation in a circular or notice that is required to be delivered to such Shareholders. However, such
rights must be exercised within prescribed time limits. Shareholders should refer to the applicable provisions of
the securities legislation of their province or territory for particulars of such rights or consult with a lawyer.
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APPROVAL AND CERTIFICATE

The contents of the Offer and this Circular have been approved and the sending, communication or delivery
thereof to the Shareholders has been authorized by the board of directors of the Offeror.

The foregoing contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that

is required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in the light of the circumstances
in which it was made.

In addition, the foregoing does not contain any misrepresentation likely to affect the value or the market
price of the Common Shares subject to the Offer.

Dated: November 15, 2002

TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

(Signed) K. (Ral) SAHI (Signed) DONALD W. TURPLE
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

(Signed) JOHN LOKKER (Signed) FRASER R. BERRILL
Director Director
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SCHEDULE “A”

Information Concerning The Offeror

Unless otherwise indicated, financial, operating and other data regarding the Offeror is given as of the

date hereof.

TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
THE OFFEROR . .................. ... A2
GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE
BUSINESS OF THE OFFEROR ... ........ A2
NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF THE
BUSINESS OF THE OFFEROR .. ......... A3
DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND
PRINCIFAL SHAREHOLDERS ........... A-6
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION ...................... A-7

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS .. ....... A-8

INTERIM MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Page
MARKET FORSECURITIES . .. ... ....... A-14
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS .. ... A-15
OPTIONS . ... .. i, A-16
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION . .......... A-18
RISKFACTORS .......... ... ...t A-19
PRIORSALES .............. ..cvion.n A-20
INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR OFFICERS ................... A-20
MATERIAL CONTRACTS ... ............ A-21
AUDITORS. . .. ... i i A-21
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT . .. .. A-21

61




1. THE OFFEROR

Incorporation

The Offeror was incorporated on October 22, 1997 under the Canada Business Corporations Act as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Russel Metals Inc. (“Russel Metals”) under the name Century Continental
Transportation Corporation. The Offeror’s articles were amended on November 18, 1997 to change its name to

Tri-White Corporation. The Offeror’s registered office is located at Suite 1400, One University Ave., Toronto,
Ontario M5J 2Pl

Subsidiaries and Significant Holdings of the Offeror

The following chart illustrates the intercorporate relationships of the Offeror and its subsidiaries and
significant holdings. The Offeror directly or indirectly owns all of the voting securities of the subsidiaries listed -
below (except as indicated below and other than directors’ qualifying shares required by certain statutes). The

jurisdiction in brackets following the corporate name is the jurisdiction of incorporation, continuance or
organization.

100.0% Tri-White 26.6%
Corporation
(Canada)

White Pass

& Yukon ClubLink Corporation
Canada Inc. (Ontario)

(Canada)

British Columbia- . British Yukon
. White Pass .
Yul((jon Railway & Yukon U.S. Inc. Raﬂwsy (_Ztorcrilpany
ompany (Alaska) imite

(Special Act) (Canada)

Pacific and Arctic

Railway and Skaggz;'f:lrlmmal
Navigation Company (Alaska)y

(Alaska)

2. GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS OF THE OFFEROR

The Offeror has two principal lines of business. It operates a tourist railway with related services in Alaska,
British Columbia and the Yukon Territory under the business name White Pass & Yukon Route (“White Pass™)
and it is engaged in merchant banking activity.

The Offeror became a reporting issuer on November 21, 1997 as a result of an initial public offering by way
of a secondary offering of common shares of the Offeror upon the exercise of rights issued by Russel Metals to
holders of its Class A common shares and Class B common shares.
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Prior to the issuance of the rights to its securityholders, Russel Metals entered into certain transactions to
transfer to the Offeror, in return for common shares of the Offeror, substantially all of its investments in the
freight transportation business operated by Tri-Line Expressways Ltd. (“Tri-Line””) and the tourist railway and
related services business of White Pass.

On July 18, 2000, the Offeror completed the sale of its trucking group including the operations of Tri-Line
and its subsidiaries. Total proceeds of $44 million were satisfied with $36 million in cash, a subordinate
debenture of $7 million and a one-year holdback of $1 million. On January 24, 2002, the purchaser of the
trucking group was placed into receivership by its senior lender and the Offeror has determined that there is a
low probability of further realization. The $7 million has been fully provided for in the offeror’s consolidated
financial statements.

On September 4, 2001 the Offeror purchased 5 million Common Shares representing, at that time,
approximately 25% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares from ClubCorp U.S.A,, Inc.

White Pass & Yukon Route

White Pass is engaged in passenger tourist transportation and related services in Alaska, British Columbia
and the Yukon Territory.

The railway was constructed by White Pass as a result of the Klondike Gold Rush of 1898 and was
completed in 1900. From 1900 until 1982, it was used for carriage of general freight, ore concentrates, petroleum
products and passengers. Railway operations were suspended in 1982 when a major ore concentrate customer
shut down its mine. The Klondike highway between Whitehorse and Skagway was subsequently constructed in
1985 which transferred the transportation of ore concentrates from rail to the more economical method of road
service. The railway reopened in 1688 and has since been operating as a passenger tourist railway.

Tri-White Merchant Banking

Subsequent to the sale of the trucking group, management of the Offeror made a strategic decision to invest
the sale proceeds in order to capitalize on its proven record of building and delivering shareholder value. The
Offeror now seeks out opportunities and invests as a merchant banker in debt and equity instruments in both
public and private companies.

Trends

The Offeror had anticipated that the fallout from 9/11 would impact the 2002 operating season at White
Pass. With the season now just completed, it is clear that the security of air travel was restored and business for
the tourist operations rebounded to historical levels.

White Pass has several labour agreements which expired in December 2001. The Offeror operated the
current season under the terms of the old agreements without incident, and has now substantially concluded
negotiations on two of the major contracts.

The cruise ship industry has been undergoing a move towards consolidation globally, with merger talks
underway within the sector. The United States Federal Trade Commission has recently approved, in principle,

the context of the merger applications, though it is early to assess the potential impact of the developments on
White Pass.

3. NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS OF THE OFFEROR
White Pass & Yukon Route

The White Pass railway stretches from Skagway, Alaska through part of British Columbia to Whitehorse,
the Yukon Territory, a distance of approximately 110 miles. Construction of this historic railway is recognized as
an “international historic civil engineering landmark”. White Pass also operates three docks where cruise ships
that visit Skagway dock.
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White Pass operates in a highly seasonal market with its tourist operations. During the 2002 tourist season
{May through September), the railway transported 312,000 passengers, primarily from cruise ships that docked
in Skagway. Cruise ships account for 80% of the passengers, while bus or airline package tours and independent
travellers make up the other 20%.

White Pass’ principal revenue sources are passenger revenue from rail operations, dock operations and gift
shop sales. Revenue from White Pass operations made up all of the Offeror’s revenue from continuing
operations for the years ended December 31, 2001 and June 30, 2001.

Rail Operations

White Pass’ primary business is the operation of a 36-inch narrow gauge passenger tourist railway under the
name “White Pass & Yukon Route”. The tourist railway offers round trip and one-way excursions from Skagway
to the White Pass Summit, to Fraser, British Columbia and to Bennett, British Columbia. The railway operates
on a right of way that is generally 200 feet wide in Alaska and British Columbia and 100 feet wide in the Yukon
Territory, with some points in the cities of Skagway and Whitehorse being as narrow as 30 feet.

Dock Operations

White Pass operates dock facilities on the Skagway waterfront, which primarily serve cruise ships but also
serve the mining and petroleum industries. White Pass dock facilities can accommodate four large ships and one

small ship at one time. White Pass operates three of the four major docks in Skagway, namely, the Railway
Dock, the Broadway Dock and the Ore Dock.

Concession

White Pass retails souvenirs, gifts and snacks in three high traffic areas, the train depot, the Railway Dock
and on board the train. It also has mail order sales.

Great Alaska Lumberjack Show

White Pass is a joint venture partner in this new onshore excursion situated on the island of Ketchikan. It
has completed its second year of operation and is attracting approximately 45,000 tourists. This attraction
continues to gain momentum as the cruise lines increasingly include it in their shore excursion programs.

Employees

The employee group of White Pass fluctuates from approximately 170 employees during the height of the
summer season to 17 during the winter months.

Marketing

White Pass’ relationships with the cruise ship companies are important, as these provide the primary source
of passengers for the railway. White Pass has maintained a strong, positive relationship with the cruise ship

companies. White Pass wholesales tickets to the cruise ships and the cruise ships retail those tickets to their
passengers.,

White Pass produces the “On Board” magazine provided to rail passengers that includes a varied gift
selection. Customers often take this magazine with them and later order by phone or mail

Competition

Although White Pass offers a unique entertainment product, it nevertheless competes with other activities
offered on arrival at Skagway. Some of these activities include motorcoach and van tours of historic Skagway and
the White Pass Summit and into the Yukon Territory; vintage automobile city tours; helicopter and fixed wing
aircraft tours; river rafting; fishing excursions; and glacier, hiking and bicycling tours. Competitive pressures will
continue, but historically have not directed tourist interest away from White Pass to any substantial degree.
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White Pass intends to continue to exploit its niche market and unique geography and history to increase its
passenger volumes.

Properties

The following table provides information with respect to principal properties of White Pass:

Approximate Size
(square feet unless
Location Principal Use miles where indicated) Owned/Leased
Skagway, Alaska Train Depot 10,000 Owned
Skagway, Alaska Shop and Maintenance 48,000 Owned
Skagway, Alaska Railway Dock 120,000 Owned
Owned on
Skagway, Alaska Broadway Dock 19,000 Leased Land®
Owned on
Skagway, Alaska Ore Dock 53,000 Leased Land®
Railroad and Port
Skagway, Alaska Operations Buildings 5,136 Owned
Bennett, Train Depot and
British Columbia Operations Building 13,450 Owned
Fraser, British Columbia Operations Building 2,000 Owned
Pennington,
British Columbia Operations Building 3,850 Owned
Carcross, Train Depot and
the Yukon Territory Operations Building 6,900 Owned
Owned and Easement
Alaska Railway Right of Way 20.5 miles or Other Rights
British Columbia Railway Right of Way 33 miles Owned
Owned and Easement
The Yukon Territory Railway Right of Way 57 miles or Other Rights

(1) The lease for the land was entered into on March 19, 1968 for a 55 year term, expiring on March 19, 2023. The annual rent for the lease
in 2002 is $82,035.00. The lease is currently in good standing.

Environmental Protection

White Pass, its operations and properties are and will be subject to extensive federal, provincial, territorial,
state, municipal and local environmental laws and requirements in both Canada and the U.S. relating to, among
other things, air emissions, management of contaminants including hazardous materials and waste, discharges to
waters and the remediation of environmental impacts (such as the contamination of soil and water, including
groundwater). A risk of environmental liabilities is inherent in transportation operations, historic activities
associated with such operations and the ownership, management or control of real estate. The Offeror is subject

to and is in material compliance with applicable federal, state, provincial and local laws and regulations relating
to environmental matters.

White Pass conducts its rail operations on sites that have been used as a railway for almost 100 years. In
addition, a petroleum product pipeline and related facilities were operated on the rail right of way and adjacent
property between Skagway and Whitehorse from 1942 until 1994. In 1996, White Pass pleaded guilty to a
number of environmental related offences in the District Court in Alaska, principally arising from an accidental
pipeline break which occurred in October 1994, and pleaded guilty to illegal transportation of hazardous
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products in the United States. As agreed with the prosecutor, a total of U.S. $1.5 million for fines, remediation
and restitution was imposed by the U.S. Federal Court. U.S. $650,000 was paid immediately and the remainder
has been satisfied through subsequent environmental remediation work. An environmental reserve was set up
which at September 30, 1997 amounted to $15.3 million. The bulk of this reserve has been spent on remediation
projects to date, and the current balance of $762,000 is deemed sufficient to address remaining environmental
issues. On January 22, 2001, the U.S. Federal Court released White Pass from probation under its court order
concerning environmental remediation, recognizing satisfactory completion of the remediation projects and the
Offeror’s commitment to environmental compliance. The above environmental matters are historical and will
not likely have an operational effect on White Pass.

Foreign Operations Risks

White Pass operates primarily in the United States. Accordingly, its net contribution to the Offeror will be

in U.S. dollars and fluctuations in the exchange rate between U.S. and Canadian dollars could adversely affect
that contribution.

Tri-White Merchant Banking
ClubLink Corporation

The most significant transaction was the acquisition in September, 2001 of a 26% interest in ClubLink. For
the year ended December 31, 2001, ClubLink reported gross revenues of $118,275,000. Mr. K. (Rai) Sahi,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Offeror, was appointed to the board of directors of ClubLink on

September 13, 2001. Mr. Don Turple, Chief Financial Officer of the Offeror, was appointed to the board of
directors of ClubLink on June 11, 2002.

Other Investments
Other investments to date include minor positions in several publicly listed corporations.

As at September 30, 2002, the market value of all merchant banking investments exceeded their carrying

cost by $11.1 million. Corporately, the Offeror will continue to seek out opportunistic investments that generate
above average returns.

Business in General

The Offeror has a management services contract with Morguard Corporation (formerly Acktion
Corporation) (“Morguard™), pursuant to which the Morguard executive group provides managerial and

consultative services for the Offeror’s business and the businesses of its subsidiaries. See Section 15 of this
schedule, “Material Contracts”.

4. DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

The authorized capital of the Offeror consists of an unlimited number of TWH Shares and an unlimited
number of preference shares, issuable in series. As of October 31, 2002, 45,889,519 TWH Shares were
outstanding, each carrying the right to one vote. The Offeror has applied to list the TWH Shares and TWH
Debentures issuable in connection with the Offer on the TSX. Listing will be subject to the Offeror fulfilling all
the listing requirements of the TSX and the specific debenture listing requirement of a minimum distribution of
$2 million principal amount.

The Offeror has a dividend re-investment plan (the “DRIP”) which enables shareholders to elect to receive
TWH Shares as an alternative to cash dividends. Under the DRIP, the common shares are issued at a five
percent discount to recent trading prices. The Offeror issued 189,648 common shares pursuant to the DRIP
during the six months ended December 31, 2001, On March 29, 2002 the Offeror issued 95,840 common shares
pursuant to the DRIP and on June 28, 2002 the Offeror issued an additional 6,172 shares pursuant to the DRIP.
On September 30, 2002, the Offeror issued 1,083 TWH Shares pursuant to the DRIP.
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The Offeror is not aware of any persons or corporations that beneficially own directly or indirectly or
exercise control or direction over common shares of the Offeror carrying more than 10% of the voting rights
attached to all issued common shares, other than as follows:

Number of Percentage of
Number of Common Shares Percentage of Common Shares
Common Shares Held (on a Common Shares Held (on a
Name Held diluted basis) Held diluted basis)
K. (Rai) Sahi®» @ . ... ... . ., SO 31,878,612 32,178,612 69.5% 69.0%
Burgundy Asset Management Limited
(“BAML™)® .. .. 7,180,343 7,180,343 15.6% 15.4%

(1) Mr. Sahi holds common shares in the Offeror indirectly through Paros Enterprises Limited (“Paros”) and S.N.A. Management Limited

(“S.N.A.”), both of which are corporations controlled by Mr. Sahi, a director and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Offeror.

(2) Both Mr. Sahi and BAML hold their shares beneficially and not of record.

Assuming that the Offeror acquires 100% of the Common Shares pursuant to the Offer, and after giving
effect to the distribution of TWH Shares pursuant to the Offer, the TWH Shares held by Mr. Sahi (through
Paros and S.N.A)) will represent approximately 49.5% of the outstanding TWH Shares (49.4% on a fully-diluted
basis) and the TWH Shares held by BAML will represent approximately 11.2% of the outstanding TWH Shares
(11.0% on a fully-diluted basis).

5. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Financial Information for the Last Three Financial Years

The selected financial information, set forth in the following table, has been derived from the Offeror’s
audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 1999, June 30, 2000, June 30, 2001 and
6 months ended December 31, 2001 and the unaudited financial statements for the nine month period ending
September 30, 2002.

Unaudited
Audited Consolidated
Consolidated Six  Nine Months
Andited Consolidated Months Ended Ended
Year Ended June 30 December 31 September 30
1999 2000 2001 2001 2002
(Amounts in thousands of doilars, except per sharc amounts)
Sales. . ... $ 30,358 § 32,344 § 37,370 $ 25,316 $ 40,450
Earnings before income taxes .. .......... $ 12,910 §$ 12,299 $ 15,100 $ 11,068 $ 16,492
Provisions for income taxes ............. $ 5130 § 4790 $ 4,976 $ 5,795 $ 6,218
Earnings from continuing operations. . .. ... $ 7,780 $ 7,509 $ 10,124 $ 5,273 $ 10,274
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations. $ 4,288 $ 4,401 §$ 10,880%) $ (1,976)" —
Net earnings for the period ............. $ 12,068 § 11,910 $ 21,004 $ 3,297 $ 10,274
Per common share basic
Earnings before income taxes .......... $ 026 $ 025@§% 032 $ 024 $ 036
Net Earnings ...................... $§ 024 § 024 § 045 ¥ 007 $ 022
Per common share diluted
Earnings before income taxes .......... $ 025 § 025@§% 0322 § 024 $ 036
Net Earnings . ..................... $§ 023 $ 023 $ 044 $ 007 $ 022
Total Assets. . ... ovi it $117,583 $136,459 $142,810 $134,680 $146,687
Long-term debt (excluding Principal due
withinoneyear).................... nil nil nil nil nil
Per common share dividends ............ $ nil § nil $ 0.10 $ 005 $ 0.09

(1) Gain (loss) on sale of Trucking Division July 18/2000

(2) Excludes discontinued operations.
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Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

Earnings (Loss) Before Income

Net Earnings (Loss)®" Taxes

Per Share  Per Share Per Share  Per Share

Quarter Ended Sales Amount (basic) (diluted) Amount (basic) (diluted)
. (Amounts in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

September 30,2002 ............ $25,952 $ 9,666 §0.21 $021 $14632 $0.32 $ 032
June 30,2002 ................ $14,218 $ 1938 $0.04 $004 $ 4,83 $0.105 $ 010
March 31,2002 ............... $ 280 $(1,330) $(0.03)  $(0.03) $(1,510) $(0.03)  $(0.03)
December 31,2001 ............ $ 146 $(3,722) $(0.08)  $(0.08) § (804) $(0.02)  $(0.02)
September, 30,2001............ $25,170 §$ 7,019 $0.15 $015 $11,797 $0.26 $0.26
June 30,2001 ................ $14201 § 2,728 $0.06 $006 $ 4025 $009 $ 0.09
March 31,2001 ............... $ 461 § 302 $001 3001 § 464 $0.01 $ 0.01
December 31,2000 ............ § 312 § 370 $0.01 $001 § 442 §$0.01 $0.01
September 30,2000 ............ $22,396 $17,604 $ 0.36 $036 $11,344 $0.23 $0.23
June 30,2000 ................ $12,804 § 3,099 $0.06 $005 §$ 3,607 $0.07 $ 0.07
March 31,2000 ............... $34,220 § 784 $0.02 $002 $1,320 $003 $ 0.03

(1) Effective with the quarter ended June 30, 2000, the results of operations disclose the trucking division as Discontinued Operations. The
unaudited quarterly financial information for the periods prior to June 30, 2000 report the trucking division results as Continuing
Operations.

6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Operations

Overview

The Offeror’s management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and the consolidated results of
operations should be read in conjunction with its audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for
the six month period ended December 31, 2001 and the year ended June 30, 2001.

The Offeror’s financial results consolidate the operations of White Pass held in several wholly owned
subsidiaries and the merchant banking operations of the Offeror.

The Business

In 1997, the Offeror was formed to hold the railway and trucking divisions of Federal Industries Limited.
The Offeror was listed on the TSX and was constituted with an independent board of directors and management
group.

In 2000, the Offeror made a strategic decision to divest the trucking division and the sale was completed in
July of that year. Today, the Offeror continues to operate White Pass, a tourist based business located in
southeast Alaska. White Pass provides docking facilities for cruise ships which include Skagway as a destination.
White Pass operates 3 docks, one of which is a frechold property while two are situated on city property under a
long term tideland lease. Integrated with the port activities, the Offeror operates a tourist railway from Skagway
to northern British Columbia and the Yukon Territory. In 2000, White Pass formed a joint venture with an
operating partner to start a lumberjack show in Ketchikan, Alaska, also catering to the cruise ship industry.

The Offeror also seeks out opportunities and invests as a merchant banker. The nature of the investments
includes debt and equity instruments in both public and private organizations.

Strategy

One key element in the Offeror’s strategy is to focus on its core operating business at White Pass. Having
this business properly capitalized and with an experienced management team on site, the Offeror has the
capacity to deliver sustainable free cash flow. The management at White Pass has been able to generate
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significant growth in passenger traffic by building on historical relationships with the cruise lines and continuing
to offer a unique, affordable experience for the traveling public.

With respect to the merchant banking operations, corporate management has a proven record of building
and delivering value. The objectives of the Offeror is to maximize value over a five to ten year horizon, though,
as in the case of the trucking division, the Offeror will monetize an investment when business conditions present

an opportunity. Similarly, the Offeror capitalizes on short term trading opportunities which are identified in the
market,

The Offeror is confident that the commitment to this strategy will produce above average returns over the
long term. In the near term, there is the expectation to continue to provide real cash returns while building the
underlying value for the future.

Review of Operating Results

Revenue from operations for the 6 months ended December 31, 2001 was $25.3 million compared with
$37.3 million for the year ended June 30, 2001. Reported revenue originates at White Pass, and is comprised of
revenues from docking services, ticket and merchandise sales for the rail excursion and the lumberjack show in
Ketchikan. As virtually all of the reported revenue is generated in Alaska, the Offeror benefits from the relative
strength of the U.S. dollar.

The passenger volume continues to increase for the port and rail operations. During the 2001 season,
White Pass carried 318,993 passengers compared with 303,245 in 2000, an increase of 5.2%. The growth was
attributable to an increase in the size of vessels arriving in Skagway, even though the absolute number of ship
arrivals was constant.

The events of September 11th impacted operating results as four ship arrivals were cancelled and loads
were eroded for the balance of the season, which ends in late September. The profit lost during this period was
approximately $500,000.

Net Earnings

Net earnings from continuing operations totalled $5.3 million for the six months ended December 31, 2001,
or $0.12 per share, compared to $10.1 million, or $0.21 per share, for the 12 months ended June 30, 2001.

Final net earnings for the six month period ended December 31, 2001 were $3.3 million, or $0.07 per share,
compared with $21.0 million, or $0.45 per share, for the year ended June 30, 2001.

Revenue has improved steadily from season to season as a result of increased passenger counts and the
implementation of modest rate increases for the rail excursion. On a consolidated basis, cost of sales and
operating expenses for the 6 months to December 31, 2001 were 55% of revenue, down from 67% for the
12 months ended June 30, 2001. This reflects the pronounced seasonality of the tourist operations, where 70% of

the annual revenues are generated in the months of July to September, and the operating leverage inherent in
the tourist business.

On an annualized basis, the operating margins at White Pass remain stable, though there is significant cost
pressure from labour rates, benefits, fuel and insurance components.

Pre-tax earnings for White Pass were $11.4 million for the period ended December 31, 2001 compared with
$12.2 million for the 12 months ended June 30, 2001. Again, this reflects the relatively strong seasonal results for
the July to September period. The merchant banking operations produced a pre-tax loss of $356,000 compared
with a pre-tax profit of $2.9 million for the 12 month period to June 30, 2001. This reflects the fact that the
Offeror has now deployed the majority of the proceeds from the sale of the trucking division in market
investments, a strategic decision taken to forego short term interest yield for the opportunity to produce
significant capital appreciation.

The tax provision for the six months ended December 31, 2001 reflects an effective rate of 52% versus 33%
for the previous twelve month period. This is attributed to the distribution of earnings across various
jurisdictions and the Offeror’s policy not to reflect the benefit of available tax loss carry forward amounts. As at
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December 31, 2001 the Offeror had operating tax losses available for carry forward in the amount of
$5.3 million, the benefit of which is not recorded in the accounts.

The final net earnings for the 6 month period ended December 31, 2001 were negatively impacted by a one
time after-tax charge of $2.0 million taken against notes receivable. This charge represents the after-tax amount

required to write off the non-cash consideration received on the sale of the trucking division, net of appropriate
allowances.

At the time of the sale of the trucking division, the Offeror received $36 million in cash consideration and
notes of $8.0 million. By December 2001, the gross amount had increased to $10.4 million as a result of unpaid
holdbacks, additional capital contributions and interest. The operations of the debtor moved into receivership
during January, 2002 and the Offeror has determined there is a low probability of further realization.

By comparison, in the 12 month period ending June 30, 2001 the Offeror recognized a one time after-tax
gain on the sale of the trucking division of $10.9 million.

Financial Condition

Assets

Consolidated assets at year end totalled $134.7 million compared with $142.8 million at June 30, 2001. The
decrease in assets was primarily the result of the write off of the notes receivable referred to above.

Cash balances declined to $2.5 million at December 31, 2001 as the Offeror moved funds into market
investments for long-term capital appreciation.

As at December 31, 2001 the Offeror’s portfolio and other investments totalled $37.7 million and included
the following:

ClubLink, $25.0 million

AT Plastics, $1.6 million

Brookfield preferred stock, $10.0 million
Indigo, $1.1 million

The most significant change in this portfolio of market investments during 2001 was the addition of the
ClubLink holding in September. The Offeror views this purchase as an opportunity to generate returns well
above the yields available in the money markets. ClubLink is accounted for as an equity investment; for the

period of ownership from September 4, 2001 to December 31, 2001, there were no significant earnings
attributable to ClubLink.

As at December 31, 2001 the market value of these investments exceeded their carrying cost by $2.6 million.

The taxes receivable balance of $2.9 million as at December 31, 2001 reflects amounts due the Offeror as a
result of the losses created by the write off of notes receivable, combined with current refunds due.

The accounts receivable balance declined from June 30, 2001, as the tourist business is inactive over the
winter months.

Inventories declined by $857,000 from the June, 2001 levels as rail supplies were consumed in the
maintenance of the right of way and gift shop stocks were at seasonally low levels,

Capital assets employed in the Offeror rose by $1.2 million as at December 31, 2001. The major capital
projects for the period amounted to $3.0 million and included the addition and renovations to the fleet of
parlour cars and improvements to the bridges and track system at White Pass.

Liabilities
Bank indebtedness rose from $7.6 million at June 30, 2001 to $8.8 million at December 31, 2001. The bank

debt is comprised of an operating facility for the White Pass operations. At times, funds are loaned internally
between the Offeror and its subsidiaries, to minimize interest costs.
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Accounts payable of $2.1 million at 2001 year end were reduced from the June 2001 levels, as business
activity is significantly curtailed over the winter months.

Shareholders’ Equity

Consolidated shareholders’ equity on December 31, 2001 totalled $106.7 million or $2.33 per share,
compared to $107.3 million or $2.33 per share at June 30, 2001. As at December 31, 2001 total shares
outstanding were 45,780,936.

In the six month period ending December 31, 2001 the Offeror repurchased 533,000 of its common shares
for cancellation under its normal course issuer bid at a weighted average cost of $1.95 per share. The Offeror
may purchase up to 2,306,214 of its common shares for cancellation.

In October, 2001 the Offeror paid a regular dividend of $0.05 per share to shareholders for a total
consideration of $2.3 million. Pursuant to the Offeror’s dividend reinvestment plan, which enables shareholders
to elect to receive TWH Shares as an alternative to cash dividends (the stock being at a five percent discount to
recent trading prices), the Offeror issued 189,648 TWH Shares during the six months ended December 31, 2001.

Liquidity

During the 6 month period ended December 31, 2001 the Offeror generated $12.1 million in funds from
continuing operations and ended the year with cash balances of $2.5 million. The Offeror had no significant
contingent liabilities or commitments outstanding at December 31, 2001.

The Offeror and its subsidiaries maintain cash, liquid assets and credit facilities to ensure that all
commitments can be met, that funds are available to support the business units, and that the Offeror is able to
capitalize on opportunities that may arise. Given its strong earnings record, the quality of its operating assets,
and its conservative debt-to-equity structure, the Offeror believes that it has sufficient capital resources to
execute its strategic plan, finance continued growth and weather any economic downturn.

As at December 31, 2001, the Offeror had a debt/equity ratio of .08: 1 and marketable securities with a cost
of $37.7 million.

Risk Management

Tourism and Merchant Banking

The success of White Pass is largely dependant upon the flow of cruise ship traffic along the west coast of

North America to Alaska. As experienced during 2001, these operations can be disrupted for reasons beyond the
control of White Pass.

As a federal transportation undertaking in both Canada and the United States, White Pass is subject to
regulation by numerous agencies. The tourist operations comply with requirements that are in effect at any point
in time; however, changes in these regulations can impact the cost and efficiency of this business unit.

At the corporate level, the performance of any investment in a merchant banking scenario is, by nature,
speculative. External factors, which the Offeror may not be in a position to influence, could impact any single
investment or the general business climate.

Environmental

Although extensive research has been completed on potential environmental problems at White Pass, the
business unit could be subjected to further scrutiny as a result of changes in legislation, or due to a focus on the
rail operations, including the legacy of the past. This division has been in operation for more than 100 years,
transporting a variety of products, some of which are now classified as environmentally unfriendly. Every
atternpt has been made to identify and deal with these issues and, at this time, the Offeror believes that
remediation programs have met or exceeded regulatory requirements.
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Interest Rate and Currency Risk

The Offeror conducts business both in Canada and the United States. Fluctuations in interest or exchange
rates could affect the cost of capital or the contribution from the U.S. operations.

Dependence on Key Personnel

The performance of the Offeror is substantially dependent upon key management personnel. The loss of
the services of any such personnel could have a material effect on the performance of the Offeror, its
subsidiaries, earnings or financial condition.

The Offeror has commenced a process to renegotiate several collective bargaining agreements which
expired December 31, 2001 and cover approximately 59% of the hourly employees. During the 2002 season, the
Offeror operated under the terms of the previous agreements without incident. The Offeror has now
substantially concluded two sets of negotiations, with settlements to be ratified this quarter.

7. INTERIM MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

Review of Operating Results

Tourist Operations

The operating activities for the tourist division peaked during the third quarter as summer vacation travel
patterns expanded. Revenue for the quarter totalled $25,952,000 compared to $25,170,000 for the same quarter
of 2001, representing an increase of $782,000 or 3%. For the nine months ended September 30, 2002, revenues
were $40,450,000 compared with $39,832,000 for the same period last year. The growth in revenue was mainly
attributable to a shift in traffic patterns, with more activity moving into the third quarter this year.

During the third quarter, the Offeror carried 205,601 passengers on the rail system, compared with
205,524 passengers during the same quarter last year. For the nine months ended September 30, 2002, there
were 311,382 passengers carried on the rail system compared with 318,036 passengers in the comparable period
of 2001. The decline is attributed to a reduction in road traffic volume, likely the result of the general economic
slump. As well, poor weather in Southeast Alaska forced the cancellation of five ship arrivals in the quarter,
negatively impacting dock, excursion and gift shop sales.

Revenue from the Great Alaskan Lumberjack show, a joint venture in Kethchikan, was U.S.$1.0 million in
the third quarter, an increase of 39% from the same quarter last year. For the nine months ended September 30,
2002, revenues were U.S.$1.5 million compared with U.S.$1.2 million during the same period of 2001. This start
up division has made a significant contribution to operating profit.

EBITDA for the quarter was $14,141,000, representing a contribution of 54%, compared with $13,262,000
and 52% in the prior year. Year-to-date, EBITDA of $18,636,000 is $1,262,000 or 7% ahead of the results of the
same nine-month period of 2001. Operating margins have improved as White Pass initiated cost control

measures to offset uncertainty in the market and counter cost pressure in labour and insurance components of
the business.

Merchant Banking and Corporate

During 2001, the Offeror made a number of investments to re-deploy the capital from the sale of its

trucking division. The specific investments have been directed at enhancing returns for the Offeror and
diversifying the asset mix.

ClubLink, like White Pass Railway, operates in a highly seasonal market and reported profits for the third
quarter. The Offeror accounts for its investment using the equity method. The Offeror recorded equity earnings
of $2,209,000 during the third quarter. Year-to-date, the Offeror has received dividends of $250,000. For the nine
months ended September 30, 2002 the profit accounted for from this investment is $1,478,000. There were no
earnings or losses from equity accounted investments in 2001.
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Pre-tax income for the third quarter was $14,632,000 compared to $11,797,000 in the same quarter of last
year. This represents an increase of 24%. For the nine months ended September 30, 2002, pre-tax income was
$16,492,000 compared to $15,111,000 in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2001. This increase reflects
the strength of the White Pass operations and the equity earnings from ClubLink. Effective tax rates remained
stable for the quarter.

During the third quarter, and consistent with prior years the Offeror estimates the fourth quarter operating
costs for the tourist division and establishes a reserve for those costs to be incurred by year end. As at
September 30, 2002 the after-tax effect of this adjustment was to lower net earnings by $2.2 million, compared
with $2.1 million in 2001.

Review of Financial Position
Cash

The cash balance as at September 30, 2002 was $7,078,000 compared to $204,000 as at September 30, 2001.
Cash balances begin to build at this point in the year as revenue from the tourist operations peaks. As well, the
Offeror continues to generate cash flow from its portfolio investments in the form of dividends and interest.

Accounts Receivable

The balance of accounts receivable as at September 30, 2002 was $6,847,000 compared to $7,216,000 last
year. This balance represents seasonal activity with trade accounts, primarily with cruise ship lines. Historically,
the Offeror has few, if any, issues with respect to collection.

Prepaid Expenses

The balance of prepaid expenses increased slightly during the quarter to $1,576,000 compared to $1,391,000
last year. The increase in the amount of prepaid expenses is due to the timing of property tax installments and
larger insurance premiums.

Income Taxes Recoverable

During the third quarter, the Offeror realized the majority of the balance as at June 30, 2002 of $2.6 million
of taxes recoverable from Canadian and U.S. authorities, and reclassified the residual as an offset to taxes
payable.

Inventories

Inventories are comprised of supplies for the maintenance of the railway right of way, the inventories of the
various maintenance shops and gift shop merchandise. As the season winds down in September, the levels are
reduced. The Offeror, however, has made significant progress in improving turnover and utilization, with the
capital now employed for inventory at $4,480,000, $729,000 less than the amount of capital employed in the same
quarter of 2001.

Portfolio Investments

Portfolio investments of $11,853,000 at the end of the third quarter are carried at cost, compared to
portfolio investments of $52,979,000 last year. During the third quarter, the Offeror increased its portfolio with a
$98,000 investment in MFP Financial Services Ltd. Offsetting this was the sale of $1.0 million of Brookfield
preferred shares. This transaction was completed with no gain or loss. As at September 30, 2002, the market
value of these portfolio investments exceeded their book value by approximately $52,000.

Investments

The majority of the long-term investment balance is comprised of 5 million common shares of ClubLink.
This investment is a significant asset for Tri-White and the Offeror is now ClubLink’s single largest shareholder.
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The Offeror accounts for its investment in ClubLink using the equity method. As at September 30, 2002, the
market value of the investment in ClubLink exceeds the carrying value by approximately $11.0 million.

Capital Assets

The Offeror employs $84.6 million of capital assets in the tourism business. During the quarter, $2.3 million
was invested in capital projects, primarily for improvements to the right of way and fleet. During the same
quarter of 2001, $1,984,000 was invested in capital projects. Year-to-date, capital expenditures of $3.4 million are
approximately $1.0 million below the level experienced in 2001.

Bank Indebtedness and Loans

Bank debt has declined during the third quarter by $10,676,000 to $3,783,000 compared to $14,459,000 of
bank debt owing at the end of the same quarter last year. The decrease in bank debt is largely due to cash flow of
$20.5 million that has been generated through business operations. This cash flow was offset by payments for

normal capital expenditures and the issuance of the regular dividend. The Offeror maintains a strong balance
sheet and has sufficient bank lines to manage its operations.

Shareholders™ Equity

Shareholders’ equity as at September 30, 2002 totalled $113.8 million or $2.48 per share. At September 30,
2001, shareholders’ equity totalled $113.3 million or $2.47 per share.

As previously announced, the Offeror changed its dividend policy with distributions now taking place on a
quarterly basis. On September 30th, 2002 the Offeror paid $0.03 per share to shareholders of record as at
September 16, 2002 and issued 1,083 shares under the dividend reinvestment plan.

On August 26, 2002 the Offeror announced the renewal of its normal course issuer bid, providing the
Offeror the authority to purchase, for cancellation, up to 2,294,147 common shares over the next 12 months.

Last year, the Offeror purchased and cancelled 1,425,924 TWH Shares. The Offeror has suspended its normal
course issuer bid until the Offer expires.

Total shares outstanding at the end of the quarter are 45,889,519. There were 45,591,288 total shares
outstanding at the end of the same quarter last year.

Outlook

The 2002 tourist season for White Pass concluded on October 1, 2002. For next year, the indications are that
the number of ships arriving in Skagway will increase, and accordingly, the Offeror has committed to a
U.S.$3.7 million expansion of the dock facilities at the port. With this investment, the Alaska operations are in a
position to handle forecasted volumes and continue to provide space for the larger ships being commissioned in
North America. Efforts continue to enhance efficiency as White Pass faces rising input price pressure.

8. MARKET FOR SECURITIES
The TWH Shares are listed and posted for trading on the TSX under the stock symbol “TWH”.
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9. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS

The directors and officers of the Offeror and their municipalities of residence, offices with the Offeror,

dates of being elected as directors, principal occupations and numbers of shares of the Offeror beneficially
owned are set forth below.

Number of
Shares
Beneficially
Owned,
Name and Municipality of Date Elected as Directly or
Residence Office Director Principal Occupation Indirectly
Fraser R. Berrillth Director September 14, | President, Fragin Holdings Limited
Picton, Ontario 2000 50,000
J. Judd Buchanan® Director November 23, | President, Rundle Investments Ltd.
Silver Star Mountain, B.C. 1998 12,500
Eugene N. Hretzay Secretary — Corporate Counsel and Secretary,
Oakville, Ontario Morguard Corporation 10,000
David A. King®® Director October 23, | President, David King Corporation
Toronto, Ontario 1997 75,000
John Lokker" Director September 14, | CEOQ, Neal Traffic Services Limited
Caledon, Ontario 2000 40,000
Fred McCorriston Vice President — President, White Pass & Yukon
Skagway, Alaska Route —
Frank Munsters Vice President — VP, Credit & Banking, Morguard
Mississauga, Ontario Corporation 1,000
K. (Rai) Sahi Director, October 23, Chairman and Chief Executive
Mississauga, Ontario Chairman and 1997 Officer, Morguard Corporation
Chief Executive
Officer 31,878,612
Amni C. Thorsteinson® Director October 23, | President, Shelter Canadian
Winnipeg, Manitoba 1597 Properties Limited 55,220
Donald W, Turple Director and November 23, | Consultant
Winnipeg, Manitoba Chief Financial 1998
Officer 50,000

(1) Member of Audit Committee
(2) Member of the Corporate Governance and Compensation Committee

Except as otherwise stated below, during the past five years, all officers and directors have been employed
in various capacities by the Offeror or by the companies or firms indicated opposite their names.

Fraser R. Berrill was Vice President, Corporate Development of Morguard, a Canadian public real estate
company, from January 1, 1993 to December 1, 1997, and Senior Vice President from December 1, 1997 to
December 1, 1999. Presently, he is the President of Fragin Holdings Limited, a private investment company and
since December 1, 2001 he has been a director and Senior Vice President of MFP Financial Services Limited.

Eugene N. Hretzay is the Corporate Counsel and Secretary of Morguard.

J. Judd Buchanan is currently President of Rundle Investments Ltd.; Chairman of the Canadian Tourism
Commission; President of Silver Star Club Resort Ltd.; President of Ensign Chrysler Plymouth Ltd. and has held
these positions over the previous five years.

David A. King is President of David King Corporation, which is a real estate investment company.

John Lokker was Vice President of Morguard until October 31, 1997 after which he became a consultant to
Morguard. Under the “Management Services Contract” between Morguard and the Offeror, he served as Vice
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President of the Offeror from April 9, 1998 until September 14, 2000, monitoring the activities of the Offeror as

well as developing strategic directions. He is currently CEO of Neal Traffic Services Limited (Brampton,
Ontario), a transportation consulting services firm.

K. (Rai) Sahi is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Morguard.

Fred McCorriston was appointed President of White Pass & Yukon Route in March, 1998. Prior to that date
and since 1986, he was employed as a Vice President with Rader Rail Car Manufacturing.

Frank Munsters was appointed Vice President, Credit & Banking of Morguard in April, 1996, prior to which

he was a career banker with Royal Bank of Canada, latterly as Vice President, National Accounts Group,
Corporate Banking.

Arni C. Thorsteinson is the President of Shelter Canadian Properties Limited. Shelter Canadian Properties

Limited is a private Canadian corporation which provides a broad range of professional property management
and other related services.

Donald W. Turple was Vice President, Finance of Morguard from the fall of 1994 and Chief Financial
Officer of Morguard from June 12, 1996 until he left Morguard in May 1998. He is currently a consultant.

The term of office of each director expires at the close of each annual general meeting of shareholders of
the Offeror. There is presently no Executive Committee; however there is a Corporate Governance and
Compensation Committee and an Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. The directors and officers of the

Offeror, as a group, beneficially own, or exercise control or direction over approximately 70% of the issued and
outstanding common shares.

10. OPTIONS

The Offeror has a fixed stock option plan open to directors, officers, full-time employees and consultants of
the Offeror. Under this plan, the Offeror may grant total options to a maximum of 10% of the issued and
outstanding common shares of the Offeror on a non-diluted basis. Under the plan, the exercise price generally
equals the market price of the Offeror’s stock on the day prior to the date of grant and an option’s maximum
term is ten years. The options vest as to 20% on each anniversary from the date of grant.

A summary of the status of the option plan as at October 31, 2002 is as follows:

Number of
Options Average Price Number of
Qutstanding $ Vested Options

Outstanding at June 30, 2001 849,000 2.03 554,400
Cancelled (102,000) 2.05
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 747,000 2.03 488,200
Cancelled (4,000) 2.00
Outstanding at October 31, 2002 743,000 gﬁ 505,800
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As at October 31, 2002, there was an aggregate of 743,000 options issued and outstanding, the details of

which are as follows:

Market Value of

TWH Shares
Aggregate TWH Underlying
Shares under Exercise Price Options on the
Group (Number of Group) Option Date of Grant | Expiry Date | per TWH Share | Date of GrantV
Executive Officers (6) 325,000 3/10/98 3/9/08 $2.05 $2.05
25,000 11/23/98 11/22/08 $1.90 $1.90
10,000 5/6/99 5/5/09 $2.00 $2.00
125,000 2/15/01 2/14/11 $2.03 $2.03
Executive Officers of Subsidiaries (2) 4,000 5/6/99 5/5/09 $2.00 $2.00
Directors (who are not also 150,000 3/10/08 3/9/08 $2.05 $2.05
Executive Officers) (5) 50,000 11/23/98 11/22/08 $1.90 $1.90
50,000 2/15/01 2/14/11 $2.03 $2.03
Directors (who are not aiso — — — — —
Executive Officers) of
subsidiaries (0)
Employees (0) —_ — - —_ —
Employees of Subsidiaries (2) 4,000 5/6/99 5/5/09 $2.00 $2.00

Consuttants (0)

Other (0)

Notes:

(1) Based on the closing price of the TWH Shares on the TSX on the last trading day immediately preceding the date of the grant. The
closing price of the TWH Shares on the TSX on November 14, 2002 was $2.85
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11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table sets forth all compensation paid to the Chief Executive Officer and the other most
highly compensated executive officers (as defined in Regulations under the Securities Act (Ontario)) of the
Corporation (the “Named Executive Officers”).

Summary Compensation Table

Annual Compensation

Long Term
Compensation®

Other Annual Securities Under All Other
Salary Bonus Compensation® | Options Granted | Compensation
Name and Principal Position Year®) $ % ) $
K. (Rai) Sahi Dec 31, 2001 - - 39,100 - -
Chairman and Chief June 30, 2001 - - 79,000 50,000 -
Executive Officer June 30, 2000 - - 77,400 - -
Donald W. Turple Dec. 31, 2001 - - 9,100 - -
Chief Financial Officer June 30, 2001 - - 18,250 25,000 -
June 30, 2000 - - 22,000 - -
Eugene Hretzay Dec. 31, 2001 - - - - -
Secretary June 30, 2001 - - - 25,000 -
June 30, 2000 - - - - -
Frank Munsters® Dec. 31, 2001 - - - - -
Vice President June 30, 2001 - - - 25,000 -
Fred McCorristont® Dec. 31, 2001 | 52,000 | 30,000 5,803 - -
Vice President and June 30, 2001 | 104,000 | 50,000 11,325 35,000 -
President of White June 30, 2000 | 100,000 | 51,200 10,854 - -
Pass & Yukon Route

Notes:

(1) Compensation for the period ended Dec. 31, 2001 is based on the 6 month period from July 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001.
(2) Assumed position November 16, 2000.
(3) Directors’ fees and other compensation.

() USS$

(5) The Offeror does not have any long-term compensation awards or payouts other than securities under options granted as described

herein.

Refer to “Material Contracts” for a description of the management services contract between Morguard
and the Offeror, under which compensation is paid to Morguard and not to any individual.

The Offeror does not have a defined benefit pension plan in which the Named Executive Officers

participate.

Options

There were no options granted during the most recently completed financial year to Named Executive

Officers.

A-18

78




Aggregated Option Exercises During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year and
Financial Year-End Option Values

. . Value of Unexercised
U d Opt t th N
End ofthe Financial Year | e Motes Optlons &t e
Securities Aggregate
Acquired Value
on Exercise Realized Exercisable | Unexerciseable | Exercisable | Unexerciseable
Name #) % (#)
K. (Rai) Sahi Nil Nil 210,000 90,000 21,200 9,800
Donald W. Turple Nil Nil 45,000 30,000 7,600 4,150
Eugene Hretzay Nil Nil 25,000 25,000 2,600 2,900
Frank Munsters Nil Nil 5,000 20,000 600 2,400
Fred McCorriston Nil Nil 26,000 9,000 2,900 1,350

12. RISK FACTORS

In evaluating the Offeror and its business, the following risk factors (in addition to the other information
contained herein) should be considered:

Market Conditions Affecting White Pass

Several factors over which White Pass has no control could affect its revenue. The volume of passengers will
be adversely affected if cruise ships are unable to enter Skagway because of inclement weather or delays in
sailings. White Pass cannot control the retail prices for passengers rail tickets sold aboard the cruise ships and
price increases could affect volume of passengers.

General Economic Conditions

The business of White Pass may be vulnerable to downturns in the economy affecting tourism generally, as
well as to changing patterns of tourist travel and availability of ships for the Alaska cruise route.

Government Regulation

White Pass operates in regulated industries and changes to regulations may restrict the ability of the
Offeror to carry on or expand its business.

White Pass Real Property

Although management believes White Pass has taken reasonable steps to ensure it holds valid title or rights

to the real properties it uses in its business, there can be no guarantee that certain of its properties or rights will
not be challenged.

Currency Risk

White Pass operates primarily in the United States. Accordingly, its net contribution to the Offeror will be
in U.S. dollars and fluctuations in the exchange rate between U.S. and Canadian dollars could adversely affect
that contribution,

Environment

White Pass is exposed to potential environmental liability as a result of its operations or property holdings.
See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Environmental Matters”.
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Insurance

The Offeror’s operations are subject to the risks normally inherent in business in the rail industry. The
Offeror has implemented a safety and environmental program designed to comply with government regulations
and provide safe, reliable and efficient operations in all phases of its operations. The Offeror maintains
insurance where reasonably available, in such amounts as it considers prudent. It does not have insurance for
environmental matters. The Offeror may become subject to liability for hazards which it cannot or may elect not

to insure because of high premium costs or other reasons or for occurrences which exceed maximum coverage
under its policies.

Market and Volatility

There can be no assurance that an active trading market in TWH Shares will be sustained. A number of
factors, including the Offeror’s financial results and the condition of the industries in which it operates, the
overall economy and financial markets, could cause the price of the Offeror’s Common Shares to fluctuate.

Merchant Banking

The performance of any investment in a merchant banking scenario is, by nature, speculative. External
factors, which the Offeror may not be in a position to influence, could impact any single investment or the
general business climate. In addition, the companies the Offeror has investments in are subject to risks including

competition from other businesses, dependence on key personnel, regulatory, environmental, and other
operational risks.

13. PRIOR SALES
Price Ranges and Volumes of Trading of the TWH Shares

The TWH Shares are listed and posted for trading on the TSX. The following table sets forth the reported

high and low sales prices and the cumulative volume of trading of the TWH Shares on the TSX for the periods
indicated:

TSX

Period H;gh_ Low Volume
2002

November (to November 14 close)......... 290 275 20,600
October . ... .. i e 290 2.06 53,641
September ......... ... i 3.05 275 121,563
August . . ..o e 2.81 236 46,135
July ..o 3.00 2.65 257,588
3monthsendedJune 30 . ............... 3.10 250 844,046
3 months ended March 31............... 2.84 215 347,425
2001

3 months ended December 31 .. .......... 2.38 190 1,132,187
3 months ended September 30............ 247 185 876,734
3monthsended June 30 . ............... 2.09 180 8,503,777
3 months ended March31............... 235 1.80 349,746
2000

“3 months ended December 31 ... ......... 2.10 180 1,506,438

14. INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS

The executive and senior officers and the directors of the Offeror and their associates did not have any
indebtedness to the Offeror or its subsidiaries in respect of the financial year ended December 31, 2001, other
than routine indebtedness or indebtedness that has been repaid.
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15. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Management functions of the Offeror are performed to a substantial degree by individuals who are not
employed by the Offeror but some of whom have been elected or appointed directors and senior officers of the
Offeror. The Offeror has a management services contract (the “Management Services Contract”) with
Morguard and its affiliated corporations (“Morguard Group”). Morguard’s registered office is located at
Suite 1400, One University Ave., Toronto, Ontario M5J 2Pl. Pursuant to the Management Services Contract,
Morguard Group provides managerial and consultative services for the Offeror’s business and the businesses of
its subsidiaries, through the personal services of certain of its senior officers and consultants (collectively
referred to as “Management”) on a non-exclusive basis. The amount payable by the Offeror to Morguard is
$50,000 per month. Subject to any changes as Morguard and the Offeror may agree, Management includes the
individuals listed below together with their municipality of residence:

Donald W. Turple, Winnipeg, Manitoba;
Eugene N. Hretzay, Oakville, Ontario;
Frank Munsters, Mississauga, Ontario; and
K. (Rai) Sahi, Mississauga, Ontario.

K. (Rai) Sahi serves as Chief Executive Officer of the Offeror and provides such duties and exercises such
powers as are normally associated with such position. Eugene N. Hretzay serves as Corporate Counsel and
Secretary of the Offeror. Don Turple serves as Chief Financial Officer of the Offeror, and monitors the activities
of the Offeror on a daily basis as well as developing a strategic direction for the Offeror in accordance with
direction from the Board of Directors of the Offeror. Frank Munsters provides banking, credit and treasury
functions.

There is no basis for allocating the portion of each individual’s compensation from Morguard attributable
to the services provided to the Offeror or its subsidiaries because the individuals providing the services pursuant
to the Management Services Contract are not in fact receiving compensation primarily in respect of those
services.

16. AUDITORS

The auditors of the Offeror are Deloitte & Touche LLP, Chartered Accountants, Suite 3000,
700 27 Street SW, Calgary, Alberta.

17. REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

The registrar and transfer agent for TWH Shares is CIBC Mellon Trust Company, at its principal offices in
Toronto, Ontario.
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SCHEDULE “B”

Financial Statements of the Offeror

Consolidated Financial Statements of

TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
December 31, 2001, June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999
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Deloitte & Touche LLP :
000 00 S Shsct SW Deloitte
Calgary AB Canada T2P 057 & Tou ch e

Telephone: +1-403-267-1700
Facsimile: +1-403-264-2871

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Directors of
Tri-White Corporation:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Tri-White Corporation as at December 31, 2001 and
June 30, 2001 and the consolidated statements of earnings and retained earnings and of cash flows for the six
months ended December 31, 2001 and the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2001 and June 30, 2001 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the six months ended December 31, 2001 and the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Calgary, Alberta (Signed) “Deloitte & Touche LLP”
March 19, 2002 Chartered Accountants
except for note 14 dated November 15, 2002

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu B-2
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(Expressed in Thousands of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts)

Nine Months Six Months
Ended Ended Years Ended
September 30, December 31, June 30,
2002 2001 2001 2001 2000 1999
(Una\%dited) (Au%ited) (Au%ited) (Au%ited) (Au%ited)
REVENUE ........... .. . ... 40,450 39,832 25,316 37,370 32,344 30,358
COST OF SALES AND OPERATING
EXPENSES . ...... ... ... i 25,340 25,708 14,024 25,128 20,125 18,143
15,110 14,124 11,292 12,242 12,219 12,215
(LOSS) GAIN ON SALE OF ASSETS ....... (33) (12) 2) 126 188 928
EARNINGS OF EQUITY ACCOUNTED
INVESTMENT . . ........ ... ... ..... 1,478 — — — — —
INTEREST (EXPENSE) INCOME ......... {63) 999 (222) 2,732 (108) (233)
EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAXES.. 16,492 15,111 11,068 15,100 12,299 12,910
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES (Note 10) . 6,218 5,062 5,795 4,976 4,790 5,130
EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS . ........ .. . .. 10,274 10,049 5,273 10,124 7,509 7,780
NET EARNINGS FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS . .. ... ... ... . .. — — — — 4,401 4,288
GAIN (LOSS) ON SALE OF DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS (Note 2) ............... — — (1,976) 10,880 _ —
NETEARNINGS . ... .................. 10,274 10,049 3,297 21,004 11,910 12,068
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF
PERIOD . ....... ... .. .. ... 41,458 40,639 40,791 26,706 16,325 4,257
DIVIDENDSPAID .................... (4,120) (2,347 (2,306) (4,826) — —
EXCESS OF PURCHASE PRICE OVER
STATED VALUE (Note 11) . . . . ......... — (873) (324) (2,093) (1,529) —_
RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF PERIOD . ... 47,606 47,468 41,458 40,791 26,706 16,325
EARNINGS PER TWH SHARE
Basic .. ....... . e 0.22 0.23 0.07 0.45 0.24 0.24
Diluted.............. ... ... ..., 0.22 0.22 0.07 0.44 0.23 0.23
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Expressed in Thousands of Dollars)

September 30,  December 31, June 30,
2002 2001 2001

(Unalgdited) (Au%ited) (Audsited)

ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash ... 7,078 2,500 5,905
Accounts receivable .. ... ... . ... .. e 6,847 757 7,884
Notes receivable (Notes 2and 7) ............ it — — 2,443
Loanreceivable .. ... .. . . e 3,000 — —
Income taxes receivable ....... ... ... L L — 2,912 —
INVENLOTIES . . .ot i e e e e 4,480 4,970 5,827
Prepaid expenses and other assets . . . ... .. ... ... oL 1,576 1,003 884
22,981 12,142 22,943
Portfolio investments (Note §) .. ....... .. .. oo, 11,853 12,723 28,284
Investment (Note 6) .. ....... ... 0 i, 27,228 25,000 —
Notes receivable (Notes 2and 7) ... ... ... .. s, — — 8,000
Capital assets (Note 8) . ......... ... i, 84,625 84,815 83,583
146,687 134,680 142,810
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Bank indebtedness (Note 9) .. ...... ... ... .o i 3,783 8,839 7,625
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .................... 8,290 2,110 11,124
Income taxes payable . ....... ... .. .. ... i 2,772 — 1,381
Current portion of provision for future site restoration (Note 13) . . 156 366 464
15,001 11,315 20,594
Future income taxes (Note 10) . . . .. ... ... ... 17,612 16,275 14,041
Provision for future site restoration (Note 13) . ................. 318 396 852
32,931 27,986 35,487
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital (Note 11) ....... ... i, 61,065 60,786 61,118
Cumulative translation adjustment ........................ 5,085 4,450 5,414
Retained earnings . ........... . ... 47,606 41,458 40,791
113,756 106,694 107,323
146,687 134,680 142,810
APPROVED BY THE BOARD
(Signed) JOHN LOKKER (Signed) K. (RAI) SaHI

Director Director
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Expressed in Thousands of Dollars)

Nine Months Six Months
Ended Ended Years Ended
September 30, December 31, June 30,
2002 2001 2001 2001 2000 1999
(Unaxéditcd) (Audsited) (Audsited) (Aucgted) (Aucgtcd)
CASH FLOWS RELATED TO THE
FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING
Earnings from continuing operations . . .. ... 10,274 10,049 5,273 10,124 7,509 7,780
Adjustments for:
Depreciation . .................... 3,526 3,250 1,736 3,233 2,459 2,357
Future income taxes . ............... 1,337 1,282 2,404 2,260 2,123 4,399
Loss (gain) on sale of assets . . . ........ 33 12 2 (126) (188) (928)
Earnings of equity accounted investment .. (1,478) - — — — —
Distributions from equity investments . . .. 250 — — — — —
Loss (gain) on sale of portfolio investments — — 3 (289) — —
13,942 14,593 9,418 15,202 11,903 13,608
Changes in non-cash working capital . . .. ... 3,325 (52,350) 1,707 (30,820) (3,820) (2,590)
Cash from continuing operations ......... 17,267 (37,157) 11,125 (15,618) 8,083 11,018
Cash from discontinued operations . . . ... .. — — — — 6,259 7,267
Cash from operations . . .. ............. 17,267 (37,757) 11,125 (15,618) 14,342 18,285
INVESTING
Proceeds on sale of marketable securities . . . 1,456 5 15,308 — — —
Proceeds on sale of discontinued operations. . — 12 443 36,000
Purchase of capital assets . ............. (3,382) (4,463) (2,980) (4,995) (15,215) (10,857)
Purchase of marketable securities (Note 6) .. (1,572) — (25,000) — — —
Proceeds on sale of capital assets . . ....... — — — 168 890 1,466
Site restoration expenditures .. .......... (288) (1,552) (554) (2,407) (2,535) (5,317
Issuance of subordinated debenture ....... — (1,000) — (1,000) — —
Decrease in bank indebtedness on sale of
discontinued operations .. ............ —_— 1,340 —_ 1,340 —_ —_
(3,786)  (5,658) (12,783) 29,106 (16,860) (14,708)
FINANCING
Dividendspaid. . . ................... 3,847) (2,221) (1,935) (4,700) — —
Shares purchased for cancellation . . . ... ... — (2,751) (1,026) (6,036) (4,141) —
(3.847) (4,972) (2,961) (10,736) (4,141) —
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS ................ 0,634 (48,387) (4,619) 2,752 (6,659) 3,577
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING OF PERIOD ............. (6,339) 34,132 (1,720) (4,472) 2,187 (1,390)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF
PERIOD................ ... ..... 3,295 (14,255) (6,339) (1,720) (4,472) 2,187
Consisting of:
Cash ....... ... .. .. . . . . 7,078 204 2,500 5,905 4,523 3,615
Bank indebtedness .. ................. (3,783) (14,459) (8,839) (7,625) (8,995) (1,428)
3,295 (14,255) (6,339) {1,720) (4,472) 2,187
Cash paid for interest . . . .............. 295 279 150 360 362 331
Cashpaidfortaxes................... 809 443 7,018 3,614 6,400 6,616
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Information as at September 30, 2002 and the nine months ended
September 30, 2002 and September 30, 2001 is unaudited)

(Tabular Amounts Expressed in Thousands of Dollars,
Except Per Share Amounts)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-White Corporation (“TWH?”) and its subsidiary companies, which
include White Pass & Yukon Canada Inc., White Pass & Yukon Canada U.S. Inc., Pacific and Arctic Railway and Navigation Company,
Skagway Terminal Company, British Columbia — Yukon Railway Company and British Yukon Railway Company Limited (collectively
the “Company”). All material inter-company balances, transactions and profits have been eliminated.

As discussed in Note 2, the Company sold its subsidiary, Tri-Line Expressways Ltd. (“Tri-Line””), subsequent to June 30, 2000.
In accordance with Section 3475 of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Handbook, “Discontinued Operations”, the
results of operations have been presented as a discontinued business segment.

SALE OF TRI-LINE EXPRESSWAYS LTD.

During July 2000, the Company sold 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of Tri-Line (trucking transportation segment) for
$45 million resulting in a gain of $10.9 million, net of $6.7 million (of income taxes) and $5.8 million of costs and ather provisions. The
consideration was $36 million cash, $1 million unsecured holdback (retained for 12 months from closing date), a $7 million
subordinated debenture bearing interest at 11.5%, $1.1 million unsecured promissory note bearing interest at 11.5% and warrants for
the right to purchase 6.6 million common shares of the purchaser for $0.30 per share (attributed value $250,000), subject to certain
terms and conditions and working capital adjustments. Of the 6.6 million warrants received, 4.3 million were received on the date of sale
and the remainder were earned on July 18, 2001, when the $1 million holdback was not repaid.

In December 2001, the Company determined that the amounts receivable from TCT of $10.4 million were not collectible and a related
charge of $1.9 million, pet of tax recovery of $783,000, has been booked in the current period for the estimated portion which may not
be collectible.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles and include the following significant accounting policies:

Fiscal year end

The fiscal year end of the Company has been changed from June 30, to December 31 effective December 31, 2001.

Principles of consolidation

The financial statements of entities which are controlled by the Company, referred to as subsidiaries, are consolidated. Entities which
are not controlled, but over which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting.

Revenue recognition

Rail tourism revenues are recognized as earmed when rail passenger service is provided.

Portfolio investments

Portfolio investments consist of common and preferred shares of publicly traded companies. Portfolio investments which are effectively
held to maturity or which have a reduction in market value which is considered temporary in nature are recorded at cost. Declines in
value that are other than temporary are recognized immediately.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of materials and supplies, which are stated at cost, determined on a first-in, first-out basis, and are charged
to expense or added to the cost of property and equipment when used.
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

{Information as at September 30, 2002 and the nine months ended
September 30, 2002 and September 30, 2001 is unaudited)

(Tabular Amounts Expressed in Thousands of Dollars,
Except Per Share Amounts)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided at rates that charge the original cost of such assets to operations over their

useful lives that average 10 years for equipment, 20 years for buildings, 30 years for wooden bridges and ties, 40 years for docks and
60 years for rail and steel bridges. Land and tunnels are not depreciated.

Income taxes

The Company follows the accounting recommendation of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”), $.3465 “Income
Taxes”. Under this method, future income tax assets and liabilities are measured based upon temporary differences between the
carrying value of assets and liabilities and their tax basis. Income tax expense (recovery) is computed based on the change during the
year in the future tax assets and liabilities. Effects of changes in tax laws and tax rates are recognized when substantively enacted.

Foreign currency translation

The accounts of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Canadian dollars at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet dates.
- Revenues and expenses are translated at the average rate of exchange for the year. The resulting gains and losses are accumulated as a
separate component of shareholders’ equity called the cumulative translation adjustment,

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting

periods. Management has made significant estimates related to site restoration and to the useful lives of capital assets. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

Financial instruments

The Company is exposed to the risk that arises from fluctuations in interest rates, the exchange rate of the U.S. dollar and the degree of
volatility of these rates. The Company does not use derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from customers and the Company’s subsidiary is economically dependent upon the Alaskan
tourism industry.

The Company’s accounts receivable, income tax receivable, portfolio investments, notes receivable, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, and income tax payable constitute financial instruments. Based on available market information, the carrying value of the
Company’s financial instruments approximates their fair value.

Stock-based compensation plan

The Company has a stock-based compensation plan which is described in Note 11. Prior to January 1, 2002, no compensation expense is
recognized for this plan when stock or stock options are issued to employees. Any consideration paid by employees on exercise of stock
options or purchase of stock is credited to share capital. If stock or stock options are repurchased from employees, the excess of the
consideration paid over the carrying amount of the stock or stock option is cancelled and is charged to retained earnings. See Note 4.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Commencing January 1, 2001, the Company changed its calculation of diluted earnings per share to the treasury stock method in
accordance with Section 3500 of the Handbook of the CICA. Retroactive adoption of this methodology had no impact on the diluted
earnings per share amounts of the prior year.

Commencing January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the new standards for Stock Based Compensation and other stock based payments
as provided for in the new recommendations of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA). As permitted by the CICA,
the Offeror has applied this change prospectively for new awards granted on or after that date. The Offeror has elected to measure
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Information as at September 30, 2002 and the nine months ended
September 30, 2002 and September 30, 2001 is unaudited)

(Tabular Amounts Expressed in Thousands of Dollars,
Except Per Share Amounts)

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
compensation expense as the difference, if any, between the quoted market value or fair value of the common shares at the date of grant

and the exercise price at the date of grant. If the exercise price of options granted by the Company is not less than the market value at
the grant date, no compensation expense is recognized.

PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 June 30, 2001
Cost Market Cost Market Cost Market
$ 3 $ $ $ . 8
Portfolio INVEStMENtS . . . . . . o v it e e e 11,853 11,905 12,723 12,383 28,284 29,857

INVESTMENT

On September 4, 2001, the Company purchased 5,000,000 Common Shares, or approximately 26% of the outstanding shares of
ClubLink Corporation (“ClubLink”), a Canadian public company, for $25 million. The Company accounts for its investment in

ClubLink on the equity basis of accounting. For the period the Company held the shares, the four months ended December 31, 2001, no
earnings or losses were attributed to this investment.

As at September 30, 2002, December 31, 2001 and June 30, 2001, the market value of the Company’s investment in ClubLink is

$37.3 million, $27.5 million and $35 million respectively, compared to the carrying value of $26.2 million, $25 million and $26 million
respectively.

NOTES RECEIVABLE
September 30, December 31, June 30,
2002 2001 2001
3 $ $
Current
Promissory mote A . . . .. .. — — 1,000
Promissory note B . . . .. .. .. e — — 1,103
Interest receivable . . . .. .. ... e — — 340
Current note receivable . . ... .. .. ... e e — — 2,443
Subordinated debenture . . . .. ... e —_ — 7,000
Subordinated debenture . . . ... ... ... e e e — — 1,000
Long-termnote receivable . . ... .. .. ... e — — 8,000

In December 2001, the Company determined the notes receivable from TCT were not collectible (see Note 2) and as such, fully
provided {for the following notes and debentures:

Promissory Note A

$1,000,000 unsecured, promissory note due July 14, 2001 for holdback, bearing interest at an annual rate of 11.5% payable monthly.

Promissory Note B

$1,103,000 unsecured promissory note due July 14, 2001, bearing interest at an annual rate of 11.5% payable monthly.
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Information as at September 30, 2002 and the nine months ended

September 30, 2002 and September 30, 2001 is unaudited)

(Tabular Amounts Expressed in Thousands of Dollars,
Except Per Share Amounts)

NOTES RECEIVABLE (Continued)
Subordinated debenture

$7,000,000 subordinated debenture due July 17, 2005, bearing interest at an annual rate of 11.5% payable quarterly.

Subordinated debenture

$1,000,000 debenture due July 17, 2005, bearing interest at an annual rate of 11.5% payable quarterly.

CAPITAL ASSETS
September 30, 2002
Accumulated  Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value
$ $ $
Land and tunnels . . ... . ... . e e e 1,627 —_ 1,627
Buildings . . . . . .. e e e e 20,249 2,251 17,998
EqUipment . . . oo e e e e e e 29,092 7,185 21,907
DockS . . L e e e e e 55,142 12,049 43,093
106,110 21,485 84,625
December 31, 2001
Accumulated  Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value
$ s $
Land and tunnels . . . ... ... e e 1,674 -— 1,674
Bulldings . . .. e e 17,913 1,818 16,095
Equipment. . . .. .. . e e e e 28,314 5,227 23,087
DOCKS . . . e e e e e 54,873 10,914 43,959
: 102,774 17,959 84,815
June 30, 2001
Accumulated  Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value
$ $ $
Land and tunnels . . ... .. .. e e 1,629 —_ 1,629
Buildings . . .. ... e e e e 16,449 1,521 14,928
Equipment. . .. ... e e 26,855 4,556 22,299
DoCKS . . . e e e 54,874 10,147 44,727
99,807 16,224 83,583

BANK INDEBTEDNESS

Bank indebtedness represents funds borrowed under revolving credit facilities. At September 30, 2002, the Company had an operating
line of credit with a U.S. bank in the maximum amount of US $10 million (US $6.3 million at December 31, 2001 and US $7 million at
June 30, 2000). The U.S. operating line of credit is unsecured, bears interest at U.S. prime plus ¥2% and is payable on demand.
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

{(Information as at September 30, 2002 and the nine months ended
September 30, 2002 and September 30, 2001 is unaudited)

{Tabular Amounts Expressed in Thousands of Dollars,
Except Per Share Amounts)

10. FUTURE INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes differs from the expected amount calculated by applying the Canadian combined federal and provincial
corporate tax rate to earnings before income taxes. The effective rate differs from the statutory rate primarily as a result of differences

in U.S. statutory rates and the timing of the recognition of operating losses of subsidiaries. The major components of these differences
are explained as follows:

September 30, December 31, June 30,
2002 2001 2001

9 mgnths) 6 mgnths) (12 mé)nths)

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes . . ... ..... ... .. 16,492 11,068 15,100
Expected cOTpOrate tax Tate . . . . . .o v v it e 35.6% 2% 43%
Calculated income tax provision . . .. ...... .. .. i 6,531 4,649 6,439
Differences in U.S. statutory tax rates . . ... ... .o vttt (660) (206) (343)
Permanent differences . . . .. .. ... ... — (252) —
Adjustments for changes in previous Estimates. . .. . ................. 240 656 (1,191)
Impact of effective tax rate reduction on future income taxes . ........... — 113 122
Operating losses of subsidiaries not recognized . .................... — 835 —
Other. . ..o e e 107 — (51)
6,218 5,795 4,976
——-= = (—— ———
Comprised of:
September 30, December 31, June 30,
2002 2001 2001
(9 months) 6 mgnths) (12 m;mths)
$
CUITENt & o v v o e e e e et e e e e e e e e 4,881 3,391 2,716
Buture . ... e 1,337 2,404 2,260

6,218 5,795 4976

At September 30, 2002, the components of the net future income tax liability are as follows:

September 30, December 31, June 30,
2002

2001 2001

$ $ $
Capital @85e1S . . . . . v i e e {16,068) (14,760) (11,676)
Difference in tax basis of subsidiary company shares . .. ... ......... ... (2,840) (2,840) (3,080)
Environmental provision . . .. ....... . ... 266 295 523

Capital loss carryforwards . . ... ... .. ... ... ... 1,030 1,030 -
Netoperatinglosses .. ... ... ... ... ... . .. ... — — 192
(17,612) (16,275) (14,041)
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Information as at September 30, 2002 and the nine months ended
September 30, 2002 and September 30, 2001 is unaudited)

(Tabular Amounts Expressed in Thousands of Dollars,
Except Per Share Amounts)

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
Unlimited number of preferred shares, issuable in series

September 30, 2002 ~ December 31, 2001 June 30, 2001
Number of Number of Number of
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
$ 3 3
TWH Shares
Opepingbalance .. ................... 45,780,936 60,786 46,124,288 61,118 49,036,764 64,934
Shares repurchased . . .. ................ (533,000) (703)  (2,982,042) (3,942)
Shares issued under dividend reinvestment plan . . 108,583 279 189,648 371 69,566 126

Endingbalance . ........... ... ... ... 45,889,519 61,065 45,780,936 60,786 46,124,288 61,118

Stock options

The Company has a fixed stock option plan open to directors, officers, full-time employees and consultants of the Company. Under this
plan, the Company may grant total options to a maximum of 10% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Company on a
non-diluted basis. Under the plan, the exercise price generally equals the market price of the Company’s stock on the day prior to the
date of grant and an option’s maximum term is ten years. Options generally vest over a five year period.

Normal course issuer bid

During the period ended September 30, 2002, the Company made no purchases of common stock under the normal course issuer bid
(533,000 shares for cash consideration of $1,026,000 for the period ended December 31, 2001 and 2,982,042 shares for cash
consideration of $6,036,000 for the year ended June 30, 2001). As the consideration paid exceeded the stated value of the shares, the
amount of the excess totalling $324,000, $873,000, $2,093,000, and $1,529,000 for the periods ended December 31, 2001, September 30,
2001, June 30, 2001 and June 30, 2000 respectively were recorded as a reduction of retained earnings.

A summary of the Company’s fixed stock option plan as of September 30, 2002 and changes during the year is presented below:
September 30, December 31, June 30,
2002

2001 2001
Options outstanding, beginning of period . . .. .. ... ... ... ... .. ... 747,000 849,000 754,000
Granted . .. ... e — — 175,000
Cancelled . . ..ot (4,000) (102,000) (80,000)
Options outstanding, end of period . . . .. ........ ... .. ... ... ... .. .. 743,000 747,000 849,000
Weighted average remaining contractual life (years) ................... 6.2 7.0 7.4
Exercise price range . . .. ...... ...t e $1.90-$2.05 $1.90-82.05  $1.90-32.05
Weighted average exercise price . . . . ... ... i $ 2.03 3 2.03 $ 2.03
Options exercisable, end of period .. ... ... . ... ... .. .. .. .. ... .. 505,800 488,200 544,400
Weighted average exercise price . . . ... vt $ 2.03 3 203 3 204

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company has segmented its operations on the basis of the major industries in which it operates, as described below:

The tourism group, consisting of the railway and dock operation of British Yukon Railway, British Columbia—Yukon Railway, White

Pass and Yukon Canada Inc. and its subsidiaries, operates docking facilities for ships and a tourist scenic/historic railway primarily in
Alaska with a small portion in Canada.
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Information as at September 30, 2002 and the nine months ended
September 30, 2002 and September 30, 2001 is unaudited)

(Tabular Amounts Expressed in Thousands of Dollars,
Except Per Share Amounts)

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

a)

b)

)

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are defendants in a number of legal actions. Although the outcome of these claims
cannot be determined, in the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters is not expected to have a materially adverse
effect on the Company’s financial position.

As at December 31, 2001, the Company and its subsidiaries had operating lease commitments, with varying terms, requiring annual
payments approximately as follows:

3

2002 L e e e e e e 326
2003 . e e e e e e 299
1 306
2005 L e e e e e e e e 247
7 153
Thereafter . . .. . e e e e e e e e 3,225
4,556

The Company’s operations and properties are subject to extensive federal, provincial, territorial, state, municipal and local
environmental laws and requirements in both Canada and the United States, relating to, among other things, air emissions, the
management of contaminants including hazardous materials and waste, discharges to waters and the remediation of environmental
impacts. The Company believes it has identified and provided for the expenditures relating to known environmental matters,
including compliance issues and the assessment and remediation of the environmental condition of its properties, whether currently
or previously owned, or other properties where it may have environmental liabilities.

The Company’s total cost and liabilities for environmental matters cannot be predicted with certainty due to, among other things,
the various issues described above, changing environmental laws and requirements and the necessity to conduct additional
investigations. The Company has recorded a provision for future site restoration to cover the potential cost of environmental clean

up. This represents management’s best estimate of future costs. The current portion of the provision represents costs expected to
be incurred within the next year.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

(a) On September 13, 2002, the Company announced its intention to acquire a controlling interest in ClubLink. The offer,

subsequently amended, is to acquire all of the Common Shares and 6% convertible debentures of ClubLink.

(b) On February 28, 2002, the Company entered into an agreement with a related party, Paros Enterprises Limited, to provide a

demand credit facility to Paros, in the amount of $5,000,000. The credit facility was established on commercially reasonable terms;
Paros and the Company are related by virtue of 2 common shareholder and officer. The credit line has now been repaid.

15. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share and
$76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

December 31, 2001
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Deloitte & Touche LLP H
Sgo%l, ?00 S%Lcl:?)n% Street SW DE'OItte
Calgary AB Canada T2P 087 & Tou ch e

Telephone: +1-403-267-1700
Facsimile: +1-403-264-2871

COMPILATION REPORT

To the Directors of
Tri-White Corporation:

We have reviewed, as to compilation only, the accompanying unaudited pro forma consolidated balance
sheet of Tri-White Corporation as at December 31, 2001 and unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of
earnings for the year ended December 31, 2001 which have been prepared for inclusion in the Offer to Purchase
dated November 15, 2002 by Tri-White Corporation based upon the acquisition of 14.8 million issued and
outstanding common shares and all of the 6% convertible subordinate debentures due May 15, 2008 of ClubLink
Corporation. In our opinion, the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma

consolidated statement of earnings have been properly compiled to give effect to the proposed transactions and
assumptions described in notes thereto.

Calgary, Alberta (Signed) “Deloitte & Touche LLP”
November 15, 2002 Chartered Accountants

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu C-3
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(unaudited)

As at December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

Pro Forma Pro Forma
Tri-White ClubLink (Note 2) Adjustments Consolidated
$ 3 $ 3
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents . . ..................... 2,500 8,225 () 5,938 735
(d) (11,500)
(a) (2,358)
@G (2070
Accountsreceivable ... ......... .. ... . ... 757 1,802 — 2,559
Mortgages and loans receivable . ... ............... — 2,354 — 2,354
Income and other taxes recoverable ................ 2,912 —_ — 2,912
Inventories . . .. v i it i e e e s 4,970 — —_ 4,970
Prepaid expenses and other assets. . .. .............. 1,003 2,873 (d)(iv) 1,602 5478
12,142 15,254 (8,388) 19,008
Portfolioinvestments. . . . ... .o it 12,723 1,250 — 13,973
Long-term investments . .................0uvvu., 25,000 — (d) 110,946 —
(d) 2,070
(d) (25,000)
(d) (113,016)
Notesreceivable . . . ......... ... ... iivun.. — 9,790 —_ 9,790
Capital @ssets. . . ... .o i 84,815 386,544 (d)() (53,168) 418,191
Development @ssets .. ......... ..., — 56,521 (d)(d@) (7,122) 49,399
Deferred financing charges . ..................... — 3,548 — 3,548
Total assets . . ... e e 134,680 472,907 {93,678) 513,909
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'® EQUITY
Current
Bank indebtedness and loans .. ................... 8,839 8,505 (d) 44,075 61,419
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . . ........... 2,110 11,451 (d)(@) 10,000 23,561
Capital lease obligations .. ...................... — 6,263 — 6,263
Prepaid annual dues and deposits . . .. .............. — 5,185 — 5,185
Current portion of provision for future site restoration . . . 366 — — 366
11,315 31,404 54,075 96,794
Convertible debentures . .. ... .. ..t — 1,265 — 1,265
Longtermdebt ......... ... .. ... .. ... ... ... — 128,262 — 128,262
Capital lease obligations .. ...................... — 11,122 —_ 11,122
Other long-term liabilities . .. .................... — 1,177 — 1,177
Future income tax liabilities . . .. ... ............... 16,275 7,038 — 23,313
Provision for future site restoration . . .. ............. 396 — — 396
Total habilities .. ......... ... ... .. .. . .. .. ... 27,986 180,268 54,075 262,329
Shareholders’ equity
Convertible debentures ... ......... ... ... ..... — 89,513 — 89,513
Share capital . ... ............... e 60,786 182,515 (c) 5,938 116,159
(a) (2,358)
(d) 55,373
(d) (186,095)
Cumulative translation adjustment . ................ 4,450 _ — 4,450
Retained earnings. . .. . ........ ... ... .. ... 41,458 20,611 (d) (20,611) 41,458
Total shareholders’ equity .. ......... ... ..., 106,694 292,639 (147,753) 251,580
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . . ... ........ 134,680 472,907 (93,678) 513,909
C-4
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
(unaudited)

For the year ended December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars, except for per share amounts)

Tri-White ClubLink
Unaudited
for six Audited for For the Audited for Pro Forma
month six month twetve month the year Consolidated for
period ended  period ended  period ended ended the year ended
June 30, December 31,  December 31,  December 31, Pro Forma December 31,
200 2001 2001 2001 (Note 2)  Adjustments 2001
(Note 2 (2
$ 3 3 3 ) S 5
REVENUE . ... ................. 14,662 25316 39,978 118,275 - 158,253
Cost of sales and operating expenses . . . . . . 10,550 12,289 22,839 83,101 — 105,940
Earnings from operations before the
undernoted . . ... ... L 4,112 13,027 17,139 35,174 — 52,313
Amortization .. ................. 1,860 1,735 3,595 10213 ® (1,07) 12,737
Earnings before other expense (income) and
income taxes . . .............. .. 2,252 11,292 13,544 24,961 1,07 39,576
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME)
Interestand other . . . .............. (1,062) 222 (840) 7,948 (d)(iii) 2,865 9973
Interest expense, convertible debenture . . . . - — — — {a) 5,671 5671
Net loss on sale of assets and investments . . . - 2 2 — — 2
(1,062) 224 (838) 7,948 8,536 15,646
Earnings (loss) before income taxes ... ... 3314 11,068 14,382 17,013 (7,465) 23,930
Provision for (recovery of) income taxes
Current . ............. .. ..... 121 3,391 3512 2,909 (e) (3.507) 2914
Fature . . ... ... ... ... ..... 163 2404 2567 1,230 (¢) 450 4,247
284 5,795 6,079 4,139 (3,057) 7,161
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations 3,030 5273 8,303 12,874 (4,408) 16,769
Loss on sale of discontinued operations . . . . — (1,976) {1.976) — - 1,976)
Gain on purchase and cancellation of
convertible debentures (net of income taxes
of $195) . . ... .. — — — 824 - 824
Convertible debenture interest (net of tax
recovery of $2304) . . . .. ... ... ... — (3,367) (a) 3,367 —
Write-down of long-term investment (The
Links Group —section 11} . ... ... ... - - — (9,981) — (9.981)
NET EARNINGS (L.OSS) FOR THE PERIOD 3,030 3,297 6,327 350 (1,041) 5,636
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE (note 3)
Basic
Continuing operations . . .. ........ 0.18 0.26
Netearnings . ................ 0.14 0.08
Diluted
Continuing operations. . . .. ....... 0.18 0.26
Net Eamings . . . .............. 0.14 0.09




TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
December 31, 2001

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings have been
prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. These unaudited consolidated
pro forma statements have been prepared from information derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of Tri-White
Corporation (the “Offeror” or “TWH?”) for the six month period ended December 31, 2001 and the audited consolidated financial
statements of ClubLink Corporation (“ClubLink”) for the year ended December 31, 2001, adjusted to reflect the assumptions described
below with respect to the acquisition by the Offeror of the remaining outstanding Common Shares and 6% convertible debentures
(“Debentures™) of ClubLink, to increase ownership to 100%. The acquisition has been accounted for by the purchase method.

In the opinion of the Offeror, the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement
of earnings contain all material adjustments necessary for fair presentation. The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and
the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings are not necessarily indicative of the financial position or earings from
operations that would have occurred if the acquisition of the Common Shares and Debentures had taken place on the dates indicated or
of the earnings from operations which may be obtained in the future.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Offeror for the six month period ended December 31, 2001 and ClubLink for the year ended December 31, 2001.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements are those disclosed in the
Offeror’s audited consolidated financial statements for the six month period ended December 31, 2001. Management has determined
that no adjustments arc necessary to conform the ClubLink audited consolidated financial statements with the accounting policies used
by the Offeror in the preparation of its financial statements.

The aggregate purchase price reflected in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements is preliminary and based on the
financial position of ClubLink at December 31, 2001. The final actual purchase price and related allocations will reflect the fair value at
the actual acquisition date of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Actual allocations may differ significantly from the preliminary
allocation inctuded herein.

PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements give effect to the following assumptions and adjustments as if they had
occurred on December 31, 2001 in respect of the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and on January 1, 2001 in respect of
the unaudited pro forma consclidated statement of earnings.

(a) Consolidated Balance sheet and statement of earnings of ClubLink

The audited consolidated balance sheet and statement of earnings of ClubLink as at December 31, 2001 has been re-classified to
conform with the presentation of the audited consolidated balance sheet and statements of earnings of the Offeror as at
December 31, 2001 with respect to the convertible debentures. Consideration has been given to the repurchase of Common Shares

by ClubLink during the nine month period ended September 30, 2002 for cash of $2.3 million. The effect of this has been a
decrease in cash and share capital of $2.3 million.

(b) Consolidated statement of earnings of Tri-White

The audited consolidated statement of eamings of the Offeror for the six month period ending December 31, 2001 has been
adjusted to a twelve month period ending December 31, 2001.

(c) Outstanding stock options in ClubLink

Number of ClubLink stock options with an exercise price below $7.50 assumed to be exercised prior to the acquisition are 964,600,
for proceeds of $5.9 million.

(d) Acquisition by the Offeror of remaining ClubLink Common Shares and 6% Convertible Debentures

The Offeror’s initial investment in ClubLink was completed on September 4, 2001. The Offeror owns 5 million Common Shares of
ClubLink with an initial cost of $25 million. The Offeror accounts for its investment in ClubLink using the equity method. The
Offeror plans to acquire the balance of the outstanding Common Shares in ClubLink at a cost of $110.9 million. This represents a
share price of $7.50 on approximately 14.8 million Common Shares. It is not possible to predict the constituent parts of the
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(unaudited)
December 31, 2001

2. PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

purchase consideration. For the purposes of these unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements it has been assumed that
the purchase price consideration will consist, for the Common Shares, of $55.5 million in cash and the issuance of 18.5 million
TWH Shares for $55.4 million, and for the 6% convertible debentures of ClubLink, consists of the issuance of $76,714,000

aggregate principal amount of 6% convertible debentures of the Offeror. The Offeror intends to borrow $44.1 million to finance
this acquisition,

Value of Common Shares acquired
Initial Current

Consideration purchase purchase Total
$
(in thousands)
Value of Common Shares —acquired . . ... ... ... o i i e 25,000 110,946 135,946
Estimated transaction COSIS . . . . . v v v v v v vt v et et e et e e — 2,070 2,070
Total purchase Price. . . .. . . . . .. ..t e e 25,000 113,016 138,016
Book value of net assets acquired
Cash and cashequivalents . . .. ... ... ... ... ... . .. .. .. 10,153 11,805
Amounts receivable and other assets .. ... .. .. .. ... ... 45,204 21,617
Capital @SSELS . . . . . .. e 369,607 386,544
Development @S58t . . . .o vt e e 65,831 56,521
490,795 476,487
Bank indebtednessand loans . . ... ... ... ... L L (5,004) (19,953)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . .. ........ ... .. ... . L, (32,428) (23,751)
Long-termdebl . . . . .. ... e e (139,314)  (129,527)
Convertible debentures . . ... .. .. . .. i e e (91,160) (89,513)
Future income tax liabilities . . . ... ... .. L L e (7,332) (7,038)
Minority inferest . . . .. ... (161,668) (52,288)
Netassetsacquired . . . .. ... .. ... it iiin ittt eanena 53,889 154,417
Less: PUrChase PriCe . . . .o vttt e e et e e e e e 25,000 113,016
Negative purchase price discrepancy . ... ............ .., 28,889 41,401

(d)(d) Purchase price differential

The excess of the book value of the net assets purchased over the purchase price, otherwise known as the “negative purchase
price discrepancy”, has been allocated based on managements’ best estimates and is as follows:

S

Golf course 1ands . . . ..o i e e e e e s 26,401
Depreciable capital @ssets . . . . .. L e 26,767
DeveloPmeEnt @SSeLs . . . . . . ottt e e e e 7,122
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . . . ... L L L e 10,000
70,290

(d)(iy Transaction costs

Transaction costs of $2.1 million have been estimated and added to the purchase price.
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(unaudited)
December 31, 2001

PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

(d)(iii) Interest expense

Incremental debt of the acquisition is assumed to total $44.1 million through a bridge facility and an existing line of credit at

6.5%.
(d)(iv) Change in book value of investment
Change in book value of investment since the initial purchase has been included in the other assets.
(e) Income taxes
Income taxes have been adjusted to reflect the tax implications of the adjustments stated above.

() Amortization of depreciable capital assets

Excess of the book value of the net assets purchased over the purchase price allocated to depreciable capital assets is amortized on

a straight line basis.

(g) Future income taxes

The acquisition of the ClubLink Common Shares and Debentures and related purchase price allocation may give rise to changes in
future income tax amounts. At this time, the impact of these amounts cannot be determined and therefore, no adjustments have

been made in these unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL

The following weighted average TWH shares have been used to calculate the per share information:

Weighted
Actual average
number number

of shares of shares Amount
3
Basic
Balance at December 31, 2001 . . . . . .. .. e e e 45,781 46,390 60,786
TWH Shares to be issued to purchase 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares .. ........ 18,458 18,458 55,373
64,239 64,848 116,159
Diluted
Balance at December 31, 2001 . . . .. ... e e 46,395
TWH Shares to be issued to purchase 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares .. ........ 18,458

64,853
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share and
$76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

September 30, 2002
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Deloitte & Touche LLP <
sgo%[.ugoo Sc:::%nz Street SW DeIOItte
Calgary AB Canada T2P 057 & Tou ch e

Telephone: +1-403-267-1700
Facsimile: +1-403-264-2871

COMPILATION REPORT

To the Directors of
Tri-White Corporation:

We have reviewed, as to compilation only, the accompanying unaudited pro forma consolidated balance
sheet of Tri-White Corporation as at September 30, 2002 and unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of
earnings for the nine month period ended September 30, 2002 which have been prepared for inclusion in the
Offer to Purchase dated November 15, 2002 by Tri-White Corporation based upon the acquisition of 14.8 million
issued and outstanding common shares and all of the 6% convertible subordinate debentures due May 15, 2008
of ClubLink Corporation. In our opinion, the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and the
unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings have been properly compiled to give effect to the
proposed transactions and assumptions described in notes thereto.

Calgary, Alberta (Signed) “Deloitte & Touche LLP”
November 15, 2002 Chartered Accountants

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu C-10
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures
PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(unaudited)

As at September 30, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

Pro Forma Pro Forma
Tri-White ClubLink (Note 2) Adjustments Consolidated
$ $ $ $
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents . . .. ................... 7,078 5,782 (c) 5,938 728
(d) (16,000)
(d)(ii) (2,070)
Accountsreceivable .. .. ..., ... .. .. . . 6,847 9,697 —_ 16,544
Mortgages and loans receivable . .................. 3,000 2,859 — 5,859
Inventories . ... .. ...ttt i 4,480 —_ —_ 4,480
Prepaid expenses and otherassets . . . ............... 1,576 5980  (d)(iv) 691 8,247
22,981 24,318 (11,441) 35,858
Portfolioinvestments. . ... ...................... 11,853 — — 11,853
Long-term investments . ........................ 27,228 1,976 (d) (26,228) 2,976
(d) 110,946
(d)(ii) 2,070
(d) (113,016)
Notesreceivable . . . . ........... ... ... ... . ..... — 10,772 —_ 10,772
Capital assets . . . . ... .ttt e 84,625 394,527 (d)(i) (55,758) 423394
Development assets .. .............ouveuu.ni... — 63,457  (d)(i) (7,469) 55,988
Deferred financing charges . ..................... — 3,421 — 3421
Totalassets .. ........ it 146,687 498,471 (100,896) 544,262
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current
Bank indebtednessand loans . . ................... 3,783 3,623 (d) 39,573 46,979
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . . ... ........ 8,290 17,836 (d)(i) 10,000 36,126
Long-termdebt . .......... . ... ... ... ... ....... — 7,593 — 7,593
Capital lease obligations ........................ —_ 5177 — 5177
Prepaid annual dues and deposits . . ................ — 9,919 — 9,919
Income and other taxes payable .. ................. 2,772 — — 2,772
Current portion of provision for future site restoration . . . 156 — — 156
15,001 44,148 49,573 108,722
Longstermdebt ........................... ce — 145,346 145,346
Capital lease obligations . ... .................... — 10,517 — 10,517
Other long-term liabilities ....................... — 885 885
Deferred membership fees,net. ... ................ — 8,753 — 8,753
Future income tax liabilities . . . . .................. 17,612 7,744 — 25,356
Provision for future site restoration . . ... ............ 318 — —_ 318
Total liabilities . . ...................... ... . ... 32,931 217,393 49,573 299,897
Shareholders’ equity
Convertible debentures ... ... ... ... ... ... ... — 76,714 — 76,714
Share capital .. ........... ... .. .. ... . ... ..., 61,065 180,157 (c) 5,938 116,438
(d) 55,373
(@) (186,095)
Cumulative translation adjustment .. ............... 5,085 — — 5,085
Retained earnings. . . ... . 47,606 24,207 (d) (24,457) 46,128
(a) (1478)
(a) 250
Total shareholders’ equity .. ..................... 113,756 281,078 (150,469) 244,365
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . . ........... 146,687 498,471 (100,896) 544,262
C-11
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
(unaudited)

For the nine month period ended September 30, 2002
(in thousands of dollars, except for per share amounts)

Pro Forma Pro Forma
Tri-White ClubLink  (Note 2)  adjustments Consolidated
$ 3 $ $
REVENUE . ... ... ... i, 40,450 94,480 — 134,930
Cost of sales and operating expenses . ........... 21,814 69,224 — 91,038
Earnings from operations before the undernoted ... 18,636 25,256 — 43,892
Amortization . ......... ... . o 3,526 8,882 ® (842) 11,566
Earnings before other expense (income) and income
1D (= 15,110 16,374 842 32,326
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME)
Interestand other . . ......... ... ... ... ... ... 63 (1,927) (d)(iii) 1,929 65
Interest expense ......... .. ... . ... — 7,676 — 7,676
Interest expense, convertible debenture .......... — — (b) 3,906 3,906
Net loss on sale of assets and investments ........ 33 — — 33
Earnings of equity accounted investments . . ....... (1,478) — (a) 1,478 —
(1,382) 5,749 7,313 11,680
Earnings (loss) before income taxes . ............ 16,492 10,625 (6,471) 20,646
Provision for (recovery of) income taxes
Current. .. .o ov it e 4,881 3,650 (e (2,275) 6,256
Future ........ ... ... .. . ... i, 1,337 706 () 43 2,086
6,218 4,356 (2,232) 8,342
Net earnings (loss) from operations . ............ 10,274 6,269 (4,239) 12,304
Gain on purchase and cancellation of convertible
debentures (net of income taxes of $440) ... .. .. — 1,661 — 1,661
Convertible debenture interest (net of tax recovery
of $1,465) .. ... — (2,441) (b) 2,441 -
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) FOR.THE PERIOD . . . .. 10,274 5,489 (1,798) 13,965
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE (Note 3)
Basic
Continuing operations ................... 0.22 0.19
Net earnings ............coceveneen ... 0.22 0.22
Diluted
Continuing operations ................... 0.22 0.19
Netearnings ....... ... 0.22 0.22
C-12
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
September 30, 2002

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings have been
prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. These unaudited pro forma
consolidated statements have been prepared from information derived from the unaudited consolidated balance sheets of Tri-White
Corporation (the “Offeror” or “TWH”) and ClubLink Corporation (“ClubLink”) as of September 30, 2002, and the unaudited
statements of operations for the nine month period ended September 30, 2002, adjusted to reflect the assumptions described below with
respect to the acquisition by the Offeror of the remaining outstanding Common Shares and 6% convertible debentures (*“Debentures’)
of ClubLink, to increase ownership to 100%. The acquisition has been accounted for by the purchase method.

In the opinion of the Offeror’s management, the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma
consolidated statement of earnings contain all material adjustments necessary for fair presentation. The unaudited pro forma
consolidated balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings are not necessarily indicative of the
financial position or earnings from operations that would have occurred if the acquisition of the Common Shares and Debentures had
taken place on the dates indicated or of the earnings from operations which may be obtained in the future.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Offeror for the six month period ended December 31, 2001 and ClubLink for the year ended December 31, 2001 and
unaudited financial statements of the Offeror and ClubLink for the nine month period ended September 30, 2002.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the unaudited pro forma consolidated finantial statements are those disclosed in the
Offeror’s audited consolidated financial statements for the six month period ended December 31, 2001. Management has determined
that no adjustments are necessary to conform the ClubLink audited consolidated financial statements with the accounting policies used
by the Offeror in the preparation of its financial statements.

The aggregate purchase price reflected in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements is preliminary and based on the
financial position of ClubLink at September 30, 2002. The final actual purchase price and related allocations will reflect the fair value at

the actual acquisition date of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Actual allocations may differ significantly from the preliminary
allocation included herein.

PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements give effect to the following assumptions and adjustments as if they had
occurred on September 30, 2002 in respect of the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and on January 1, 2002 in respect of
the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings.

(a) Consolidated balance sheet and statement of earnings of Tri-White

The unaudited consolidated balance sheet and statement of earnings of the Offeror as at September 30, 2002 includes equity
earnings of $1.5 million from ClubLink and dividends of $250 from ClubLink, which have been reversed.

(b) Consolidated balance sheet and statement of earnings of ClubLink

The unaudited consolidated balance sheet and statement of earnings of ClubLink as at September 30, 2002 has been re-classified to
conform with the presentation of the unaudited consolidated balance sheet and statements of earnings of the Offeror as at
September 30, 2002 with respect to the convertible debentures.

(¢) Outstanding stock options in ClubLink

Number of ClubLink stock options with an exercise price below $7.50 assumed to be exercised prior to the acquisition are 964,600,
for proceeds of $5.9 million.

(d) Acquisition by the Offeror of remaining outstanding Common Shares of ClubLink, and all outstanding 6% ClubLink Convertible
Debentures

The Offeror’s initial investment in ClubLink was completed on September 4, 2001. The Offeror owns 5 million Common Shares of
ClubLink with an initial cost of $25 million. The Offeror accounts for its investment in ClubLink using the equity method. The
Offeror plans to acquire the balance of the outstanding Common Shares in ClubLink at a cost of $110.9 million. This represents a
share price of $7.50 on approximately 14.8 million Common Shares. It is not possible to predict the constituent parts of the
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(unaudited)
September 30, 2002

2. PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

purchase price consideration. For the purposes of these unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements it has been assumed
that the purchase price consideration will consist, for the Common Shares, of $55.5 million in cash, and the issuance of 18.5 million
TWH Shares for $55.4 million, and for the 6% convertible debentures of ClubLink, will consist of the issuance of $76,714,000
aggregate principal amount of 6% convertible debentures of the Offeror. The Offeror intends to borrow $39.6 million to finance
this acquisition.

Value of Common Shares acquired

Initial Current
Consideration purchase purchase Total
8 $ 3
Value of Common Shares—acquired . . ......... ... ... ... ., 25,000 110,946 135,946
Estimated transaction COSIS . . . . . . v ittt it e e e e — 2,070 2,070

25,000 113,016 138,016

Book value of net assets acquired i
Cashand cash equivalents . . . . ... ... ... . i i 10,153 11,970

Amounts receivable and Other assets . . . .o . i e e 45,204 34,705
Capital SSETS . . . o . o v e e e e 369,607 394,527
Development assefs . . . .. .. .. e e e e 65,831 63,457
490,795 504,659
Bank indebtedness and loans . . ... ... .. ... e (5,004) (18,719)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . ... ....... ... ... .. oL L. (32,428) (29,238)
Longtermdebt. . . .. ... e (139,314)  (152,939)
Convertible debentures . . .. ... ... . ... .. L e (91,160) (76,714)
Deferred membership fees, met . .. .. ... ... .. L — (8,753)
Future income tax liabilities . . . ... . .. . . L L (7,332) (7,744)
Minority IEETest . . . . . . ..o e e e e (161,668) (53,198)
Net assets acquired . . . .. .. ... ... . e e 53,889 157,354
Less: PUrChase PriCe . . . . . . vt i e i e e e 25,000 113,016
Negative purchase price discrepancy . .. .......... ... ... ... . ... ..., 28,889 44,338

(d)(i) Purchase price differential

The excess of the book value of the net assets purchased over the purchase price, otherwise known as the “negative purchase
price discrepancy”, has been allocated based on managements’ best estimates and is as follows:

$
Golf course lands . . . . . L. L e e 27,688
Depreciable capital @ssets . . . . . . . . e e e e e e 28,070
DevelOPMENT @SSELS . & . . . v v oottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 7,469
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . .. .. ... ... . L 10,000
73,227

(d)(if) Transaction costs

Transaction costs of $2.1 million have been estimated and added to the purchase price.
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)
September 30, 2002

PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

(d)(iii) Interest expense

Incremental debt of the acquisition is assumed to total $39.6 million through a bridge facility and an existing line of credit

at 6.5%.
(d)(iv) Change in book value of investment
Change in book value of investment since the initial purchase has been included in the other assets.
(e) Income taxes
Income taxes have been adjusted to reflect the tax implications of the adjustments stated above.

(f) Amortization of depreciable capital assets

Excess of the book value of the net assets purchased over the purchase price allocated to depreciable capital assets is amortized on

a straight line basis.

(g) Future income taxes

The acquisition of the ClubLink Common Shares and related purchase price allocation may give rise to changes in future income
tax amounts. At this time, the impact of these amounts cannot be determined and therefore, no adjustments have been made in

these unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The following weighted average TWH Shares have been used to calculate the per share information:

Weighted
Actual average
number  number of
of shares shares Amount
$
Basic
Balance at September 30, 2002 . . . . ... L 45,890 45,880 61,065
TWH Shares to be issued to purchase 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares ......... 18,458 18,458 55,373
64,348 64,338 116,438
Diluted
Balance at September 30, 2002 . . . .. . ... L e 46,083
TWH Shares to be issued to purchase 14.8 million ClubLink Common Shares .. ....... 18,458

64,541
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share and
876,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

December 31, 2001
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Deloitte & Touche LLP I H
330%', $00 S%i%n% Street SW De OItte
Calgary AB Canada T2P 0S7 & Tou ch e

Telephone: +1-403-267-1700
Facsimile: +1-403-264-2871

COMPILATION REPORT

To the Directors of
Tri-White Corporation:

We have reviewed, as to compilation only, the accompanying unaudited pro forma consolidated balance
sheet of Tri-White Corporation as at December 31, 2001 and unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of
earnings for the year ended December 31, 2001 which have been prepared for inclusion in the Offer to Purchase
dated November 15, 2002 by Tri-White Corporation based upon the aquisition of 4.9 million issued and
outstanding common shares and all of the 6% convertibie subordinate debentures due May 15, 2008 of ClubLink
Corporation. In our opinion, the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma

consolidated statement of earnings have been properly compiled to give effect to the proposed transactions and
assumptions described in notes thereto.

Calgary, Alberta (Signed) “Deloitte & Touche LLP"
November 15, 2002 Chartered Accountants

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu C-17
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(unaudited)

As at December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

Pro Forma Pro Forma
Tri-White ClubLink (Note 2) Adjustments Consolidated
$ $ $ $
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents .. ..................... 2,500 8,225 (c) 5,938 235
(d) (12,000)
(a) (2,358)
(d)(ii) (2,070)
Accountsreceivable .. ... ...... .. .. ... .. ... 757 1,802 — 2,559
Mortgages and loans receivable ................... — 2,354 — 2,354
Income and other taxes recoverable ................ 2,912 —_— —_ 2,912
Inventories .. ....... . i 4,970 —_ —_ 4,970
Prepaid expenses and other assets. . ................ 1,003 2,873 (d)(iv) 1,602 5,478
12,142 15,254 (8,888) 18,508
Portfolio investments. . ... ... .........cuui..... 12,723 1,250 —_ 13,973
Long-term investments . ... ..................... 25,000 —_ (d) 36,771 —
(d) 2,070
(d) (25,000)
(d) (38,841)
Notesreceivable . . . ..., .. ... i —_ 9,790 —_ 9,790
Capital @ssets . . . . oo i e 84,815 386,544 (d)(D (27,620) 443,739
Development assets . ............c.vviieennnn.. — 56,521  (d)(i) (3,700) 52,821
Deferred financing charges . ..................... —_ 3,548 — 3,548
Totalassets . .. ... i e 134,680 472,907 (65,208) 542,379
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current
Bank indebtednessand loans .. ................... 8,839 8,505 (d) 6,386 23,730
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . .. .......... 2,110 11,451 (d)(i) 10,000 23,561
Capital lease obligations .. ...................... —_ 6,263 — 6,263
Prepaid annual dues and deposits . . ................ — 5,185 —_ 5,185
Current portion of provision for future site restoration . . . 366 — — 366
11,315 31,404 16,386 59,105
Convertible debentures ... .......... ... c...... —_ 1,265 _— 1,265
Long-termdebt ........... ... ... .. ... ... ... _ 128,262 — 128,262
Capital lease obligations .. ...................... —_— 11,122 — 11,122
Other long-term liabilities . . ..................... — 1,177 —_ 1,177
Future income tax liabilities . . . ................... 16,275 7,038 — 23,313
Provision for future site restoration . . . ... ........... 396 — _ 396
Total abilities . . ........ ... ... ... ... . 27,986 180,268 16,386 224,640
Minority interest . . .. ... ... ... .. . .. . .. . ... — — 103,146 103,146
Shareholders’ equity
Convertible debentures .. ......... .0, — 89,513 —_ 89,513
Sharecapital . ........ ... ... .. . ... o ..., 60,786 182,515 (© 5,938 79,172
(a) (2,358)
(d) 18,386
(d) (186,095)
Cumulative translation adjustment ................. 4,450 — — 4,450
Retained earnings. . .. ........ ... ... ... ... ..... 41,458 20,611 (d) (20,611) 41,458
Total shareholders’ equity .. ..................... 106,694 292,639 (184,740) 214,593
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . ... ... ...... 134,680 472,907 (65,208) 542,379
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
(unaudited)

For the year ended December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars, except for per share amounts)

Tri-White ClubLink
Unaudited
for six Audited for For the Audited for Pro Forma
month six month twelve month the year Consolidated for
period ended  period ended  period ended ended the year ended
June 30, December 31, December 31,  December 31, Pro Forma December 31,
2001 2001 2001 2001 (Note 2)  Adjustments 001
3 $ $ $ $
(Note 2 (a))
REVENUE.................... 14,662 25,316 39,978 118,275 — 158,253
Cost of sales and operating expenses . . . . . 10,550 12,289 22,839 83,101 - 105,940
Earnings from operations before the
undernoted . . ... ... ... L. 4,112 13,027 17,139 35,174 - 52,313
Amortization .. .......... ... 1,860 1,735 3,595 10,213 {3] (556) 13,252
Earnings before other expense (income) and
income taxes . . ........ ... 2,252 11,292 13,544 24,961 556 39,061
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME)
Interestandother ... ............ (1,062) pr) (840) 7,948 (d)(iii) 415 1523
Interest expense, convertible debenture . . . - — — — (a) 5,671 5671
Net loss on sale of assets and investments . . — 2 2 — —_ 2
(1,062) 224 (838) 7948 6,086 13,19
Earnings (loss) before income taxes . . . . . 3314 11,068 14,382 17,013 (5,530} 25,865
Provision for (recovery of) income taxes
Current ...........c........ 121 3,391 3512 2,509 (a)e) (2.712) 3,709
Fature .. ...... ... o L 163 2,404 2,567 1,230 () 234 4,031
284 5,795 6,075 4,139 (2478) 7,740
Net earnings (loss) from continuing
Operations . . . .. ...t i e 3,030 5273 8,303 12874 (3,052) 18,125
Loss on sale of discontinued operations . . . — (1,976) (1,976) - - {1,976)
Gain on purchase and cancellation of
convertible debentures (net of income
taxesof $195) . . ... .. ... ... — — — 824 — 824
Convertible debenture interest (net of tax
recoveryof $2304). . ... ... ... ... — — — (3.367) (a) 3,367 -
Write-down of long-term investment (The
Links Group —section 11) . . ... .. .. - — (9,981) - (9,981)
Minority interest . . . ............. — — - — (g) (175) (175)
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) FOR THE
PERIOD ................... 3,030 3297 6,327 350 140 6,817
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE (note 3)
Basic
Continuing operations . . ........ 0.18 0.35
Netearnings .. .............. 0.14 0.13
Diluted
Continuing operations . ......... 0.18 0.35
Neteamings . ............... 0.14 0.13
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
December 31, 2001

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings have been
prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. These unaudited pro forma
consolidated statements have been prepared from information derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of Tri-White
Corporation (the “Offeror” or “TWH") for the six month period ended December 31, 2001 and the audited consolidated financial
statements of ClubLink Corporation (“ClubLink”) for the year ended December 31, 2001, adjusted to reflect the assumptions described
below with respect to the acquisition by the Offeror of 4.9 million Common Shares of ClubLink, and all of the outstanding 6%
convertible debentures (“Debentures™) to increase ownership to 50.1% of the outstanding Common Shares of ClubLink and all of the
outstanding Debentures. The acquisition has been accounted for by the purchase method.

In the opinion of the Offeror, the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement
of earnings contain all material adjustments necessary for fair presentation. The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and
the unandited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings are not necessarily indicative of the financial position or earnings from
operations that would have occurred if the acquisition of the Common Shares and Debentures had taken place on the dates indicated or
of the earnings from operations which may be obtained in the future.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Offeror for the six month period ended December 31, 2001 and ClubLink for the year ended December 31, 2001.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements are those disclosed in the
Offeror’s audited consolidated financial statements for the six month period ended December 31, 2001. Management has determined
that no adjustments are necessary to conform the ClubLink audited consolidated financial statements with the accounting policies used
by the Offeror in the preparation of its financial statements.

The aggregate purchase price reflected in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements is preliminary and based on the
financial position of ClubLink at December 31, 2001. The final actual purchase price and related allocations will reflect the fair value at
the actual acquisition date of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Actual allocations may differ significantly from the preliminary

allocation included herein.

PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements give effect to the following assumptions and adjustments as if they had
occurred on December 31, 2001 in respect of the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and on January 1, 2001 in respect of
the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings.

(a) Consolidated balance sheet and statement of earnings of ClubLink

The audited consolidated balance sheet and statement of earnings of ClubLink as at December 31, 2001 has been re-classified to
conform with the presentation of the audited consolidated balance sheet and statements of earnings of the Offeror as at
December 31, 2001 with respect to the convertible debentures. Consideration has been given to the repurchase of Common Shares
by ClubLink during the nine month period ended September 30, 2002 for cash of $2.3 million. The effect of this has been a
decrease in cash and share capital of $2.3 million.

(b) Consolidated statement of earnings of Tri-White

The audited consolidated statement of earnings of Tri-White for the six month period ended December 31, 2001 has been adjusted
to a twelve month period ended December 31, 2001.

(c) Outstanding stock options in ClubLink

Number of ClubLink stock options with an exercise price below $7.50 assumed to be exercised prior to the acquisition are 964,600,
for proceeds of $5.9 million.

(d) Acquisition by the Offeror of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares and all outstanding ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

The Offeror’s initial investment in ClubLink was completed on September 4, 2001. The Offeror owns 5 million Common Shares of
ClubLink with an initial cost of $25 million. The Offeror accounts for its investment in ClubLink using the equity method. The
Offerar plans to acquire an additional 4.9 million Common Shares at $7.50 per share, for a total cost of $36.8 million. It is not
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2.

TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share

and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)
December 31, 2001

PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

possible to predict the constituent parts of the purchase price consideration. For the purposes of these unaudited pro forma
consolidated financial statements it has been assumed that the purchase price consideration will consist, for the Common Shares, of
$18.4 million in cash and the issnance of 6.1 million TWH Shares for $18.4 miilion and for the 6% convertible debentures of
ClubLink, will consist of the issuance of $76,714,000 aggregate principal amount of 6% convertible debentures of the Offeror. The

Offeror intends to borrow $6.4 million to finance this acquisition.

Consideration

Value of Common Shares — acquired
Estimated transaction costs

Total purchase price

Book value of net assets acquired

Cashandcashequivalents . . .. ...... ... ... . . ... . i
Amounts receivable and other assets
Capital @SSeES . . . . . e e e e
Development assets

Bank indebtedness and loans . .. .. .. .. ... e
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Longtermdebt. . .. . ... ... e e
Convertible debentures . . . . . .. ... .. e e
Future income tax liabilities
Minority interest

Net assets acquired
Less: Purchase price

Negative purchase price discrepancy . . . ... ... ... ... . .. .. ...

(d)(i) Purchase price differential

Value of Common Shares acquired

Initial Current
purchase purchase Total
$ $ $
25,000 36,771 61,771
— 2,070 2,070
25,000 38,841 63,841
10,153 11,805
45,204 21,617
369,607 386,544
65,831 56,521
490,795 476,487
(5,004) (19,953)
(32,428) (23,750)
(139,314) (129,527)
(91,160) (89,513)
(7,332) (7,038)
(161,668) (155,434)
53,889 51,272
25,000 38,841
28,889 12,431

The excess of the book value of the net assets purchased over the purchase price, otherwise known as the “negative purchase
price discrepancy”, has been allocated based on managements’ best estimates and is as follows:

Golf course lands
Depreciable capital assets
Development assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

(d)(ii) Transaction costs
Transaction costs of $2.1 million have been estimated and added to the purchase price.

(d)(@ii) Interest expense

Incremental debt of the acquisition is assumed to total $6.4 million through an existing line of credit at 6.5%.

C-21

13,715
13,905

3,700
10,000

41,320

115




TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(unaudited)
December 31, 2001

2. PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)
(d)(iv) Change in book value of investment
Change in book value of investment since the initial purchase has been included in the other assets.
(e) Income taxes
Income taxes have been adjusted to reflect the tax implications of the adjustments stated above.
(f) Amortization of depreciable capital assets

Excess of the book value of the net assets purchased over their purchase price allocated to depreciable capital assets is amortized
on a straight line basis.

(g) Minority interest
Minority interest is calculated at 49.9% of the ClubLink earnings.
(h) Future income taxes

The acquisition of the ClubLink Common Shares and Debentures and related purchase price allocation may give rise to changes in
future income tax amounts. At this time, the impact of these amounts cannot be determined and therefore, no adjustments have
been made in these unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements.

3. SHARE CAPITAL

The following weighted average TWH Shares have been used to calculate the per share information:

Weighted

Actual average

number pumber
of shares  of shares Amount

$

Basic

Balance at December 31, 2001 . ... ... ... . e e e e 45,781 46,390 60,786

TWH Shares to be issued to purchase 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares . . . .. .. .... 6,129 6,129 18,386

51,910 52,519 79,172

Diluted

Balance at December 31, 2001 . . . . ... .. L e e e 46,395

TWH Shares to be issued to purchase 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares . . ... .. .. .. 6,129

52,524
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share and
876,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

September 30, 2002
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Deloitte & Touche LLP I H
30e0%l, 300 S%L::con% Street SW De OItte
Calgary AB Canada T2P 0S7 & Tou ch e

Telephone: +1-403-267-1700
Facsimile; +1-403-264-2871

COMPILATION REPORT

To the Directors of
Tri-White Corporation:

We have reviewed, as to compilation only, the accompanying unaudited pro forma consolidated balance
sheet of Tri-White Corporation as at September 30, 2002 and unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of
earnings for the nine month period ended September 30, 2002 which have been prepared for inclusion in the
Ofier to Purchase dated November 15, 2002 by Tri-White Corporation based upon the acquisition of 4.9 million
issued and outstanding common shares and all of the 6% convertible subordinate debentures due May 15, 2008
of ClubLink Corporation. In our opinion, the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and the
unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings have been properly compiled to give effect to the
proposed transactions and assumptions described in notes thereto.

Calgary, Alberta (Signed) “Deloitte & Touche LLP”
November 15, 2002 Chartered Accountants

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu C-24
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 4.9 million ClubLink Commeon Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(unaudited)

As at September 30, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

Pro Forma Pro Forma
Tri-White ClubLink (Note 2) Adjustments Consolidated
$ $ $ $
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cashequivalents . . ..................... 7,078 5,782 (c) 5,938 728
(d) (16,000)
(d)(ii) (2,070)
Accounts receivable . ... ... ... .. ... .. ... 6,847 9,697 — 16,544
Mortgages and loans receivable . .......... ... ... .. 3,000 2,859 — 5,859
Inventories . .. ... vt it it e e 4,480 —_ —_ 4,480
Prepaid expenses and other assets. . . ............... 1,576 5,980 691 8,247
22,981 24,318 (11,441) 35,858
Portfolioinvestments. . .. . ......... ... .. ... ... ... 11,853 — — 11,853
Long-term investments .. ....................... 27,228 1,976 (d) 36,771 2,976
(d)(ii) 2,070
(d) (38,841)
(d) (26,228)
Notesreceivable . . . . ........ . .. .. _ 10,772 — 10,772
Capital assets. . .. ... ... i 84,625 394,527 (d)(i) (28,626) 450,526
Development assets . ... .............c..o..... L. — 63,457 (d)() (3,834) 59,623
Deferred financing charges . ..................... _— 3,421 — 3,421
TOtal @SSELS . . v vt i e e e e e 146,687 498,471 (70,129) 575,029
LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTEREST AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current
Bank indebtednessand loans . . ................... 3,783 3,623 (d) 2,386 9,792
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . . . ... ....... 8,290 17,836 (d)() 10,000 36,126
Long-termdebt ... ...... ... ... . ... ... ... .. — 7,593 — 7,593
Capital lease obligations .. ................... ... — 5,177 5,177
Prepaid annual dues and deposits . .. ............... — 9,919 —_ 9,919
Income and other taxes payable .. ................. 2,772 — 2,772
Current portion of provision for future site restoration . .. 156 — — 156
15,001 44,148 12,386 71,535
Longtermdebt ... ... ... .. ... . ... ... .. .. ... —_— 145,346 — 145,346
Capital lease obligations .. ...................... — 10,517 — 10,517
Other long-term Liabilities .. ..................... — 885 — 885
Deferred membership fees, net. . .................. — 8,753 — 8,753
Future income tax liabilities . . .................... 17,612 7,744 — 25,356
Provision for future site restoration . . .. ............. 318 — — 318
Total liabilities . . .. ... ... i e 32,931 217,393 12,386 262,710
Minority interest .. ......... ... ... ... ... ... .. — — 104,941 104,941
Shareholders’ equity
Convertible debentures . . .............. ... ..... — 76,714 - 76,714
Share capital .. ....... ... . ... ... . . i 61,065 180,157 (©) 5,938 79,451
(d) 18,386
(d) (186,095)
Cumulative translation adjustment .. ............... 5,085 — — 5,085
Retained earnings. . ......... ... ... ... ... 47,606 24,207 (d) (24,457) 46,128
(a) (1,478)
(a) 250
Total shareholders’ equity .. ..................... 113,756 281,078 (187,456) 207,378
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . .. ... ... ..... 146,687 498471 (70,129) 575,029
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
(unaudited)

For the nine month period ended September 30, 2002
(in thousands of dollars, except for per share amounts)

Pro Forma Pro Forma
Tri-White ClubLink (Note2) Adjustments Consolidated
$ $ 5 8
REVENUE ......... .. ... ... . i, 40,450 94,480 — 134,930
Cost of sales and operating expenses ... ............ 21,814 69,224 — 91,038
Earnings from operations before the undernoted .. ... .. 18,636 25,256 — 43,892
Amortization . . . ........ .. . o e 3,526 8,882 9] _(432) 11,976
Earnings before other expense (income) and income taxes . 15,110 16,374 432 31,916
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME)
Interestandother ........... ... ... ... ... ... 63 (1,927)  (d)(iii) 116 (1,748)
Interest expense, convertible debenture . . . ... ..... ... _ 7,676 (b) 3,906 11,582
Net loss on sale of assets and investments . . .......... 33 — — 33
Earnings of equity accounted investments . ........... (1,478) — (a) 1,478 —
{1,382) 5,749 5,500 9,867
Earnings (loss) before income taxes .. .............. 16,492 10,625 (5,068) 22,049
Provision for (recovery of) income taxes
CUITERL . . o ot o e e e 4,881 3,650  (e), (b) (1,514) 7,017
Future. .. ... ... ... 1,337 706 (e) (129) 1,914
6,218 4,356 (1,643) 8,931
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations . . . ... ... 10,274 6,269 (3,425) 13,118
Gain on purchase and cancellation of convertible
debentures (net of income taxes of $440) ... ...... .. — 1,661 —_ 1,661
Convertible debenture interest (net of tax recovery
of 81,465) ... ... .. — (2,441) (b) 2,441 —
Minority intetest . ... ... .. L o — — (&) 2,739 2,739
NET EARNINGS FORTHE PERIOD . . . ... ..... .. .. 10,274 5,489 1,755 17,518
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE (Note 3)
Basic
Continuing operations . ..................... 0.22 0.25
Netearnings . ... ..., 0.22 034
Diluted
Continuing operations .. .................... 0.22 0.25
Net Earnings 0.22 0.34
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TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
September 30, 2002

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings have been
prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. These unaudited pro forma
consolidated Statements have been prepared from information derived from the unaudited consolidated balance sheets of Tri-White
Corporation (the “Offeror”) and ClubLink Corporation (“ClubLink”) as of September 30, 2002 and the unaudited statements of
operations for the nine month period ended September 30, 2002, adjusted to reflect the assumptions described below with respect to the
acquisition by the Offeror of 4.9 million Common Shares of ClubLink, and all of the outstanding 6% convertible debentures
(“Debentures”) to increase the ownership to 50.1% of the outstanding Common Shares of ClubLink and all of the outstanding
Debentures. The acquisition has been accounted for by the purchase method.

In the opinion of the Offeror, the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement
of earnings contain all material adjustments necessary for fair presentation. The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and
the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings are not necessarily indicative of the financial position or earnings from
operations that would have occurred if the acquisition of the Common Shares and Debentures had taken place on the dates indicated or
of the earnings from operations which may be obtained in the future.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Offeror for the six month period ended December 31, 2001 and ClubLink for the year ended December 31, 2001 and
unaudited financial statements of the Offeror and ClubLink for the nine month period ended September 30, 2002.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements are those disclosed in the
Offeror’s audited consolidated financial statements for the six month period ended December 31, 2001. Management has determined
that no adjustments are necessary to conform the ClubLink audited consolidated financial statements with the accounting policies used
by the Offeror in the preparation of its financial statements,

The aggregate purchase price reflected in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements is preliminary and based on the
financial position of ClubLink at September 30, 2002. The final actual purchase price and related allocations will reflect the fair value at
the actual acquisition date of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Actual allocations may differ significantly from the preliminary
allocation included herein.

PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements give effect to the following assumptions and adjustments as if they had
occurred on September 30, 2002 in respect of the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet and on January 1, 2002 in respect of
the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of earnings.

(a) Consolidated balance sheet and statement of earnings of Tri-White

The unaudited consolidated balance sheet and statement of earnings of the Offeror as at September 30, 2002 includes equity
earnings of $1.5 million from ClubLink and dividends of $250 from ClubLink, which have been reversed.

(b) Consolidated balance sheet and statement of earnings of ClubLink

The unaudited consolidated balance sheet and statement of earnings of ClubLink as at September 30, 2002 has been re-classified to
conform with the presentation of the audited consolidated balance sheet and statements of earnings of the Offeror as at
September 30, 2002 with respect to the convertible debentures.

(¢) Outstanding stock options in ClubLink

Number of ClubLink stock options with an exercise price below $7.50 assumed to be exercised prior to the acquisition are 964,600,
for proceeds of $5.9 million.

(d) Acquisition by the Offeror of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares and all outstanding ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

The Offeror’s initial investment in ClubLink was completed on September 4, 2001. The Offeror owns 5 million Common Shares of
ClubLink with an initial cost of $25 million. The Offeror accounts for its investment in ClubLink using the equity method. The
Offeror plans to acquire an additional 4.9 million Common Shares at $7.50 per share, for the total cost of $36.8 million. It is not
possible to predict the constituent parts of the purchase price consideration. For the purposes of these unaudited pro forma
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2.

TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
Purchase of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share

and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures
NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)
September 30, 2002

PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

consolidated financial statements it has been assumed that the purchase price consideration will consist, for the Common Shares, of
$18.4 million in cash and the issuance of 6.1 million TWH Shares shares for $18.4 million and for the 6% convertible debentures of
ClubLink, will consist of the issuance of $76,714,000 aggregate principal amount of 6% convertible debentures of the Offeror. The

Offeror intends to borrow $2.4 million to finance this acquisition,

Value of Commen Shares acquired

Initial Current

Consideration purchase purchase Total
$ $ $

Value of Common Shares —acquired . . . . ... ... ... .. ... ... . . .. ... 25,000 36,771 61,771
Estimated transaction COSIS . . . . . v o ittt it e e e — 2,070 2,070
Total purchase price . . . . . . .. e 25,000 38,841 63,841
Book value of net assets acquired
Cash and cash equivalents . . . ... ...t e 10,153 11,970
Amounts receivable and otherassets . ... ... .. ... ... .. . oo 45,204 34,705
Capital @ssets . . . . . ... e e e e 369,607 394,527
Development @ssets . . . . ... e e e 65,831 63,457

490,795 504,659
Bank indebtedness and loans . . ... .. ... ... L L o (5,004) (18,720)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . ... ...... ... ... ... .. L (32,428) (29,239)
Long-termdebt. . . . ... . .. e e (139,314)  (152,939)
Convertible debentures . . . .. . ... e e e (91,160) (76,714)
Deferred membership fees, net . . . ... . ... L L L — (8,753)
Future income tax liabilities . . ... . ... ... .. ... .. .. .. . .. e (7,332) (7,744)
MiInomty INtErest . . . . . .. e e e e e (161,668)  (158,138)
Net assets acquired . . . . . .. ... .. ... .. 53,889 52,412
Less: Purchase price . . .. . .. .. o e 25,000 38,841
Negative purchase price discrepancy . .. ............. ... ... ... ... . ... 28,889 13,571

(d)(i) Purchase price differential

The excess of the book value of the net assets purchased over the purchase price, otherwise known as the “negative purchase

price discrepancy”, has been allocated based on managements’ best estimates and is as follows:

Golf course lands

Development assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

(d)(i)) Transaction costs

Transaction costs of $2.1 million have been estimated and added to the purchase price.

(d)(iii) Interest expense

Depreciable capital assets . . . . . .. ... e e

Incremental debt of the acquisition is assumed to total $2.4 million through an existing line of credit at 6.5%.
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2.

TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

Purchase of 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares at $7.50 per share
and $76,714,000 principal amount of ClubLink 6% Convertible Debentures

NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(unaudited)
September 30, 2002

PRO FORMA ASSUMPTIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)
(d)(iv) Change in book value of investment
Change in book value of investment since the initial purchase has been included in the other assets.
(e) Income taxes
Income taxes have been adjusted to reflect the tax implications of the adjustments stated above.

(f) Amortization of depreciable capital assets

Excess of the book value of the net assets purchased over the purchased price allocated to depreciable capital assets is amortized

on a straight line basis.
(g) Minority interest
Minority interest is calculated at 49.9% of the ClubLink earnings.

(h) Future income taxes

The acquisition of the ClubLink Common Shares and related purchase price allocation may give rise to changes in future income
tax amounts. At this time, the impact of these amounts cannot be determined and therefore, no adjustments have been made in

these unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The following weighted average TWH Shares have been used to calculate the per share information:

Weighted
Actual average
number  number of
of shares shares Amount
3
Basic
Balance at September 30, 2002 . . .. . ... ... e 45,890 45,880 61,065
TWH Shares to be issued to purchase 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares . . .. ...... 6,129 6,129 18,386
52,019 52,009 79,451
Diluted
Balance at September 30, 2002 . . . .. .. .. L. 46,083
TWH Shares to be issued to purchase 4.9 million ClubLink Common Shares . . ........ 6,129

52,212
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CONSENT OF BMO NESBITT BURNS INC.

We refer to the formal valuations dated November 12, 2002 (the ““Valuations”) of securities of ClubLink
Corporation (the “ClubLink Securities”) and of securities of Tri-White Corporation (“Tri-White”) that we
prepared in connection with an offer by Tri-White to purchase the ClubLink Securities (the “Offer”). The Offer
and other information are set forth in Tri-White’s offer and related take-over bid circular dated
November 15, 2002 (collectively, the “Circular™).

‘We consent to the filing of the Valuations with Canadian securities regulatory authorities where required by
applicable law. We also consent to the inclusion of the summary of the Valuations that is set forth in the Circular
under “Circular — Valuation Summary and Prior Valuations — Valuation Summary”.

(Signed) BMO NESBITT BURNS INC.

Toronto, Canada
November 15, 2002

124




Deloitte & Touche LLP l :
SSOCC,;, f3/00 Soeuccon% Street SW De OItte
Calgary AB Canada T2P 0S7 & Tou ch e

Telephone: +1-403-267-1700
Facsimile; +1-403-264-2871

November 15, 2002

To the various Securities Commissions and similar regulatory authorities in Canada
Dear Sirs/Mesdames:

RE: Tri-White Corporation (the “Offeror’)

We refer to the Offer to Purchase of the Offeror, dated November 15, 2002, all of the common shares and
6% convertible subordinate debentures due May 15, 2008 of ClubLink Corporation.

We consent to the use, in the above-mentioned Offer to Purchase, of our report dated March 19, 2002
(except Note 14 which is dated November 15, 2002) on the following financial statements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as at December 31, 2001 and June 30, 2001;
Consolidated Statements of Earnings, Retained Earnings and Cash Flows for the six months ended
December 31, 2001 and the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000, and 1999 respectively.

We report that we have read the Offer to Purchase and have no reason to believe that there are any
misrepresentations in the information contained therein that are derived from the financial statements upon
which we have reported or that are within our knowledge as a result of our audit of such financial statements.

We also consent to the use of our compilation reports dated November 15, 2002 on the unaudited
Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheets as at September 30, 2002 and December 31, 2001 and the unaudited
Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and for the year
ended December 31, 2001 based on the acquisition of 14.8 million issued and outstanding common shares and
all of the 6% convertible subordinate debentures due May 15, 2008 of ClubLink Corporation.

We also consent to the use of our compilation reports dated November 15, 2002 on the unaudited
Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheets as at September 30, 2002 and December 31, 2001 and the unaudited
Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and for the year
ended December 31, 2001 based on the acquisition of 4.9 million issued and outstanding common shares and all
of the 6% convertible subordinate debentures due May 15, 2008 of ClubLink Corporation.

This letter is provided solely for the purpose of assisting the securities regulatory authorities to which it is
addressed in discharging their responsibilities and should not be used for any other purpose. Any use that a third
party makes of this letter, or any reliance or decisions made based on it, are the responsibility of such third
parties. We accept no responsibility for loss or damages, if any, suffered by any third party as a result of decisions
made or actions taken based on this letter.

Yours very truly,

(Signed) “Deloitte & Touche LLP”
Chartered Accountants

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu D-2
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THE DEPOSITARY FOR THE OFFER IS:
COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA
By Mail
P.O. Box 7021
31 Adelaide Street East

Toronto, Ontario M5C 3H2
Attention: Corporate Actions

By Hand or by Courier

100 University Avenue
9% Floor
Toronto, Ontario M5J 2Y1
Attention: Corporate Actions

Toll Free: 1-800-564-6253
E-Mail: caregistryinfo@computershare.com

By Facsimile Transmission
Fax: (416) 981-9663

Any questions and requests for assistance may be directed by holders of Common Shares to the Depositary
at telephone number and location set out above.
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The instructions accompanying the Letter of Transmittal should be read carefully before this Letter of Transmittal
is completed. The Depositary (see the back page of this document for addresses and telephone numbers) or your
broker or other financial advisor will assist you in completing this Letter of Transmittal.

TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL
for
Common Shares of

CLUBLINK CORPORATION

This Letter of Transmittal, properly completed and duly executed, or a manually executed facsimile hereof,
together with all other required documents, must accompany certificates representing Common Shares (as
defined in the Offer to Purchase) of ClubLink Corporation (“ClubLink”) deposited pursuant to the offer to
purchase (the “Offer to Purchase”) dated November 15, 2002 made by Tri-White Corporation (the “Offeror”).
The Offer will be open for acceptance until the Expiry Time, midnight (Toronto time) on December 20, 2002
unless the Offer to Purchase is extended or withdrawn. The terms and conditions of the Offer to Purchase are
incorporated by reference in this Letter of Transmittal. Capitalized terms used, but not defined, in this Letter of
Transmittal which are defined in the Offer to Purchase shall have the same meanings herein as given to them in
the Offer to Purchase.

Please carefully read the Instructions set out below before completing this Letter of Transmittal,

TO: TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
AND TO: COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA (the “Depositary”)

The undersigned delivers to you the enclosed certificate(s) for Common Shares, as the case may be, details
of which are as follows:

(see items 1, 8 and 9 of the instructions)

Number of Common
Shares Represented by Number of Commeon
Certificate Number Name in which Registered Certificate Shares Deposited
TOTAL

(Attach list to the above form, if necessary)
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The undersigned:

(2)
(b)

©

(@

(e)

®

8

acknowledges receipt of the Offer to Purchase and accompanying Circular;

delivers to you the enclosed certificate(s) representing Common Shares, including for greater certainty
the Rights associated with the Common Shares, and, subject only to the provisions of the Offer to
Purchase regarding withdrawal, irrevocably accepts the Offer to Purchase for and in respect of the
Common Shares represented by such certificates (the “Deposited Securities™) and, on and subject to
the terms and conditions of the Offer, deposits and sells, assigns and transfers to the Offeror all right,
title and interest in and to the Deposited Securities, including, without limitation any and all dividends,
distributions, payment, securities, rights, assets or other interests declared, paid, issued, distributed,
made or transferred on or in respect of the Deposited Securities on or after the date hereof
(collectively, the “Other Securities™);

acknowledges and agrees that the execution of this Letter of Transmittal irrevocably constitutes and
appoints any officer of the Offeror, and any other person designated by the Offeror in writing, as the
true and lawful agent, attorney and attorney-in-fact and proxyholder of the holder of the Common
Shares, as the case may be, covered by this Letter of Transmittal with respect to the Deposited
Securities and with respect to the Other Securities;

acknowledges and agrees that this power of attorney is granted irrevocably upon execution of this
Letter of Transmittal and shall in all cases be effective only on and after the date that the Offeror takes
up and pays for the Deposited Securities (the “Effective Date”), with full power of substitution, in the
name of and on behalf of such holder (such power of attorney being deemed to be an irrevocable
power coupled with an interest): (a) to register or record, transfer and enter the transfer of Deposited
Securities on the appropriate register of holders maintained by ClubLink; and (b) to exercise any and
all of the rights of the holder of Deposited Securities and Other Securities, including, without
limitation, to vote, execute and deliver any and all instruments of proxy, authorizations or consents in
respect of all or any of the Deposited Securities and Other Securities, revoke any such instrument,
authorization, or consent given prior to, on or after the Effective Date, designate in any such
instruments of proxy any person or persons as the proxyholder or the proxy nominee or nominees of
such holder of Deposited Securities in respect of such Deposited Securities and Other Securities for all
purposes, including, without limitation, in connection with any meeting (whether annual, special or
otherwise and any adjournment or adjournments thereof) of holders of ClubLink, and execute, endorse
and negotiate, for and in the name of and on behalf of the registered holder of Deposited Securities
and Other Securities, any and all cheques or other instruments respecting any distribution payable to
or to the order of such holder in respect of such Deposited Securities and Other Securities;

agrees that upon the execution of this Letter of Transmittal, effective on and after the Effective Date,
not to vote any of the Deposited Securities or Other Securities at any meeting (whether annual, special
or otherwise and any adjournment or adjournments thereof) of holders of securities of ClubLink and
not to exercise any or all of the other rights or privileges attached to the Deposited Securities or Other
Securities, and agrees to execute and deliver to the Offeror any and all instruments of proxy,
authorizations or consents in respect of the Deposited Securities or Other Securities and to designate
in any such instruments of proxy the person or persons specified by the Offeror as the proxyholder or
the proxy nominee or nominees of the holder in respect of the Deposited Securities or Other
Securities;

acknowledges that upon such appointment, all prior proxies given by the holder of such Deposited
Securities or Other Securities with respect thereto shall be revoked and no subsequent proxies may be
given by such person with respect thereto;

agrees to execute, upon request, any additional documents, transfers and other assurances as may be
necessary or desirable to complete the sale, assignment and transfer of the Deposited Securities or
Other Securities and all rights of the undersigned in respect thereof, including the right to receive
accrued and unpaid interest thereon effectively to the Offeror and acknowledges that all authority
therein conferred or agreed to be conferred shall, to the extent permitted by law, survive the death or
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incapacity, bankruptcy or insolvency of the holder and all obligations of the holder therein shall be
binding upon the heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of the holder, as the case
may be;

(h) agrees that all questions as to validity, form, eligibility (including timely receipt) and acceptance of any
Common Shares depasited pursuant ta the Offer to Purchase and of any notice of withdrawal shall be
determined by the Offeror in its sole discretion and that such determination shall be final and binding
and acknowledges that there is no duty or obligation upon the Offeror, the Depositary or any other
person to give notice of any defect or irregularity in any deposit or notice of withdrawal and no liability
will be incurred by any of them for failure to give any such notice;

(i) represents and warrants that:

(i) the undersigned has full power and authority to deposit, sell, assign and transfer the Deposited
Securities and has not sold, assigned or transferred or agreed to sell, assign or transfer any of such
Deposited Securities to any other person;

(i) the undersigned or the person on whose behalf the Deposited Securities are being deposited has
good title to and is the beneficial owner of the Deposited Securities within the meaning of
applicable laws;

(iii) the deposit of such Deposited Securities complies with applicable laws; and

(iv) when such Deposited Securities are taken up and paid for by the Offeror, the Offeror will acquire
good title thereto free and clear of all liens, restrictions, charges, encumbrances, claims and rights
of others whatsoever; and

(i) directs and irrevocably authorizes the Offeror and the Depositary to (i) issue or cause to be issued a
cheque or cheques in the full amount of the Cash Option of the Offer Price (as such term is defined in
the Offer to Purchase) to which the undersigned is entitled in respect of the Common Shares pursuant
to the Offer, in the name indicated below, and to send such cheque or cheques as the case may be to
the address, or hold the same for pickup, as indicated below, (ii) issue or cause to be issued
TWH Shares in the full amount of the Share Option of the Offer Price (as such term is defined in the
Offer to Purchase) to which the undersigned is entitled in respect of the Common Shares pursuant to
the Offer, in the name indicated below, and to send such TWH Shares to the address, or hold the same
for pickup, as indicated below, and (iii) return any certificates for Deposited Securities not purchased
to the address indicated below (and if no name, address or delivery instructions are indicated to the

undersigned at the address of the undersigned as it appears on the applicable securities register of
ClubLink).

By reason of the use by the undersigned of an English language form of Letter of Transmittal, the undersigned,
the Offeror and the Depositary shall be deemed to have required that any contract evidenced by the Offer as
accepted through this Letter of Transmittal, as well as all documents related thereto, be drawn exclusively in the
English language. En raison de I'usage d’une lettre d’envoi en langue anglaise par le soussigne, le soussigne et
les destinataires sont presumes avoir requis que tout contrat atteste par l'offre et son acceptation par cette
d’envoi, de meme que tous les documents qui s’y rapportent, soient rediges exclusivement en langue anglaise.
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BLOCK A
(see items 3 and 4 of the instructions)

ISSUE CHEQUE(S) AND/OR TWH SHARE(S)
IN THE NAME OF (please print or type):

(Name)

(Street Address and Number)

(City and Province or State)

(Country and Postal or Zip Code)

(Social Insurance, Taxpayer Identification,
or Social Security No.)

[0 The name above is the name registered on the certificates
deposited herewith.

BLOCK B
(see item 4 of the instructions)

SEND CHEQUE(S) AND/OR TWH SHARE(S)
(UNLESS BOX C IS CHECKED) TO
(please print or type):

(Name)

(Street Address and Number)

(City and Province or State)

{Country and Postal or Zip Code)

O The address above is the address of the Shareholder as it
appears on the register of Shareholders of ClubLink.

BLOCK C
[0 HOLD CHEQUE(S) AND/OR TWH SHARE(S) FOR PICK UP AGAINST COUNTER RECEIPT

AT THE FOLLOWING OFFICE OF THE DEPOSITARY

BLOCK D
CASH AND/OR SHARE ELECTION

The undersigned hereby elects to have the Deposited Common Shares represented by the above certificate(s)

treated as:

0  Cash equal to $7.50 for each Common Share deposited (the “Cash Option™)

OR

3 2.5 TWH Shares for each Common Share deposited (the “Share Option’))

OR

— Common Shares deposited for cash equal to $7.50 per Common Share and
Shares deposited for TWH Shares equal to 2.5 TWH Shares per Common Share.

Common

If an election is not made or, if made, is not properly made, the undersigned will be deemed to have elected the
Share Option. The undersigned acknowledges that the consideration payable under the Offer and, accordingly, this
election, is subject to proration provisions set forth in Section 1 of the Offer.

Note: The total number of Cash Elected Shares and the TWH Share Elected Shares must be equal to the total
number of Common Shares represented by the share certificate(s) in the box above.
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BLOCK E

{7 CHECK HERE IF COMMON SHARES ARE BEING DEPOSITED PURSUANT TO A NOTICE
OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY PREVIOUSLY SENT TO THE TORONTO OFFICE OF THE
DEPOSITARY AND COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING (please print or type):

Name of Registered Holder: Date of Guaranteed Delivery:

Name of Institution which Guaranteed Delivery:

BLOCK F
SUBSTITUTE FORM W-9
To be completed by United States Shareholders only
(see item 7 of the instructions)

Taxpayer ldentification Number

(If awaiting TIN write “Applied For” and complete Certificate of Payee Awaiting Taxpayer Identification
Number below)

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a
taxpayer identification number to be issued to me), and

2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have
not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) that I am subject to backup withholding as a
result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (¢) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer
subject to backup withholding, and

3. lam a US. person (including a U.S. resident alien).

Certification Instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are
currently subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest or dividends on your tax
return. However, if after being notified by the IRS that you were subject to backup withholding you received

another notification from the IRS that you are no longer subject to backup withholding, do not cross out
item 2.

Signature Date

CERTIFICATE OF PAYEE AWAITING TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
(Must Be Completed If You Wrote “Applied For” Above)

I certify under penalties of perjury that a taxpayer identification number has not been issued to me, either
(a) I have mailed or delivered an application to receive a taxpayer identification number to the appropriate
Internal Revenue Service Center or Social Security Administration Office, or (b) I intend to mail or deliver
an application in the near future. I understand that if I do not provide a taxpayer identification number within

sixty (60) days, thirty percent (30%) of all reportable payments made to me thereafter will be withheld until I
provide a number.

Signature Date
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Signature guaranteed by:

(if required under item 4 of the instructions):

Dated: , 2002.

Authorized Signature

Signature of Shareholder or Authorized Representative
(see items 3 and 5 of the instructions)

Name of Guarantor (please print or type)

Telephone Number of Shareholder or Authorized Representative

Address of Guarantor (please print or type)

Facsimile Number of Shareholder or Authorized Representative

Telephone Number of Guarantor

Social Insurance Number
(or Taxpayer Identification Number or
Social Security Number of U.S. residents)

Name of Shareholder (please print or type)

Name of Authorized Representative,
if applicable (please print or type)
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INSTRUCTIONS
1. Use of Letter of Transmittal

(a) This Letter of Transmittal (or a manually signed facsimile thereof) properly completed and signed,
together with accompanying certificates representing the Deposited Securities and ali other documents
required by the terms of the Offer and this Letter of Transmittal must be received by the Depositary at
any of the offices of the Depositary specified on the back page of this document at or prior to the
Expiry Time, midnight (Toronto time) on December 20, 2002 unless the Offer is extended or
withdrawn.

(b) The method used to deliver this Letter of Transmittal and any accompanying certificates representing
Common Shares and all other required documents is at the option and risk of the person depositing
same, and delivery will be deemed effective only when such documents are actually received. The
Offeror recommends that the necessary documentation be hand delivered to the Depositary at any of
their offices specified on the back page of this document, and a receipt obtained, otherwise the use of
registered mail with return receipt requested, properly insured, is recommended. Shareholders whose
Common Shares are registered in the name of a broker, investment dealer, bank, trust company or other
nominee must contact their nominee holder to arrange for the deposit of those Common Shares.

2. Procedures for Guaranteed Delivery

If a Shareholder wishes to deposit Common Shares pursuant to the Offer and (i) the certificate(s)
representing such Common Shares are not immediately available, or (ii) the Shareholder cannot deliver the
certificate(s) representing such Common Shares and all other required documents to the Depositary at or prior
to the Expiry Time, such Common Shares may nevertheless be deposited pursuant to the Offer provided that all
of the following conditions are met:

(a) such a deposit is made by or through an Eligible Institution (as defined below);

(b) a properly completed and duly executed applicable Notice of Guaranteed Delivery (printed on green
paper) in the form accompanying the Letter of Transmittal or a manually signed facsimile thereof, is
received by the Depositary at its Toronto office as set forth in the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery (by
hand, courier, facsimile transmission or mail) together with a guarantee by an Eligible Institution in the
form set forth in such Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, before the Expiry Time; and

(c) the certificate(s) representing the deposited Common Shares, in proper form for transfer, together
with a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal, or a manually signed facsimile
thereof, and all other documents required by this Letter of Transmittal, are received by the Depositary
at its Toronto office as set forth in the Letter of Transmittal before 4:30 p.m. (Toronto time) on the
third trading day on the TSX after the Expiry Date.

The Notice of Guaranteed Delivery may be delivered by hand or courier, transmitted by facsimile
transmission or delivered by mail to the Depositary at its office in Toronto specified in the Notice of Guaranteed
Delivery not later than the Expiry Time and must include a guarantee to deliver by an Eligible Institution in the
form set forth in the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery. Delivery to any office or transmission other than to the
specified office or facsimile number does not constitute delivery for this purpose.

An “Eligible Institution” means a Canadian Schedule I chartered bank, a major trust company in Canada, a
member of the Securities Transfer Agent Medallion Program (STAMP), a member of the Stock Exchanges
Medallion Program (SEMP) or a member of the New York Stock Exchange Inc. Medallion Signature Program
(MSP). Members of these programs are usually members of a recognized stock exchange in Canada or the
United States, members of the Investment Dealers Association of Canada, members of the National Association
of Securities Dealers or banks and trust companies in the United States.

3. Signatures

This Letter of Transmittal must be completed and signed by the holder of Common Shares accepting the
Offer or by such holder’s duly authorized representative (in accordance with item S below).
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(a) If this Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered owner(s) of the accompanying certificate(s),
such signature(s) on this Letter of Transmittal must correspond with the name(s) as registered or as
written on the face of such certificate(s) without any change whatsoever, and the certificate(s) need not
be endorsed. If such transmitted certificate(s) are owned of record by two or more joint owners, both
or all such owners must sign the Letter of Transmittal;

(b) If this Letter of Transmittal is signed by a person other than the registered owner(s) of the
accompanying certificate(s) for Common Shares, or if a cheque is to be issued to a person other than
the registered owner(s):

(i) such deposited certificate(s) must be endorsed or be accompanied by an appropriate power(s) of
attorney duly and properly completed by the registered owner(s); and

(ii) the signature(s) on such endorsement or power(s) of attorney must correspond exactly to the
name(s) of the registered owner(s) as registered or as appearing on the certificate(s) and must be
guaranteed as noted in item 4 below.

4. Guarantee of Signatures

If this Letter of Transmittal is signed by a person other than the registered owner(s) of the Deposited
Securities or if Deposited Securities not purchased are to be returned to a person other than such registered
owner(s) or sent to an address other than the address of the registered owner(s) as shown on the registers of
ClubLink, such signature must be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution, or in some other manner satisfactory to

the Depositary, as applicable (except that no guarantee is required if the signature is that of an Eligible
Institution).

5. Fiduciaries, Representations and Authorizations

Where this Letter of Transmittal is executed by a person on behalf of an executor, administrator, trustee,
guardian, corporation, partnership or association or is executed by any other person acting in a representative
capacity, this Letter of Transmittal must be accompanied by satisfactory evidence of the authority to act. Either

of the Offeror or the Depositary, at its discretion, may require additional evidence of authority or additional
documentation.

6. Partial Tenders and Return of Securities Not Purchased

If less than the total number of Common Shares evidenced by any certificate submitted is to be deposited,
fill in the number of Common Shares to be deposited in the appropriate space on the front page of this Letter of
Transmittal. In such case, new certificate(s) for the number of Common Shares not deposited will be sent to the
registered holder as soon as practicable after the Expiry Time. The total number of Common Shares evidenced
by all certificates delivered will be deemed to have been deposited unless otherwise indicated on the front page
of this Letter of Transmittal as soon as practicable after the Expiry Time.

7. Backup U.S, Federal Income Tax Withholding and Substitute Form W-9

Under U.S. federal income tax law, payments that may be made by the Offeror on account of Common
Shares deposited pursuant to this Offer to Purchase may be subject to backup withholding at a rate of 30%. To
avoid backup withholding, a Shareholder who is a U.S. person should provide the Depository with such
Shareholder’s correct taxpayer identification number (“TIN™) (or certify that such taxpayer is awaiting a TIN)
and provide certain other information by completing the Substitute Form W-9 enclosed with this Letter of
Transmittal. Failure to complete the Substitute Form W-9 will not by itself cause the Common Shares to be
deemed invalidly tendered. If, however, the Depository is not provided with the correct TIN, the Internal
Revenue Service may subject the U.S. Shareholder or other payee to a fifty-dollar ($50) penalty. In addition,
payments that are made to a U.S. Shareholder or other payee with respect to Common Shares deposited

pursuant to the Offer to Purchase may be subject to backup withholding at the applicable rate (thirty percent
(30%) in 2002 and 2003).
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Certain Shareholders (including, among others, all corporations and certain foreign individuals) are not
subject to these backup withholding and reporting requirements.

If backup withholding applies, the Depository is required to withhold thirty percent (30%) of any payments
made to the U.S. Shareholder or other payee. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Rather, the tax
liability of persons subject to backup withholding will be reduced by the amount of tax withheld. If withholding
results in an overpayment of taxes, a refund may be obtained from the Internal Revenue Service, provided that
the appropriate information is furnished to the Internal Revenue Service.

1f the U.S. Shareholder has not been issued a TIN and has applied for a TIN or intends to apply for a TIN
in the near future and so indicates on the Substitute Form W-9, the Depository may retain thirty percent (30%)
of the payments made prior to the time a properly certified TIN is provided to the Depository. If the
Shareholder properly certifies its TIN to the Depository within sixty (60) days of the date of the Substitute
Form W-9, the Depository will remit such amount retained to the Shareholder. If, however, the Shareholder has
not properly certified its TIN to the Depository within such sixty (60) day period, the Depository will remit such
previously retained amount to the Internal Revenue Service as backup withholding.

What number to give the Depository: The Shareholder is required to give the Depository the TIN of the
registered holder of the Common Shares or of the last transferee appearing on the transfers attached to, or
endorsed on, the Common Shares, unless payment is to be made to a beneficial owner other than the registered
holder. In such case, backup withholding will apply unless such beneficial owner, rather than the registered
holder, completes the Substitute Form W-9.

8. Miscellaneous

(a) If the space on this Letter of Transmittal is insufficient to list all certificates for Deposited Securities,
additional certificate numbers and the number of Deposited Securities may be included on a separate
signed list affixed to this Letter of Transmittal.

(b) If Deposited Securities are registered in different forms of the same name (e.g. “John Doe” and
“J."Doe”), a separate Letter of Transmittal should be signed for each different registration.

(c) All depositing Shareholders waive any right to receive any notice of acceptance of Deposited Securities
for payment by execution of this Letter of Transmittal (or a facsimile thereof).

(d) The Offer and any agreement resuiting from the acceptance of the Offer will be construed in
accordance with and governed by the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada
applicable therein and the holder of the Common Shares covered by this Letter of Transmittal hereby
unconditionally and irrevocably attorns to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of
Ontario and the courts of appeal therefrom. Additional copies of the Offer to Purchase and Circular
and the Letter of Transmittal may be obtained on request and without charge from the Depositary at
any of its offices at the addresses listed on the back page of this document.

9. Lost Certificates

If a share certificate has been lost or destroyed, this Letter of Transmittal should be completed as fully as
possible and forwarded, together with a letter describing the loss, to the Depositary. The Depositary will forward
such Letter to the transfer agent so that the transfer agent may provide replacement instructions to the holder.
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THE DEPOSITARY FOR THE OFFER IS:
COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA
By Mail
P.O. Box 7021
31 Adelaide Street East

Toronte, Ontario M5C 3H2
Attention: Corporate Actions

By Hand or by Courier

TORONTO CALGARY
100 University Avenue Western Gas Tower
9% Floor Suite 600, 530 8" Avenue S.W.
Toronto, Ontario M5J 2Y1 Calgary, Alberta T2P 388

Attention: Corporate Actions
Toll Free: 1-800-564-6253
E-Mail:
caregistryinfo@computershare.com

MONTREAL VANCOUVER
1500 University Street 510 Burrard Street
Suite 700 2% Floor
Montreal, Quebec H3A 388 Vancouver, British Columbia
V6C 3B9

Any questions and requests for assistance may be directed by holders of Common Shares to
the Depositary at its offices or telephone numbers set out above.
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The instructions accompanying the Letter of Transmittal should be read carefully before this Letter of Transmittal
is completed. The Depositary (see the back page of this document for addresses and telephone numbers) or your
broker or other financial advisor will assist you in completing this Letter of Transmittal,

TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL
for
6% Convertible Unsecured Subordinate Debentures due May 15, 2008
of
CLUBLINK CORPORATION

This Letter of Transmittal, properly completed and duly executed, or a manually executed facsimile hereof,
together with all other required documents, must accompany certificates representing Debentures (as defined in
the Offer to Purchase), as the case may be, of ClubLink Corporation (“ClubLink’) deposited pursuant to the
offer to purchase (the “Offer to Purchase”) dated November 15, 2002 made by Tri-White Corporation (the
“Offeror’”). The Offer will be open for acceptance until the Expiry Time, midnight (Toronto time) on
December 20, 2002 unless the Offer to Purchase is extended or withdrawn. The terms and conditions of the Offer
to Purchase are incorporated by reference in this Letter of Transmittal. Capitalized terms used, but not defined,

in this Letter of Transmittal which are defined in the Offer to Purchase shall have the same meanings herein as
given to them in the Offer to Purchase.

Please carefully read the Instructions set out below before completing this Letter of Transmittal.

TO: TRI-WHITE CORPORATION
AND TO: COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA (the “Depositary”)

The undersigned delivers to you the enclosed certificate(s) for Debentures, details of which are as follows:

(see items 1, 8 and 9 of the instructions)

Principal Amount of
Debentures Represented Principal Amount of
Certificate Number Name in which Registered by Certificate Debentures Deposited
TOTAL

(Attach list to the above form, if necessary)
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The undersigned:

(2)
(b)

©

(@

(e)

®

(8)

(h)

acknowledges receipt of the Offer to Purchase and accompanying Circular;

delivers to you the enclosed certificate(s) representing Debentures, subject only to the provisions of the
Offer to Purchase regarding withdrawal, irrevocably accepts the Offer to Purchase for and in respect of
the principal amount of the Debentures represented by such certificates (the “Deposited Debentures’™)
and, on and subject to the terms and conditions of the Offer, deposits and sells, assigns and transfers to
the Offeror all right, title and interest in and to the Deposited Debentures, including, all rights of the
undersigned to receive accrued and unpaid interest thereon;

acknowledges and agrees that the execution of this Letter of Transmittal irrevocably constitutes and
appoints any officer of the Offeror, and any other person designated by the Offeror in writing, as the
true and lawful agent, attorney and attorney-in-fact and proxyholder of the holder of the Debentures,
covered by this Letter of Transmittal with respect to the Deposited Debentures;

acknowledges and agrees that this power of attorney is granted irrevocably upon execution of this
Letter of Transmittal and shall in all cases be effective only on and after the date that the Offeror takes
up and pays for the Deposited Debentures (the “Effective Date’), with full power of substitution, in the
name of and on behalf of such holder (such power of attorney being deemed to be an irrevocable
power coupled with an interest): (a) to register or record, transfer and enter the transfer of Deposited
Debentures on the appropriate register of holders maintained by ClubLink; and (b) to exercise any and
all of the rights of the holder of Deposited Debentures, including, without limitation, to vote, execute
and deliver any and all instruments of proxy, authorizations or consents in respect of all or any of the
Deposited Debenture, revoke any such instrument, authorization, or consent given prior to, on or after
the Effective Date, designate in any such instruments of proxy any person or persons as the
proxyholder or the proxy nominee or nominees of such holder of Deposited Debentures in respect of
such Deposited Debentures for all purposes, including, without limitation, in connection with any
meeting (whether annual, special or otherwise and any adjournment or adjournments thereof) of
holders of ClubLink, and execute, endorse and negotiate, for and in the name of and on behalf of the
registered holder of Deposited Debentures, any and all cheques or other instruments respecting any
distribution payable to or to the order of such holder in respect of such Deposited Debentures;

agrees that upon the execution of this Letter of Transmittal, effective on and after the Effective Date,
not to vote any of the Deposited Debentures at any meeting (whether annual, special or otherwise and
any adjournment or adjournments thereof) of holders of securities of ClubLink and not to exercise any
or all of the other rights or privileges attached to the Deposited Debentures, and agrees to execute and
deliver to the Offeror any and all instruments of proxy, authorizations or consents in respect of the
Deposited Debentures and to designate in any such instruments of proxy the person or persons
specified by the Offeror as the proxyholder or the proxy nominee or nominees of the holder in respect
of the Deposited Debentures;

acknowledges that upon such appointment, all prior proxies given by the holder of such Deposited
Debentures with respect thereto shall be revoked and no subsequent proxies may be given by such
person with respect thereto;

agrees to execute, upon request, any additional documents, transfers and other assurances as may be
necessary or desirable to complete the sale, assighment and transfer of the Deposited Debentures and
all rights of the undersigned in respect thereof, including the right to receive accrued and unpaid
interest thereon effectively to the Offeror and acknowledges that all authority therein conferred or
agreed to be conferred shall, to the extent permitted by law, survive the death or incapacity, bankruptcy
or insolvency of the holder and all obligations of the holder therein shall be binding upon the heirs,
personal representatives, successors and assigns of the holder, as the case may be;

agrees that all questions as to validity, form, eligibility (including timely receipt) and acceptance of any
Debentures deposited pursuant to the Offer to Purchase and of any notice of withdrawal shall be
determined by the Offeror in its sole discretion and that such determination shall be final and binding
and acknowledges that there is no duty or obligation upon the Offeror, the Depositary or any other
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(0

)

(k)

person to give notice of any defect or irregularity in any deposit or notice of withdrawal and no liability
will be incurred by any of them for failure to give any such notice;

represents and warrants that:

(i) the undersigned has full power and authority to deposit, sell, assign and transfer the Deposited
Debentures and has not sold, assigned or transferred or agreed to sell, assign or transfer any of
such Deposited Debentures to any other person;

ii) the undersigned or the person on whose behalf the Deposited Debentures are being deposited has
g dep
good title to and is the beneficial owner of the Deposited Debentures within the meaning of
applicable laws;

(iii) the deposit of such Deposited Debentures complies with applicable laws; and

(iv) when such Deposited Debentures are taken up and paid for by the Offeror, the Offeror will
acquire good title thereto free and clear of all liens, restrictions, charges, encumbrances, claims
and rights of others whatsoever;

directs and irrevocably authorizes the Offeror and the Depositary to (i) issue or cause to be issued
TWH Debentures in the full amount payable for the Offer Price (as such term is defined in the Offer
to Purchase) to which the undersigned is entitled in respect of the Debentures pursuant to the Offer, in
the name indicated below, and to send such TWH Debentures to the address, or hold the same for
pickup, as indicated below, and (ii) return any certificates for Deposited Debentures not purchased to
the address indicated below (and if no name, address or delivery instructions are indicated to the

undersigned at the address of the undersigned as it appears on the applicable securities register of
ClubLink);

in executing this letter of transmittal acknowledges and agrees that pursuant to section 12.15 of the
trust indenture dated May 12, 1998 (the “Debenture Trust Indenture”), between ClubLink and
CIBC Mellon Trust Company (the “Trustee”), such execution constitutes the undersigned’s approval of
the following resolution, which shall become effective only after the Effective Date:

WHEREAS pursuant to Section 12.15, “Instruments in Writing”, of the trust indenture dated May 12,
1998 (the “Trust Indenture”) between ClubLink and CIBC Mellon Trust Company (the “Trustee’), the
powers of the Debentureholders may be exercised by Debentureholders holding in the aggregate
66%3% of the principal amount of the outstanding Debentures by an instrument in writing signed in one
or more counterparts by Debentureholders;

BE IT RESOLVED as an Extraordinary Resolution (as that term is defined in the Trust Indenture) that
the Trustee, as Trustee for the holders of the Debentures issued and outstanding under the Trust
Indenture, be and is hereby authorized under Section 3.01(b) of the Trust Indenture, to enter into a
supplemental indenture with ClubLink providing for an amendment to the terms of the Debentures
such that notwithstanding the prohibition on the redemption of the Debentures at any time prior to
May 15, 2003 contained in Section 4.01 of the Trust Indenture, ClubLink, at its option, be permitted at
any time after the Effective Date to redeem the Debentures with the redemption price therefor to be
satisfied by the issuance of an equivalent principal amount of TWH Debentures and to execute (under
corporate seal or otherwise) and deliver a supplemental indenture carrying out the intent of the
foregoing, containing provisions amending the Trust Indenture substantially in the form set out in
Exhibit “A” hereto, with such modifications as the signatories thereto may deem necessary or advisable,
such approval to be evidenced by the execution of such supplemental indenture, and to execute (under
corporate seal or otherwise) and deliver such other documents and take such further or other actions
as shall appear to the Trustee and ClubLink to be necessary or desirable in order to carry out this
Extraordinary Resolution;

139




This Extraordinary Resolution may be signed in counterparts, each of which so signed shall be deemed
to be an original, and such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument

notwithstanding their respective day of execution, and shall be deemed to be effective as of the
Effective Date.

By reason of the use by the undersigned of an English language form of Letter of Transmittal, the
undersigned, the Offeror and the Depositary shall be deemed to have required that any contract
evidenced by the Offer as accepted through this Letter of Transmittal, as well as all documents related
thereto, be drawn exclusively in the English language. En raison de 'usage d’une lettre d’envoi en
langue anglaise par le soussigne, le soussigne et les destinataires sont presumes avoir requis que tout
contrat atteste par Yoffre et son acceptation par cette d’envoi, de meme que tous les documents qui s’y
rapportent, soient rediges exclusivement en langue anglaise.
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BLOCK A
(see items 3 and 4 of the instructions)

ISSUE TWH DEBENTUREC(S) IN THE NAME
OF (please print or type):

BLOCK B
(see item 4 of the instructions)

SEND TWH DEBENTURE(S)
(UNLESS BOX C IS CHECKED) TO
(please print or type):

(Name)

{Name)

(Street Address and Number)

(Street Address and Number)

(City and Province or State)

(City and Province or State)

(Country and Postal or Zip Code)

(Social Insurance, Taxpayer Identification,
or Social Security No.)

[0 The name above is the name registered on the certificates
deposited herewith.

(Country and Postal or Zip Code)

O The address above is the address of the Debenturcholder
as it appears on the register of Debenturcholders of
ClubLink.

BLOCK C
0 HOLD TWH DEBENTURE(S) FOR PICK UP AGAINST COUNTER RECEIPT AT THE

TORONTO OFFICE OF THE DEPOSITARY

BLOCK D

] CHECK HERE IF DEBENTURES ARE BEING DEPOSITED PURSUANT TO A NOTICE OF
GUARANTEED DELIVERY PREVIOUSLY SENT TO THE DEPOSITARY AND COMPLETE

THE FOLLOWING (please print or type)

Name of Registered Holder:

Name of Institution which Guaranteed Delivery:

Date of Guaranteed Delivery:

141




BLOCK E
SUBSTITUTE FORM W-9
To be completed by United States Debentureholders only
(see item 7 of the instructions)

Taxpayer Identification Number

(If awaiting TIN write “Applied For” and complete Certificate of Payee Awaiting Taxpayer Identification
Number below)

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a
taxpayer identification number to be issued to me), and

2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have
not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) that I am subject to backup withholding as a
result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (¢) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer
subject to backup withholding, and

3. Tam a U.S. person (including a U.S. resident alien).

Certification Instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are
currently subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest or dividends on your tax
return. However, if after being notified by the IRS that you were subject to backup withholding you received

another notification from the IRS that you are no longer subject to backup withholding, do not cross out
item 2.

Signature Date

CERTIFICATE OF PAYEE AWAITING TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
(Must Be Completed If You Wrote “Applied For” Above)

I certify under penalties of perjury that a taxpayer identification number has not been issued to me, either
(a) [ have mailed or delivered an application to receive a taxpayer identification number to the appropriate
Internal Revenue Service Center or Social Security Administration Office, or (b) I intend to mail or deliver
an application in the near future. I understand that if I do not provide a taxpayer identification number within
sixty (60) days, thirty percent (30%) of all reportable payments made to me thereafter will be withheld until I
provide a number.

Signature Date
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Signature guaranteed by:
(if required under item 4 of the instructions):

Dated: , 2002.

Authorized Signature

Signature of Debentureholder
or Authorized Representative
(see items 3 and 5 of the instructions)

Name of Guarantor (please print or type)

Telephone Number of Debentureholder or
Authorized Representative

Address of Guarantor {please print or type)

Facsimile Number of Debentureholder or
Authorized Representative

Telephone Number of Guarantor

Social Insurance Number
(or Taxpayer Identification Number or
Social Security Number of U.S. residents)

Name of Debentureholder (please print or type)

Name of Authorized Representative,
if applicable (please print or type)
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INSTRUCTIONS
1. Use of Letter of Transmittal

(a) This Letter of Transmittal (or a manually signed facsimile thereof) properly completed and signed,
together with accompanying certificates representing the Deposited Debentures and all other
documents required by the terms of the Offer and this Letter of Transmittal must be received by the
Depositary at any of the offices of the Depositary specified on the back page of this document at or

prior to the Expiry Time, midnight (Toronto time) on December 20, 2002 unless the Offer is extended
or withdrawn.

(b) The method used to deliver this Letter of Transmittal and any accompanying certificates representing
Debentures and all other required documents is at the option and risk of the person depositing same,
and delivery will be deemed effective only when such documents are actually received. The Offeror
recommends that the necessary documentation be hand delivered to the Depositary at any of their
offices specified on the back page of this document, and a receipt obtained, otherwise the use of
registered mail with return receipt requested, properly insured, is recommended. Debentureholders
whose Debentures are registered in the name of a broker, investment dealer, bank, trust company or
other nominee must contact their nominee holder to arrange for the deposit of those Debentures.

2. Procedures for Guaranteed Delivery

If a Debenturecholder wishes to deposit Debentures pursuant to the Offer and (i) the certificate(s)
representing such Debentures are not immediately available, or (i) the Debentureholder cannot deliver the
certificate(s) representing such Debentures and all other required documents to the Depositary at or prior to
the Expiry Time, such Debentures may nevertheless be deposited pursuant to the Offer provided that all of the
following conditions are met:

(a) such a deposit is made by or through an Eligible Institution (as defined below);

(b) a properly completed and duly executed applicable Notice of Guaranteed Delivery (printed on pink
paper) in the form accompanying the Letter of Transmittal or a manually signed facsimile thereof, is
received by the Depositary at its Toronto office as set forth in the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery (by
hand, courier, facsimile transmission or mail) together with a guarantee by an Eligible Institution in the
form set forth in such Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, before the Expiry Time; and

(c) the certificate(s) representing the deposited Debentures, in proper form for transfer, together with a
properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal, or a manually signed facsimile thereof,
and all other documents required by this Letter of Transmittal, are received by the Depositary at its
Toronto office as set forth in the Letter of Transmittal before 4:30 p.m. (Toronto time) on the third
trading day on the TSX after the Expiry Date.

The Notice of Guaranteed Delivery may be delivered by hand or courier, transmitted by facsimile
transmission or delivered by mail to the Depositary at its office in Toronto specified in the Notice of Guaranteed
Delivery not later than the Expiry Time and must include a gnarantee to deliver by an Eligible Institution in the
form set forth in the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery. Delivery to any office or transmission other than to the
specified office or facsimile number does not constitute delivery for this purpose.

An “Eligible Institution” means a Canadian Schedule I chartered bank, a major trust company in Canada, a
member of the Securities Transfer Agent Medallion Program (STAMP), a member of the Stock Exchanges
Medallion Program (SEMP) or a member of the New York Stock Exchange Inc. Medallion Signature Program
(MSP). Members of these programs are usually members of a recognized stock exchange in Canada or the
United States, members of the Investment Dealers Association of Canada, members of the National Association
of Securities Dealers or banks and trust companies in the United States.

3. Signatures

This Letter of Transmittal must be completed and signed by the holder of Debentures accepting the Offer
or by such holder’s duly authorized representative (in accordance with item 5 below).
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(a) If this Letter of Transmitta! is signed by the registered owner(s) of the accompanying certificate(s),
such signature(s) on this Letter of Transmittal must correspond with the name(s) as registered or as
written on the face of such certificate(s) without any change whatsoever, and the certificate(s) need not
be endorsed. If such transmitted certificate(s) are owned of record by two or more joint owners, both
or all such owners must sign the Letter of Transmittal;

(b) If this Letter of Transmittal is signed by a person other than the registered owner(s) of the
accompanying certificate(s) for Debentures, or if a cheque is to be issued to a person other than the
registered owner(s):

(i) such deposited certificate(s) must be endorsed or be accompanied by an appropriate power(s) of
attorney duly and properly completed by the registered owner(s); and

(i) the signature(s) on such endorsement or power(s) of attorney must correspond exactly to the
name(s) of the registered owner(s) as registered or as appearing on the certificate(s) and must be
guaranteed as noted in item 4 below.

4. Guarantee of Signatures

If this Letter of Transmittal is signed by a person other than the registered owner(s) of the Deposited
Debentures or if Deposited Debentures not purchased are to be returned to a person other than such registered
owner(s) or sent to an address other than the address of the registered owner(s) as shown on the registers of
ClubLink, such signature must be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution, or in some other manner satisfactory to

the Depositary, as applicable (except that no guarantee is required if the signature is that of an Eligible
Institution).

An “Eligible Institution” means a Canadian chartered bank, a major trust company in Canada, a
commercial bank or trust company having an office, branch or agency in the United States or a member of a
recognized Medallion Stamp Program.

S. Fiduciaries, Representations and Authorizations

Where this Letter of Transmittal is executed by a person on behalf of an executor, administrator, trustee,
guardian, corporation, partnership or association or is executed by any other person acting in a representative
capacity, this Letter of Transmittal must be accompanied by satisfactory evidence of the authority to act. Either
of the Offeror or the Depositary, at its discretion, may require additional evidence of authority or additional
documentation.

6. Partial Tenders and Return of Securities Not Purchased

If less than the total number of Debentures evidenced by any certificate submitted is to be deposited, fill in
the number of Debentures to be deposited in the appropriate space on the front page of this Letter of
Transmittal. In such case, new certificate(s) for the number of Debentures not deposited will be sent to the
registered holder as soon as practicable after the Expiry Time (and provided such Debentures are taken up by
the Offeror). The total number of Debentures evidenced by all certificates delivered will be deemed to have
been deposited unless otherwise indicated on the front page of this Letter of Transmittal as soon as practicable
after the Expiry Time.

7. Backup U.S. Federal Income Tax Withholding and Substitute Form W-9

Under U.S. federal income tax law, payments that may be made by Tri-White on account of Debentures
deposited pursuant to this Offer to Purchase may be subject to backup withholding at a rate of 30%. To avoid
backup withholding, a Debentureholder who is a U.S. person should provide the Depository with such
Debentureholder’s correct taxpayer identification number (“TIN”) (or certify that such taxpayer is awaiting a
TIN) and provide certain other information by completing the Substitute Form W-9 enclosed with this Letter of
Transmittal. Failure to complete the Substitute Form W-9 will not by itself cause the Debentures to be deemed
invalidly tendered. If, however, the Depository is not provided with the correct TIN, the Internal Revenue
Service may subject the U.S. Debentureholder or other payee to a fifty-dollar ($50) penalty. In addition,
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payments that are made to a U.S. Debenturcholder or other payee with respect to Debentures deposited

pursuant to the Offer to Purchase may be subject to backup withholding at the applicable rate (thirty percent
(30%) in 2002 and 2003).

Certain Debentureholders (including, among others, all corporations and certain foreign individuals) are
not subject to these backup withholding and reporting requirements.

If backup withholding applies, the Depository is required to withhold thirty percent (30%) of any payments
made to the U.S. Debentureholder or other payee. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Rather, the tax
liability of persons subject to backup withholding will be reduced by the amount of tax withheld. If withholding
results in an overpayment of taxes, a refund may be obtained from the Internal Revenue Service, provided that
the appropriate information is furnished to the Internal Revenue Service.

If the U.S. Debentureholder has not been issued a TIN and has applied for a TIN or intends to apply for a
TIN in the near future and so indicates on the Substitute Form W-9, the Depository may retain thirty percent
(30%) of the payments made prior to the time a properly certified TIN is provided to the Depository. If the
Debentureholder properly certifies its TIN to the Depository within sixty (60) days of the date of the Substitute
Form W-9, the Depository will remit such amount retained to the Debentureholder. If, however, the
Debentureholder has not properly certified its TIN to the Depository within such sixty (60) day period, the
Depository will remit such previously retained amount to the Internal Revenue Service as backup withholding.

What number to give the Depository: The Debentureholder is required to give the Depository the TIN of
the registered holder of the Debentures or of the last transferee appearing on the transfers attached to, or
endorsed on, the Debentures, unless payment is to be made to a beneficial owner other than the registered
holder. In such case, backup withholding will apply unless such beneficial owner, rather than the registered
holder, completes the Substitute Form W-9.

8. Miscellaneous

(a) If the space on this Letter of Transmittal is insufficient to list all certificates for Deposited Debentures,
additional certificate numbers and the number of Deposited Debentures may be included on a
separate signed list affixed to this Letter of Transmittal.

(b) If Deposited Debentures are registered in different forms of the same name (e.g. “John Doe” and
“J. Doe™), a separate Letter of Transmittal should be signed for each different registration.

(c) All depositing Debentureholders waive any right to receive any notice of acceptance of Deposited
Debentures for payment by execution of this Letter of Transmittal (or a facsimile thereof).

(d) The Offer and any agreement resulting from the acceptance of the Offer will be construed in
accordance with and governed by the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada
applicable therein and the holder of the Debentures covered by this Letter of Transmittal hereby
unconditionally and irrevocably attorns to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of
Ontario and the courts of appeal therefrom. Additional copies of the Offer to Purchase and Circular
and the Letter of Transmittal may be obtained on request and without charge from the Depositary at
any of its offices at the addresses listed on the back page of this document.

9. Lost Certificates

If a debenture certificate has been lost or destroyed, this Letter of Transmittal should be completed as fully
as possible and forwarded, together with a letter describing the loss, to the Depositary. The Depositary will

forward such letter to the transfer agent so that the transfer agent may provide replacement instructions to the
holder.

10
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“EXHIBIT A”

The Trust Indenture shall be amended by the addition of the following section immediately after Section 4.8

“Cancellation of Retired Debentures’:

Section 4.9 Optional Redemption of Debentures for TWH Debentures

(1)

(2)

4)

)

Notwithstanding anything else contained herein, the Corporation shall at any time have the right at its
option, in the manner hereinafter in this Section provided, to redeem prior to the Maturity Date the whole
of the outstanding principal amount of the Debentures (excluding, for greater certainty, those Debentures
held by or on behalf of Tri-White Corporation and its affiliates) upon delivery of an equivalent principal
amount of 6% Convertible Debentures of Tri-White Corporation (the “TWH Debentures”) having the
attributes described in Tri-White Corporation’s Offer to Purchase ClubLink Common Shares and
Debentures dated November 15, 2002 and provided for in the Trust Indenture dated ® | entered into
between Tri-White Corporation and Computershare Trust Company of Canada.

Notice of redemption of the Debentures pursuant to this Section shall be given to the holders of the
Debentures not less than 20 days and not more than 60 days prior to the Redemption Date, in the manner
provided in Article Fifteen. The notice shall specify the Redemption Date and shall state that interest upon
the Debentures shall cease to be payable from and after the Redemption Date and that the right, if any, to
convert the principal of the Debentures to be so redeemed will terminate and expire at 4:00 p.m. (Toronto
time) on the Business Day immediately preceding the Redemption Date.

Upon notice being given in accordance with subsection 4.9(2), from and after such Redemption Date, if the
TWH Debentures shall have been deposited as hereinafter provided with the Trustee, interest upon the
principal amounts so becoming due and payable shall cease to accrue and such Debentures shall not be
considered as outstanding hereunder.

The Corporation, in connection with the redemption of Debentures pursuant to this Section, shall deliver or
cause to be delivered to the Trustee or any paying agent pursuant to the order of the Trustee, not later than
five days prior to the Redemption Date, a certificate or certificates in the name or names of the Person or
Persons specified in the written notice referred to in Section 4.9(2) for the principal amount of TWH
Debentures deliverable to each such holder upon the redemption of the Debentures. The Corporation shall
also deposit with the Trustee an amount sufficient to pay any charges or expenses which may be incurred in
connection with such redemption. From the TWH Debentures so deposited, the Trustee shall deliver or
cause to be delivered to the holders of Debentures called for redemption, upon surrender of such
Debentures, the TWH Debentures to which they are entitled. Such redemption shall be deemed to have
been effected immediately at 4:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on the Redemption Date and, at that time, the rights
of the holder of such Debenture as such holder shall cease and the Person or Persons in whose name or
names any certificate for TWH Debentures shall be deliverable upon such redemption shall be deemed to
have become on such date the holder or holders of record of the TWH Debentures represented thereby.

The Trustee shall hold the TWH Debentures deposited by the Corporation pursuant to Section 4.9(4) in the
manner provided in Section 14.04 pending payment to the holders of Debentures called for redemption
pursuant to this Section 4.9. If the holder of any Debenture called for redemption fails to surrender any of
such Debentures on or before the Redemption Date or does not on such date accept the TWH Debentures
or fails to give such receipt therefor, if any, as the Trustee may require, such TWH Debentures shall be set
aside in trust for such holder and such setting aside shall for all purposes be deemed to be the delivery to
such Debentureholder of the TWH Debentures so set aside and each such Debenture shall thereafter not
be considered as outstanding hereunder and the Debentureholder shall have no right except to receive the
TWH Debentures, upon presentment and surrender of such Debentures in accordance herewith.

11
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THE DEPOSITARY FOR THE OFFER 1S:
COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA
By Mail
P.O. Box 7021
31 Adelaide Street East

Toronto, Ontario M5C 3H2
Attention: Corporate Actions

By Hand or by Courier

TORONTO CALGARY
100 University Avenue Western Gas Tower
9 Floor Suite 600, 530 8" Avenue S.W.
Toronto, ON MSJ 2Y1 Calgary, Alberta T2P 3S8

Attention: Corporate Actions
Toll Free: 1-800-564-6253
E-Mail:
caregistryinfo@computershare.com

MONTREAL VANCOUVER
1500 University Street 510 Burrard Street
Suite 700 2™ Floor
Montreal, Quebec H3A 3S8 Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B9

Any questions and requests for assistance may be directed by holders of Debentures to
the Depositary at its offices or telephone numbers set out above.
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The Depositary or your broker or other financial advisor will assist you in completing this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.
THIS IS NOT A LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY
for deposit of Common Shares of
CLUBLINK CORPORATION

This Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, or a manually signed facsimile hereof, may be used to accept the offer to purchase
(the “Offer to Purchase”) dated November 15, 2002 made by Tri-White Corporation (the “Offeror”) if (i) certificates
representing the Common Shares are not immediately available, or (ii) the Shareholder cannot deliver the certificates
representing such Common Shares and all other required documents to the Depositary at or prior to the Expiry Time under
the Offer. The Offer will be open for acceptance until the Expiry Time, midnight (Toronto time) on December 20, 2002
unless the Offer is extended or withdrawn.

The terms and conditions of the Offer to Purchase are incorporated by reference in this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.
Capitalized terms used, but not defined, in this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery which are defined in the Offer to Purchase
shall have the same meanings herein as given to them in the Offer to Purchase.

To: the Depositary, COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA

By Mail By Hand or Courier By Facsimile Transmission
P.O. Box 7021 100 University Avenue Fax: (416) 981-9663
31 Adelaide Street East 9* Floor
Toronto, ON Toronto, ON M3J 2Y1
M5C 3H2 Toll Free: 1-800-564-6253

In order to utilize the procedures contemplated by this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, the following conditions must be
met:

(a) The deposit must be made at the office of the Depositary in Toronto through an Eligible Institution;

(b) A properly completed and duly executed copy of this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery or a manually signed facsimile
hereof must be received by the Depositary at its Toronto office set forth above (by hand, facsimile transmission or
mail) together with a guarantee to deliver by an Eligible Institution in the form set forth below not later than the
Expiry Time; and

(c) The certificates representing deposited Common Shares in proper form for transfer, together with a properly
completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal, or a manually signed facsimile thereof relating to such Common
Shares and all other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal must be received by the Depositary at the
Toronto Office at or before 4:30 p.m. (Toronto time) on the third trading day on the Toronto Stock Exchange after
the Expiry Date.

Delivery of this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery to an address, or transmission of this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery via a
facsimile number, other than as set forth above, does not constitute a valid delivery.

This Notice of Guaranteed Delivery is not to be used to guarantee signatures. If a signature on the Letter of Transmittal

is required to be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution, such signature must appear in the applicable space in the Letter of
Transmittal.

TO: TRI-WHITE CORPORATION, OFFEROR
-and-
TO: COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA, DEPOSITARY

The undersigned hereby deposits with the Offeror, on and subject to the terms and conditions of the Offer and the
Letter of Transmittal, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Common Shares listed below, pursuant to the guaranteed
delivery procedures set forth in Section 3 of the Offer, “Manner and Time of Acceptance — Procedure for Guaranteed
Delivery”.

Name(s) and address(es) of
Shareholder(s) (please print) Certificate Number(s) (if available) Number of Common Shares

TOTAL SHARES
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CASH AND/OR SHARE ELECTION

The undersigned hereby elects to have the Deposited Common Shares represented by the above certificate(s)
treated as:

O Cash equal to $7.50 for each Common Share deposited (the “Cash Option”)
OR

O 2.5 TWH Shares for each Common Share deposited (the “Share Option™)
OR

O Common Shares deposited for cash equal to $7.50 per Common
Share and Common Shares deposited for TWH Shares equal to

2.5 TWH Shares per Common Share.

If an election is not made or, if made, is not properly made, the undersigned will be deemed to have elected the
Share Option. The undersigned acknowledges that the consideration payable under the Offer and, accordingly, this
election, is subject to proration provisions set forth in Section 1 of the Offer.

Note: The total number of Cash Elected Shares and the TWH Share Elected Shares must be equal to the total
number of Common Shares represented by the share certificate(s) in the box above.

DO NOT SEND CERTIFICATES FOR COMMON SHARES WITH THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY.
CERTIFICATES FOR THE COMMON SHARES MUST BE SENT WITH YOUR LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL.

Name of Shareholder Signature
Address Telephone number C )
Dated:

The Offer is not being made to, nor will deposits be accepted from or on behalf of, holders of the Common Shares in
any jurisdiction in which the making or acceptance thereof would not be in compliance with the laws of such jurisdiction.
However, the Offeror or its agents may, in their sole discretion, take such action as they deem necessary to extend the Offer
to holders of the Common Shares in any such jurisdiction.

This Notice of Guaranteed Delivery may be delivered by hand, or transmitted by facsimile transmission or mail to the
Depositary at its office in Toronto, must be received by the Depositary not later than the Expiry Time and must include a
guarantee to deliver by an Eligible Institution in the form set out herein. Certificates representing Common Shares in respect
of which a Notice of Guaranteed Delivery has been deposited must be delivered to the Toronto Office of the Depositary.

GUARANTEE

The undersigned, a Canadian chartered bank, a major trust company in Canada, a commercial bank or trust company
having an office, branch or agency in the United States or a member of a recognized Medallion Stamp Program guarantees
the delivery, to the office of the Depositary in Toronto set forth above, of the certificates representing the Common Shares
tendered hereby, in proper form for transfer, with delivery of a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal
or a manually signed facsimile thereof and all other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal, all at or before
4:30 p.m. (Toronto time) on the third trading day on the Toronto Stock Exchange after the Expiry Date.

Name of Firm Authorized Signature
Address of Firm Name
Title
Telephone Number C ) Dated:
2
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The Depositary or your broker or other financial advisor will assist you in completing this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.

THIS 1S NOT 4 LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL
TRI-WHITE CORPORATION

NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY
for deposit of
6% Convertible Unsecured Subordinate Debentures due May 15, 2008
of
CLUBLINK CORPORATION

This Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, or a manually signed facsimile hereof, may be used to accept the offer to purchase
(the “Offer to Purchase”) dated November 15, 2002 made by Tri-White Corporation (the “Offeror™) if (i) certificates
representing the Debentures are not immediately available, or (ii) the Debentureholder cannot deliver the certificates
representing such Debentures and all other required documents to the Depositary at or prior to the Expiry Time under the
Offer. The Offer will be open for acceptance until the Expiry Time, midnight (Toronto time) on December 20, 2002 unless
the Offer is extended or withdrawn.

The terms and conditions of the Offer to Purchase are incorporated by reference in this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.
Capitalized terms used, but not defined, in this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery which are defined in the Offer to Purchase
shall have the same meanings herein as given to them in the Offer to Purchase.

To: the Depositary, COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA

By Mail By Hand or Courier By Facsimile Transmission
P.O. Box 7021 100 University Avenue Fax: (416) 981-9663
31 Adelaide Street East 9 Floor
Toronto, ON Toronto, ON MS5J 2Y1
M5C 3H2 Toll Free: 1-800-564-6253

In order to utilize the procedures contemplated by this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, the following conditions must be
met:

(a) The deposit must be made at the office of the Depositary in Toronto through an Eligible Institution;

(b) A properly completed and duly executed copy of this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery or a manually signed facsimile
hereof must be received by the Depositary at its Toronto office set forth above (by hand, facsimile transmission or
mail) together with a guarantee to deliver by an Eligible Institution in the form set forth below not later than the
Expiry Time; and

(c) The certificates representing deposited Debentures in proper form for transfer, together with a properly completed
and duly executed Letter of Transmittal, or a manually signed facsimile thereof relating to such Debentures and all
other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal must be received by the Depositary at the Toronto Office at
or before 4:30 p.m. (Toronto time) on the third trading day on the Toronto Stock Exchange after the Expiry Date.

Delivery of this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery to an address, or transmission of this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery via a
facsimile number, other than as set forth above, does not constitute a valid delivery.

This Notice of Guaranteed Delivery is not to be used to guarantee signatures. If a signature on the Letter of Transmittal
is required to be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution, such signature must appcar in the applicable space in the Letter of
Transmittal.

TO: TRI-WHITE CORPORATION, OFFEROR
-and-
TO: COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA, DEPOSITARY
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The undersigned hereby deposits with the Offeror, on and subject to the terms and conditions of the Offer and the
Letter of Transmittal, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Debentures listed below, pursuant to the guaranteed

delivery procedures set forth in Section 3 of the Offer, “Manner and Time of Acceptance — Procedure for Guaranteed
Delivery”.

Name(s) and address(es) of
Debentureholder(s)
(please print) . Certificate Number(s) (if available) Principal Amount of Debentures

TOTAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF DEBENTURES

Name of Debentureholder Signature
Address Telephone Number )
Dated:

DO NOT SEND CERTIFICATES FOR DEBENTURES WITH THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY.
CERTIFICATES FOR THE DEBENTURES MUST BE SENT WITH YOUR LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL.

The Offer is not being made to, nor will deposits be accepted from or on behalf of, holders of the Debentures in any
jurisdiction in which the making or acceptance thereof would not be in compliance with the laws of such jurisdiction.
However, the Offeror or its agents may, in their sole discretion, take such action as they deem necessary to extend the Offer
to holders of the Debentures in any such jurisdiction.

This Notice of Guaranteed Delivery may be delivered by hand, or transmitted by facsimile transmission or mail to the
Depositary at its office in Toronto, must be received by the Depositary not later than the Expiry Time and must include a
guarantee to deliver by an Eligible Institution in the form set out herein. Certificates representing Debentures in respect of
which a Notice of Guaranteed Delivery has been deposited must be delivered to the Toronto Office of the Depositary.

GUARANTEE

The undersigned, a Canadian chartered bank, a major trust company in Canada, a commercial bank or trust company
having an office, branch or agency in the United States or a member of a recognized Medallion Stamp Program guarantees
the delivery, to the office of the Depositary in Toronto set forth above, of the certificates representing the Debentures
tendered hereby, in proper form for transfer, with delivery of a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal
or a manually signed facsimile thereof and all other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal, all at or before
4:30 p.m. (Toronto time) on the third trading day on the Toronto Stock Exchange after the Expiry Date.

Name of Firm Authorized Signature
Address of Firm Name
Title
Telephone Number C ) Dated:
2
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PARTII

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED TO BE SENT TO SECURITY HOLDERS

Exhibit “A”: Valuation report prepared by BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc. dated November 12, 2002.

Doc#: NYS: 817585.1 ITI-1

Error! Unknown document property name. 1 53




PART 11

CONSENT TO SERVICE OF PROCESS

A written irrevocable consent and power of attorney on Form F-X was filed by Tri-
White Corporation concurrently with this Form CB.

Doc#: NY5: 817585.1 Iv-1

Error! Unknown document property name. 1 54
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PART IV

After the inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth in this
statement is true, complete and correct.

Dated: November ’_Z, 2002

Name: Eugene Hretsay
Title: Secretary

Dock: NY§: 817585.1

Erad Unknrown docwment property same,

%k TATA PARF.A1 k195




EXHIBITS

Exhibit “A”: Valuation report of BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc. dated November 12, 2002.

Doc#: NY5: 817585.1
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Strictly Private and Confidential

November 12, 2002

The Special Committee of the Board of Directors
ClubLink Corporation

15675 Dufferin Street

King City, Ontario

L7B 1K5

Dear Sirs:

BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc. (“BMO NB”) understands that Tri-White Corporation (the
“Offeror” or “Tri-White”) has announced that it intends to make an unsolicited offer (the
“Transaction”) to purchase all of the outstanding common shares (the “Common Shares™)
of ClubLink Corporation (the “Company” or “ClubLink”) not already owned by it and to
purchase all of the Company’s 6% Convertible Debentures due in May 2008 (the
“Debentures”) not already owned by it. Under the terms of the offer for the Common
Shares, each shareholder will be entitled to elect to receive (1) $7.50 cash, (ii) 2.5 Tri-White
common shares or (iii) any combination thereof for each Common Share purchased by Tri-
White under the offer, subject in each case to a maximum aggregate cash payment of $55.5
million and a maximum issuance of 18,457,626 Tri-White common shares. Under the terms
of the offer for the Debentures, holders will be entitled to receive an equivalent principal
amount of Tri-White convertible debentures (the “Tri-White Debentures”). The Tri-White
Debentures will bear interest at 6% per annum, will mature in May 2008 and will be
convertible into Tri-White common shares at a conversion price of $8.00 per Tri-White
common share. The terms of the Transaction are more fully described in the offer and
related offering circular of Tri-White (collectively, the “Circular”).

BMO NB further understands that the Board of Directors of the Company has formed a
special committee (the “Special Committee”) to review the Transaction and to make
recommendations to the Board of Directors with respect to the Transaction.
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BMO NB understands that Tri-White beneficially owns approximately 26.6% of the
outstanding Common Shares and that the Transaction is an “insider bid” as such term 1is
defined in Rule 61-501 of the Ontario Securities Commission (“Rule 61-501”) and in similar
rules or policies of other Canadian securities regulators (collectively, the “Rules”).

Engagement of BMO NB

The Special Committee has retained BMO NB to prepare and deliver to the Special Committee
formal valuations of the Common Shares, the Debentures, the Tri-White common shares and
the Tri-White Debentures (the “Valuations”) in accordance with the requirements of the Rules.

The Special Committee first contacted BMO NB on or about September 12, 2002 concerning
the possible engagement of BMO NB in connection with the Transaction. BMO NB was

formally retained by ClubLink to prepare the Valuations under a letter agreement dated
October 1, 2002 (the “Engagement Agreement™).

The terms of the Engagement Agreement provide that BMO NB is to be paid a fee of $500,000
for the preparation and delivery of the Valuations. In addition, BMO NB is to be reimbursed
for its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and to be indemnified by ClubLink under certain
circumstances. In accordance with the Rules, such fees and expenses will be paid by Tri-White.

No part of BMO NB’s fee is contingent upon the conclusions reached in the Valuations or on
the success of the Transaction.

Credentials of BMO NB

BMO NB is one of Canada’s largest investment banking firms, with operations in all facets of
corporate and government finance, mergers and acquisitions, equity and fixed income sales and
trading, investment research and investment management. BMO NB has been a financial
advisor in a significant number of transactions throughout North America involving public

companies in various industry sectors and has extensive experience in preparing fairness
opinions and valuations.

The Valuations expressed herein represent the opinion of BMO NB and the form and content
hereof have been approved by a group of BMO NB’s directors and officers, who are collectively
experienced in mergers and acquisitions, divestitures, restructurings and valuation matters.

Independence of BMO NB

BMO NB acts a trader and dealer, both as principal and agent, in major financial markets and,
as such, may have had and may in the future have positions in the securities of ClubLink, Tri-
White or their respective associates or affiliates and, from time to time, may have executed or
may execute transactions on behalf of such companies or clients for which it received or may
receive compensation. As an investment dealer, BMO NB conducts research on securities and
may, in the ordinary course of its business, provide research reports and investment advice to
its clients on investment matters, including with respect to ClubLink, Tri-White or their
respective associates or affiliates or the Transaction.
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In addition, in the ordinary course of its business, BMO NB or its controlling shareholder,
Bank of Montreal (the “Bank”), may have extended or may extend loans, or may have provided
or may provide other financial services, to the Offeror or its associates or affiliates. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Bank through one of its affiliates has extended a
$37 million credit facility to an entity associated with the Offeror’s controlling shareholder and
the Bank has extended a $15 million credit facility to another such entity and, within the past
year, BMO NB has acted as a co-manager in two offerings of debt securities by one such entity,
in each case in the ordinary course of the Bank’s and BMO NB’s respective businesses.

Neither BMO NB, the Bank nor any of their affiliated entities (as such term is defined for
purposes of Rule 61-501):

(a) is an insider, associate (as such terms are defined for purposes of Rule 61-501) or
affiliated entity of ClubLink or Tri-White or their respective affiliated entities;

(b) is an advisor to Tri-White in connection with the Transaction;

(c) is a manager or co-manager of a soliciting dealer group formed in respect of the
Transaction (or a member of such a group performing services beyond the customary
soliciting dealer’s functions or receiving more than the per security or per securityholder
fees payable to the other members of the group); or

(d) has a material financial interest in the completion of the Transaction.

BMO NB is of the view that it is “independent” of all interested parties in the Transaction for
the purposes of the Rules.

Scope of Review

In connection with the Valuations, BMO NB has reviewed, considered, and relied upon, among
other things, the following:

ClubLink

o annual reports for the two years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001;

o audited financial statements, including the notes thereto, for each of the three years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000;

e unaudited interim financial statements, including the notes thereto, for the quarters
ended September 29, June 30 and March 31, 2002;

e management information circulars dated May 3, 2001 and April 30, 2002;

o annual information forms dated May 18, 2001 and May 17, 2002;

o a supplemental information memorandum dated October 2002 prepared by RBC
Capital Markets, a financial advisor to the Special Committee, containing, among other
information, 10- year financial projections;

» unaudited property-by-property projections, dated October 2002 and including
underlying operating and financial assumptions prepared by management for each of the
years ending December 31, 2002 through December 31, 2012;
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internal financial information prepared by management for the 39-week period ended
September 29, 2002, the 34-week period ended August 25, 2002 and the 52-week period
ended December 31, 2001;

business plans for development sites and capital expenditures, dated August 6, 2002;
independent appraisals of certain golf operating properties prepared by Horwath
Horizon Consultants within the past three years;

discussions with third party consultants regarding ClubLink’s income producing
properties, properties under development and non-core assets;

consulting and industry studies relating to ClubLink and the golf industry;
documentation pertaining to the income tax reassessment of ClubLink by Canada
Customs and Revenue Agency for the four years ended December 31, 1997;
environmental audits conducted on certain of ClubLink’s properties;

material contracts and property management agreements;

a trust indenture dated May 12, 1998 and a prospectus dated April 30, 1998 relating to
the Debentures;

discussions with senior management;

discussions with the Special Committee and its financial and legal advisors;

public information relating to the business, operations, financial performance and stock
trading history of ClubLink and other selected public companies considered relevant;
public information with respect to certain other transactions comparable to the
Transaction;

representations contained in a certificate addressed to us, dated as of the date hereof,
from senior officers of ClubLink as to the completeness and accuracy of the
information upon which the Valuations are based; and

such other corporate, industry, and financial market information, investigations and
analyses as BMO NB considered necessary or appropriate in the circumstances.

Tri-White

annual reports for the fiscal periods ended June 30, 2001, June 30, 2002 and December
31, 2001;

audited financial statements, including the notes thereto, for each of the two fiscal years
ended June 30, 2000 and 2001 and the six months ended December 31, 2001;

unaudited interim financial statements, including the notes thereto, and related
management reports for the nine months ended September 30, 2002, six months ended
June 30, 2002 and three months ended March 31, 2002;

management information circular dated April 10, 2002;

annual information form dated April 10, 2002;

a draft of the Circular to be dated November 15, 2002;

an information package provided by Tri-White concerning the White Pass & Yukon
Route railway and related operations (collectively, the “Railway Operations™) carried on
by subsidiaries of Tri-White, dated September 2002;

the 2002 budget for the Railway Operations, dated January 2002;

certain internal financial information and other data relating to the business and
financial prospects of Tri-White, including estimates and financial projections for each
of the years ending December 31, 2002 through December 31, 2007 prepared by the
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management of Tri-White in October 2002, that was provided to BMO NB
confidentially for its use solely in connection with the preparation of the Valuations;

¢ management’s presentation to the Board of Directors of Tri-White regarding the
Transaction dated September 2002;

o discussions with Tri-White’s senior management and advisors regarding the Transaction
including, but not limited to, source of financing and management’s strategic plan for
ClubLink;

¢ representations contained in a certificate addressed to us, dated as of the date hereof,
from senior officers of Tri-White as to the completeness and accuracy of the
information upon which the Valuations are based; and

e such other corporate, industry and financial market information, investigations and
analyses as BMO NB considered necessary or appropriate in the circumstances.

BMO NB has not, to the best of its knowledge, been denied access by ClubLink or Tri-White
to any information requested by BMO NB.

Assumptions and Limitations

In accordance with the Engagement Agreement, BMO NB has relied upon, and has assumed
the completeness, accuracy and fair presentation of, all financial and other information, data,
advice, opinions and representations obtained by it from public sources or provided by
ClubLink or Tri-White and their respective officers, associates, affiliates, consultants, advisors
and representatives (collectively, the “Information”). The Valuations are conditional upon
such completeness, accuracy and fair presentation of such Information. In accordance with the
Engagement Agreement but subject to the exercise of its professional judgment, BMO NB has

not attempted to verify independently the completeness, accuracy or fair presentation of the
Information.

BMO NB has assumed that the forecasts, projections and budgets of ClubLink and Tri-White
provided to us and used in our analyses have been reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the
best currently available estimates and judgements of the managements of ClubLink and Tri-
White and their respective associates and affiliates as to matters covered thereby and, in
rendering our Valuations, we express no view as to the reasonableness of such forecasts,
projections and budgets or the assumptions on which they are based.

Senior management of ClubLink and Tri-White have represented to BMO NB in a ceruificate
delivered by each of them dated as at the date hereof (each a “Certificate”) that, among other
things: (1) the Information provided by or on behalf of ClubLink or Tri-White (including their
respective associates or affiliates) to BMO NB relating to ClubLink or Tri-White, their
respective associates or affiliates or to the Transaction, for the purposes of preparing the
Valuations was, at the date the Information was provided to BMO NB, fairly and reasonably
presented and complete, true and correct in all material respects, and did not, and does not,
contain any untrue statement of a material fact in respect of ClubLink and Tri-White or any of
their respective associates or affiliates or the Transaction necessary to make the Information
not misleading; (ii) since the dates on which the Information was provided to BMO NB, except
as disclosed in writing to BMO NB, there has been no material change, financial or otherwise,
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in the financial condition, assets, liabilities (contingent or otherwise), business, operations or

prospects of ClubLink or Tri-White or any of their respective associates or affiliates and no
material change has occurred in the Information or any part thereof which would have, or
which could reasonably be expected to have, a material effect on the Valuations; (ii1) there has
been no change in any material fact which is of a nature as to render the Information untrue or
misleading in any material respect; and (iv) neither ClubLink nor Tri-White has, or is aware of,
any prior valuations (as defined in the Rules) of ClubLink or Tri-White or their respective
associates or affiliates, material assets or securities prepared in the past 24 months.

The Valuations are rendered on the basis of securities markets, economic, financial and general
business conditions prevailing as at the date hereof and the condition and prospects, financial
and otherwise, of ClubLink, Tri-White and their respective associates and affiliates, as they
were reflected in the Information reviewed by BMO NB. In its analyses and in preparing the
Valuations, BMO NB made numerous judgements with respect to industry performance,
general business, market and economic conditions and other matters, many of which are
beyond its control or that of any party involved in the Transaction.

The Valuations are provided as of the date hereof and BMO NB disclaims any undertaking or
obligation to advise any person of any change in any fact or matter affecting the Valuations of
which it may become aware after the date hereof. Without limiting the foregoing, in the event
that there is any material change in any fact or matter affecting the Valuations after the date
hereof, BMO NB reserves the right to change, modify or withdraw the Valuations.

The Valuations have been prepared and provided for the use of the Special Committee and the
Board of Directors of ClubLink and for inclusion in the Circular, and may not be used or relied
upon by any other person without our express prior written consent. Subject to the terms of
the Engagement Agreement, BMO NB consents to the publication of the Valuations in their
entirety and a summary thereof (in a form acceptable to us) in the Circular and/or in the
directors’ circular of ClubLink relating to the Transaction and to the filing thereof, as
necessary, by ClubLink and/or Tri-White with the securities commissions or similar regulatory
authorities in Canada. We express no opinion herein concerning the future trading prices of
the securities of ClubLink following the completion of the Transaction or as to the fairness of
the Transaction to the holders of Common Shares or Debentures, and make no
recommendation to securityholders of ClubLink with respect to the Transaction.

BMO NB has based its Valuations upon a variety of factors. Accordingly, BMO NB believes
that its analyses must be considered as a whole. Selecting portions of its analyses or the factors
considered by BMO NB, without considering all factors and analyses together, could create a
misleading view of the process underlying the Valuations. The preparation of a valuation is a
complex process and is not necessarily susceptible to partial analysis or summary description.
Any attempt to do so could lead to undue emphasis on any particular factor or analysis.

Overview of ClubLink

ClubLink 1s an owner, operator and developer of high quality properties (“Properties”)
consisting of private golf courses (“Member Golf Clubs”), daily fee golf courses (“Daily Fee
Golf Clubs™) and resorts that feature golf as their key amenity (“Resorts”). Its Common
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Shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX”) under the symbol “LNK”. The
Company is based in King City, Ontario and, since its inception in 1993, has grown to become
Canada’s largest owner and operator of golf courses. ClubLink’s current portfolio consists of
32 18-hole equivalent golf courses at 25 different locations in Ontario and Quebec, 3.5 18-hole

equivalent golf courses that are currently under construction in Ontario and Quebec, and four
Resorts located in Ontario.

ClubLink’s historical results are summarized in the following table:

Six Months Ended

Year Ended December 31, June 30,

1999 2000 2001 2001 2002

Number of 18-hole equivalent courses'™.............coviriereeieiiiirecreee e 23.0 27.0 29.0 - -

Total aCtiVe MEMDEIS. ... vt iiiiiiiier e e er e e ree e vt e e v annes 3,575 5.334 7,482 - -

Rounds played (0005).........cociiveriimemmimiiirinisr i s saaeeees 572 691 768 - -
REVETIUES (MIllOMS) s v vvvsasas e sesrasrsraeesssnresnsans sasssnsesnsssssssnsensseeersennenmerteeernes $92.3 $105.7 $118.3 $44.3 $47.7
EBITDA® (MIlIons)..eurvcvvsierinrseeinnmereressinmsssssssrssnersssssasessssasssssssasasesesns $21.7 $25.4 $36.7 $11.1 $12.2
EBITDA MGETQiN....uueeessssiiirmmmiereinieinesniist s srssn s eenssessasssnnsasennens 23.5% 24.0% 31.0% 25.0% 25.6%
Capital expenditures (MIllions)..... ... iecrrirriesreesermeeanesieresmniemirsmimmemn. $101.0 $65.2 $40.2 $27.5 $24.5
Proceeds from real estate sales (Millions)........cveeieevierimiiinenrreeniesinenniniianne - $5.4 $16.4 $8.5 $7.2

1. Does not include academy courses.
2. EBITDA refers to earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization.

Overview of Tri-White

Tri-White has two principal lines of business, being the Railway Operations and its merchant
banking activities. Tri-White’s principal asset is the Railway Operations, a tourist railway with
related services in Alaska, British Columbia and the Yukon Territory. The century old railway
right-of-way stretches 110 miles from Skagway, Alaska to Whitehorse in the Yukon Territory.
The primary source of passengers for the Railway Operations is tourist cruise ships that dock
for day tours at Skagway, and principal revenue sources include passenger revenue from rail
operations, docking fees from cruise ships, and gift shop and souvenir sales. The Railway
Operations are open from May to November and consequently revenues are seasonal. Tri-
White’s other assets include 5 million Common Shares of ClubLink, and portfolio investments

in other publicly traded securities. Tri-White’s common shares are listed on the TSX under the
symbol “TWH?”.

Tri-White’s historical results are summarized below:

Fiscal Year Ended Nine Months Ended
June 30, Dec 31, September 30,
2000 2001 2001 2001 2002
Passenger capacity (000s)... w“ 280 310 330 - -
Rail passengers (000s)'"..... 274 303 319 - -
Capacity UtHliIZRUON.....cvvvveririiireciiiiriiiiiicie s 98% 98% 97%
Revenues (Millions) $32.3 $37.4 $40.0 $39.8 $40.5
EBITDA {Millions)... $14.7 $15.5 $17.1 $17.4 $18.6
EBITDA MArgiM.......cccoovimviuiiiirennirieienitiisite e e savss s aasne s essrssses s 45,4% 41.4% 42.9% 43.6% 46.1%
Capital expenditures (MIlons)... ..o aaaereessearrecerenraneescessarnsersrseeeeeerianssses $15.2 $5.0 $5.5 $4.5 $3.4
1. Represents the total number of rail passengers for each of the 1999, 2000 and 2001 seasons.
7
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VALUATIONS
APPROACH TO VALUE

The Valuations are based upon techniques and assumptions that BMO NB considers
appropriate in the circumstances for the purposes of arriving at an opinion as to the range of

fair market values of the Common Shares, the Tri-White common shares, the Debentures and
the Tri-White Debentures.

The Valuations have been prepared in accordance with the Disclosure Standards for Formal
Valuations and Fairness Opinions of the Investment Dealers Association of Canada (the
“IDA”), but the IDA has not been involved in the preparation or review of the Valuations.

DEFINITION OF FAIR MIARKET VALUE

For purposes of the Valuations, fair market value means the highest price, expressed in terms of
money or money’s worth, available in an open and unrestricted market between informed and
prudent parties, each acting at arm’s length, where neither party is under any compulsion to act.

VALUATION OF CLUBLINK COMMON SHARES

Valuation Method

In accordance with the Rules, BMO NB made no downward adjustment to the fair market
value of the Common Shares to reflect the liquidity of the Common Shares, the effect of the
Transaction on the Common Shares or the fact that the Common Shares held by individual

shareholders do not form part of a controlling interest. A valuation prepared on the foregoing
basis is referred to as an “en bloc” valuation.

The principal valuation method BMO NB used in valuing the Common Shares is the after-tax
net asset value (“NAV”) method. BMO NB also performed a precedent transactions analysis
and reviewed transactions involving golf course owner/operators; however, BMO NB
determined that the universe of such transactions is limited and concluded that none was
sufficiently comparable to ClubLink to be useful. BMO NB also performed an analysis of
other public companies in the golf, entertainment, resort, destination and lodging industries to
determine whether a public market trading analysis might imply a fair market value of the
Common Shares that exceeded the value determined by the NAV analysis. BMO NB
determined that the public market trading analysis implied values that were generally below
those implied by the NAV analysis. In light of the foregoing and the fact that public company
trading values generally reflect a “minority discount” from en bloc values, BMO NB did not
rely on its analysis of other public companies in valuing the Common Shares.

Net Asset Value Analysis

The NAV approach involves ascribing a separate value for each asset and liability of ClubLink,
utilizing an appropriate valuation method in each case, and subtracting the sum of the total
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liabilities from the sum of the total assets to determine ClubLink’s NAV. The key components
of ClubLink’s NAV are as follows:

- income producing properties

- properties under development

- non-core assets

- non-convertible debt and capital leases
- convertible debentures

- income taxes and the application of available tax deductions

- capitalized general and administration (“G&A”) expenses
- other assets and liabilities

Income Producing Properties

ClubLink’s income producing properties consist of 25 golf courses and four Resorts. BMO
NB used primarily a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) analysis to value these properties, except
for the expansion component at four golf courses that ClubLink plans to expand as further
described below under “Properties Under Development” and certain properties that are held
for sale as further described below under “Non-Core Assets”.

The DCF approach reflects the growth prospects and risks inherent in ClubLink’s income
producing properties by taking into account the amount, timing and relative certainty of
projected unlevered free cash flows expected to be generated by each property during a
specified period. The DCF approach requires that certain assumptions be made regarding,
among other things, future unlevered free cash flows, discount rates, and terminal values at the
end of the projection period. BMO NB selected discount rates and cap rates for each property
that are based on pricing benchmarks of comparable golf course property transactions and that
reflect the inherent risks and growth prospects of the underlying property projections.
Reversionary cap rates were applied to each property’s terminal year unlevered free cash flow to
determine the property’s terminal value. The reversionary cap rates were determined with
reference to the growth prospects for each property beyond the terminal year.

The DCEF analysis involved discounting to a present value ClubLink management’s projected
unlevered free cash flows for each income producing property, as adjusted by BMO NB, from

the date hereof to December 31, 2012, including terminal values determined as at December 31,
2012.

BMO NB reviewed ten-year financial projections for each property prepared by ClubLink’s
management in October 2002 (the “ClubLink Projections”). Management’s estimate of
operating results for the 2002 fiscal year ending December 31, 2002 is based on actual operating
results for the nine months ended September 29, 2002 and management’s forecast operating
results for the fourth quarter. The projected operating results for each of the 10 years ending
December 31, 2012 are based on stated assumptions considered to be reasonable by ClubLink’s
management. The ClubLink Projections reflect certain Properties under construction and
expansion (see “Properties Under Development”) and the disposal of certain Properties that
ClubLink’s management has identified as being non-core to its operations (see “Non-Core
Assets™), and do not reflect any acquisitions or changes to ClubLink’s capital structure.
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The ClubLink Projections are summarized in the following table:

Year Ended December 31,

2002E 2003pP 2004P 2005P 20069 2007P
Number of 18-hole equivalent courses..........cooceveeeen. 31.0 30.0 30.0 30.5 325 335
Total active Members.........ccvveeiiiiiiieiiiereren e 8,682 10,069 11,508 12,690 13,293 13,71
Rounds played (000s) 749 668 767 820 887 920
REVENUES. .. .iiiieiiiiciiiiine e re e ee v e e rr cvn e eaas $124.7 $127.8 $141.3 $156.0 $172.7 $185.0
Net operating income (Millions)......cc.eeerreennreernennnninen $56.4 $58.9 $69.3 $79.9 $91.1 $99.4
EBITDA® (MIlions). . vcvveeererrecieieseeessessseeseseesensenecons $38.1 $40.5 $51.0 $61.2 $72.4 $80.2
EBITDA Margin......ccoevvieriveeiiiieiiieeiriessseseiaeiinannnnns 30.6% 31.7% 36.1% 39.2% 41.9% 43.4%
Capital expenditures (Millions).......ceueereeeeeeciinnniueienns $55.3 $47.3 $27.4 $41.0 $21.9 $9.0
Proceeds from rea! estate sales (Millions)...........cceeen.ns $23.3 $50.8 $12.0 $4.3 $4.2 -
2008P 2009P 2010P 2011P 2012P
Number of 18-hole equivalent courses.............c........ 335 335 335 335 335
Total active Members...........cccvvivieiercrrinrecrenvenicennns 14,017 14,281 14,494 14,666 14,801
Rounds played (000S).......c.ccorrireeiiiiiiierinrresiieenenes 941 947 953 958 961
REVENUGS....cveercnrrreiese s isteneeresitrseeessesssssnnenseeene $192.7 $197.5 $202.1 $206.1 $211.7
Net operating income (Millions)......cvurverreerecrerinceneennas $104.4 $104.4 $108.7 $107.7 $113.1
EBITDAM (Millions). .o.eveeeeveeeveeeeieeeeeteseeeseeseenee e, $84.7 $86.3 $87.8 $88.5 $90.8
EBITDA MargiN......ccocuiviiiemeeiaeniiviesiresianeecernenaaes 43.9% 43.7% 43.4% 43.0% 42.9%

Capital expenditures (Millions).......ccoveveveerrinirneeenenenns $6.9 $7.3 $7.5 $7.8 $8.1
Proceeds from real estate sales (Millions).........coeevunenee - - - - -

1. Cash EBITDA net of corporate G&A expenses.

BMO NB reviewed the assumptions made by management in preparing the ClubLink
Projections and made certain adjustments it considered appropriate relating to assumptions
involving two Properties that ClubLink intends to convert from Daily Fee to Member Golf
Clubs. BMO NB assumed that these two Properties remain as Daily Fee Golf Clubs, and
consequently reduced net operating income, EBITDA and unlevered free cash flow from these
two Properties by a total of $2.7 million in 2003 and by amounts in the range of $2.8 million to
$4.2 million in each of the years 2004 to 2012. BMO NB did not make any other adjustments
to the ClubLink Projections.

Appropriate discount rates and reversionary cap rates were selected based on precedent private
market transactions and BMO NB’s analysis of current golf course and real estate pricing
parameters. BMO NB used discount rates in the range of 13.0% to 16.5% and reversionary cap
rates in the range of 10.0% to 13.0% for the income producing properties.

The values resulting from the above analysis were then recast to represent a price per golf hole,
a price per acre and a “going-in cap rate” for each Property, and compared against available data
for recent similar golf course sale transactions to ensure that these measures were also
consistent with market pricing parameters. This analysis resulted in an aggregate value for
ClubLink’s income producing properties of $445.1 million to $488.4 million.

10
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Properties Under Development

BMO NB used primarily a “discounted residual cash flow” analysis to value ClubLink’s three
golf courses under construction and the expansion components at four golf courses. This
approach utilizes a DCF analysis and includes a deduction of the expenditures required to
complete the developments.

BMO NB prepared unlevered free cash flow projections for the properties under development
based on the ClubLink Projections. BMO NB reviewed the assumptions in the ClubLink
Projections and determined that no material adjustments were necessary. Appropriate discount
rates and reversionary cap rates were selected based on precedent private market transactions
and BMO NB’s analysis of current golf course and real estate pricing parameters. BMO NB
used discount rates in the range of 15.0% to 25.0% and reversionary cap rates in the range of
11.0% to 14.0% for the properties under development. This analysis resulted in an aggregate
value for properties under development of $39.7 million to $53.0 million.

Non-Core Assets

ClubLink management has identified certain non-core assets comprised of certain Properties
that are being held for sale, undeveloped land, and various corporate assets. These non-core
assets were valued using a net realizable value approach. The net realizable value was
determined on the basis of existing offers to purchase or, where no offers exist, appropriate
benchmark pricing parameters, net of disposition costs and income tax expenses. This analysis
resulted in an aggregate value for non-core assets of $76.6 million to $92.0 million.

Cash, Marketable Securities and Option Proqeeds

ClubLink’s cash and marketable securities amounted to $5.8 million as at September 29, 2002.
Given that its NAV analysis is based on ClubLink’s balance sheet as at September 29, 2002,
BMO NB reduced ClubLink’s cash balance by $2.8 million to reflect the estimated free cash
flow used during the period between September 29, 2002 and the date hereof. Further, BMO
NB assumed that all Common Share purchase options with exercise prices less than the NAV
per Common Share are exercised to purchase Common Shares for cash as of the date hereof.
ClubLink has outstanding options to purchase approximately 2.6 million Common Shares at
prices ranging from $5.17 to $13.73 per share. The option proceeds included in NAV are $7.7
million at the low end and $12.8 million at the high end of the NAV value range.

Other Assets and Liabilities

Other assets and liabilities, including mortgages, loans receivable, and other working capital
items, were valued at their book values for purposes of the NAV analysis except for (i) deferred
financing fees of $3.4 million, to which BMO NB attributed no value, (ii) accrued liabilities,
which BMO NB adjusted upward by up to $10.0 million to reflect the risk of potential
additional liability and (iii) net deferred membership fees having a book value of $8.8 million,
which BMO NB eliminated (net of related tax effect) because the cash flows relating to
membership fees are incorporated in the DCF analysis of income producing properties.

11
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Non-Convertible Debt and Capital Leases

ClubLink has total non-convertible debt of $152.9 million, drawn operating lines of $3.6
million and capital lease obligations of $15.7 million. The fixed rate debt of approximately

$103.8 million has a weighted average coupon rate of 8.0% and a weighted average term to
maturity of approximately 10.4 years.

Based on current Government of Canada bond yields and current lending credit spreads, BMO
NB estimates that marking the fixed rate debt to market would increase ClubLink’s NAV by
approximately $2.3 million because current market rates for fixed rate debt having a similar
term to maturity are slightly higher than ClubLink’s weighted average coupon rate. BMO NB
reviewed the spread with respect to ClubLink’s floating rate debt and determined that it

approximates a market spread. Capital lease obligations were valued at their book values, which
approximate market values.

Debentures

BMO NB determined that the value of the Convertible Debentures is in the range of $59.0 to
$64.6 million as described under “Valuation of ClubLink Debentures”.

12
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Capitalized GEA

The NAV method requires a downward adjustment to be made to NAYV to reflect the impact of
G&A expenses. For purposes of the NAV analysis, BMO NB estimated annual G&A expenses
of $15.6 million which exclude amounts relating to non-core assets. BMO NB deducted $109.2
million to $124.8 million for capitalized G&A in arriving at the NAV range, based on a 7.0x to
8.0x multiple of the estimated annual G&A expenses.

Synergies

BMO NB reviewed and considered whether any distinctive material benefit and corresponding
value would accrue to a purchaser through the acquisition of all of ClubLink’s Common Shares.
BMO NB concluded that there are no material operational and financial benefits, such as
increased revenues, reduced operating costs or lower income taxes, based on BMO NB’s

assumption that there are no potential acquirors for ClubLink who currently operate
businesses similar to ClubLink’s.

Income Taxes

The value determined for ClubLink’s income producing properties based on the method
described above reflects the price that an arm’s length third party would be willing to pay for
these properties if such parties had a capital cost base for tax purposes equal to the NAV.
ClubLink’s historical tax base is below the value determined above and therefore the NAV
method requires NAYV to be adjusted downward to reflect the foregone tax shield. BMO NB
determined that the total present value of the foregone tax shield arising from the difference
between the NAV of the income producing properties and ClubLink’s historical tax base, using
going concern assumptions, was in the range of $19.6 to $24.5 million.

This potential tax liability could be offset by tax deductions available to ClubLink such as tax
loss carryforwards (“LCFs”). ClubLink has approximately $7.8 million of non-capital LCFs
that expire over the next seven years and approximately $6.6 of capital LCFs that have no
expiry. ClubLink has not recognized any tax benefit associated with the potential utilization of
the non-capital and capital LCFs in its financial statements. Based upon a review of the
available LCFs and the timing and associated risks of their realization, BMO NB ascribed $0.2
million of value to the non-capital LCFs and assumed that the capital LCFs are used to shelter
capital gains from the disposal of non-core assets referred to herein.
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Summary of NAV Analysis

The following table summarizes BMO NB’s analysis of the fair market value of the Common

Shares at the date hereof using the NAV method:

(% millions, except per share amounts) NAYV Per Share
Low High
Assets
INCOME PrOGUCING ProPEMIES....vtiire i eecrrirerree i ereeee e $445.1 $488.4
Properties under development..........cccccooeiinniiiiniiniec e, $39.7 $53.0
N ON-COTE @SS . uruerrierneeriererenerinrierernrerteeesraserstareserrteeseranses $76.6 $92.0
Cash, marketable securities & option proceeds.........ccc.cceeevvrnnnen.., $10.7 $15.8
(01 T - 1=} L T OO SOOI $31.3 $31.3
Total Assets $603.4 $680.5
Liabilities
Non-convertible debt and capital [€@ses..........ccovvviviniieiiiineennennsnss $169.9 $169.9
= oY= 3 {7 - S PP $59.0 $64.6
Other liabilities......co.iieieie e $39.8 $49.8
Capitalized G&A BXPENSES...cccviviiiririiiietiiireiareeeereetarrsnsesnireen, $109.2 $124.8
Income tax adjustMmeENnt.........oviiiin i et e $19.6 $24.5
Total Liabilities $397.5 $433.6
ATEEr-tax NAV .. e ettt e e ea e e e $205.9 $246.9
Shares outstanding (assumes option exercise).........c.ovvvuveeerecenrinnnnnne 20.0 20.5
After-tax NAV per Common Share [ $10.29 $12.05
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Sensitivity Analysis

In completing our NAV analysis, BMO NB performed various sensitivity analyses which are
summarized in the table below. The results of these sensitivity analyses are reflected in our
judgment as to the appropriate range of values of the Common Shares based on the NAV
approach.

Increase (Decrease) in NAV Per Share

Low High

Discount Rates

T ettt ettt - ($1.08) - ($1.27)

TSR TURTRR + $1.18 + $1.39
Reversionary Cap Rates

F Tttt a e, - ($0.65) - {30.85)

o L RO U TR OPPN + $0.78 +  $1.03
Annual Dues

- 5Y0 POI YEAN...eiiiiierireeuereeeeereenteerterareeraraaaresanrrtraresaraaarnrees +-  $0.67 +-  $0.74
Number of Rounds

B 3 X 1oL AT | PP U USSR +/- $0.59 +/-  $0.65
Green Fees

R L N o= Y- PR +-  $0.13 +/-  $0.14
Initiation Fees

N Y N <=L LT- | SO O OO URRR +- %011 +/-  $0.12
New Members

- SY0 DI YOOI ...eu ettt iineerir et e e e e riee e e re e reraan e ee e reerenann +/-  $0.09 +/-  $0.09

Valuation Conclusion

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, BMO NB is of the opinion that, as of the date hereof,
the fair market value of the Common Shares is in the range of $10.29 to $12.05 per share.

VALUATION OF TRI-WHITE COMMON SHARES

Rule 61-501 requires that the Valuation of Tri-White common shares include an en bloc
valuation, which BMO NB has prepared and set out below. However, in the context of the
Transaction, BMO NB has determined that an en bloc valuation of Tri-White common shares
would be of limited relevance to holders of ClubLink Common Shares. Consequently, BMO
NB has also prepared a “Settled Trading Value” analysis to determine a range of values for the
Tri-White common shares, based on an assessment of the likely trading range of those shares in
the open market assuming that in the Transaction Tri-White acquires all of the ClubLink
Common Shares it does not already own. BMO NB considers the Settled Trading Value
analysis to be an appropriate method of valuing the Tri-White common shares in the context of
the Transaction.

En Bloc Valuation Method

In accordance with the Rules, in its en bloc Valuation BMO NB has made no downward
adjustment to the fair market value of the Tri-White common shares to reflect the liquidity of
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those shares, the effect of the Transaction on those shares or the fact that the Tri-White
common shares held by individual shareholders do not form part of a controlling interest.

The principal valuation approach BMO NB used in its en bloc Valuation of the Tri-White
common shares is the DCF method. BMO NB also performed a precedent transaction analysis
and reviewed transactions in the entertainment, resort, destination and lodging industries;
however, BMO NB determined that none of the precedent transactions is sufficiently
comparable to Tri-White to be useful. BMO NB performed an analysis of other public
companies in the entertainment, resort, destination and lodging industries to determine
whether a public market trading analysis might imply a fair market value of the Tri-White
common shares that exceeded the value determined by the DCF analysis. BMO NB
determined that the public market trading analysis implied values that were generally below
those implied by the DCF analysis. In light of the foregoing and the fact that public company
trading values generally reflect minority discounts from en bloc values, BMO NB did not rely
on the analysis of other public companies in its en bloc Valuation of the Tri-White common
shares.

Discounted Cash Flow Analysis

BMO NB’s DCF analysis involved discounting to a present value Tri-White’s projected
unlevered after-tax free cash flows from the date hereof to December 31, 2007, including
terminal values determined as at December 31, 2007.

Tri-White Projections

In October 2002 management of Tri-White prepared a forecast of Tri-White’s operating results
for the period of approximately five years ending December 31, 2007 (the “Tri-White
Projections”), which is summarized in the following table:

Year Ended December 31,

2002E 2003P 2004P 2005P 2006P 2007P
Passenger capacity (0005)...........cccocviniereiiniinennnonninn 323 366 382 398 408 424
Rail passengers (0005).......uevueerenrieinunireennieeiaeecnnenns 3n 346 359 375 389 403
Capacity Utilization...........coovevvimvreiisinvininiincinans 96% 95% 94% 94% 95% 95%
REVENUES (MIllioNs). .. ceverrvrenesriiiniiesriennssnassraeesessnes $41.1 $44.3 $45.8 $49.2 $51.4 $53.6
EBITDA (Millions).se.eeersvermreiienianensiiimieeminmnaninsenne. $17.3 $19.5 $19.9 $22.0 $22.8 $23.6
EBITDA margin.... 42.1% 44.1% 43.3% 44.7% 44.4% 44.1%
Capital expenditures (Millions).........ccoveveenrsivreescrinnne $6.1 $9.1 $3.6 $149 $3.6 $3.1

Unlevered After-tax Free Cash Flow

As a basis for the development of the projected future unlevered after-tax free cash flows,
BMO NB reviewed the Tri-White Projections and relevant underlying assumptions including,
but not limited to, anticipated rail passengers, average revenue per passenger growth rate,
operating costs and capital expenditures. These assumptions were reviewed in comparison to
historical operating trends and other information BMO NB considered relevant, including
detailed discussions with the senior management of Tri-White. From this review, and

16

172




considering the range of appropriate discount rates to be applied to the unlevered after-tax cash
flows in the DCF analysis, BMO NB separated Tri-White’s Projections into two components
(core cash flows and expansion cash flows) during the period from the date hereof to

December 31, 2007.

The core cash flow component reflects future cash flows that include (i) sustaining capital
expenditures that Tri-White management expects to incur during the forecast period and (ii)
growth capital expenditures that Tri-White management has budgeted for and expects to incur
prior to the start of the 2003 season. The expansion cash flow component reflects future cash
flows that include growth capital expenditures that Tri-White management has provided for
over the period from fiscal 2004 to fiscal 2007. Tri-White management has indicated that the
timing and execution of these expansion plans is contingent on future market conditions.

A summary of future capital expenditures and the incremental passengers used in BMO NB’s

DCEF analysis is presented in the following table:

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2004
($ Millions) Passengers ($ Millions) Passengers ($ Millions) Passengers
{'000s) ('000s) ('000s)
CapEx - Sustaining™ $4.2 319 $2.8 346 $2.5 346
CapEx - Expansion $4.9 27 $0.8 13 $12.4 29
Total CapEx $9.1 346 $3.6 359 $14.9 375

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2007
{$ Millions) Passengers ($ Millions) Passengers
('000s) ("000s)
CapEx - Sustaining'” $3.1 346 $2.3 346
CapEx - Expansion $0.5 43 $0.8 57
Total CapEx $3.6 389 $3.1 403

1. Represents maintenance of way, train and engine service costs, shops, environmental, and other sustaining expenditures.

A summary of the unlevered after-tax free cash flow projections, by component, used in our

DCEF analysis is presented below:

17
173




($ Milfions) Year Ended December 31,

2002E 2003P 20049 2005P 2006P 2007p Terminal
EBITDA i ettt trratees et serabee s e e e rs st rse e nrrnna s $17.3 $19.5 $19.0 $19.8 $19.4 $19.0 $19.4
Unlevered cash taX..........ccceeevvieine ($4.0) ($4.9) ($4.8) (55.2) ($5.2) ($5.2) ($6.1)
Changes in non-cash working capital... $0.2 ($0.4) (30.1) ($0.2) (30.1) {$0.1) ($0.2)
Capital EXPENGILUTES...eeeerrerrrerrreeeerarrrinesesreesiareseenreeeiasennnns (36.1) ($9.1) ($2.8) ($2.5) ($3.1) (52.3) ($2.4)
Unlevered after-tax free cash flowW.......cocvvvieeeieerinininriencsniennnss $7.3 $5.1 $11.3 $11.8 $11.0 $11.4 $10.8
Tri-White E ion Cash Flows:
1$ Millions) Year Ended December 31,

2002E 2003P 2004P 2005P 2006P 2007P Terminal
EBITDA ..ovitiintiiiiiirentmis v e ente st sresssssa e b an e snesrassoasanan - - $0.8 $2.2 $3.4 $4.6 $4.7
Unlevered cash taX......c.ceueerevreees - - (30.3) ($0.6) ($0.9) ($1.4) (§1.3)
Changes in non-cash working capital... ($0.2) ($0.3) ($0.2) ($0.2) $0.0
Capital expenditures.......cccc.vveverennee. - - (30.8) ($12.4) ($0.5) ($0.8) ($0.8)
Unievered after-tax free cash flow.......c.ccovvvriievicecnenie e, - - (50.4) ($11.1) $1.7 $2.1 $2.6

Discount Rates

Projected unlevered after-tax free core cash flows for Tri-White were discounted based on the
estimated weighted average cost of capital (“WACC”). The WACC was calculated based upon
Tri-White’s after-tax cost of debt and equity, weighted based upon an assumed optimal capital
structure. The assumed optimal capital structure was determined based upon a review of the
capital structures of comparable companies in the entertainment, resort, destination and
lodging industries and the risks inherent in Tri-White. The cost of debt for Tri-White was
calculated based on the risk-free rate of return and an appropriate borrowing spread to reflect
the credit risk in the assumed optimal capital structure. BMO NB used the capital asset pricing
mode] ("CAPM") approach to determine the appropriate cost of equity. The CAPM approach
calculates the cost of equity with reference to the risk-free rate of return, the volatility of
equity prices relative to a benchmark ("beta") and the equity risk premium. BMO NB reviewed
a range of unlevered betas for Tri-White and comparable companies in the entertainment,
resort, destination and lodging industries. The selected unlevered beta was levered using the
assumed optimal capital structure and was then used to calculate the cost of equity. BMO NB

also reviewed and considered industry median levered betas generated by a third party financial
consultant.
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BMO NB’s determination of the WACC for Tri-White is summarized in the following table:

Cost of Debt

Risk free rate (10 year Government of Canada bond)........coccviiiniiiiiiiii it 5.3%
BOFTOWING SPTEAG. ...euiiiiiiie i e e et et et e e e e eean b s asana e en s e e nt s aas 2.5%
Pre-1ax COSt OF QEbt. ..o e et e e e e ee et e ae it e e e ree e e aateeee e eebane e eraans 7.8%
Tax rate 40.2%
After-tax cost of debt 4.6%
Cost of Equity

EQUILY FISK PIEmMIUM ™ o ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e e e et e e e et es s s e s e aere e e e e 6.0%
Small market capitalization Premitm® . .. ..o ettt 2.0%
Comparable Unlevered Beta. .. .o e e e e e e e e 0.65
Comparable [eVered Beta. .. ... .. it et e et et e b ar et aaar e ebe e aaen 0.86
industry levered beta® 0.98
BMO Nesbitt Burns selected levered beta 1.00
ATLET-1AX COST OF BGUITY...eiuiitiireeiriiii e s et et earttie e e e e e et e e e e e asaseesaaestnaaasersssasaassaaeaseeneanaanes 13.3%
WACC

Optimal capital StTUCTUTE (%8 debt)..cc. i e e e et e e e bt s bt e e satat sae st erbneeeearans 35.0%
L7 o PP PR URP 10.2%

1. Determined by BMO NB8.
2. Source: Ibbotson Associates, inc.
3. Source: BARRA, inc.

Based upon the foregoing, and taking into account BMO NB’s sensitivity analyses on the
variables selected above and the assumptions used in the core cash flow component, BMO NB
determined the appropriate WACC for Tri-White’s core cash flows to be in the range of 9.5%
to 10.5%.

Given the inherent risks in realizing the expansion cash flows, as discussed above, BMO NB

determined the appropriate WACC for Tri-White’s expansion cash flows to be in the range of
14.5% to0 15.5%.

Terminal Value

BMO NB developed terminal enterprise values at the end of the projection period using a
perpetuity growth rate, whereby the terminal year free cash flow is capitalized at the WACC
less a growth factor of 1.5% to 2.5% per annum determined by reference to expected free cash
flow growth beyond the projection period. In selecting this range of growth rates, BMO NB

took into consideration the outlook for long term inflation and the growth prospects of Tri-
White beyond the terminal year.
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Summary of DCF Analysis

The following is a summary of the range of fair market values of the Tri-White common shares

determined by BMO NB based on its DCF analysis:

DCF Value

Assumptions Low High
Perpetuily Growth Fate.......oiiiuiiiiiiiiii i e e e s eseae 1.5% 2.5%
WVACC (COTE CASN FIOWS) .. vutenrrererenteentuesensenessassarsensssnensrsressssesseseresssssnssssessenessesenenssenisetsssssnsssssrences 10.5% 9.5%
WVVACC (EXPANSION CASH FIOWS). . 1enenaettaenertineterteetiereaeeraneeessenseerusesrvensnsrssssessesteesssnrnseassrssssaessenrensssssssssnsns 14.5% 15.5%
DCF Analysis (3 millions, except per share data)
Net present value of core cash flows

Unlevered after-tax free cash flows (2003-2007)........uivivuieiieiiiiiicir e e ee e e ee e $38.3 $39.2

TOIMINAI VBIUC. .vvevvieeientiiiiseetiereeeetrirereeaeeteeaberaessetnesteseeerseres s s b teess enessansstsseassnsasntnenrnsnaesesnnne $71.5 $96.4
Enterprise value of core cash flows............. $109.8 $135.6
Enterprise value of expansion cash flows $3.1 $4.9
NEE DT, .ottt ettt ettt e e s et et et st sttt e et eaae st e et ot aent e neraeeerenanns ($2.6) (52.6)
Investment in Unconsolidated INVESTMENTSD . .. .. oottt st s et e e e aeaeee s e reeeeeee e $45.8 $45.8
EQUITY VBIUR. ... ceiiveiiiire ettt ettt e et eee e et e s e e e e e e ee s eeseaa e e et b et e et e e e et eateaasaaantraraeabebvannraaneaanes $156.0 $183.7
Equity value per common share® | $3.35 $3.94 |

1. Net of cash and option proceeds.
2. Includes Tri-White's interest in Clubtink.
3. Based on fully diluted shares outstanding.

Valuation Conclusion — En Bloc Method

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, BMO NB is of the opinion that, as of the date hereof,

the en bloc fair market value of the Tri-White common shares is in the range of $3.35 to $3.94
per share.

Settled Trading Value Method

In the context of the Transaction, BMO NB is of the view that a “Settled Trading Value”
analysis of the value of the Tri-White common shares would be more appropriate, and more
relevant to holders of ClubLink Common Shares, than an en bloc valuation of the Tri-White
common shares. The Settled Trading Value analysis involves an assessment of the range of
prices in which the Tri-White common shares are likely to trade in the open market following
completion of the Transaction.

BMO NB is of the view that the market trading prices of the Tri-White common shares will be
based on a multiple of EBITDA. BMO NB believes that investors will also apply a “holding
company discount” to Tri-White’s pro forma equity trading value in arriving at the Settled
Trading Value. The extent of the holding company discount will depend on the level of Tri-
White’s ownership of ClubLink after the Transaction is completed.

For purposes of the Settled Trading Value analysis, BMO NB assumed that Tri-White will
acquire 1in the Transaction all of the Common Shares it does not already own to increase its
ownership to 100% of the ClubLink Common Shares, and that Tri-White will acquire all of the
ClubLink Debentures in exchange for Tri-White Debentures. BMO NB did not conduct a
similar Settled Trading Value analysis by assuming that Tri-White acquires only that number of
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ClubLink Common Shares that would increase its ownership to 50.1% because, under the
terms of the Transaction, Tri-White potentially could do so entirely for cash consideration
without issuing any additional Tri-White common shares.

Tri-White common shares may trade in the public markets at prices that reflect a liquidity
discount due to the limited public float of those shares; however, BMO NB did not make any
adjustments in its Settled Trading Value analysis to reflect a liquidity discount.

Tri-White Pro Forma Operating Results

Based on the foregoing assumptions and on ClubLink’s and Tri-White’s stand-alone projected
operating results for fiscal 2003, Tri-White’s estimated pro forma operating results for 2003
following completion of the Transaction would be as follows:

(Amounts in % millions uniess noted otherwise) Tri-White
Tri-White ClubLink Pro Forma

ROV UGS, .t tiernieiiieesi e ervareentesneararsnennennas S $44.3 $127.4 $171.7
[0 7 $19.5 $39.5 $59.0
EBITDA Margin.....cccovuevererareiinsiiinienanssiinineianenssns 44.1% 31.0% 34.4%

Pro Forma Balance Sheet ("

Debt
Non-convertible debt, net of cash.........cooveiviiinenennnns $4.1 $182.2 $240.9
Convertible debt @ ... .......ooviiieiiiee e - $76.7 $64.9
EQUITY. e+ et eereeee et et ses e eae e eteeas e en et ene e enee $112.6 $208.1 $162.7
Debt / Capitalization.............ccoovvvvivviniinneiiiiinniiniinnninas 3.5% 55.7% 65.4%
DBt/ EBITDA. ...t eteeeee e eeseaneaans 0.2x 6.6x 5.2x

1. Based on Tri-White and ClubLink stand-alone forecast balance sheets as of December 31, 2002.

2. BMO NB's mid-point valuation estimate under Scenario 1 (see *Valuation of Tri-White Debentures”).

Based upon a review of the trading prices and financial results of selected comparable public
companies in the golf, entertainment, resort, destination and lodging industries, BMO NB
estimates that the pro forma enterprise value of Tri-White would be in the range of $412.8
million to $442.3 million, based on a multiple of 7.0x to 7.5x Tri-White’s pro forma 2003
EBITDA of $59.0 million. BMO NB then deducted from the enterprise value Tri-White’s pro
forma non-convertible debt (net of cash and option proceeds from in-the-money options) and
convertible debt of $64.9 million (which represents the mid-point value estimate for the Tri-
White Debentures in Scenario 1 described under “Valuation of Tri-White Debentures”), and
added redundant assets and equity investments of $67.3 million to arrive at an unadjusted
equity value of $175.9 to $205.3 million.

BMO NB estimates that a holding company discount of 10% to 20% would be applied to Tri-
White’s pro forma unadjusted equity value based on the assumptions described above and its
review of comparable public holding companies. For purposes of our analysis, we have used
our mid-point estimate of 15% for a holding company discount in order to arrive at an adjusted
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equity value. The number of fully diluted shares outstanding is based on Tri-White issuing the
maximum number of Tri-White common shares in the Transaction and includes shares assumed
to be issued on the exercise of all in-the-money options.

Summary of Settled Trading Value Analysis

The following table summarizes the determination of the value of the Tri-White common
shares using the Settled Trading Value approach:

Settled Trading Value
(3 millions, except per share amounts) Low High
EBITDA .. oottt ettt e e e neaer e e e ee e $59.0
MURIPIE FaNGE... vt e e 7.0x - 7.5x
ENterprise valUe. . ..covviiii et e e e, $412.8 - $442.3
Non-convertible debt, net of cash........cocoiiiiiiiiiiii s {$239.4)
Convertible debt. ..o e ($64.9)
Redundant assets and equity investments................ccoeviiiiniicinnnnn $67.3
EQUILY VaIUE..c.e i et e e e $175.9 - $205.3
Holding company discount........c.eiiiiniiiiiii i e e e eaen, 15.0%
Adjusted equity Value....c..cooeiiiiiiciii e $149.5 - $174.5
Fully diluted shares outstanding ..........cooeeiviieiiiiiiiirenence e, 64.1

Settled Trading Value _ | $2.33 - $2.72 |

Valuation Conclusion — Settled Trading Value Method

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, we estimate that the value of the Tri-White common

shares as at the date hereof, based on a Settled Trading Value analysis, is in the range of $2.33
to $2.72 per share.

VALUATION OF CLUBLINK DEBENTURES
Description of the Debentures

The Debentures were issued in May 1998 and mature on May 15, 2008. Each debenture bears
interest at 6.0% per annum, payable semi-annually on May 15 and November 15. The
debentures are not redeemable prior to May 15, 2003. On or after May 15, 2003, each $1,000
principal amount of Debentures is redeemable, at ClubLink’s option, subject to certain
conditions being met, at a price of $1,000 plus accrued interest. ClubLink may elect to make
interest, principal and redemption payments in cash or in Common Shares of ClubLink. Each
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Debenture is convertible at the holder’s option into Common Shares at a conversion price of

$20.00 per share, being 50 Common Shares per $1,000 principal amount of Debentures, subject
to adjustment in certain events.

Valuation Approach

BMO NB determined the value of the ClubLink Debentures using the intrinsic bond valuation
mode! (“Intrinsic Bond Valuation Model”). That model is based on the concept of a
combination of two binary trees: an interest rate binomial tree and a stock price binomial tree.
The Intrinsic Bond Valuation Model derives a total intrinsic value of the Debenture that is
comprised of a pure bond value and a conversion option value based on assumptions
concerning volatility and price for the ClubLink Common Shares, prevailing interest rates and
credit spreads. BMO NB also considered historical trading analysis as a comparative

benchmark, but did not rely on that analysis because it does not appropriately reflect the
intrinsic value of the Debentures.

In the Intrinsic Bond Valuation Model, BMO NB selected a range of 35% to 45% as the
appropriate volatility range for the Common Shares into which the Debentures are convertible.
Based on a review and analysis of ClubLink’s debt levels and coverage ratios compared with
those of other companies across various industries as well as an analysis of pricing parameters
for public debt securities, BMO NB used a credit spread range for the ClubLink Debentures of
700 to 900 basis points. Given prevailing Government of Canada bond yields and the above

credit spread range, BMO NB used a discount rate for ClubLink Debentures of 11.3% to
13.3%.

Valuation Conclusion

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, BMO NB is of the opinion that, as of the date hereof,
the value of each $1,000 principal amount of ClubLink Debentures is in the range of $769 to
$842, excluding unpaid interest accrued to the date hereof.

VALUATION OF TRI-WHITE DEBENTURES

Description of Tri-White Debentures

Under the terms of the Transaction, each holder of Debentures is entitled to receive an
equivalent principal amount of Tri-White Debentures. The terms and conditions of the
proposed Tri-White Debentures are identical to those of the Debentures except that the Tri-
White Debentures are convertible at the option of the holder into Tri-White common shares at
a conversion price of $8.00 per share.

Valuation Approach

BMO NB used the Intrinsic Bond Valuation Model in valuing the Tri-White Debentures. Tri-
White’s offer to acquire Debentures in the Transaction 1s conditional on, among other things,
Tri-White acquiring sufficient Common Shares of ClubLink to increase its ownership to at
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least 50.1% of the Common Shares outstanding. BMO NB therefore considered two scenarios
in valuing the Tri-White Debentures:

- Scenario 1 assumes that Tri-White acquires all of the issued and outstanding ClubLink
Common Shares it does not already own; and

- Scenario 2 assumes that Tri-White acquires sufficient ClubLink Common Shares to
increase its ownership to 50.1% of the outstanding shares.

In Scenario 1, Tri-White would own 100% of the equity of ClubLink and would have access to
all of ClubLink’s cash flow to fund Tri-White’s operations, including paying principal and
interest on the Tri-White Debentures. In Scenario 2, Tri-White would be able to access only a
portion of ClubLink’s cash flow if and when ClubLink paid dividends on its Common Shares
(as well as through the receipt of principal and interest paid on the ClubLink Debentures
acquired by Tri-White in the Transaction), which would exacerbate the “structural
subordination” of the Tri-White Debentures to other financial obligations of ClubLink.
Accordingly, BMO NB selected a higher discount rate under Scenario 2.

BMO NB selected a range of 40% to 50% as the appropriate volatility range for the Tri-White
common shares underlying the Tri-White Debentures in both Scenarios 1 and 2. Further, in
each scenario BMO NB assumed a pro forma Tri-White common share price of $2.53, being
the mid-point estimate of the Settled Trading Value range. Based upon a review and analysis of
Tri-White’s pro forma debt levels and coverage ratios as compared with those of other
companies across various industries, as well as an analysis of pricing parameters for public debt
securities, BMO NB estimated a credit spread premium for the Tri-White Debentures of 500 to
700 basis points in Scenario 1 and 1400 to 1600 basis points in Scenario 2. Given prevailing
Government of Canada bond yields and the above credit spread ranges, BMO NB estimated a
discount rate of 9.3% to 11.3% in Scenario 1 and 18.3% to 20.3% in Scenario 2.

Valuation Conclusion

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, BMO NB is of the opinion that, as of the date hereof,
the value of the Tri-White Debentures is in the following ranges:

- Scenario 1 - $808 to $886 per $1,000 principal amount

- Scenario 2 - $591 to $644 per $1,000 principal amount.

SUMMARY OF VALUATION CONCLUSIONS

The following summarizes BMO NB’s Valuation conclusions set out above:

Security Valuation Range

ClubLink Common Shares (per share) $10.29 to $12.05
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Tr1-White Common Shares (per share)
* En Bloc Method
* Settled Trading Value Method

ClubLink Debentures (per $1,000 principal amount)
Tri-White Debentures (per $1,000 principal amount)

* Scenario 1%
* Scenario 2?9

$3.35
$2.33

$769

$808
$591

(1) Assuming Tri-White increases its ownership to 100% of ClubLink’s Common Shares.
(2) Assuming Tri-White increases its ownership to 50.1% of ClubLink’s Common Shares.

Yours very truly,

BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc.

10
to

$3.94
$2.72

$842

$886
$644
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